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WELCOME TO BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC

Our aim 18 to be recognised
as the nation’s leading
housebuilder, creating
communities where people

aspire to hve.

l

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

* Total completions, including joint ventures,
up 6 3% to 13,663 (2012 12,857) for the full year

« Private average selling price up by 6 0%
to £213,800 (2012 £201,800)

* Revenue up 12 2% to £2.606 2m
(2012 £2,323 4m)

» Operating profit before operating exceptional
tems up 32 2% to £252 Tm (2012 £191 Im)

* Operating margin before operating exceptional
ttems increased to 10 4% (2012 9 5%) inthe
second half and 9 7% (2012 8 2%) for the full year

+ Profit before tax and exceptional items up 73 7%
to £192 3m (2012 £110 Tm) After exceptional
tems of £87 Sm (2012 £10 Tm), profit before tax
was £104 8m (2012 £100 Om)

» Sigrificant reduction 1n net debt to £25 9m
(2012 £167 Tmy)

* Good opportunities in the land market with
18,536 plots (2012 12,085 plots) approved
for purchase in the year

1 Baslk eanings per share 77p {2012 70p)

Revenue

£2,000.2m

(2012 £2,323 4m)

Opesating profit betore operating exceptional tems

£252. m

(2012 €191 1m}

Adwusted earnings per share before exceptional items

14.6p'

{2012 81p)

Net debt

£25.9m

(2012 £167 7m)

VISIT QUR ONLINE REPORT AT

www annualrepori barraitdevelopments co uk
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
GROUP OVERVIEW

AT A GLANCE

About us

Barratt Developments PLC 1s one of the nation’s
largest housebuilders with over 5,000
employees and 27 divisions' throughout Bnitain

In the year, we sold 13,663 homes (including joint
ventures)® We operate across a broad spectrum

of the market from flats to farmly homes and
urban regeneration schemes We also have a
focused commercial developments business

02

Also sese Bulding new

communities on pages 21 24
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OUR HOMES

We build a vanety of homes ranging from those for first-time buyers,
to famity homes, to high-rnise flats and affordable housing We seek
to match our products with customer demand and local regutation

2012/13 completions by unit type

2013 2012
@ 1 and 2 bedroom houses 13% 13%
@ 3 bedroom houses % 31%
@ 4 bedioom houses 23% 20%

5 and 6 bedroom houses 4% 4%
@ Fiats (London) 10% 9%

Flats {non-London) 19% 23%

OUR BRANDS

Qur housebulding business trades under the Barratt Homes, Dawid
Wilson Homes and Ward Homes brands Commerciat developments
are delivered by Wilson Bowden Developments

1 Inthe yaar ended 30 June 2013, we cperated {rom 25 divisions Cn 1 July 2013
we opaned another division In Abardeen Wa are atso in the process of opening
a cantral London division which will be fully operational in November 2013
2 Total completlons, including joint venturas werse 13 863 (2012 12 B57) {or the year
Private complations for 1he year were 10 978 (2012 9 832) Affordable complations for
the yoar were 2 268 (2012 2 805) and JV completions In which the Group had an interest
ware 417 (2012 220) Unless otherwise stated, all numbars quotad exclude joint ventures
3 Our South Wales division was included in our Wast reglon until 30 June 2013
From 1 July 2013 our Souih Walss division became part of our Cantral regicn




OUR CUSTOMERS

Qur customers include first-time buyers, families, investors and
Registered Providers Customer service and satisfaction are of
paramount importance to us Our local teams seek to ensure that
our customers are satisfied with their new homes

2012/13 completions by deal type

2013 2012
@ Equity share 10% 20%
@ Help to Buy 4% -
@ Part-exchange 16% 15%
@ NewBuy 6% 1%

Other prvate 4% 33%
@ investor 13% 9%
@ Atiordable 17% 22%

OUR DELIVERY

OUR GEOGRAPHIC SPREAD

We are a national housebuilder committed to operating throughout
Great Bntain Our comimergial developments business also has

a national footprint, with a particutar focus on the Midiands and

the North of England

2012/13 completions by region

Compiletion by region 2013 2012 Increase %
@ Northern 2,410 2,326 4%
© Central® 2,377 2,153 10%
© East 2,416 2,359 2%
© Southem 2,052 2,103 (2%)
© London 1,362 1,233 10%
O West? 2,629 2,463 7%
Total completions 13,246 12,637 5%
Joint ventures 417 220 90%
Total completions
{inciuding joint ventures) 13,663 12,857 6%

We operate throughout Great Bntan under the Barratt Homes
and David Wilson Homes brands, and m Kent and the South East
also under the Ward Homes brand In 2012413, we operated from
an average of 381 (2012 381} active sites and 6 2012 &) jont
venture sites

Qur focus 1s on bulding profitability, mauintaining an appropnate capital structure and improving our return on capital employed, whilst ensunng we

mantan a sufficent land supply to meet the future needs of the business

Operating profil before operating  Net debt
exceptional items

£252. Mm £259m

(2012 £1911m) (2012 €167 7m;}

Profit before tax and Owned and controlied land bank
exceplional terms years {(based on 2012/13 volumes)
(2012 £107m) {2012 41 years)

Profit before tax

£104.8m

(2012 £100 Om)

A brand new community of houses and apartments at Kingfisher Park in Buntingford Herttordshée
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
GROUP OVERVIEW

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

04

The way we work

Our objectives are to build profitabihty, mamtain an appropnate
capital structure and to dnve return on capital employed These
are underpinned by our business model of targeted land
buying, delivering effective planning, desigrung outstanding
homes supported by construction excellence and providing
an industry leading customer experience

INCREASING RETURNS

We aim to deliver increasing
returns for our shareholders

Operating profit*
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{2012 £1911m)

*Excluding cperating excepilional items

TARGETED LAND BUYING

We am to secure high margin
land in targeted locations

Proposed land acquisitions must
meet profit and return on capital
hurdles in order to receve Land
Committee approval

Land purchases approved in 2013
of £1,047 3m equating to

18,536 plots
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INDUSTRY LEADING
CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE

We provide a first class expenence
for customers buying the homes we build

The only major housebutider to win HBF 5 Star
status four years running

Clair Slater and Wayne Astie cornbined par1 exchange and NewBuy 1o purchase
a naw homs al Ecclestene Park Chorlay
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Development of 211 units on the former stte of the Old Police Station in Hertford
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Six site managers from our North East diviston
won NHBC Pride in the Job Quality Awards

g »

CONSTRUCTION EXCELLENCE
AND EFFICIENCY

We focus on improving
quality and eiminating
the cost of poor quality

NHBC ‘Pride in the Job’
Quality Awards 2013

102 won

We also offer an industry leading five
year fixtures and fittings warranty

Sita plan of Derwanthorpe York
EFFECTIVE PLANNING

We work closely with local communities
and locat authorities to delver effective
planning permissions

Percentage of plots required for our 2014 financial
year completions with detailed planning consent

959,

Carwanthorps, York is a new community of 2 3 4 and
5 bedroom homes

OUTSTANDING DESIGN

We design homes and places where
customers aspire to live

The Group won its latest design awards
in July 2013

‘Completed Schemes' - Derwenthorpe
‘Unbuilt Schemes’ - Edgware Green

at the Housing Design Awards supported
by the Department for Communities and
Local Government, the Homes and
Comrmunities Agency, RIBA and others

BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLE Annual Report and Accounts 2013
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
GROUP QVERVIEW

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Another year
of substantia
progress

This has been a year of significantly improved financial
performance for the Group and we continue to lead
the industry 1n levels of quality and customer service

Dividend

2.0 pence

per share (2012 nil)

1 Source Depariment of Communitles and Local Government Welsh Assembly and Scottish Governmant
2 Source Depariment of Communities and Local Government 2012 completed dwalings
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Stronger market condttions, coupled
with the extensive improvements in our
operational performance, have led to a
significant impraverment in the financial
results and the outlook for the Group

As a result we have made rapid progress
fowards our strategic objectves of enhancing
profitability, reducing indebtedness to achieve
a more appropnate capital structure and
improving return on capital

Profit before tax and exceptionat items
increased by 73 7% to £182 3m (2012 £110 Tm)
and operating margin improved to 9 7% (2012
8 2%) Net debt has been reduced to £25 9m
(2012 £167 7m) at the year end and the
business has refinanced ahead of schedule

At the same hime, we are creating a platform
for future growth by agreeing the purchase of
a further £1 bithon of high margin land during
the year Our improved sales rates meant that
we firuished the financial year with a much
enhanced forward sales postion

AN IMPROVING MARKET

The fundamental dnvers of the new homes
market In the UK are consumer confidence

and the avallapiity of mortgage finance,
particularly at higher loan o values Confidence
n the UK housing market has started to grow,
particularly during our final quarter, aganst the
backdrop of a more stable economic outlook

Significant progress has been made on the
avallabilty of finance for customers and the
mortgage providers' capacity to lend has
slowly improved This has been accelerated
by a senes of Government mortgage intiatives
- FirstBuy, NewBuy and Help to Buy

The NewBuy mortgage indemnity scheme
launched in March 2012 {and coupled with the
FirstBuy equity share scheme that launched

In summer 2011) made 90-85% mortgages for
new build properties more widely available at
maore competitive rates Whilst we made good
use of both of the schemes, we saw a step
change m demand for new homes with the
launch of the Help to Buy (Equity Loan) scheme
In Apnl 2013

TACKLING THE SHORTAGE

OF HOMES

Whilst there are signs that the market for new
homes 1s mproving and build rates are starting
to respond, the shortage of homes of every
tenure cannot be fully resolved In the short-




term It 1s conservatively eshmated that as
a nation to satisfy demand from household
formation we should build around 260,000
homes per annum but we are bullding
around 135,000 The social and economic
consequences of thes housing shortage
are considerable

We support the attempts of the Government
to accelerate the supply of new homes by
providing the abity to buy and also by
addressing the longer term supply 1ssues

of land availability and pianning

Our land buying has accelerated and last year
we agreed to acquire land for 18,536 homes
(2012 12,085 homes) Since 2009 we have
agreed to nvest £2 6 billon in new land which
15 being brought through planning and into
production at the earliest opportunity The
land that we have secured 1s transforrming the
business It will boost production and continue
to drive our margin growth

We have already increased our completon
volumes by over 20% in the past two years
and expect to deliver around 45,000 new
homes over the next threa years

PURSUING QUALITY

For the last five years, the Group has focused
onmproving every aspect of its operational
performance and during the year | have seen
at first-hand the result of the changes we

have made We have developed a compelling
business model which has at #s core targeted
land buying, effectve planning, outstanding
design and constructon excellence, all backed
by an industry leading customer expsnence

The quality of our operations 15 Improving year

after year at every point of our process Design,

build quality and customer service are all areas
where our performance continues to be strong

| was particularly pleased to see the results
of the NHBC 'Prde n the Job' Awards where
our site managers secured more awards

for quality workmanship than has ever teen
achieved by any housebuilder We have now
led the industry for nine consecutive years
We remain a 5 Star builder and we are the
only national housebullder to achieve that
recogniton for four consecutive years

EMPLOYEES

All our employees have played ther part in
delvenng significant operational Improvements
The Board 1s grateful for therr efforts and 1s

delighted that so many have bought shares
in the Company and are benefitting from
its success

We are committed to nvesting in our workforce
both to underpin qualty and also to address the
longer term skils 1ssues that the industry faces
as st increases cutput The training we offer
across a range of disciphines via our Barratt
Academy and our graduate programme are
now widely regarded as industry leading

We have launched a series of new nitiatives
including the recruitment of around 600
apprentices, graduates and paid interns

over the next three years We will also support
100 pecple through a unique Housebuilding
Foundation Degree Programme delivered in
partnershup with Sheffield Hallam University

THE BOARD

We have recruied Nina Bibby to the Beard
as a Non-Executive Cwector and she bnngs
with her extensive consumer marketing
expenence from a range of sectors mcluding
financial services

Bob Dawies retired from the Board after nearty
nine years Rod MacEachrane has decided to
retire from the Board at the 2013 Annual General
Meeting after nearly eight years on the Board
Their wise counsel and contnbutions

will be rmissect

DIVIDEND

The Board recognises the mportance of both
capital growth and dvidend income to our
existing and potential shareholders We are
proposing o recommence dividend payments
with a final dvidend of 2 5 pence per share,
which 1s covered around s times by adjusted
basic earnings per share The Board will adopt
a progressive dividend policy as profitability
grows, with the atm, for the year ending 30
June 2018, of achieving a target dividend cover
of around three times

THE FUTURE

Our strategy continues to deliver a sigruficantly
improved business performance In a recovenng
housing market, we would expect to achugve our
ohjectives for the business earlier than previously
antoipated Whilst mantainng our disciphned
approach, we will use the outstanding capabiity
of the organisation to deliver significantly
improved performance by continuing to secure
the nght land opportunities and delvenng the

hgu;;y(:mes for our customers
Bob Lawsdn g

CHAIRMAN

QOur development in Barnack a couple of miles outside Stamiord built with materlals adopling local character
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
GROUP OVERVIEW

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

Sustained deliver
of our objectives
and strong grow

Our ohjectives of buillding profitability, maimntaining
an appropriate capital structure and driving return on
capital employed have delivered a rapidly improving
performance across the Group

SUMMARY

» Strong financial results for the year with a 32 2% mncrease in operating profit
before exceptional tems to £252 7m and reduction in net debt to £25 9m

* We continue to focus an our three strategic objectives and are confident
of {urther progress in the year ahead

* Proven business model of targeted 'and buying, securing effectve planning,
cutstanding design, constructicn excellence and an industry leading
customer expenence

08 BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2013

We have delivered a strong set of results
and put in place the foundations for a further
year of growth We have a clear strategy
that the business continues to implement

In a disciplined way as the housing market
starts to show signs of improvement

in the year, we have increased revenues by

12 2%, our operating margin has increased
by 150 basis points and our profit from
operations before operating exceptional items
has improved by 32 2% We have reduced net
debt by €141 8m to £25 9m (2012 £1677m)
at 30 June 2013

This mproved perfermance has been achieved
against market conditions that were stable

in the first three quarters of our financial year
and showed signs of sustamnable improverment
in our final quarter We have continued to focus
on mmproving every aspect of our business
model to ensure that we are n a good posstion
to capitalise on future market growth

We have accelerated our land acquisition,
agreeing to purchase 18,5636 plots (2012 12,085
plots) dunng the year with a value of £1,047 3m
{2012 £578 1m)

We are confident that we can make further
progress in the year ahead

IMPROVING PERFORMANCE

Dunng the year, we have seen improvements
in each key financial performance indicator

Revenue for the year increased to £2,606 2m
{2012 £2,323 4m) wrth completions (including
joint ventures {JVs") mcreasing to 13 663

(2012 12,857) Prvate completions were 10,978
(2012 9,832) and affordable completicns were
2,268 (2012 2,805) The reduction in affordable
completions Js explained by the timing of

new development site starts We expect the
long-term average mix of affordable uris to be
between 18% and 20% JV completions in which
the Group had an interest were 417 (2012 220)

We have a geographical balance to our
business 17 7% of completons {including JVs)
were In Scotland and northern England, 17 4%
in the narth west and west Midlands, 17 7% in
eastern England and south Mdlands, 11 8% in
London, 16 4% in southern England and 19 2%
In the south west

Average net private reservations per active site
per week improved by 11 5% from 0 52 last
year to 0 58 this year Average site numbers




for the year were stable at 381 (2012 381) DELIVERING OUR OBJECTIVES
We also operated from an average of 8 (2012 Our objectives are:
5} JV sites dunng the year

Our sales performance in our second half B R
was exceflent, reaching 0 66 (2012 056) average RSN\ aITal4)
net pnvate reservations per active site per week, ' .

up 17.9% on last year We saw a particularty '
strong sales performance in the final quarter

of the financial year following the announcement
of the Help to Buy (Equiy Loan) scheme

We saw Improvements in private reservation 1 Bu]_]_dlng pl’oﬁtablhty

rates in all our regions of the country

Qur average seling pnce ncreased by 7 3%
to £194,800 (2012 £180,500) for the full year
Prvate average seling pnces for the year

increased by 6 0% 10 £213,900 (2012 £201,800) 2 Malntamlng an approprlate
Profit from operations before operating Caplta]. S’[I‘UC’[Lll‘e

exceptional tems increased by 32 2% from

£181 1m to £252 7m We delivered a significant

improvement in operating margin before operating

exceptional termns to 9 7% (2012 8 2%) for the full

year and 1o 10 4% (2012 9 5%) in the second half L. i

3 Driving return on capital employed
Profit before tax and exceptionat items increased

by 73 7% to £192 3m (2012 £1107m) In the year
we reported excephonal tems of £87 5m related
to our refinancing. the monetisation of equity
share loans and the imparment of a commercial
JV (2012 £10 7m related to the acquisition

of a former JV} After excephonal tems, profit
before tax was £104 8m (2012 £1000m)

DELIVERING OUR STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVES

Thes improved performance has been achieved
through our continued focus on bulding
profitatxity and reducing indebtedness to
achieve a more appropriate capital structure,
we have made substantial progress on both
With the housing market now starting to
improve, the Group 1s increasingly focused on
mproving return on capital employed (ROCE’)

Building profitability — acquiring land
The most important factor i the drive to
build profitability 15 acquinng and bringing
into productien high margin land n 2009,
after a substantal fall in land prices, we
started to re-invest in land

Since re-entenng the market we have agreed
land purchases of £2,606 7m and in the year

Wa planto take on around 600 apprantices, graduates and pald Interns over tha next three years Ondre Odain and Jack we approved £1,047 3m (2012 £578 1m),
Davey joined Barratt as apprentices and are now traines sita managers on our developments in Peterborough and Corby an increase of 81 2% Dunng the year totai
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
GROUP OVERVIEW

cash expenditure on land was £677 5m (2012
£38974m) The land that we have acquired
more recently and brought into production

15 transforming the business — It continues

to mest or exceed our hurdle rates of 20%
gross margin and 25% ROCE' On completed
sites acquired since 2009, we have achieved
an average gross margin of 21%

In the year, around half of our completions were
from more recently acquired higher margin
land We continue to expect that around two
thirds of completions wilt come froms this higher
margin land in the year to 30 June 2014 The
proportion of imparred plots in the owned and
controlied land bank fell to 7% 2012 12%)

In addttion, we have ¢ 11,400 acres {2012

¢ 10,500 acres) of strategic land, which we
actively manage to obtain the necessary
planning consents In the year, 2,557 plots (2012
701 plots) were transferred from strategic land
to our operational land bank Strategic land 1s
expected to produce an increasing proportion
of our operational land in future years

We continue to seek to defer payment for
new land where possible sc as to dnive a
higher ROGE Land creditors were 35% (2012
35%) of the owned land bank at 30 June 2013

Buifding profitability — optimising pnces
Animportant part of our strategy has been

to iImprove the qualty of our homes in terms
of location, design and construction quality
This in turn has helped to underpin cur
determination to secure a competitive
advantage and tc ensure that we get the nght
pnce for the cutstanding homes we build

The changing nature of the homes we

builld - more targe family homes and fewer
apartments outskde London - led to an
increase in the average private seling price
Larger famidy homas accounted for 27%

of compietions, up from 24% n the prior year
Private average sellng price increased from
£201,800 to £213,200 for the full year and

in the second half ncreased year on year from
£203,200 to £221,500 - an increase of 9 0%

Overall prices during the period remained
stable with some local variations and we
continued to see strength in the London
and south eastern market

Building profitability - improving
efficiency

Improving efficiency remamins a pnenty for the
Group We continue to standardise the building
of cur homes, centralise procurement and
share best practice We regutarly benchmark
efficiency measures across divisions

Ine the year, the majonty of materals, including
subcontractor matenals, were centratly
procured Thus ensures consistent quality
and costs across the Group as well as
securng a supply chan for our 27 dvisions

All of our significant supply contracts are fixed
in advance, usually for twelve months Dunng
2013 we saw some price Increases N bricks,
blocks and plastic plumbing However, our
overall price increase on centrally procured
materials was less than 1%

For F¥14 we continue te put supplier
agreements in place 1o ensure continuous
avallability of materiats and overall we expect
low single-digit cost Increases We will continue
to work to ensure these increases are offset by
further builld efficiencies wherever we can

Reducimg indebtedness — to achieve

a more appropnate capital structure

Our progress on reducing ndebtedness has
been significantly ahead of expectations with
net debt as at 30 June 2013 reduced to £25 Sm
(2012 £1677m} This reduction has been
achieved whilst we have continued 1o invest

in land and indeed increased the rate of new
land approvals The strong performance on
indebtedness in the year was the result of our
improved trading performance combined with
strong control of working capital

Now that we have largely achieved our target

of zero year end net debt, we beleve the
appropnate capital structure for the Group 1s that
land and leng-term work in progress are funded
by shareholders’ funds and iand credntors The

% At the heart of our busmess model 1s targeted land
buying, securing effective planning, outstanding
design, construction excellence and an industry
leading customer experience. s
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use of land credttors drmves a higher ROGE and
we continue o expect land credrtors to equate

to around 35% of the owned land bank in current
market conditions  The lending syndicate will fund
short and medium-term work in progress

Our improved financral pesiticn enabled the
Company to agree a comprehensive refinancing
package a year ahead of schedule, which provides
us with more appropriate lending faciliies

In terms of both interest costs and duration

Following our refinancing, we now have committed
borrowng faciites of around £850m at attractive
terms with matunties ranging from 2016 to 2021
We have repad histonc high cost private
placement notes earty and cancelled histong
interest rate swaps As a result the underlying
average interest rate for the Group (excluding
histonc interest rate swaps) wil fall to ¢ 4 5%

The reduction of our :indebtedness also reflects
the monetisation of part of our equity share foan
portfolo This has been achieved by entenng
into a JV with a fund managed by Anchorage
Capttal and transferring equity share loans made
between 1 January 2009 and 31 December
2011 to that JV Ancherage has acquired a 50%
interest In the JV for £33 7m

Driving return on capital employed

The Group 15 focused on driving a significant
increase in ROCE? and 1s targeting a ROCE

of 18% for FY16 All land acquired since 20089
has required a minmum ROCE hurdle of 25%
Cn completed sites acquired since 2009, we
have achieved an average ROCE of 39% In the
year ended 30 June 2013 the Group generated
a ROCE of 11 5% (2012 8 3%)

We operate a fast asset turn operating mods! and
the capital employed on our newer sites 1s alreadly
around athird lower than on our older sites

We are focused on cashing in our low returning
assets in addition 1o the part sale of the equity
share loan portioho, we received proceeds of
£35 4m for the sale of low return land during
the year and we are continuing to reduce

our commercial assets by developing them

out or selling those already completed

1 Site ROCE on land acquisilion 1s calculated as site operating
profit {site trading profit less sales overheads less allocated
adminstrative overheads) divided by average investment
n site land work In progress and equity share

2 ROCE s calculated as sarnings bafora Interest tax ang
operating exceptional ltems divided by average net assets
adjustad for goodwill and intangibles 1ax cash loans
and barrowings retrement banefit obligations and
darivative financial Instruments



Private average selling price

£213,900

(2012 £201,800)

Operating profit before operating
exceptional items

£252.Mm

2012 £1911m)

Agreed land purchases

£1047.3m

{2012 £578 1m)

A PROVEN BUSINESS MODEL

To debiver our objectves we have a strong
business model and we are continuing to

drve operational improvements in every aspect
of our business At the heart of cur busingss
madel is targeted Jand buying, effective planning,
outstanding design, construction excellence

and an industry leading customer expenence
This 1s supported by significant investment in

the fraining and the quality of our workforce

Targeted land buying

QOur land purchase successes are based on the
extensive local knowledge of our dwisional teams
and strong local relagionships with land owners,
combined with detalled assessments of local
market conditions

We have developed a senes of target locations
based on the avallability of iand, housing market
condittons and the tkethood of obtaining
planning We see a good range of opportunities
for mvestment In our targeted locations without
undue concentration and without relaxing our
20% gross margin or 25% ROCE hurdle rates

In the year as a whole we were successful in
agreeing the acquisition of 18,536 plots (2012
12,085 plots} of land, a 53 4% ncrease on the
prior year Our owned and controlled land
bank now stands at 4 4 years (2012 41 years)
aganst a target of 4 5 years We also have

‘Wa saw 2 34 7% Inciease in net privais reservabons per week N the 13 weeks from the launch of Help lo Buy to 30 June 2013 Alexandra
and Andrew Robertson, along with thes son Jude were the first farmiy in Yorksbwe 10 take advantage of the Help 1o Buy Scheme

6,174 plots (2012 4,186 plots) of approved land
and ¢ 11,400 acres {2012 ¢ 10,600 acres)

of strategic land, equivalent to ¢ 59,800 plots
{2012 ¢ 81,000 plots) At 30 June 2013, our
JVs had an owned and controfied landbank of
2,008 piots 2012 1,583 plots), of which 1,446
plots (2012 1,208 plots) are in London

A strong competitive advantage for the Group
1S our ability to source land from the public
sector We have a specialist unit, Barratt
Partnerships, which together with iocal dwsicns
won 23 sites covering 4,320 urits with a gross
development value ('{GDV") of £1,023m dunng
the year These sites included Ladywell Village,
Catford, Milford Hosprtal, Godalming and the
remaining phases of Derwenthorpe in York,

Dunng the year we were appointed to all

of the retendered Development Partner Panels
It1s Ikely that public sector land disposal wilt
increase inimportance as a target has been
set by Government to release sufficient land
to build 100,000 homes

W believe that our proven track record In winning
and delivering complax schemes an former pubiic
sector land continues to place the Group Ina
sirong postion to benefit from this source of land

We are increasingly pro-active in the strategic
land market and In the year we agreed option

and promotion agreemants on 1,611 acres
and 11,762 plots of strategic land Our strategic
fand portfolio 1s expected to produce an
increasing proportion of our operational land

in future years

Planning

An important part of bnnging land into production
1s the planning process We have seen some
improvements in this area both as a result of
changes m Govermment policy and operational
mprovements within our business

Following the implementation of the
Government's National Planning Policy
Framework, there are stronger incentives for
local authonties to put in place five year land
supplies That in turn 1s leading to an improved
dialogue between local authonties and

our divisions

Consultation with local people s playing a more
important part in the planning process We have
overhauled how we consult with local people
and have Implemented a new approach, which
13 amed at engaging with all key stakeholders

Nevertheless, the planning process remains
alengthy one, and on average 1t takes us
around 70 weeks from agreeing to purchase
the tand to achieving full or outing planning
consent The length of the planning process
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Computer generated image of Fulham Riverside London where we hava a Joint venfure partnership with LAG

Daracombe Gardans in Newton Abbot is a development of four and five bedroom homes in a woodland setting

Fairway Copse Brasted is a developmend of 14 Individually designed homes
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will remain a restriction on the speed at which
housing supply can increase

Duning the year, we achieved planning on
14,964 plots (2012 13,159 plots) and as at

30 June 2013 we had detalled planning consent
for 95% of our expected FY14 completions
and outlne consent for a further 3%

Design

We aim to design homes and places where
people aspire to ive We are continuing to
invest In our naw product range and dunng
the year, 27% of our private completions
outsidde London were from our new ranges
The new product ranges offer improved
external designs, with better use of space
and more fight internally

We have continued to emphasise the
importance of design in creating attractive
places to ive We have used our own design
code, 17, extensively throughout the Group
to ensure our developments, as well as the
indnadual homes, incorporate best design
practice We are now introducing a new
intiative, Great Places, to ensure that we buld
attractive, functional and sustanable places

It will Incorporate the Design Council's Bulding
for Life 12, the industry standard for well-
designad neighbourhoods All relevant staff,
ncluding the Executve Committee, will be
trained in the Bulding for Life 12 principles

Thus year, we won two prestigious Housing
Design Awards, one for our plans for Evolution
South in London and one for our Derwenthorpe
site In York, cieveloped in conjunction with the
Joseph Rowntree Housing Trust

Designing and building homes that meet the
environmental challenges of the {uture remains
a significant issue for the industry This year,
we have completed our AIMC4 project that
ams to establish how best to meet higher
emvaronmental standards without the need

for renewable technology We have also made
good progress at Hanham Hail, Bristol, one of
the most environmentally advanced housing
developments in the United Kingdom

Construction excellence and efficiency
Qualty of construction is a key prionty for

the Group It underping our brands and the
attractiveness of our homes 1¢ potential buyers
This year our site managers won 102 NHBC
‘Pride in the Job' Awards - the most awards

a housebuilder has ever won and an industry
leading performance for the ninth consecutive




year We are continuing to invest in our people
to ensure that this track record 18 maintaned
We plan to take on around 600 apprentices,
graduates and paid interns over the next three
years with a clear career path for all of them
We will alse support 100 pecple to follow a
unique Housebuwding Foundation Degree
Programme deglivered in partnership with
Sheffield Hallam University

Qur health and safety record continues to
improve with our reportable injury incidence
rate decreasing by 36% to 329 (2012 511) per
100,000 persons employed We are committed
to seeking to reduce this year-on-year and we
are working with our suppliers, partners and
local communities to mimimise the rigk of inury
on our sites

Industry leading customer expenence
Customer satisfaction remans at over

90% n terms of whether customers would
recommend us to a frend and we achweved
the highest HBF grading of 5 Star for the fourth
consecutive year, a sironger track record than
any other national housebulder

Dunng the year, we upgraded our customer
websites, our most important sales channe!,

to improve them and add additional functionality
and content We have also increased our
investment in mobile marketing We track the
speed of response to leads from our websites
and dunng the year we responded to 84%

of web leads within 24 hours

We continue to work with our customers
to find the most appropnate support for
them during the housebuying process

14 0% (2012 20 5%) used equity share
products, 5 8% (2012 0 5%) used the
NewBuy scheme and 15 7% (2012 1519%;
used our part-exchange scheme Following
the implementation of these schemes,

the complexity of the sales process has
increased To address this we have also
invested in a structured training programme
for all 1,000 of our sales advisers and sales
managers New sales staff will be traned
through our Barratt Academy programme

We launched an in-house management service
company for our London developments duning
the year — Bamratt Residential Asset Management
{BRAM') BRAM will manage the public areas

of developments post-completion and ensure

a high standard of upkeep and good value

for money in terms of service charges This
unique service will provide us with a competitive

advantage in terms of service and value
{0 buyers We cumrently manage almost
1,500 properties through BRAM

OUR EXPANDING
LONDON BUSINESS

Our London business made significant
progress dunng the year, with 1,362
completions compared with 1,233 10 the
pnor year In addition, we delivered 224
{2012 59} JV completions We are the only
national housebulder with a sizeable central
London presence and we are now targeting
detwvery of 2,000 homes per annum in the
medium-term from our Londen business

Our ability to design, build and sell complex
developments is providing the Group with
a compettive advantage in this important
market Dunng the year, excluding JVs, we
agreed seven new sites which will result in
2,046 new homes for London and have a
total GOV of over £820m

Our London business has developed a number
of strong ot venture partnershups over the
last couple of years including those with L&Q,
Metropoltan Housing, Morgan Stanley Real
Estate Investing and Briish Land These
relatonships have allowed us to maximise
opportunities within London, whilst managing
rnsk and the aflocation of caprtal Through
increasing our outlets in central London we
have increased customer awareness, raised
our profile with land agents and seen increased
access to land opportunities Including

JVs announced after the ysar end, these
partnerships have sites with a GDV of over

£2 billion, totalkng around 4,800 units with

an average selling price of ¢ £430,000

At 30 June 2013, our London business had
4,864 (2012 3,862) owned and controlled
landbank plots, with an interest in a further
1,446 (2012 1,208) plots within the owned
and controlled landbank of our JVs

CURRENT TRADING

In the first ten weeks of the current financial
year, the sales performance across the Group
has been very strong Average net pnvate
reservations per actve site per week have
increased by 29 4% to 0 66 (FY13 equivalent
penod O 51) dnven by the improved market and
a pull forward of our autumn sales and marketing
campaign Help to Buy has been used In 20 0%
of total reservations Net pncing has firmed in the
financial year to date as we have been able to
reduce our sales Ingentves compared to the
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same penod last year by approximately 150
to 200 basis points

As at 8 September 2013, total forward sales
(excluding JVs) for the Group were up 59 5%
at £1,231 3m (9 September 2012 £772 2m),
equating to 6,676 plots (8 September 2012
4,439 plots) Private forward sales as at 8
September 2013 increased by 44 4% to
£880 4m (3 September 2012 £609 Bm)

The gross margin in the forward order book
has increased year-on-year by around 250
basis points prmartly as a resuit of reservations
on mgher margin sites acquired since 2009,
coupled with reduced sales incentives

JV total forward sales at 8 September 2013
were £164 3m (9 September 2012 £43 4m),
equating to 325 plots (3 September 2012
163 plots) JV private forward sales were
£156 3m (9 September 2012 £37 5m)

OUTLOOK

Current market conditions are very positive
We have seen a signfficant step-up in
consumer demand and mortgage supply,
enhanced by the introduction of the
Government Hetp to Buy scheme

The strength of current trading and our
forward order book, coupled with the expected
delivery of around two thirds of completions
from hugher margin land, gives us confidence
of another substantial improvement in
performance n FY14

We are targeting total completions of ¢ 16,000
units (inctuding JVs) from our current operating
structure and grven continued strength in the
market, beteve this is achievable in the year

to 30 June 2016 We continue to see a strong
pipelne of land acguisiions that mest or exceed
our hurdle rates with no assumption of future
pnce inflaton

Our focus remams on bulding profitability,
mantainng an appropnate capital structure
and substantally improving our return on
caprtal employed, with a target ROCE of 18%
for the yeagended 30 June 2016

Mark Clare
GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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REPQORT OF THE DIRECTORS
GROUP QVERVIEW

OUR PROGRESS

Delivering our
objectives

We are focused on maxirrusing total shareholder
return through bulding profitability, maintaining
an appropnate capital structure and driving
return on capital employed Our targets and key
performance indicators ('KPIs’) for each of these
areas and our progress against them 1s set out
on these pages

MAXIMISING TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN:

1 BUILDING PROFITABILITY

Target Improving operating margin year on year

TARGETED LAND BUYING

Investing in land, which we expect to deliver attractive returns in the
future Dunng the year, we have approved the purchase of £1,047 3m
(2012 £578 1m) of land equating to 18,536 plots (2012 12,085 plots)
All new land acquistions are required to acheve a minmum hurdle
rate of 20% for gross margin In the year, we delivered almost half
(2012 35%) of our completions from higher margin more recently
acquired land

OPTIMISING PRICES

Seeking to achieve the best pnee for the qualty homes that we bulld
The average private selling price of our homes was £213,800
(2012 £201,800), an increase of 6 0%

Overall underying pnces remained stable with some improvement
i London and the south east

OPERATIONAL EFFIGIENGY
Ensunng operabonal efficiency inciuding standardrsing the bulding
of our homes, centralised procurement and shanng best practice

Profit from operations before operating exceptional dems was

£252 7m (2012 £1911m), an ncrease of 32 2% Operating margin
on the same basis was 9 7% (2012 8 2%)

4 BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLG Annual Report and Accounts 2013
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Building Mamtaimnming Driving return  *

profitability > an appropriate > on capital n |
capital employed
structure

-

[

2 MAINTAINING AN APPROPRIATE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Target Mimimal year end net debt and land creditors around 35% of the owned land bank

YEAR END NET DEBT

We are focused upon reducing our net debt through retuming cash
on old land and reducing our average investment per site Net debt
at 30 June 2013, was £25 9m, £141 8m lower than the pnor year

LAND CREDITORS

The appropnate capital structure for the Group 1s that tand and

long-term work in progress are funded by sharehoiders’ funds and

land creditors The use of land creditors drives a higher ROCE I
Land creditors were 35% (2012 35%} of the owned land bank at

30 June 2013 .

3 DRIVING RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED
Target ROCE of 18% for the year ended 30 June 2016

RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED

We are focused on drving our return on capital employed (ROCE'}
All new land acquistions are required to achieve site return on capital
employed hurdle rate of at least 25%' Our ROCE for the year ended
30 June 2013 was 11 5% 012 8 3%)

Site ROCE on land acquisition ks calculatad as site oparating profit {site trading profit less sales overhwads less allocated administrative overheads) divided by averaga investment

n site land, work in progress and aquity share

ROCE s caloulated as earnings before Interest tax and operaling excepliona ltams divided by average net asssts adjusted for gocdwill and ntangibles tax cash loans and borrowings
ratirament benefit obligations and darivative financial nstruments
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OUR PROGRESS

Delivering our sustainability
objectives

PRILOSOPHY

Sustarng a network of local, regional and
national partners and stakeholkders buitt on
trust, loyally and respect

PARTNER

Understanding and delighting our customers
throughout thesr joumey with us, creating
customers for lite

CUSTOMER

Altracting and retaireng the best people and
providing an Inspirational environment that
encourages them to fulfit thewr potential

PEOPLE

Respecting loday’s ervironment whilst creating
tomorrow s communities

PLANET

We are committed 10 ensuring high standards
of health, safety and welfare of our workiorce
and the publc at all times

HEALTH &
SAFETY

16 BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2013




Landscaped gardens al Windmtl Place Thame providing a
new lown square io the jomnt ventura development of 99 homes.
Brian and Marle Clough used part exchange !o move into
their new hore al Conset! County Durharmn

Long serving staff at our North Scotland dvision have
clocked up 1000 years service belween them

Rydon Place Is a contemporary Code Level 3 development
of 248 homes in Exeter, Devan

Richard and Kirsty Burkill purchased therr new home

at Kings Court Lincoln with NewBuy

We continue to focus on our sustainability philosophies
Partner, Customer, People and Planet, and our commitment
to Health and Safety Our progress 1n these areas 1s set out
on these pages

PROGRESS

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

We serve all sectors of the market, creating homes for sale and shared ownership and work with many
partners on a range of urban regenarahon schemes Duning the year, atfordable housing accounted
for 171% (2012 22 2%) of completions (exclucing JVs)

We work with. Government agencies and private landownars to dentdy and bnng torward land for
development, suppliers upon the miroduction of new technofogies, and subcontractors {o help them
improve ther enwvironmental and safety performance

Wae engage in dialogue with local people and local authorties segarding our developments

We are commuitted 1o building qualty homes and we seek to ensure that our customess are satished
with ther new home

Wa hava achieved the maxamum 5 Star rating for customer satistaction awarded by the Home
Buriders Federation {'HBF') for a fourth consecutve year This shows that over 90% of our customers
questioned would ‘Recommend us to a Friend

We offer a frive year wanmanty which covers fixtures and fittings and 15 additional 1o the ten year
National House Bulding Council [ NHBC?) warranty

During the year, we employed an average of 4,781 paople (2012 4,451 people) Despite high demand
N SOMe regions, employee tumover has remamed broadly stable at 13% (2012 12%) Many of our
employeses have benefitied from our wide ranging tramnng and development programmes

Cur apprenticeship and graduate development programmes have won a number of awards ncluding
first n Construction and Property and runth overall in Job Crowd’s Top 100 Companies for Graduates
to Work For, and second in the Best Apgrenticeship Programme and therd n the Giraduate Employer
of the Year at the Nalional Graduate Recrutment Awards.

The expertise of our construction 18ams has been recognised by the NHBC with a secord-breaking
102 of our site managers (2012 76) winning ‘Pricie in the Job awargs

We seek to manage ervionmental risks throughout our business. We are committed to mprovang the carbon
performance of our homes. In 2013, 32% (2012 26%) of the homes that we built hac enhanced energy sfficiency
as a resutt of fabric rmprovements anc we had ntegrated renewables on 28% {2012 30%) of our deveiopmenis.

We are focused upon waste management and duning the year we reguced our constructon waste per
iegal completion 1o 6 25 tonnes (2012 6 47 tonnes) We also segregated 95% (2012 96%) of waste
on-sitg for recyciing

In 2013, we built 4,227 (2012 3,820) homes that meet Code Level 3 or above and 845 2012 1,150) that
met the previous EcoHomes Standard §6% (2012 65%) of our complations were built on brownfield land

Wa seek to manage health and safety nsks throughout our business

Health ang safety s of paramount Imponance 1or our employees, cuslomers and the public Our health
and safety teams carmed out 5,437 monitoring visits n the year and achieved an average comphance raie
of 97% (2012 96%)

Dunng the year, we further reduced our Injury Incidence Rate to 326 (2012 511) per 100000 employees
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
BUSINESS REVIEW

% We continue to deliver against our objectives
of buillding profitability, mamntaining an
appropriate caprtal structure and driving

return on caprtal employed 9

SUMMARY

E * The UK housing market remained relatively stable dunng our first
‘ three quarters and showed matenal signs of mprovement dunng
our final quarter
* We mproved operating margin by 1 5%, profit before tax before
| exceptional items by 73 7% to £192 3m and reduced net debt
| to £25 9m
* We work with many partners to design and build high quality homes

l that meet the needs of our customers and their communities
|

\ - T o T T T T T T T

Source Halitax UK quarterly house price index Lloyds Banking Group

Source Department lor Communitles and Local Government Table 212 House bullding
parmanent dwellings started and compieted, by tenure Graat Bntan (quarterty}

Source Halilax quartarly mortgage aftordabllity Lloyds Banking Group
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BUSINESS REVIEW

De Lacy Fields Chesterton a developmen! of 3 4
and 5 badreom homes using local stone rendar

Dennis and Sophla Clarke and their daughter Dennia moved
into Zest Keresloy using FirsiBuy

UK HOUSING MARKET

The UK housing market remained refatively stable
dunng the first nine months of our financial year
and showed material signs of improvement
dunng our final quarter

We have seen an increase in the avallabibity \
of higher toan 1o value mortgages and |
increasingly competitive mortgage rates, ‘
largely resulting from the Bank of England's |
Funding for Lending Scheme

Government support for the UK housebudding |
industry has remained strong with a number

of intiatives in place designed 1o suppert house
purchases and stmulate economuc growth
MHousing formed a prominent part of the March
2013 Budget with a range of new measures
announced, In particular, to improve the supply
of mortgage finance In Apri 2013, Help to Buy
(Equity Loan) was launched, the Government
only equity share product available on new
puld Since then, we have seen a significant




Refleclions a contemporary development of 184 homes in Plymouth

step-up In levels of consumer interest and a
strengthening of sales rates

The Government is also puttng in place longer
term reforms to the planning system designed
to increase the supply of new homes

In 2012, the number of prvate ndustry housing
completrons has increased 10 103,220 £011
99,980) according to the Department for
Communities and Local Government Inthe year
ended 30 June 2013, according to the Bank of
England, the total number of mortgage approvals
for home purchases was 638,174 2012 617.676)

OUR PERFORMANCE

We continue to deliver against our objectives

to £252 7m (2012 £1911m) at a marginof 97%
(2012 8 2%) This increase was mainly driven
by an increasing proportion of sales from more
recently acquired higher margin land and cost
control After operating exceptional tems of

£2 8m {2012 £nil), our profit from operations
was £2488m (2012 £1911m)

Profit before tax and exceptional tems
increased by 73 7% to £192 3m (2012

£110 7m) After exceptional tems of £87 5m
primarity related to our refinancing (2012

£10 7m related to the acquisibon of a joint
venture), our profit before tax was £104 8m
{2012 £100 0m) Our basic earnings per share
were 7 7p (2012 70p)

(2012 22 323 4m)

Profit from operations
beiore operating exceptional tems

18252 m

(2012 £1911m)

|

of increasing profitability, mamtaning an
appropnate capital structure and driving return
on capital employed {ROCE")

Our net debt as at 30 June 2013 was significantly
reduced 1o £25 9m (30 June 2012 £1677m)

Net debt

' £25.9m

(201 2 £167 7m)

Housebutlding
QOur housebullding business has traded
well throughout the year Net private

We delvered an increase in profit from operations
hefore operating exceptional tems by 32 2%
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BUSINESS REVIEW

reservations per actve site per week were

up t15% in the year to 0 58 (2012 0 52)
Following the launch of the Government’s
Help o Buy (Equity Loan) scheme in Apnl
2013, net private reservations per active site
per week were up 34 7% in the guarter ending
30 Juna 2013 to 0 66 (2012 0 49)

The improvement in our sales rates reflects
strengthening market conditions but also the
combination of our carefully selected locations,
improved house design and development

| {ayout and the investment we have made in our

' Inctustry leading sales and marketing capalyiity

! We are seeing particularly good momentum in
our London business wiich continues to
strengthen our posiion as one of the leading
housebuillders in the capital

We have averaged 381 (2012 381) active sites
dunng the year

Total compietons for the year were 13,663 units
Berry Edge Consatt County Durham was one of our frst developments o fealure homes from the new Barratt Gounty Range (2012 12,857 units) including 417 4V units
{2012 220 JV units) In which we have an
interest Private completions were up 117%
on the prior year at 10,978 units (2012 9,832
units) Affordable housing completions totalted
| 2,268 units (2012 2,805 umits) representing
| 171% {2012 22 2%) of completions, with the
| decrease reflecting the timing of site starts
| on new developments

Private average selling price (ASP’) on
completions n the year was up by 6 0% on
the pnor year to £213,900 (2012 £201,800)
Overall, we have seen undertying prices
reman stable with some improvement in
London and the south east QOur total ASP

Carty and Dan Pask purchased their new homa using NewBuy in conjunction with our Movemaker Scheme was up by 7 9% on the prior year, increasing
1o £194,800 (2012 £180,500)

As aresult of the ncrease i completions
and total ASP, housebuilding revenues for
the year ncreased by £305 8m 1o £2,592 6m
(2012 £2,285 8m)

Dunng the year, we used a number of different

sales schemes in order to assist customers in

purchasing therr new homes including both

our own and Government-backed schemes

Although the avatiabilty of mortgage finance

impraved dunng the year, equity share products

remained an impertant sales tool as the

avaliabity of mortgage finance at bugher loan

to value {'LTV') ratios remained constrained

14 0% (2012 20 5%) of our completions used

equity share products and of these completions,
Enargy efficient 4 badroom showhome at Hanham Hall Bristol, a unique development set In 12 acres of open space 28 8% used the Help to Buy {(Equity Loan)
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scheme that was launched on 1 Apnl 2013,
58 3% (2012 65 5%) used other Govermment-
backed inmatves and the remainder used our
own equity share schemes

Qur part-exchange offer 1s an important part
of our customer appeal supporting 15 7%
{2012 151%) of our completions in the year We
continue o carefully manage our commitment
and exposure to part-exchange stock which
stood at £79 0m (2012 £80 2m) at 30 June 2013

We have continued to drive operational
efficiencies through good build controls, the
use of standard house types, waste reduction,
central procurement, value engineenng and
re-planning of sites We will continue to work
in partnership with our suppliers to find ways
o mitigate increases in matenal costs whilst
conjinung to mantain our very high build
standards We will also continue to target
additional cost reductions and efficiency savings
by further standardisation of our specifications

The implemantaton of our strategy has delvered
a significant improvernent in our housebulding
operatng margin before operating exceptional
temns to 9 7% (2012 8 3%) for the full year,
equating to a profit from operations before
operating exceptonal tems of £252 7m 2012
£189 6m) After operating exceptional tems of
£2 8m {2012 £rul the housebuilding profit from
operations was £249 9m (2012 £189 6m)

Commercial developments

The commercial property market outside
London remains challenging, with a high
number of avallable second-hand properties
impacting design and build actvity Weak
economic growth and a censtraned lending
environment also continue to place further
restrictions on commercial demand However,
despite these factors, the operating
performance from our commercal
development segment was satisfactory

Qur commercial development revenug was
£13 6m (2012 £36 6m) with a break-even
operating position (2012 profit of £1 5m) We
compieted a profitable land sale, a 30,000
square feet office extension in Nottingham and
delvered 148,600 square feet of stock property
disposals We also continue o progress

our town centre redevelopment schemes

Joint ventures

Development on our joint venture (V) sites

i1 progressing well, with marketing suttes opened
dunng the year at our Attitude and Queensland

Terrace developments in central London and the
overseas marketing programme launched for
Futham Riverside Dunng the year JV sales
active sites averaged 6 (2012 §) with total JV
completions of 417 units (2012 220 units) and
housebutding JV profits of £7 8m (2012 £0 8m)

We expect completions and profits from
JVs fo increase significantly over the next
couple of years, refiecting their construction
and delivery profile Our success in secunng
JVs in London has increased our presence
and has strengthened our market position
We will continue to assess JV opportunities
which allow us either to access sites that
may not otherwise be avalable, or to reduce
the nvestment required and improve the
profitabiity and ROCE through construction
management or marketing fees

At 30 June 2013, the Group reviewed the
value of its share of the inventories included
within its JV investments This resulted in
an exceptional impairment charge of £5 4m
heing recognised refated to a commercial JV,
resutting in a loss of £5 5m (2012 £0 3m)
on commercial JVs for the year

BUILDING NEW COMMUNITIES

We build homes that meet the needs of our
customers and the communities of which
they are part We operate across a broad
spectrum of the market, creating homes
for sale, shared ownership and affordable
rental properties We work with Government
agencies and housing associations on a
diverse range of urban regeneration schemes
Private seling pnces dunng the financial year
ranged from £52,500 to £1 735,000, with

a private average selling price for the year

of £213,900 2012 £201.80C}

Delivenng land for development

Higher margin, more recently acquired land
continues to be brought into production We
delivered almast half of our completions 1n the
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year from this land and expect this to increase
to around two thirds in FY14, ¢ 83% in FY15
and ¢ 90% n FY18 This land continues to
deliver in ing with or ahead of our required
hurdte rates on acguisition, which include a
gross margin of at lsast 20% and a ROCE

of at teast 25% As at 30 June 2013, more
recently acqured land represented 73% (2012
57%) of the owned and controlled land bank

We continue to reduce our histonc land holdings
and delvered 18% of completions in the year
from imparred land This has reduced the
proportion of impaired plots in the owned and
controlled land bank as at 30 June 2013 to 7%
{30 June 2012 12%) Where appropnate, we will
also accelerate the utihsation of mparred land
through land sales or swaps In the year we
reahised £35 4m (2012 £39 Om) of proceeds
from land sales

Dunng the year we have agreed the purchase
of £1,047 3m (2012 £578 1m) of land equating
to 18,536 picts {2012 12,085 plots) on 145

“ The improvement 1n our sales rates reflects
strengthening market conditions but also
the combination of our carefully selected
locations, 1mproved house design and
development layout and the investment
we have made n sales and marketing. ¢

BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2013 21




REPORT QFf THE DIRECTORS
BUSINESS REVIEW

sites (2012 105 sites) Our focus remains both

land creditors to remain a faily constant

;-

' OUR LAND BANK

on ensunng we have the land supply necessary ‘,
to support business growth over the next few 2013 2012 .
years and delivenng 1t in a way that maximises Plots Plots
ROCE We continue to see attractive land Owned and uncondttional plots 44,516 43897 !
opportunities In prime locations across all Conditonally contracted piots 13138 10312 i
regions In particular, we have had good ' ; - i
mementum in the London land market, » Owned and controlled Jand bank 57,654 54,209 ; ‘
with a total of 1,918 London plots agreed | Number of years' supply based upon FY13 completion volumes 4 4 years 41 years |
for purchase in the year including Ladywell ‘ « Approved plots 6174 4186 f
Village, Catford, Cannon Whard, Surrey Quays L Acres of strategic land ¢ 11,400 c 10,500
and Blackfnars Road, Southwark . Potential defwery from strategic land plots c 59,800 c 61,000
I i S e s e e s e e - !
Cash expendture on land in the year was £6776m .- .. - . ____. - "~ [ T - - T ool
(2012 £397 4m) f 7 T T T o tm o emrom oo T s e e e
| * LAND PURCHASES AGREED j
We continue to seek to defer payment for new Yearended  Yearended | i
land where possible to drive a tigher ROCE ] ; 30 June 2093 30 June 2012 |
Land creditors as at 30 June 2013 were || Total £1,0473m  £5781m ! ;
£744 4m (30 June 2012 £726 1m) representing .} Total nurnber of plots 18,536 12,085 i
35% (30 June 2012 35%) of the owned land i ¥
bank The year-on-year ncrease in land | Lecaton |
creditors reflects the signidicant proportion | —South North {oy value) 61% 39% 58% 42% |,
of newly acqurred land that has been acquired ' —South North {by plots) 51% 49% 46% 54% |
on deferred terms Land creditors due withinthe '+ Vendor v
next 12 months total £370 7m (30 June 2012 i - Government  Private (by plots) 24% 76% 28% 72% |
£368 1m), with £373 7m (30 June 2012 £358 Om} ; Type }
due thereafter In the medum-tem We expect — + - _ o sesFiats oy plots) 4% 26% 86% 14%
L

CASE STUDY

Barratt London

— Map

e Quays

Barratt London's Maple Quays development is an essential part
of the wider Canada Water Masterplan and has regenerated this

key area at the heart of the Rotherhithe Peninsula

Located adjacent to Canada Water station with excellent transport

links to Canary Wharf and the City, the scheme delivers 900 mixed-

tenure apartments, 28,500 sq ft of retal and community facities
and £9 5m of community and public realm benefits A new public
plaza creates a central focal space for residents, incorporating

a striking new public library designed by architects CZWG which

was opened in Nevember 2011

A key part of the scheme 1s the provision of high-qualty amenity space
for residents as well as an excellent fransformation of the public realm The

BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2013
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development deivers a new children’s playground, new cycle routes and
establishes new connections in an area that was charactensed by dead
ends, opening up the area along with a series of inked waterways creating
anew cana-skle community Communal roof terraces and courtyards
with water features act as a tranquil focal point for residents to emjoy

Using a range of architects including Maccreanor Lavington, PKS
Architects, Glenn Howelis and Hawkins Brown, Maple Quays was
delvered i distinct phases creating an exemplary bving emaronment
with the size of homes and amenity space provision in excess of the
residential standards required by the Gouncil The buildings range
from four to eight-storeys culminating in a 27 sterey tower — Ontano
Point —with a communal roof terrace boasting panoramic views

of Lendon and creating an conic gateway for Canada Water

Committed to bulding a sustanable development, Maple Quays

has been designed to meet Lfetime Homes Standards and achieves
Level Four of the Code for Sustanable Homes Sustanable construction
methods include biomass CHP, storm water attenuation, extensive secure
cycle provision for residents and biodiversity landscaping (roof gardens,

brown/green roofs) In addiion, shettered cycle parking for commuters
In close proxmiy to Canada Water station 1s provided on site

. -/ T T



1 View from Ontaric Point Maple Quays Canada Water

Communal courtyard at Maple Quays Canada Water

3 Ontano Poini a 27 storey tower at Maple Quays
Canada Waler

L]

BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2013

23



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
BUSINESS REVIEW

' Land bank

§i£2,127.0m |

(2012 £2,077 3m) !
!
1

] i

Land purchases approved i
x10473m
) ' '

{2012 £578 1m} i
|

Detalled planming consent
for expected FY14 complshions

95% |

“ We remain focused
On ENSsUring we
have the land supply
necessary to support
business growth and
delivering it in a
way that maximises
return on capital ¢

propoertion of the land bank, however, this
1s dependent upon the trming of planning
consents and land contracts

At 30 June 2013, our land bank had a carrying
value of £2,1270m (2012 £2,077 3m) with an
average housebulding cost per piot of £45,000
{2012 ©£45,000) The average seling price of the
plots within our owned land bank s currently
expected to be ¢ £197,000 giving an average
plot cost to average seling pnce ratio of 23%
(2012 24%)

Planning

We have started to see a positive effect of the
new planning regime, particularly the need for
local authorities to demonstrate a five year land
supply Combined with our focus onomproving
design and engagement with the communities
in which we work, this has improved the level
of dialogue with the local authonties
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The Government remains committed to
accelerating the disposal of pubhic land as part
of its housing strategy We have a strong track
record of secunng public land and we are
pleased io have been appointed to all four

of the retendered Homes and Communities
Agency Delivery Partner Panels as well as to the
Greater London Authonty London Development
anel In the year, we have had offers accepted
on public land equating to 4,320 plots with a
total gross development value of £1,023m

At 30 June 2013 we have detaled planning
consent for 95% of our expected FY14
completions and outine consent on a further 3%

Working in partnership

We recognise that, whether acting as sole
developer, JV partner, chent or contractor,
partnerships are wital to our success We
operate in many areas of the market, from
complex regeneration to advanced
ermvironmental housing projects In doing so,
we create a legacy that goes well beyond the
homes and commercial properties we build

We confinue to work with Government
agencies and private landowners to identify
and bnng forward land for development,

often mproving #s environmental condition

in the process We work with our suppliers

to help them to introduce the new technologies
that we need to meet increasingly challenging
bullding standards, and with our subcontractors
to help them to improve therr environmentat
and safety performance

We engage with local communibes and local
authonties in order to seek {o address any
impact that our developments may have

on the environment, and we respond to
community aspirations by creating new Jobs,
traiming people and supporting local Intiatives
By holding public exhibitions, we invite
stakeholders to talk to our specialist planners
and architects about ther concerns and
aspirations for our developments We believe
that a genuinely collaborative approach will
deliver more land and housing

We have always been concerned with housing
affordabilty issues and have worked closely
with financial institutions and Government

for a number of years {o Improve access to
mortgage funding for customers As a result
we are currently working with a number

of partners 1o help people gain access o
appropnate housing
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We are currently active on a number of public
and prvate sector partnership sites where

we are working closety with the Homes and
Communities Agency (HCA"), local authorities
and housing associations We are working
with the HCA to redevelop former collieries ito
popular new communities at Elba Park near
Sunderland and Heritage Park, Siverdale
Biuebel, Nuneaton 1s réplacing an old counci
estate with 800 new homes in partnership
with Nungaton and Bedworth Counci At
Cerwenthorpe on the outskirts of York we

are bulding an outstanding new sustanable
community of around 540 homes along garden
vilage principles in partnership with the Joseph
Rowntree Housing Trust

CUSTOMERS

Customers are at the heart of our business
We understand that our customers want
support when making therr purchase, and
we are committed to offering the highest
standards of quality and customer service,
as well as good value, well-designed homes

Qur Customer Gare Charter

Qur Customer Care Charter, which is avalable
on our website, ensures we reman focused on
our customers throughout thew joumey with us
Wa are commitied to continuing to improve the
customer expenence, both on-site and online,
and we regularty obtain feedback from all our
customers at key points in the sale process

Cur new product range

We have carefully considered customer
preferences in the development of the Barratt
and David Wilson product ranges  Both brands
were updated in 2010711 with internal layouts
designed with modern lang m mind, providing
free-{lowing Imng areas and natural klght The new
designs have been well receved by customers
and we continue 1o roll out both new ranges

Customer feedback indicates that Barratt homes
offer customers value for money and offer
customers high quality practical iming space
The room proportions have been designed

to ensure that they are large enough to
accommodate our typreal customer’s furniture
requirements, whilst ensuring our external
designs are aesthetically pleasing Due to
smart, ergonomic design a Barratt customer
can expect a wide range of features, creating
great value for money

Following customer feedback, our David Wilson
family homes have been designed with more




generous dimensions that deliver an overall sense
of space The designs include features such as
higher specification kitchens, en-sutte bathrooms
with larger baths and the use of muttiple roof
Iights In bedrooms

Communicating with our customers

Our sales and marketing team has continued

to promote our brands throughout the year using
focused marketing campagns This included
the use of the intemet, radio and direct mait

We recognise that the online market continues

to change at a rapd pace Dunng the last year
we have further enhanced the design and content
of our websites, Including those compatble with
smartphones and tablets, to ensure a customer's
first enquiry delvers all of the informaton they
require We have also continued to enhance our
online user expenence and qualty of content
through greater use of e-brochures, video,

360 degree tours and imagery of planned
developments and house types, in addion

to helpfut information about the local area

We continue to invest in the technological
capabibties of our on-site sales centres,
ensunng our sales adwvisers have the most
up-to-date information immediately avallable
to deliver a customer expenence that 1s
informative and hassle-free

We continue to offer our customers support
through targeted incentives and discounts
as well as tools such as part-exchange

Assisting with mortgage products

We recognise the importance of helping our
customers find surtable financial products to
purchase their new homes The Group’s Head
of Mortgage Lender Relatons works closely
with the banks that provide mortgages to our
customers to ensure that there 1s an appropnate
range of products available We also participate
as fully as we can in Government schemes,
suich as Help to Buy, FirstBuy and NewBuy

% We have started
to see a positive
effect from the new
planning regime
and an improved
level of dialogue
with local authornties.

1 School chiidren at The Gateway Pickenng

2 The Gateway Pickering a development of 96 high quality

2, 3, 4 and § bedroom homes

i
i

1
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The Gateway development is in the beautiful and popular market town of Pickenng,
North Yorkshire [t i1s situated on the very northern edge of the settlement where landscape

sensitivities exist with the area adjoining the Nortl

for ts bleak, romantic landscape and forever associated with the hit TV senes Heartbeat

The land was secured under option as part of
vast meonty of development in Prckenng kely

the settlement it was clear that to win hearts and minds, public consultation should
be at the core of the project from the outset Consequently, exhibrtions adopting a 'blank
canvas' approach were held providing locals with the opportunity to graphically present

that the proposed commungty park would extenswvely be used by the younger population
Special assembles were hosted to educate not only the children on the plans, but also
to broaden our views and these of the Planners and Counciflors in terms of activities

that the children wished 1o see within this new
the submission of the planning application suc
underway, many supporters had been identfie

1o which the team had gone to ensure that the proposals had been listened to and

provided within the scheme wherever possible

Following the granting of full planning consent, the laison with local grougs continued I
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. ther ideas to the team Schools were also seel
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through the construction phase bulding upon

consequently the entire process was recognised in the Housebuilder Awards 2012
where the Yorkshire East Dvision picked up ‘The Best Community Initiative Award’

|
I
3
| The scheme itself ncorporates 98 high guality
I terraced to detached properties including an e
i

stands immediately adjacent to the new Community Park for the residents of Pickering
to enjoy The overall success of the scheme soon became apparent with sales on the
site exceeding the most optimistic of expectations

—

Community engagement

h Yorkshire Moors National Park, famous

the strategic portfolio and with the
to be concentrated to the south of

n as integral 1o this process recognising

public realm Al of this work preceded :
h that once the formal process was
d and in turn they recognised the lengths i

refationships already established and

2, 3, 4 and 5 bedroom houses from i
lement of affordabie housing, all of which |
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Allour dwvisions and the mortgage brokers we
recommend have implemented our Group-wide
processes for dealing with lenders and surveyors
These ensure that we provide them with
transparency m retation to our products and the
financial arangements between the Group and
our customers These standards exceed the
industry requirements as specified by the Council
of Mortgage Lenders and the processes are
subyect to regular mternal audit

Gustomer satisfaction

Our igh quality homes have been accredited
ndependently for the fourth year running with
5 Star bulder status in the Home Buillders
Federation (' HBF')/Natonal House-Bulding
Council {'NHBGC") annual customer satisfaction
survey This shows that over 30% of our
customers queshoned were satisfied with

the qualty of their new home and would
‘Recommend us to a Fnend’

Customer satisfaction wath the quality of therr
new home 1s extremely mportant to us We have
therefore recently implemented a requirement
that every new home we buikd 1s nspected pnor
to completion by a dvisional director to ensure
that our high standards of quality are met In
order to dnve performance and to enable us to
improve customer satrsfaction, we have invested
In bespoke survey questions and increased
management reporting which we are using
throughout our business

Five year warranty

We are the only volume housebuilder to offer a five
year warranty which covers fixtures and fitings
and 1$ additonal to the ten year NHBC warranty
on the fabric of the bulding This provides a real
point of difference compared 1o our competrtors
and gives our customers increased confidence
in our product

INVESTING FOR THE FUTURE

The nature of our mdustry continues o change
and we are nvesting to equip Our organisation
tomeet these challenges It1s the skills of our
people that wili underpin the capability of the
Group to adapt to the future

People

One of cur key strengths 1$ our people and we
continue to Invest in them and develop therr
expertise During the year ended 30 June 2013,
we employed an average of 4,781 people (2012
4,451 people) We value the expenence of our
employees and 4% of our workforce has over
20 years’ service Despite high competit:on
amongst employers In soma regions, employee
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%We are commutted to
offering good value,
well-designed homes
Over 90% of our
customers questioned
would 'Recommend
usto a Friend’. ¢
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turnover has only slightly ncreased to 13%
2012 12%) We are committed to prowiding
equal opportunities for all At 30 June 2013,
vy 22% 2012 9%) of the Board, 11% (2012 11%)

] B

D | Ital O n th e I | I Ove ' of our semor managers and 33% {2012 34%)
| . of our employees were female
| in the past year we have seen a large increase in customers accessing our online marketing
content from their mobile devices, such as mobile phones and tablets As a result, we have

We offer both vocational and leadership
traning programmes, as well as in-house

increased our Investment in mobile marketing to meet this growng demand By making use schemes promoting employee development,
of this marksting channel, customers are now able to find the information they need quickly engagement and recogniion
and easily using their mobile phone This int turn has increased the number of enguines from
potential custormers and therefore ulttmately helped to increase sales The Barratt Academy continues to prowide

‘ structured, bespoke traning to support indmdual
We have partnered closely with a specialist mobile consultancy to create an easy-to-use development across three separate discrphines,
mobile expenence that utiises ‘geo-location’ based services This allows customers to apprentices, site managers and technical/
search for new homes by manually typing in the name of a desired location, or, customers commercial roles Combining professional
can carry out an automatic search based on where they are located at the time, using their training (on-site and in the classroom) with

phone’s iIn-built technology i Industry recognised qualifications, our courses
| am to develop craft and trade specialists, ighly

The mobile expenence provides a range of nch content that 1s also offered on the man !

website, but the content i1s adapted to suit a smaller screen and the different mind-set !

i competent site managers and employees with
of a customer when viewing content on therr mobile phone Qur research has shown that 1
|

in-depth technical and commercial expertise

our customers do not want to spend tme viewing detaled property content on therr mobile Dunng the year, we have also invested in a
device, rather, they want to carry out specific tasks such as finding a development near : structured training programme for all 1,000
alocation, or seeing the latest prices or mformation on moving schemes . of our sales adwisers and sales managers

! New sales staff will be traned through our
We have also seen a drarmnatic rse (n tablet usage and have delivered an expenence talored Barratt Academy programme
to the size of a tablet screen - customers using smaller tablets will see the mobile site which ‘
15 designed for a smaller screen, whereas customers using larger tablets will see the main
desktop website and be able to use all of the advanced features and content which have
been designed with larger tablets in rrund, allowing customers to browse the site using touch
screen features such as swipe to scroll, and pinch to zoom

!

i

; We are also undertaking a number of intiatives
| | which seek to rebulld the skils base of the

! industry Over the next three years we intend

] to recruit around 150 graduates, 30 paid
interns, around 400 apprentices, and support
100 people through a ursque Housebulding
Foundation Degree Programme delivered in
partnership with Sheffield Hallam University

|
]
I
Furthermore, we ensure that all of our emails to customers are optmised for viewing on I
mohile phones, as research shows that 70% of consumers delete emails immediately that ]
don't fit well on the screen of their mobile device and 18% unsubscnbe We continualty f
monitor the effectiveness of our email marketing so that we can update emaii templates l
to provide the best expenence for our customers N Qur apprenticeship scheme compnses

! both trade and technical apprenticeships
Our online search campaigns have been adapted to fit mobite devices through specific | Apprenticeships last for a minimum of two
advertising copy and bid strategies based on users within the vicinity of developments | years and at 30 June 2013 the Group had
This has helped to create efficiency and reduce the costs per chiek Our search engine 141 apprentices We were delighted that
optimisation activity focuses on content production, localised search queries and of course our apprenticeship scheme came second
mobite s0 users who are situated in close proximity to a Barratt/DWH development are in the Best Apprentice Programme at the
now much more hkely to be served a Barrait/DWH search resuit This 1s generating an ' National Graduate Recrustment Awards
Increasing volume of traffic to our mobile marketing content ' and that we were recognised in the Top 100
Apprenticeships Employers st compiled
by the National Apprenticeship Service
in partnership with City & Guilds

ensuring that we are able to meet our ever increasing customer demands To ensure that
customer enquines are fed through to our sales adwvisers on-site as soon as possible we
have invested in new back office servers We have a graduate development programme
| which aims to recruit high potential talent into

. lhe business The programme lasts for two

| years and gracuates are gven the opportunity
have an improved technological solution to deliver an outstanding customer experience . | to spend time In each of our operational
demanded of a 5 Star bullder ‘ \ departments, whilst attending business and

| [ personal development courses Alongside the

T . TT T T T formal training programme, graduates arg also

Across the majonty of our developments we have instafled new ‘all-in-one’ PCs with built in

|
|
|
|
We have also spent the last twelve months investing in our point of sale technolegy solution, i
i
|
]
|
i
touch screen 23" montors, wireless colour printers and 3G routers Our sales advisers now !
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encouraged to undertake voluntary projects
in therr tocal community as part of therr project
management module Our graduate
development programme has won a number
of awards We were first in the Construction
and Property category in Job Crowd's Top
100 Companies for Graduates to Work For,
and ninth overall We were also delighted {o
win the Best Training Scheme at the Women
in Construction Awards and to be third in the
Graduate Employer of the Year Award at

the National Graduate Recruitrnent Awards

In addition, we offer specialist skills traimng

In core areas, such as health and safety,
construction and design and also offer

a surte of nternally designed and detvered
management and leadership traning courses
These are designed to help employees to
develop the skills required to progress from
middle management through to senior
management and other leadership roles

We remain focused on employee engagement
and dunng the year our sixth annual engagement
survey was undertaken These voluntary surveys
allow us to develop engagement plans
throughout the business aimed at further
improving our relationship with our employees

We continue to recognise outstanding
indwidual and team performance of our
employees through quarterly and annual
dnsional awards and annuat national awards
In addtion, we operate an instant recognitton
scheme, which dunng the current year has
awarded 400 prizes

The expertise of our construction teams

has again been recognised extemally, with
arecord-breaking 102 (2012 76) of our site
managers winning ‘Prnde in the Job' awards
from the NHBC This 1s the highest number
ever won by a housebullder since the
competition began in 1980 and 1s more than
any other housebutlder for an unprecedented
ninth consecutive year

Qur target 1s to have a fully certified Construction
Skills Certification Scheme ({CSCS’) operational
workforce, including subcontractors At March
2013, 96% (2012 97%) of our workforce,
Including subcontractors, was fully CSCS
certfied, with the shght decrease reflecting the
inctustry's focus on ensunng that all construction
workers hold the appropriate card

Pianet

We are committed to our sustainability
policy and we continue to stnve to improve
the design of both cur homes and our
developments to deliver high quality
sustanable places to iive

Through our strict design requirements,

we ensure that al! of our developments meet
a benchmark standard, creating exemplary
schemes which include open spaces and
communal areas Durning the current financial
year within our developments, 556 hectares
of open space was created, 739 hectares

of wildife space was created or retained

and 310,923 trees or shrubs were planied

or retained

Paul Ebbs being presanted with the Project Manageman! award at the Duke of Gloucestar 8 Young Achiever
of the Year 2013 by HRH The Duks of Gloucestar Mika Bially, CIT8 and Chrlstine Townley Construction

Youth Trust
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“We continue to strive
to unprove the design
of both our homes and
our developments
to delhver ngh qualty
sustamnable places
to live o9

We are committed to improving the carbon
performance of our homes and have been
working with a number of partners to achieve
this and on industry leading research projects
such as the AIMC4 Fabric First project Our
preferred approach 1s to improve the energy
efficiency of our homes through fabric
improvements and dunng the year 32%
(2012 26%) of our homes had enhanced
energy efficiency due to fabnc mprovements
We also integrated renewables into 28%
(2012 30%) of our developments

In progressmg the zero carbon challenge

as well as designing homes to meet the
applicable building regutations, we also build
homes to meet the requirements of the Code
for Sustanable Homes ('CfSH') and various
other design standards In Scotland, the CfSH
15 not applicable and instead we comply with
therr equwvalent which is a sustainability rating
of bronze, silver and gold Designing fo the
CiSH standards enables us to deliver
sustainable homes that are tallored 1o a specific
location as this standard takes into account
both the energy and water efficiency of the
home and the sustainability of the development
Dunng the year we completed 4,227 homes
{2012 3,820 homes) that met the CfSH level 3
ar above and 849 homes (2012 1,150 homes)
that met the previous EcoHomes Standard

We are committed to leading on large scale
sustainable housing projecis as we believe
that the expenence and skills we develop from
these provide us with the knowledge and
experence we need to delver future schemes
to hugher sustanability performance standards
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' PERSONS EMPLOYED

' 2009 571

1 2010 582 i |
on 539 ;|

Vo012 511

){ 2013 329
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Fhe Batralt Graduate Programme wen the Best Training Scheme categery at the Women in

Construction Awards in Fabruary 2013

For example, durng the year we completed
42 units on our Hanham Hall development

in Bristol and 32 on our Derwenthorpe
development in York We have commenced
work an our Scotswood development in
Newcastle upon Tyne where we are working in
partnership to deliver a large scale sustainable
development which 1s expected o produce
1800 new homes to CfSH level 4

We acknowledge that the nature of our business
impacts on the local environment and we
continue to stave to reduce this mpact, both
dunng and post-construction, by undertaking
sigrificant brownfield development, by delivering
high qualtty regeneration projgcts and by
montonng our waste and energy usage In the
current year, we bult 66% (2012 65%) of our
tiomes on brownfiekd land In addion, all dmsions
within the Group continue to operate an
environmental management systemn certrfied to
15014001 which 1s subject to regular montonng
and audtt In each of our dvisional offices, we
have Green Teams to devise and implement
schemes to reduce energy usage at alocal levet

We are focused on waste management and
seek to eliminate, mimimise or recycle waste
from our developments Dunng the year, we
reduced our construction waste per legal
completion to 6 25 tonnes (2012 6 47 tonnes)
We also segregated 85% {2012 96%)

of construction waste for recycling on-site

Duning the year, we have adapted our
greenhouse gas {{GHG') monitoring and
reporting In ine with the Government's recently
published Ervironmental Reporting Guidelines

{June 2013) Owur gross GHG footprint for this
year was 36,196 tonnes CO,, This 1s based
on the energy used in our offices (electricity
and gas}, on our active developments
(electricity gas, chesel and LPG) and for
business iravel (leased cars and vans, ral
and fights} Our Scope 1 carbon emissions
from gas, LPG and diesel were 16,287 tonnes
CO,,. Scope 2 carbon emissions from
glectncity were at 13,035 tonnes CO,, and
our Scope 3 carbon enmssions were 6,874
tonnes CO,, This equates to 2 77 tonnes

of GHG emissions per 1,000 square foot

of iegally completed floor area In 2013,

we excluded fugitive emissions associated
with ar condrtioning refngerant losses in our
offices due to the unavaillability of this data

We were delighted to win several major awards
during the current year refliecting our commitment
to sustamnabilty At the Housebullder Awards

we were named ‘Sustanable Housebulder of

the Year’ and at the What House awards were
nemed ‘Sustanable Developer of the Year'

Health and safety

The health and safety of cur employees,

our customers and the public remains a top
priorty Qur Safety, Health andd Environmental
management system {SHE") 1s subject to
continuous review and improvement and
conforms to health and safety standards
OHSAS18001 and 1SO14001 Ali of cur trading
dwisicns achere to the SHE guidelines and
ongoing compliance Is venfied by a programme
of nternal and external audits During the year, we
carned out 5,437 monitonng wisits and achieved
an average comphance rate of 97% (2012 96%)

We also measure health and safety
performance by monitonng our reportable
Injury Incidence Rate (IIR’) During the financial
year ended 30 June 2013, our IR reduced by
36% to 329 (2012 511) per 100,000 persons
employed We are committed to seeking to
reduce the lIR year-on-year and we are working
with our suppliers partners and local
communities to rinimise the nsk of Injury

In the 2013 NHBC Health and Safety Awards,
Jason White, a site manager at Great West
Quarter in Brentford, won the National Award
i the Multi-Storey category In addition,

we won one Regionat Award and had ten
commended sites
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REPQRT OF THE DIRECTORS
BUSINESS REVIEW

GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR’S REVIEW

Driving profitability
and reducing
indebtedness

We have delivered another year of impressive profit growth
and have further reduced net debt, whilst continuing to
purchase land that will result in further improvements 1n margin
We have also comprehensively refinanced the business We
are well placed to make further good progress in 2014

SUMMARY
Significantly mproved profitability with a 73 7% increase in profit before
tax and exceptional items to £192 3m (2012 €110 7m)

» Net debt reduced by £141 8m to £25 9m (2012 £167 7m)

¢ Comprehensive refinancing completed with ¢ £850m of committed
borrowing facilities to June 2016 and £650m to May 2018 with some
of these faciites extending as far as 2021

1 Operating profit after £2 Bm (2012 £nil) of operating excephonal items was £2409 9m 2012 £191 1m)
Profit before tax after £87 5m (2012 £10 Tm) of exceptional tems was £104 8m {2012 £100 Om}
3 Basic earntngs per share 7 7p (2012 T0p)

[
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Operating profil belore operatng
axceptional tems!

£252./m

(2012 £191 tm)

Profit betore fax before exceptional tems?

£192.3m

(2012 £110 7m)

Adjusted sarnings per share before
exceptional tems?®

14.6p

(2012 81p)

KEY PERFORMANCE METRICS

Qur key performance metrics for the financial
year were as follows
* revenue was £2,606 2m (2012 £2,323 4m),
* completions, including joint ventures,
increased by 6 3% to 13,663 (2012 12,857),
» profit from operations before operating
exceptional items increased by 32 2%
to £252 7m (2012 £1911m),
¢ profit from operations was £249 9m
(2012 £1911m),
* operatng margin before operating
exceptional items was 9 7% (2012 8 2%),
+ profit before tax before exceptional
items mcreased by 73 7% to £192 3m
(2012 £110 7Tm),
* profit before tax was £104 8m
(2012 £1000m),
* adjusted basic earnings per share before
exceptional iterns was 14 6p 2012 8 1p),
* net debt was £25 9m (2012 £167 7m)

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS

Dunng the year we completed a number of
significant transactions to further strengthen and
enhance our financia position and performance

Comprehensive refinancing

As a result of our much improved financial
performance, on 14 May 2013 we completed
a comprehensive refinancing a year ahead of
schedule, and ach:ieved committed borrowing
facihes at attractive terms over a peniod of up
o eight years Tha refinancing prowides the
Group with around £850m of committed




borrowing facities to June 2016 and £650m
to May 2018 with some of these facilities
extending as far as 2021

The refinancing elements are detailed below

Future faciities

» new £700m commutted bank revolving credit
faciity, reducing to £550m in June 2016 and
matunng in May 2018,

+ retenton of the US380m of prvate placement
notes that were issued n May 2011 and mature
in August 2017, swapped into sterling equating
1o a £48m fixed-rate oan, and

+ retention of the £100m term loan
from The Prugenhal/M&G UK Companies
Financing Fund that was drawn in July 2011,
of which 25% 1s scheduled to be repad In
2019, 25% 1n 2020 and the balance in 2021

Covenants

The covenants reflect a normalised lending
package including a return to an interest cover
covenant (as opposed to cash cover introduced
in 2008) being tested alongside tangible net
asset value and geanng covenants

Prepayment of histonc private

placement notes

The Group's histonc prvate placement notes
that were 1ssued n 2007 and 2008 {amounting
to £151 9m equivalent at 30 June 2013),
together with the associated cross currency
swaps were cancelled on 2 Juty 2013 The
average Interest payable on these notes was
around 1 4% These notes had interest payable
make-whole provisions that were calcuated

at 300 basis points below the interest coupon
Accordingly, given the downward trajectory

of Group debt there was both the opporturuty
and financia ncentive for the Group to exercise
its prepayment nghts

The interest make-whole of £53 0m 15
included in the exceptional finance charge
in the Income statement

Cancellation of tistone interest rate swaps
The Group's interest rate swaps were Incepted
n 2007 The Group has cancelled £55m norminal
value of Interest rate swaps resutting I an
exceptional finance charge of £18 5m n the year
ended 30 June 2013 After this cancellation,
the Group has interest rate swaps remaining with
anominal contracted value of £137m These will
be cancelled n the future as appropriate The
cancellaton cost for these remaining swaps as
at 30 June 2013 was ¢ £30m

Monetisation of eguity share

In lIne with our previcusly stated am to moneise
this asset, on 13 May 2013 we entered nto a
ot venture, Rose Shared Equity LLP {"Rose’),
with a fund managed by Anchorage Capital
Group LLC {Anchorage’) The Group's equity
share loans that originated in the penod from

1 January 2009 to 31 December 2011 were
sold to Rose

Anchorage acquired a 50% interest In Rose
for £33 7m Anchorage will recewve its initral
investment back by way of preferred retusmn
and then the partners will share equally ai
subsequent cash proceeds from the portfolio

This transaction resulted in no gain or 10ss
compared to the net book value of the assets
being monetised

The Group will continue o actively manage
its equity share loan porifoiio to optirmise
cash receipts

Joint ventures
In the last three years we have developed
a JV model manly for our Londen region

Operationally, this provides us with a greater
consumer presence and also creates more
activity In the land market Financially, ¢ reduces
peak investment per stte, reduces concentration
nsk and enhances ROCE During the year,

we have entered into two new housing Jvs
compnsing Futham Wharf LLP and Barratt
Wates (Worthing) Limited

Since 30June 2013, we have alsc entered into
a JV with a fund managed by Morgan Stanley
Rezl Estate lmvesting to buikd 770 homes on a
mversicie site n the Royal Borough of Greerwich

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

Operating performance

and segmental analysis

The Group's operations comprise two
segments housebuilding and commercial
developments These sagments reflect the
different product offerings and market nisks
facing the business

An analysis of the operationa! performance
of these segments 1s provided within the
Business Review
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Excephional items

The Group incurred exceptional items before
tax in the year of £875m (2012 £107m) This
compnsed operating exceptional tems of £2 8m
{2012 £rl), exceptional costs ansing from the
mparment of its investment in & commercial JV
of £5 4m (2012 £10 7m related to the acquisition
of a former JV) and excephicnal finance costs

of £79 3m {2012 £rul)

Operating exceptional items

1) Refinancing and equity share monetisation
As aresult of the comprehensive refinancing
and the monetisation of equity share in the
year, the Group incurred £2 8m of costs, mamnly
related to professional fees, which have been
included as an exceptional operating expense
There 1s a related tax credit of £0 6m

1) Imparrment of tand and work in progress
The Group has completed a site-by-site
mmparment review using valuations incorporating
forecast sales rates and average selling prices
that reflect both current and anticppated trading
conditens The imparrment reviews include low
single-digit house price and build cost inflation
assumptions n future penods

Since the overall gross margins ach:eved
across the Group's developments werg
primarily in line with those incorporated into
prior pernod impairment reviews, no further
excepiional imparment was required at

30 June 2013 However, there were gross
impairment charges of £35 4m (2012 £48 1m)
and reversals of £22 6m (2012 £34 8m)
resulting in a net inventery impairment of

Land bank

£2,1270m

(2012 £2,0773m)

Unreserved stock units per active site

1.7 units

{2012 26 units)

Net debt

£25.9m

(2012 £1677m)

£12 8m (2012 £13 3m} due to vanations
1n market conditions across housebuilding
and commercial development sites

During the year ended 30 June 2013, we

have expenenced vanation in house price
movemeants by region and should the actual
house price movements for the current financial
year differ from that expected in the imparment
review, then further mparments or reversals

in imparrments of the carrying value of our land
bank may be required

We recognise that the Group 1s not immune
to future pricing trends in the wider housing
market and we will continug to review the
trading environment and our impairment
assumptions duning the year to 30 June 2014

Fmancing exceptional tems

As a result of the comprehensive refinancing

in the year, the Group incurred £79 3m of
exceptional finance costs related to the nterest
make-whole on the private placement notes,
the cancellation of cross currency and interest
rate swaps and the write-off of fees in respect
of the previous refinancing There 1s a related
tax credrt of £18 8m

In addrtion, as a result of this refinancing, the
Group has incurred fees of £14 9m which are
bemg amortised over the Hife of the facities

Joint venture exceptional item

At 30 June 2013, the Group conducted

an impairment review of its share of the
inventories included within its JV mvestments
As a resuit of this review, the Group impaired
its investment in a commercial JV by £5 4m
with a related deferred tax credit of £1 3m

Finance cost

The net finance charge before exceptional

costs for the year was £68 Om 2012 £80 8m)
This included a non-cash finance charge

of £205m (2012 £23 2m} After financing
exceptional costs of £78 3m (2012 Lnil) related

to the comprehensive refinancing, the net finance
charge for the year was £147 3m (2012 £808m)

Following our refinancing, the undertying
average interest rate for the Group (excluding
histonc interest rate swaps) has reduced to

¢ 4 5% For the financial year ending 30 June
2014 we currently expect that our cash and
non-cash finance charge will be ¢ £35m and
¢ £25m respectively
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Tax

The Group's tax charge for the year was

£29 8m (2012 £32 6m) This differed from the
effective rate for the year of 23 75% mamnty due
to the impact of the reduction in the statutory
corporation tax rate from 24% to 23% and its
impact upon the Group's deferred tax asset
and adjustments relating to pnor penods

For the financial year ending 30 June 2014 we
expect the total taxation charge to be around
the effective rate of corporation tax of 22 5%
This excludes the impact of the charge arising
from the reducticn in the value of the Group’s
deferred tax asset due to the reduction in the
standard rate of corporation tax enacted in the
Finance Act 2013

Dividend

The Board proposes to pay a final dividend
of 2 5 pence per share for the financial

year ending 30 June 2013, which subject
to shareholder approval, will be paid on

20 November 2013 to sharehclders on the
register at the close of business on 25 October
2013 The dividend was covered around six
times by adjusted basike earnings per share
The Board intends to adopt a progressive
divdend policy as profitability grows, with
the am of achieving a target dvidend cover
of around three times for FY16

Income recognised In equity

During the year an income of £8 8m (2012
expense of £33 9m) has been recognised in
equity predominantly in respect of hedged
cashflows and hedged cashfiows ng longer
expected to occur

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION
The net assets of the Group increased by
£99 4m to £3,073 2m 2012 £2,973 8m),
primanly reflecting the profit after tax for the
year of £75 Om and the income recognised
drrectly in equity including amounts in respect
of hedged cashflows and hedged cashflows
no lenger expected to occur

Net tangible asset value increased by 4 8%

to £2,1810m (2012 £2,081 8m) and net tangible

asset value per share at 30 June 2013 was

£2 23 202 £213 per share)

Significant movements in the balance

sheet included

* the Group's book value of land was
£2,1270m (2012 £2,077 3m}, an ncrease
of £49 7m This increase included land
additions of £658 4m offset by land usage
and disposals,



Group work in progress at 30 Jung 2013
was £1,001 8m (2012 £1,065 5m) Stock and
work In progress has been closely controlled
throughout the year and the decrease of
£63 6m primarily reflects a reduced stock
holding at the year end Unreserved stock
units as at 30 June 2013 were 1 7 units
(2012 2 6 unts) per actve site,

Group net debt decreased by £141 8m over
the year to £25 9m (2012 £1677m) As we
increase site numbers, make scheduled
payments on agreed new land, buid work
in progress particularly in London, and

to defiver completions for spring 2014

we expect net debt at 31 December 2013
to Increase 1n line with normal seasonal
trends (2012 £3317m) Going forward

our target (s to maintain an appropriate
capital structure,

goodwilt and intangible assets remamned

at £892 2m as the annual impairment
review of the entire housebuilding business
and brand indicated that no imparment
was required at the year end,

the Group had a corporation tax asset

of €0 4m (2012 £0 4m) and a deferred

tax asset of £92 1m (2012 £118 6m) The
Group's deferred tax asset decreased by

£26 5m mainly due to the reduction in the
statutory corporation tax rate to 23% and
the utihsation of tax losses The changes
to corporation tax rates announced in the
2013 Budget wilt further reduce the future
value of the Group's deferred tax asset,
however as the changes were not
substantivety enacted at 30 June 2013 they
are not reflected in the Group's financial
statements The recluction in corporation
tax rate from 23% to 20%, which has been
anacted since the balance sheet date,
would further reduce the Group's deferred
tax asset by £12 Om 1f all of the deferred
{ax was to reverse after July 2015,

the pension fund deficit on the Barratt
Developments defined benefit pension
scheme reduced by £8 Om in the year

to £13 4m mainly due to employer
contributions and actual returns greater
than expected returns, offset by changes
In actuanal assumptions,

trade and other payables were £1,321 9m
(2012 £1,361 3m) ncluding an increase

of £18 3m n land payables from £726 1m
to £744 4m reflecting the significant
proportion of newly acquired land

on deferred terms

TREASURY

Following our refinancing we have around
£850m of committed borrowing facdites to
June 2016 and £650m to May 2018 with some
of these facilities extending as far as 2021

In order to enable us to take advantage of
current opportunities In the land market, we
have agreed terms upon an additional £50m
two year term loan, which we expect to be
avarlable from 1 October 2013 Our covenant
package 1s appropnate and the facilites
provide appropnate headroom above our
current foracast requirements

We maintain a regular dialcgue with our
lending group, holding at least three meetings
per annum, where we provide an update

on the housing market, our current trading
performance and expected performance

for the financial year

The Group has a conservative treasury

risk management strategy which includes

a current target that 30-60% of the Group's
median gross borrowings calculated by
reference to the latest three year plan shouid
be at fixed rates of nterest Group interest
rates are fixed using both swaps and fixed
rate debt nstruments

IN CONCLUSION

Ounng the year, the Group has made
significant progress in both building profitability
and reducing net debt, and has refinanced to
provide appropnate faciities for the Group's
future funding requirements whilst reducing
the effective cost of its facilities

Our focus remains on buillding profitatulity,
mamtaining an appropnate capital structure

and substantially proving our ROCE
3—$ l 4 S

David Thomas
GROWP FINANCE DIRECTOR
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MANAGING RISK

Risk management

We believe that effective risk management 1s critical to the achievement of our strategic
objectives and our long-term performance Risk management 1s embedded at all levels
of our business and 1s an integral part of our day-to-day operations We continually
assess our exposure to risk and seek to ensure that risks are appropnately mitigated

1 BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES

Board *  Sirategic lsadershp
*  Determines the level of nsk acceptable, assesses
key nsks and seeks (o ensure that they ae
appropriately managed and mitigated
«  Sats delegated authorty levels
¢« Approves policies and procedures

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board 1s responsible for the overall
stewardship of our system of nsk management
and internal control It has established the
level of nsk that 18 acceptable in the pursurt

of our strategic objectives and has set policies
and delegated authonty levels to provide the
framework for assessing nsks and ensuring
that they are escalated to the appropnate
levels of management, including up to the
Board where appropriate, for consideration
and approval

The roles and responsibilities of the Board,
its committees and all levels of management
from a nsk management perspectve are
summansed as follows

ACTIONS UNDERTAKEN

« Set the strategic direction for the Group

¢ [ssug and review nsk management policy

* Annually review effectveness of nsk management
and mtarnat control systems

* Review key nsks and responses

Audit Commutiee *  Reaviews the effectveness of internal controls, mciuding
gystems to identify assess and monitor rsks

+  Review kay areas of accounting judgement

+ Recewe regular reports on internal and external audit

+ Bannually assess nsk management and nternal
control systems

Nomination Committee * Ensures an appropnate balance of skills, knowledge
and experience on the Board

+ Review the composition of the Board and consider
sUCCession planning

Remuneration Commuttes * Ensures the appropnate ncentwisation of the senior
executive population

*  Review the remuneration of the senior executves
and the approprateness of Incentive schemeas

2 GROUP MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES

Executve Committee + Monitors performance and changes in key rnsks facing
tha business and provides reguiar reports to the Board
= Responsible for ensunng that the nsk management policy
1s implemented and embedded within the business and
appropriate actions are 1aken to manage nsks
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ACTIONS UNDERTAKEN

Implement strategic direction of the Group

Three year plan process incorporating annual budgeting
Regular periormance reviews

Biannual review of internal assessment of nsk management
and controd selt-certification

» Raview resulls of assurance actnities

L T




2 GROUP MANAGEMENT

Operations Committes

RESPONSIBILITIES

Review of regional operating performance

ACTIONS UNDERTAKEN

Review of regional performancs, risks and mitigation plans

Health and Safety Committes

Reviewing the effectveness of health and safety policies
and establishing controts and procedures to manage
these nsks

Implement health and satety policies and procedures
approved by the Board
Review results of assurance acimhbes

Risk Commiitee +  Consideration of identified nsks and ther miigation s Review nsk action plans

Treasury Operating Committee *  Management of hquichty and counterparty nskand ensunng  «  Implement treasury polices and procedures approved
ihat treasury policies are mplemented and embeadded by the Board
within the business

Lang Committee +  Reviewing and authonsing all proposed land acquisiions »+  Review of land acqusiton proposals and post-investment
to manage tand acquisition risk appraisals

3 REGIONAL MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES ACTIONS UNDERTAKEN

Regional managerment

Responsible for nsk identdication, management

and control within ther region

Ensurmg that dvisional nsk rmanagement responsibiiies
are approprately discharged

Review dwvisionat performance inchuding regutar site visits with
review and chatiengs of performance, nsks and ther mitigation
Biannual review of mternal assessment of nsk managemsnt
and control salf-cerlfication

RESPONSIBHUTIES

Dwisional management

Business planning to support strategic objectves
Mamtam an effectve system of nsk management
andd nteral control wathin ther dmsion

Monthly board meetngs and regular site reviews
to review performance, nsks and ther mitigation
Quarterly site valuation and valuation reviews
Brannual nsk managerent, control seif certification
and nsk escalation

Siie management

RESPONSIGITIES S

Mantan an effective system of nsk management and
nternal controt upon ther site NCluding construction nsks,
subcontracter nsks and health and safety

ACTIONSIUNDERTAKEN :

Day-to-cay management of their sitg

RESEONSIBILITIES

Support functions

Guidance and advice to operational management

to help with nsk dentfication, quantmication ang mitigation
mcludmg legal and regutatory requirements, product
design and techrucal specriications, Hurman Resources,
Commercial, [T, Procurement, Finance and Insurance

Prowide guidance support and challenge for management
including regular financial and performance reviews

the review and authonsation of procuct design/technical
specifications, and framing, guidance and policies

Centrally mamtamed IT systems

Centralised procurement for key matenat supplies

Develop and implement approved strategy for nsurable nsk

Internat audit * Independent review of the effectivenass of rnisk * Regular operational, inancial and commercial audits
management and complance with internal controls *  Regular reports to the Audit Gomenittee and meetings
* Reporting to the Audit Commuitee upon the effectiveness with the Audit Committes without management presence
of key controls ¢ Review of biannual nsk management and controt
seli-certhication
Health and Safety ¢ Independent audit of health and safety procedures ¢ Regular site audits
and controls on sites and within dvisional offices ¢ Regular reports to Health and Safety Cormmittes,
Board, Executve and Operations Committees
« Attend divisional board mestings
Group architects * Ensunng all properties are designed n accordance * Regular site audits

with relevant legislation and best practice design

Approvat progess for non-standarg properties
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group’s financial and operational performance and reputation 1s subject to a number

of nsks The Board seeks to ensure that appropriate processes are put in place to manage,
monitor and mitigate these risks of which the principal risks are identified in the table below
The Group recogmses that the management of risk 1s fundamental to the achievement

of Group targets As such, management throughout the Group are involved in this process

RISK AND DESCRIPHON

Economic environment,
mcluding housing demand
and mortgage availlallity

Changes in the UK and European
MACFORCONDMIC ervironments,
niciuding unemployment, flat

aconomic growth, buyer confidence,

avallability of mortgage finance
particularly for higher lcan 1o values
ncludng Government backed
schemes, the abilily of purchasers
16 repay equity share loans nerest
rates, competitor pneing, falls m
house pnces or land values or a
fature of the housing market 10
recover, may lead to a fall n the
demand for houses which i tum
could result N Imparments of

the Group's mventones, goodwill
and intangible assets

Cost reduction measures may

adversely affect the Group’s busness

of Its abilty 1o respond to future
mprovements n market conditions

RELEVANCE TO STRATEGY

The rmajenty of homes built by the
Group are purchased by ndmduals
who rely on the avalability of
mortgages The conlidence of buyers
and ther ability to obtan mortgages
or other forms of financmg are
mpacted by the macroeconomic
enironment  Accordingly, customer
demand 15 sensitve 10 changes in
economic condittons

Tha Group's ability 10 grow it
business partly depends on secunng
land or options over sites and having
adequate resources to buld sufficient
homes to mest demand The Group's
ability to do this can be impacted by
cash and profit constraints which,

In turn, would have an acverse effect
upon net operating assets and net
debt (see also the hiquidity, land and
construction nsks sections below)

MITIGATION

Led by the Group Chiel Executive,
the Executve Commities undertakes
a weakly review of key tradng
ndicators, mehyding reservations,
sales rates equity share sales,
part-exchange, wsior levels,
ncentves publicly avalable
competitor actvaty and cash flow
projechons and, whare possible,
appropriaie ranagement acton
15 taken

The Group's intenal systems clearly
dentify the impact of sales pnce
changes on tha margins achievable
and as a minwmum the Group
performs assat Imparment eviews
twice a year

The Group works with key mortgage
lenders to ensure that products

are appropriate wherever possible
for its customers

Tha Group contnuousty seeks

to enhance tha effectiveness and
efficiency of our sales processes
and keeps the Group's cost base
fightty controlled Cost reduction
mMeasures are also managed via
1he stewardship of the Executive
and Operations Committees

CHANGEINI013]

The UK housing market remained
refatvely stable dunng the first

nine months of the Group's financial
year and showed matenal signs of
improvement dunng the tinal quartes

The Group has seen an ncrease In
the avatlability of fugher foan 1o value
mortgages and ncrsasngly
competitive mortgags rates largely
resuiting from the Bank of England's
Funding tor Lending Scheme

Goverament support for the UK
housebuiding industry has remained
strong with a number of intatves
In place designed o support house
purchases and stimulate economic
growth Housmg formed a prominent
part of the March 2013 Buiget with
a range of new measures announced
n parhicular o improve the supply
of mortgage finance n Apnl 2013
Help to Buy was launched, the
Governmert only backed equity
share product avalable to tha new
buid sector Since then the Group
has seen a signficant step up n
levels of consumer Interest and a
strengihenmg of sales rates

An improving markat

page 6

UK housing market

pages 18 and 18

Land purchasing

The atulity 10 secure sutficent
consented land at appropnate
cost and quahty to provide
profitable growth

The Group needs 1o puschase
sufficient quantiies of good qualty,
consented land at attractive pnces
In ordler to be in a position o
commence construction and
erhance the Group's abiity to
detver profit growth

Acquinng poor quality or misprced
land would have an adverse impact
on profuability and revenue

Uncer the stewardship of the Group
France Director, potential land
acquistions ars subyect 1o formal
appraisal, with those approved
requied to achigve an overall Group
defined gross margin and ROCE
hrdie and to meet the Group's
strategic cnteria for growth Each
drsion produces a detalled

site by-site monthly analysis

of the amount of land currently owned,
commitied and dentified These are
consolidated ior reguiar review at
senior management and Board level
In addition, each operating dmston
holds regular land mestings.

The Group continues to see a good
range of opportunities for investrment
N 1ts targeted jocations without
undue concentration and without
relaxing its 20% gross margmn or 25%
ROCE hurdie rates Howaever, thera is
& slrong dermand for conventional
and low complexity sites m London
and the south east, with 50me site
specific land prnice increases in these
argas diven by competition and
house price nflation

Bulding profitatiity

- acquinng land

pages 9 and 10

Targeted land buying

page 11
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RISK AND DESCRIPTION
Liguidity

Linavatlability of sufficient borrowing
faciities to enable the servicing of
llabiities (inchxding pension fundng)
and the mability to refinance faciities
as they iali due, obtain suraty bonds,
or comply with borrowing covenants
Furthermore, there are risks to
managermant of workang capital
such as conditional contracts, build
costs, joint ventures and the cash
flows related to them

RELEVANCE TO STRATEGY

The Group maintams committed
{aciies of diferent duration that

arg designed 10 ensure that the
Group has sufficient available funds
for operations. The Group's
borrowings are cyclcal dunng the
financial year and peak arcund Apnl/
May andt OctobearMNovember each
year as, due to ssasonal trends in
ncome, these are the calendar ponts
when the Group has the hwghest
working capital requirements

‘The Group maintains sufficient
commutied debt facility headroom
and in additon has a number Of trade
finance and surety fackiies thal are
designed to ensure the Group has
sufficient funds available The absence
of approprate headroom would bmit
the Group's land buying and
operational capability, adversely
aftectng profitabiiity and the Group's
ability to detver shansholder value

MITIGATION

The Group has cormmmitied
borrowing facilities of around
£850m with matunties ranging
from 2016 to 2021

The Group has in place a
comprehensve regular forecasting
Process encompassing profitabiity
working capital and cash flow that
18 fully embedded n the business
The Group Finance Director ensures
these forecasts are regularly
stress-tasted 10 ensure that adequate
hezdroom within faciities and
bankmg covenants 1 mantaned
On a normal operating basis, the
Group has a polcy of mantanng
facihity headroom of up to £150m

The Group has a comprehensve
regular forecasting process for
surety bond requiremenis

The Group 1s 1IN compliance with

its borrowing covenanis and, at the
date of approval of the 2013 Annual
Report and Accounts, the Group’s
wternat forecasts indicate that it wall
renam In compliance with these
covenanis for the foresesable futurg,
being at least 12 months from

the date of sigring of the 2013
Annual Report and Accounts

The Group has agreed a
comprenensive refinancing dunng
the year, which prowdes committed
borrowing facilities of around £850m
with maturities ranging from 2016

1o 2021

Comprehensive miinancng
pages J0and 31

Treasury page 33

Going concern page 91

Attracting and retamning
lugh calibre employees *

Inability to recruit and/or retan
empioyees with approprate
skill sets or sufficient numbers
of such employees

The Group ams o attract, retan
and develop a sufficiently skiled
and expenenced workiorce In
order to mantam high standards
of qualty and customer service

Not having employees with
appropnate skill sels can lead
1o buid delays, quality 1ssues
reduced sales, poor customer
care and reduced profitabiity

The Group Human Resources
Drector oversees a comprehensve
Human Resources programme which
nciudes apprenticesnip schemes,

a gracuale development prograrmme,
succession planning and tranmg
schemss taiored to each disciping
These processes are embedded
operationalty The Group contnues
to target a fully Construction Skills
Certiication Schermne carded and
qualified operational workforce

We monitor employee turnover levels
on a monthly basis and conduct exit
interviews as appropriate to wdentify
any areas for mprovement We
benchmark our remuneration
aganst ndustry competitors

Daspile bugh competibon amongst
employers n SOme regions, employee
turnover has only shghtly ncreased

to 13% (2012 12%)

The Group 15 also undertaking a

number of niatves 1o help rebuld
the skills base of the ndustry
Peopls pages 2610 28

Availability of raw matenals,
subcontractors and supplers *

Shortages or increased costs of
matenals and skilled labour, the failure
ot a key supplier or the ingbility to
sacure supples upon appropnate
credit terms could ncrease costs

and delay construction

The Group relies upon affordable
supples of bulding matenals from
mutiple sources and subcontractons
to perform the magonty of work

on sites  Thys retans flexibility to
commence work on new sites and
enhances the Group's buid cost
efficiency Adverse management of
these supphers and/or subcontractors
couid Iead 10 budd delays, cost
ncreasas and educed profitability

Managed by the Group Procurement
Director, the Group adopis a
professional approach to site
management and seeks to partner
wilh rts supply chan The Group

has a poicy of having multiple
supphers for both labour contracts
and matengat supplies as well as
contngency plans should any

key supplier fal

Dunng 2013 the Group saw some
price increases in brncks blocks and
plastic plumbing However, the overall
price ncrease on centrally procured
matenals was less than 1% For FY14
the Group conlinues 1o put suppler
agreemeants in place to seek o
ensurs continuous availabiiity of
matenals and overall | expects low
single-digt cost Increases The Group
wili continue to work to migate the
impact of any such ncreases
wherever possible through further
buid efficiencies

Building profitability

- improving efficiency

page 10
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
BUSINESS REVIEW « MANAGING RISK

RISK AND DESCRIPTION

Government regulation
and planning policy *

Inability to adhere to the increasingly
stnngent and complex regulatory
environment, inchudng planning

and technical trequirernents affecting
the housing market and regulatory
requIremenis more generally

RELEVANGE TO STRATEGY

The Group's land portfolo consists
of land for the short and medum
term as well as strategic land
Inability to obtain suitable consents,
or unforeseen delays, could mpact
on the number or type of homes
that we are able to buikd We could
also be required to fund higher
than antcipated levels of planning
oblgations, or incur additicnal
costs to meet mereasad regutatory
requirements  All of these would
have a detnmental impact on the
contnbution per plot The Group
sesks 10 meet regulatory and
planning requirements to obtain

the planning pemission required

to develop homes and communities

MITIGATION

Led by the Group Chef Executve,
and supported by the Director of
Corporate Affairs and the Group Head
of Planning the Group consuilts with
the Government both directly and
through ndustry bodies to highlight
potential issues and has considerable
m house techrical and planning
axpertise devoted to complyng

with regulations and achieving
mplernentable planning consents

Tha Group has appropnate polices
and techrical guidance manuals in
ptace to assist employees (o acheve
reguiatory compliance and the
standards of business conduct
expected ol them

The Group contnues 10 see some
Improvements in thes arsa both as a
result of changes in Government polcy
and operational improvements withm
1S busness

Following the implemeniaton of the
Government’s National Planning
Policy Framework, there are stronger
incentves for local authonties 1o put
in place five year land supplies That
in turn 1s leading to an improved
dialogue between local authonties
and in the Group's dvisIons

Nevertheless the planning process
rermains a lengthy one and on
average It takes the Group around
70 weeaks from agreemny to purchase
the land 1o achieving tull or outiine
planning consent The length of the
planning process will remain a
restnetion on the speed at which
housng supply can ncrease
Plarnng pages 11 and 24

Construction and
new technologes *

Failure to 1gentify and achiave
key construction mulestones, due
1o factors Nciuding the mpact

of adverse weather conditions,
the failurs to dentify cost overnms
promply, design and consiruction
defects, and exposwe 1o
environmental iabilihes which
could delay CONStructon INCrease
costs, reduce seling pnces and
result n htigation and urinsured
losses There are also nsks
assoclted with cimate change
and the use of new technology

N the buld process 6 g malenals
related to carbon reduction

The Group buitds homes and
communities i Great Bntan ranging
from houses to large scale fatted
developments In the event we did
not do so efficiently, or new
technologies result N quality 1Issues,
the Group's profitability and ability

to grow the busness could be
impacted negativety

The Group's Executve Committee
oversees weekly reportmg which
ientiies the number of properties at
key stages of construction Projected
construction rates are evatuated as
part of the monthly forecasting cycle
Progress wiih development projects
{inchudmg joint venturss and
consoriums), Including retums anc
cash flows, 1S monitered regularty

by dvsional managament teams and
the Group obtains legal and other
professional advice when requirec
Any atemative forms of construction
and bulding technologies ang the
qualty of the matenals used by the
Group are subjec! to evaluation

by external and nternal techmical
experts, ncluding the NHBC, to
ensurg comphancs with all builkding
and other regulalions

All sttes are valued on a quarterty
basis and any cost overruns kentiiec
are raviewed at the menthly dmsional
board meetings and are subject

to challenge by regonal ang

Group management

The Group regularly monitors a
number of ervironmental impact
ndicators, the results of which
are disclosed in the Group's
Sustanab:ity Report

Appropriate INsurance cover 1S
maintamed for the Group's man nsks

In addition to the weeldy mvews by
the Group Executve Committee, the
Group Operations Comimities a5sesses
regional perfermance monthty

Our performance

pages 19 1o 21
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RISK AND DESCRIPTION

Joint ventures
and consortiums

Large development projects, some
of which mvolve jont ventures of
consortium arrangements and/or
commercial developments, are
complex and capital ntenswe

RELEVANCE TO STRATEGY

Due 10 thewr scale some projects
may fegure jomnt venture or
consortium arrangements Failure
of a joint venture or consortum
partner to perform its financial and/or
operational pbligations can place
adaitional capital or operational
burdens upon the Group

MITIGATION

Led by the Group Finance Direclor,
potential joint ventures and
consortium arrangements are subject
to formal appraisal and appropnate
external advice 1S oblained belfore
such arrangements are approved
Once operational, the pertormance
of jomt ventures and consortum
arrangements 1s subject to regular

Dunng the year, the Group has
entered INto a number of new
jont ventures n London and the
south east

Jont ventures page 21

and changes may negatively
mnpact upon cash flows of retfurns oparational and financial review
Health and safety * Health and safety 1S a key 1ssue Reportng io the Group General No change
in the housebuilding sector Given Counssl, the Group Head of Sataty, Health and safety
Health and safety breaches the inherent nisks, It 15 of paramount Heatth and Ervironment manages page 29
can result n njunes 1o employees, importance 1o the Group Senor a deccated health and safety

subcontractors and site visitors,
delays in constructorvincreased
costs, reputational damage, cnminal
prosecution and el itgation

management and the Board review
heatth and safety matters on a regutar
basis and seek to reduce injury
ncidence rates by implementing
polcies and procedures aimex at
keeping staff and visttors free

from nury

In addibon to the possibly tragic
mpact of an accident on-site,
there 1s potentat for legal
proceadings, inancial penalies,
reputabional damage and delay
1o the sile’s progress

department, which 1s ndependent

of the maragement of the operatng
dmsions. Health and satety audits

are undertaken on a reguiar bass

and processes are modiied as required
with a view 10 sesking coninuous
impeovement Performance s evewed
by the Health and Safety Comrrttee,
which meets quanterly Each month,
health and satety reports are cascaded
by each dvision for evew by the
Exscutve and Operations Comenitiees
anxl Board, which also receves a
direct report every sx months from

the Group Head of Safety, Hesitth

and Ervionment

iT

Falture of the Group's IT systems,
in particular those relating 1o
surveying and valuation, coutd
acversely iImpact the performance
of the Group

The abiity to optmise pnces

and ensure operatonal efficency

15 essential to the Groups perdormance
The Group's ntegrated management
systems enable the Group to mantan
tght control, especially wath regard to
supveyINg and vaksation

Adverse IT performance could cause
delays in buid and have an adverse
impact on operational efficiency

and profit

Led by the Group Information
Technology Director, a dedicated
n-house IT team regutarly monitors
and maintans Group 1T systemns

{0 ensure cortinued functionality

A fully-tested cisaster recovery
programma Is i place

The Group has nvested in ds site
based IT and customer websites

The Group continues to nvast
N 1ts business systemns and IT
infrastructise
Dgital on the move
page 27

A Sustalnability risks are explored in more datall in our 2013 Sustainability Report, avallable al www barraitdevelopments co uk D

Detalls of the Group s management of kquidity risk market risk credit nsk and capital nsk in refation to financlal instruments are provided n note 26
Detalls of the Group s contingent kiabllities are provided in note 34
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

ROBERT LAWSON

NON-EXECUTVE CHAIRMAN

Appointment to the Board

Bob joined the Board as a Non-Exacutve Director on
1 June 2008 and became Non Executive Chaiman
on 1 July 2008

Committee membership
Chasrman of the Nommaton Committes and
amember of the Remuneration Commuittes

External appointments

Bob 15 currently the Non-Execulive Chairman
of Genus plc and a Director of The Federation
of Groundwork Trusts

Previous experience

Formerty the Chairman of Hays ple (2001-2010)
Managirg Director of the Vitec Group tor three years
and Chief Executive of Electrocomponents plc for
ten years and subsequently Chairman for a further
fve years (1991-2006)

TESSA BAMFORD

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appointment to the Board
Tessa was appomnied as a Non-Exscutve Dirsctor
on 1 July 2009

Committee membership
Member of the Audit, Nomination and
Remuneration Committess

External appointments

Tessa 15 a Non Executive Director of Wolseley pic,
aconsultant at Spancer Stuart, a Govemnor of the
UK British Institute of Florence and a Director of
Jo's Cervical Gancer Trust

Previous experience

Tessa was formerly a Director of Cantos
Communications Limited {(2001-2011) and a Drector
of J Henry Schroder & Co with whom her carser
spanned over 12 years n vanous roles (1986-1998)

MARK CLARE

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Appointment to the Board
Mark was apponited Group Chiet Executive
on 2 October 2006

Committee membership
Mermnber of the Nomination Cornmmittes

External appointments

Mark 15 a Trustee and a Direclor of the Buikding
Research Establshment {BRE') Trust and a Director
of UK GBC Limited

Previous expenence

Mark was formerty an Executive Director of Centnca
ple He joned Bntish Gas n 1994, becoming Centrica s
Fmance Director n 1997 and Managing Director of
Centrica’s British Gas Residential Energy operation

n 2002

NINA BIBBY

NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appointment to the Board
Nina ined the Board as a Non Executve Director
on 3 December 2012

Gommittee membership
Member of the Audt, Nommation and
Remuneration Committees.

External appointments
Nina is curvently the Marketing and Consumer Director
Designate at 02

Previcus expenence

Nina was the Global Chief Marketing Officer at
Barclaycard, the paymanis subsiciary of Barclays plc
untit 30 May 2013 She was responsible for brand
development and communications, Nsight, snnovation
and digital engagement Prior to Barclaycard, Nina was
Senior Vice President Global Brand Management at
InterContinental Hotels Group plc {2006-2009) and
worked al Diageo (1997-2006), where she was latterly
the Commercial Strategy Director
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DAVID THOMAS

GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR

Appeintment to the Board
Dawd jomed as an Executive Director and the Group
Finance Director on 21 July 2008

Previous experience

He was formerly the Group Finance Director and
the Deputy Chiel Executwve of The GAME Group pic
(2004-2008) Bafore that he was the Group Finance
Drector at Millennmum and Copthome Hotels pic
{1998-2004) and held senor Tinancal roles with
House of Fraser pic and Forte plc

RODERICK MACEACHRANE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR |

Appointment to the Board
Rod was appointed as a Non-Exacutive Director
on 1 May 2008

Committee membership
Member of the Audit, Nomination and Remeneration
Committees

External appointments

Rod 1s currenily a Director of the National House
Builcing Council (NHBC") Pension Trustee Limuted
and a member of the Governing Board of the NHBC
Foundation, an independent chartable research
foundiation which 1s a omt venture with the BRE

Previous experience

He was formarty a Crector of the National Centre
for Excellence N Housing as well as the Commercial
Director and an Executve Director of the NHBC
main board betore retinng after 25 years service

" Apnl 2008




STEVEN BOYES

GROUP CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

Appointment to the Board

Steven joned the Board as an Executive Director
on 1 July 2001 and was appointed as the Group's
Chwef Operating Officer on 5 July 2012 with
responsibility for all of the Group's housabunkding
operatons nationalty

Previous experience

Steven joned Barralt ;mn 1978 and became Technical
Dwrector and then Managing Director of Barratt York
before beng apponted Regional Director for Barratt
Northern in 1999

TOM KEEVIL

GROUP GENERAL COUNSEL
AND COMPANY SECRETARY

Appointment to the Board
Tom was appointed Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary on 1 Aprit 2011

External appointments

Tom)s a Non-Executive Director of the Soliciiors
Regutation Authonty and a Fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators

Previous expenence

Tom was previously the Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary of United Utihes Group PLC
{2007-2011) and Gallaher Group pic (2001-2007)
Prior to this, be was & partner at intemational faw firm
Simmaons and SImmons, which he joned i 1984

MARK ROLFE

SENIOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Appointment to the Board

Mark was apponted as a Non-Executve Director
on 1 May 2008 ang became the Group’s Senor
Inctependent Director on 14 November 2012

Committee membership
Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Nommation and Remuneration Committees

External appointments

Mark is a Non-Executve Director of The Sage Group
plc, Bomby ple and Debenhams ple and Charmian
of Lane Clark & Peacock LLP

Previous experience

Mark was formerty the Finance Director of Gallaher
Group plc for seven years untl Apnl 2007 when it
was acquired by Japan Tobacco Inc His career
with Gallaher spanned 20 years dunng which time
ha served in vanous finance and executive roles

RICHARD AKERS

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appointment to the Board
Richard joned the Board as a Non-Executive Diector
on 2 Apnl 2012

Committee membership
Charman of the Rermuneration Comriee and a
member of the Audit and Nomination Committess

External appointments

Fuchard i1s an Executive Director of Land Securities
ple which he joned n 1995, succeeding to the Board
n May 2005 following his appointment as Managing
Director of the Retail Portfohe Richard 1s a Feliow of
the Royal institution of Chartered Surveyors

Previous experience

Richard was previously a Director and Presxdent of
the British Councit of Shopping Centres (2008-2012),
the man industry body for retail property owners
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Dear Shareholder

1am pleased to report that your Gompany has fully comphed with the
main and supporing principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code
(the 'Code'} issued in June 2010, a copy of which 1s avaltable from
www frc org uk The Board 1s focused on issues and developments
impacting the UK corporate governance arena including the
requirements of the UK Corporate Govemance Code issued in
September 2012 and the revised reporting requirements for the
Directors’ and Remuneration Reports, which will formally apply for

the financial year ending 30 June 2014

Board composition

Good corporate governance 1S more than just awareness and
adherence to the Code 1t 1s about the Board, under my stewardship,
setting the nght tone at the top A key element of this 1s ensurng that
Board composition 1s made up of the approprnate balance of skills
and expenence to drive the strategy forward Durng the year, the
non-exacutive membership of the Board was refreshed Bob Davies
retired from the Board in November 2012, after almost nine years’
service to the Board In order to enhance the existing Board balance it
was agreed that it would be beneficial to the business to have a Board
member with strategic marketing skills and expenence Accordingly,
Nina Bibby was appointed as a Non-Exgcutive Director n December
2012 In addition, the Executive reporting structure was simpiified
through the creation of a Group Chief Operatng Officer rols reporting
to the Group Chief Executive

Board effectiveness

We assessed the performance of our Board and its committees
through a senes of indvidual director, semor manager and external
adviser assessments This was conducted by Mrs Flion Hague of
independent Board Evaluation ('IBE') The outcome (which 1s set
out in the report of the Nomunation Committee) was posstive and
generated a number of insightful suggestions which we will address
over the next 12 months

Diversity

The Board's policy on Board appontments 1s available on our website
www barrattdevelopments co uk The Nomination Committee’s terms
of reference include an express reference to the consideration of
diversity when reviewing and implementing Board lavel succession
plans Below Board level the Group Chief Executive and the Group
Human Resources Director are reviewing our existing policies and
procedures and considenng If there Is any need for change to enhance
the promotion of diversity amongst our workiorce Encouragingly,

our graduate intake, which we have more than doubled in size for

the 2013/14 {inancial year (23 to 57) has a 50 50 gender balance
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Risk management and internal controls

A key focus of the Code 15 nsk management and the responsibifity

of boards to determine the nature and extent of the nsks they are willing
to take in achieving strategic corporate objectves, as well as including

an explictt obligation for boards to review the effectiveriess of nsk
management systermns and internal control Given the nsks mherent with
bullding and construction, the awareness of nsk amongst directors 1s high
Accordingly, the Board dedicates considerable tme to discussing and
assessing the nsks affecting the Group and the mitigation strategies to
address them We have included further commentary on the management
of nsk and enhanced our review of the pnncipal nsks and uncertanties

of the Group so that their refevance to the Group's business and
managernent accountabiities for each miigation strategy 1s clear

{see Managing Risk on pages 34 to 39 of the Business Review)

Shareholder engagement

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an on-going
relatonship with the Company's shareholders and achieves this through
regular dialogue on 1ssues such as the potential mpact upon our business
of UK and Eurgpean macroaconomics, the availability of mortgage lending
to customers, strategy, performance and govemance We also continue
to consult with major shareholders in respect of our remuneration policy

Conclusion

In addition to the key areas referred to above, your Board will also
continue to focus onincreasing the profitability, mantaiming an
appropriate capital structure of the Group as well as enhancing the
Group's Return on Capital Employed and total shareholder return (see
pages 85 to 144 of this Annuat Report and Accounts) We also remain
committed to excellence in the quality of the homes we build and the
communities we create, as reflected i our record number of NHBC

qéhtya ards this year

O @ 2 .)8/»
Bab Lawson
CHAIRMAN




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance reporting structure

The Board

The Company 1s led and controlied by the Board, which has overall
responsitility for the conduct of the business of the Group and ensuring
that the obligations to its shareholders and others are understood and
met The Board s responsible for setting the strategic direction of the
Group and ensuring that it has adequate resources and appropriate
controls, values and standards in place to deliver its strategy within

a framework that enables sk to be identified and managed Each
Board Director 1s aware of hus/her responsibilities, indmdually and
collectively, to promote the long-term success of the Group

The names, responsibilities and other details of each of the Board
Directors are set out on pages 40 and 41 Membership of the Board
throughout the financial year and attendance at each of its meetings
are set out In Tabie 1

Table 1 - Membership and attendance at Board meetings

The Board

Chaman Bob Lawson

Bob Lawson 1010
Mark Clare 1010
Dawid Thomas 10/10
Steven Boyes 1010
Bob Davies! 4/4
Richard Akers 10/10
Tessa Bamiorda 910
Nina Bibby** 6/6
Rod MacEachrane 10/10
Mark Rolfe” 10/10

1  Bob Dawes steppad down from his positions as Non Executive Director and Sanior
Independent Director of ihe Company on 14 November 2012
~  TessaBamford explained the reascns for her absence from a meeling and provided
het views on the items of business to the Charman
- Mark Roffa was appomted Sentor independent Diracior with effect from 14 Novemnber 2012
** Nina Bibby joined the Board as a Non Executive Director on 3 Decembar 2012

MNotes

t  Clive Fenton resigned from the Board on 5 July 2012

2 0¥ Number of meetings attended whilst a Director
A0 Number of meatings hetd whilst a Direcler

The Board met on ten occasions dunng the financial year to review and
approve a vansty of matters including these specifically reserved to them

Activities undertaken dunng the 2012/13 financial year

{including Matters Reserved):

= off-site strategic review of the business of the Group,

¢ vsits to the Central and Northern business regions,

* review of senior management succession plans,

» external faciitation of an effectiveness review of the
Board, its Committees and ndwidual directors,

« approval of the strategy and management of the Group,

« onsunng adequate financial resources are avatable for
the business,

+ review and approval of half-yearly and annual results,

* mtenm management statements and trading updates,

+ review and approval of dvidend and treasury policies,

* review and updating of internal control and nsk
management systems and processes,

« approval of matenal land investments/transactions, and

« approval of core policies relating to, amongst other matters,
safety, health and environment and employee conduct

In addition to a formal strategic review, the Board usually visits two of
the six Group operating regions each year on a rotational basis Duning
these visits, which are over a two day perod, Board members recerve
presentations from the regional management teams and also conduct
site visits  During the 2012/13 financial year the Board met in the
Central and the Northern regions of the business Separate to these
formal visits, ndvidua! Non-Exegutive Directors may also undertake
informal site visits annually as part of therr direct engagement with
employees The Board has also enhanced the frequency of the
briefings that it receves from the Regionat Managing Directors who are
not hosting annual site visits, together with presentations and updates
from key support functions, such as information technology, sales and
marketing, human resources and health and safety This assists the
Board with assessing the risks affecting the business, having had the
benefit of direct input from those responsible for managing such nsks
on aregular basis
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CQRPORATE GOVERNANCE

Board committees

The Board has estabhished three principal commuttees to which t has delegated specific responsibilities the Audt (pages 51 to 55), the
Remuneration (pages 56 and 57 to 80), and the Nomination (pages 47 to 50} Committees (each a ‘Committee’) Each Committee 1s provided
with sufficient resources to undertake the duties delegated to them and i1s able to seek advice from the Group General Counsel and Company
Secretary and external advisers, as appropnate Membership and attendance at meetings of each of the Commuttees duning the 2012/13
financial year are shown in Tables 2, 4 and 5 (pages 47, 51 and 56 respectively) Each of these Gommittees (and the Board} completed annual

effectiveness reviews (see pages 47, 49, 52 and 67)

Group management committees

In addition to the Board commitiees there are a number of Group management committees which report directiy to the Board or to a Beard
Committee to focus on spectfic areas of the business The Group management committees are the Executive, Risk, Land, Health and Safety,
Operations, and Treasury Operating The membership and responsibiities of each of these are set out below

The Executive Committee

Meets on a weekly basis to review operational
matters and also undertakes more m-depth
monthly reviews

Members

Exacutive Board members, the Group General
Counsel and Company Secretary, the Group
Sales & Marketing Director, the Group Director
of Corporate Affars, the Group Human
Resources Director and the Managing Dwector
of Wilson Bowden Developments

Responsibilities

Supporting the Group Chief Executive m
carrying out the day-to-day management
of the actvities of the Group

The Health and Safety Committee
Meets on a quarterly basis

Members-

The Group Chigf Operating Officer, the Group
General Counsel and Company Secretary,
the Group Safety, Health and Ervironment
Dwrector, the Group Design & Techrical
Drrector, the Group Human Resources
Director, a Construction Director, two Regional
Managmng Directors (representing the North
and South operations) and a dmvisional safety,
heaith and environment manager

Responsibilities

Oeveloping the health and safety strategy

for the Group, ensunng that heatth and safety
polces and procedures are adequately
mplemented and adhered to throughout the
Group, monitoning the effectveness of the
Group's health and safety systems and keeping
abreast of changes in legislabion surrounding
safety, health and the environment

The Risk Cominittee
Mests at least three tmes a year

Members

The Group Finance Director, the Group
Financial Controller, the Group General
Counsel and Company Secretary, the Group
Safety, Health and Environmenit Director,

a Regional Managing Director, a Regional
Finance Director {from a different region)

and the Chuef Internal Audrtor

Other members of the Executve Committes,
heads of function and senior managers attend
meetings by invitation having regard to the
business areas to be explored

Responsibilities

Rewviewing the effectiveness of the Group's
nternal conirol policies and procedures for
the identrfication, assessment and reporting
of nsks and assessing indvidual key nsks
on a roling basis

The Operations Committee
Meets on a monthly basis

Members:
The Group Chief Operating Officer and the
six Regionat Managing Directors

Members of the Executive Committes, heads
of Group functicns and the Regional Finance
Directors attend the meetings by invitation
on an ad-hoc basis

Responsibilities:
Responsible for managing
operational performance
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The Land Committee
Meets on a weekly basis

Members*

Group Board Executive Directors, the Group
Treasurer, the Director of Corporate Affars
and the Group Sales & Marketing Director

Other employees of the Group, such as
the Group General Counsel and Company
Secretary and the Group Heads of Legal
Property Services, are mvited to attend
each mesting

Responsibilities

Reviewing and approving all land acquisition
proposals across the Group Depending

on the value of the land acqusitron, Board
approval may also be required, for example
for any ot venture arrangement

The Treasury Operating Committee
Meets as and when required by the needs
of the business

Members
The Group Chief Executive, the Group
Finance Director and the Group Treasurer

Responsibilities

Reviewing the Group's funding requirements
and approving new debt facities Further
approval from the Board may be required
tor certan types of funding and where

the level of funding 1s over and above

the levels detegated to the Treasury
Operating Committse




Roles of Chairman, Group Chief Executive and Senior
Independent Director

The dision of responsibility between the Charman of the Board
and the Group Chief Executive 1 clearly defined in writing and has
been approved by the Board

The Chairman, Bob Lawson, leads the Board in the determination of
strategy and in the achievement of its objectives He 1s responsible for
organising the business of the Board, setting its agenda and ensunng
that adequate time 1s available for discussion of all agenda items, in
particular strategic issues, faciitabing the effective contnbution of the
Non-Executve Directors and constructive relations between Executive
and Non-Executive Directors, ensuning that the Board recewves timely,
accurate and clear information so as to properly conduct its business,
ensunng new directors participate in a fult and formal induction process,
making certain that the continued development needs of the Directors
are identified and addressed, and ensuring effective communication with
shareholders The Chairman is supported by Tom Keewil, the Group
General Counsef and Company Secretary, in camying out these duties

Mark Clare, the Group Chief Executive, 15 responsible for the day-to-day
management of the operational actvities of the Group in accordance with
overall strategy and policy as determined by the Board He cames out
duties delegated to him by the Board through the Executive Committee
(see page 44 of this report)

The Sentor Independent Director, Mark Rolfe, has specffic responsibility
for evaluating the performance of the Chairman, at least annually Details
can be found on page 49 He ts also responsible for ensuring that, where
required, he Is avalable to sharehclders to () address any matenal issues
or concerns which the Charman and/or Group Chief Executve have
falled to resobve and {ii} isten to thesr views n order for the Company

to gain & balanced understanding of therr issues and concermns

Information and support

The Chairman s responstble for ensuring that the Board receives
accurate, imely and ¢lear nformation Each Director 1$ 1ssued with

an agenda, briefing papers and comprehensive operatng and financial
management reports for the penod under review, generally five working
days before any Board meetng The Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary attends all Board and Committee meetings and all
Directors have access to his advice and, if necessary, to independent
professional advice at the Company's expense to assist with the
discharge of ther responsibiliies as Directors

All Directors are provided with a rolling three-year schedule of proposed
meeting dates Any Director who 1s unable to attend a meeting is invited
to provide therr views to the Chairman ahead of that meeting, hawing
reviewed the agenda, briefing papers and management information
Reasons for non-attendance are recorded by the Group General Counsel
and Company Secretary and either he or the Charman will, thereafter,
meet with any absent Director to go through any action points which are
of relevance to that Director Formal minutes of each Board meeting are
prepared, circulated and submitted for approval at the next meeting

Employment policy and involvement

(1) Employment policy

The Group 1s committed to seeking to develop the talents of its
employees so that they can maxmmise therr career potential and seeks
to provide rewarding careers in an atmosphere that engenders equal
opportunites for all Selection for employment and promotion is based
on ment, following an objective assessment of ability and expenence
of candiddates after giving full and fair consideration to all applications
{including ndmiduals with disabilities} The Group s also committed

to ensuring that its workplaces are free from unlawful discnmination

of any sort The Group strives to ensure that its poiicies and practices
provide equal opporturities in respect of issues such as traning,
career development and premotion for all existing or potential staff
imespective of gender, race, ethnic ongin, colour, religion, physical
disabibty, mantal status, sexual orientation or age Every effort 1s made
to retain and support employees who hecome disabled whilst working
within the Group

(1) Empiloyee engagement

The Board recognises that appropriate employee engagement

15 a key factor in the long-term success of the Group It utifises a
comprehensive employee engagement programme with the am of
creating a strong, shared culture All employees are invited to take part
In an on-hne engagement survey each year and the results of this
survey are fed back to each operating division, who use the results

to formulate plans for maintaining or iImproving engagement in the
following year Detauls are provided on page 28 of the Business Review

(m) Emptoyee communications

A key part of effectve employee engagement 1s communication The
Company seeks to ensure that all significant events, economic factors
and financiat updates and the impact of these on the performance

of the Group are communicated to employees through email alerts, core
briefings and regular newsfetters Additionally, the Group Chief Executve
regularly briefs senior and middle management wa conference calls and
bulletins which givas them the opportunity to ask questions and enter
into chalogue Indmvidually and collectively, the Board and the Executve
Commitiee members visit operating divisions and sites frequently

i1 order to assess operational performance, engage with employees

on a one-to-one basis and gain first-hand experence of employees’
aspirations and concerns

{w) Graduate recruitment

The Group runs a Graduate Recrutment and Development Programme
consisting of a two-year multi-disciplinary programme of both on-job
and off4ob modules The Group currently has 80 graduates on the
programme, of which 57 commenced ther graduate traning in
September 2013 This year our ‘Future Talent Strategy’ includes the
introduction of a one-year Accelerated Graduate Scheme in Sales and
Construction, paid Internships, a new Construction Foundation degree
and the recrutment of Trade Apprentices Over the next three years we
plan to recruit around 600 trainges onto our schemes

(v) Employeae traiming and development

The Group s committed to providing employee training and development
at all levels of the crgamsation It has infroduced a suite of leadership

and management development programmes aimed at all levels within

the organisation The programmes are designed and delivered internally
and are talored to the needs of the business
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The Group also offers the Barratt Academy, a staged programme to
enable employee development from Apprentice to site manager and also
in the Techrical and Commercial disciplines We have introduced a new
Sales Academy this year and have invited all of our current and newly
recruited sales professionais to complete a fraining programme that

15 accredited by the Institute of Sales and Marketing Management
Succession planning 1s In place across the Group and the leadership
programmes assist with the development of indwiduals as part of

the succaession plan

(vi) Employee Sharesave Scheme

In February 2013 the Company invited all elgible employees of the Group
to participate in the fifth grant under the Sawvings Related Share Option
Scheme (the 'SRSOS') which was approved by shareholders at the
Company's annual general meeting (AGM) held in November 2008

This gave those mdmduals who had participated in presmous grants under
the SRSOS, but not used up all of therr entitiement, the opportunity to
ncrease ther savings and gave other employees (new and existing) the
chance to participate in the SRSOS and become more involved In the
Group's performance As at 30 June 2(H3, approximately 47 5% of
employees participate in the SRSOS

Relations with shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of having an on-going
relationship with its shareholders and other stakeholders It fully
supports the principles of the Code and the UK Stewardship Code
which encourages open dialogue between companies and therr
shareholders The Group has arrangements in place which enable

it to communicate efiectively with shareholders in respect of matters
such as business strategy, governance, remuneration and any senior
management or Board changes

Information about the Group, its Board and its business, including
the internm and annual reports, intenm management statements and
trading updates, company announcements and details on services
avallable to sharehofders can be found on the Company's website at

www barrattdevelopments co uk Information of a price sensitve nature

15 communicated as required via a Regulatory Information Service and
the Group strives {o ensure that alt key information 1s effectively and
clearly communicated

The Group Chief Executive and the Group Finance Director meet

regularly with nvestors and analysts in order to convey an understanding

of the market and the Group’s operations and objectives These
mestings take place dunng the year but particularly after the annual and
intenm resuits announcements The Charrman and other Non-Executive
Directors also have the opportunity to attend meetings with major
shareholders at the request of either party and the Senior Independent
Director 1s available to meet with major shareholders, as and when
required, to gam an understanding of any 1ssues and concerns The
Charman of the Remuneraticn Committee informs many investors and
the principat investor advisory groups of the matters considered

by the Committee and how the remuneration policy has been applied

In order to ensure that all Directors are aware of, and have a clear
understanding of, the views of major shareholders, the Group Finance
Director presents regular reports to the Board on the Company's
investor relations actvities
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The notice of each AGM and related papers are circulated to all
shareholders at least 20 working days before the meeting All
Drrectors, including the Chairmen of the Committaes, attend the
AGM and are avallable to answer shareholder questions The Group
Chief Executive also gives a presentation on the progress and
performance of the Group prior to the formal business of the meeting

Articles of Association

The Company’s Articles of Association (the ‘Articles’) contain
regulations which deal with matters such as the appointment and
removal of Directors, Directors’ interests and proceedings at general
and board meebings Any amendments to the Artictes may be made
in accordance with the prowisions of the Companies Act 2006 by way
of special resolution at a general mesting



LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN
OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Dear Shareholider

Board changes

During the year under review Bob Dawvies stepped down from his
positions of Non-Executive Director, Sentor Independent Director

and Charrman of the Remuneration Committee The Normination
Committee assessed the skills of each of the Non-Executive Drrectors
and recommended, to the Board, the appointments of Mark Rolfe
and Richard Akers as Senior Independent Director and Chairman

of the Remuneration Committee respectively The Beoard subsequently
endorsed these recommendations In addition, the Nomination
Committee, with the assistance of an external recruitment consultant,
dentified Nina Bibby as an additional Non-Executive Director to fill

the skills gap identified by the members of the Board Details of the
recruitment process are set out on page 48 of this report

Board performance evaluation

The last Independent Board evaluation was carned out in respect

of the 2009/10 financial year In accordance with the requirements

of the Code, the Nomination Committee, with the Board's approval,
appointed Independent Board Evaluation ('IBE’}, to undertake the
evatuation of the Board and ts Committees for the financial year ended
30 June 2013 The feedback from IBE concermng the work of the
Nomination Comnitee was positive The Nomination Committee will
look to progress those areas where there 1s room for improvement,
such as enhancing long-term succession planning, dunng the 2013/14
financial year Further details of the Board evaluation process, findings
and recommendations ¢an be found on page 49 of this report

Board composition

Rod MacEachrane has decided to step down from his position as

a Non-Executive Director at the AGM to be held in Novemnber 2013
{the 2013 AGM") having served nearly eight years on the Board Having
reviewed the skills set and experence of each of the current Non-
Executive Directors, the Nomination Committee was satisfied that the
composition of the Board remained satisfactory and balanced and that
the remaining Board members held a diverse range of skills, experience
and background sufficient fo dnive the Board's strategy forward
Accordingly, the Nomination Committee concluded that a replacerment
for Rod was not necessary at this point in tme  The Nomination
Committee will continue to monitor the composition of the Board

and recommend appontrments (both Executve and Non-Executive)

n ;ge future as and when the needs of the business so require

Bob La\n)goka‘b@\‘

CHAIRMAN QF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

REPORT OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Commuttee membership

The membership of the Nomination Committee and the attendance
at each of its meetings 1s set out In Table 2 The Charman charrs the
meetings of the Nomination Committee, except when the business
of the meeting relates to the appoiniment of lus own successor In
accordance with Code provision B 21 the majonty of members {the
Non-Executive Directors) are considered independent by the Company

Table 2 - Membership and attendance at Nomination
Committee meetings

Nomination Committee

Chairman Bob Lawson

Bob Lawson 33
MarkClre — —— 33
Bob Davies” 1/2
Richard Akers 33
Tessa Bamford 33
Nina Bibby* i
Rod MacEachrane 3
Mark Rolfe 33

A Bob Dawies explainad tha reasons for his absence and provided his views on the ilems
of business ¢ the Chairman prior to the mesftng he was unable to atiend Bob stepped
down from his posltion as a Noh Executive Director oh 14 November 2012 and
consaguently ceased to be a member of the Neminaton Committee as at that date
Nina Bibby joined the Board as a Non Executive Director on 3 Decemnber 2012 and became
amembaer of the Nomination Commities as at that dale

Note
1 3/ Number of meatings atiended whiist a Okeclor /3 Number of mestings held whitst a Director

Actwvities undertaken dunng the 2012/13 financial year
The Nemination Committee met on three occasions dunng
the year to consider

¢ the structure, size and composition of the Board, having
regard to the Board's balance of skills, experience,
independence and knowledge,

+ the apponiment of Nina Bibby as a Non-Executive Director
with effect from 3 December 2012,

+ successon plans for Directors (Including the Senior
independent Director) and senior executives,

+ the refreshment of the membership of the Board and its
Commuttees and the appointment of alf ndependent
Non-Executive Directors o each of the Committees
with effect from 1 July 2012,

+ the leadershup needs of the Company to ensure the contmued
ability of the Group to compete sifectively in the market,

+ the implementation of a dversity policy relating to
Board appontrents,

» through performance evaluation, the time required from
Non-Executive Directors to fulfill thesr duties, and

¢ recomrendations to the Board on the authonsation of conficts
of nterest of new and existing Drectors

m The Nomination Committes operates within Iis terms of reference which can be
found on the Gompany 5 websita www baratidevelopments co uk
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Board halance

At the end of the financial vear, the Board compnsed nine members,
including the Chairman, five Non-Executve Directors and three Executive
Dwectors The Board bebeves that it has the appropnate balance of
Executive and independent Non-Executive Directors hawng regard to
the size and nature of the busness In addition, the combination of the
expenence and calibre of the Non-Executive Directors collectively, having
regard to their diverse backgrounds ana expenence and their varying
lengths of service, further enhances this balance thereby matigating the
nsk of ‘group think’

During the year the Nomination Committee assessed the mdividual and
composite skill sets of the Non-Executive Directors and concluded that
the Board would benefit from additonal expertise in the area of digital
marketing Accordingly, it recommended the appontment of Nina Bibby,
then Global Chief Marketing Officer of Barclaycard, due to her broad
business expenence and wealth of digital marketing expertise

Board independence

The Company recognises the importance of its Non-Executive
Directors remaining independent throughout therr appointment

as this enables them to provide objective advice and guidance to the
Executive Directors through the use of their wide business expenence
and diverse backgrounds The Non-Executive Directors are also able
to constructively challenge and scrutinise the performance of the
Executive Directors and to satsfy themselves with the integnity of the
financial nformation considered by the Board and provided to the
Company's shareholders In addition, ther independence 1s of utmost
importance when considering the appontment or removal of Executive
Directors and in the determination of successien planning for the
Board and other key individuats within the Group The Nomination
Committee has, dunng the year, reviewed and confirmed to the Board,
that it remains satsfied, that all of the Non-Executive Directors,
inciugding Nina Bibby (see page 50), are ndependent in that they have
no business or other relationship with the Group that might influence
therr independence or judgement Details of their interests as
shareholders are contaned in Table 20 on page 78 of the
Remuneration Report

Bob Lawson was appointed Non-Executive Charman of the Company
with effect from 1 July 2008 and was considered 1o be independent on
his appointment Durng the year the Nemination Commitiee considered
Bob Lawson's other significant commitments, his Non-Executive
Charrmanship of Genus ple and his directorship of The Federation of
Groundwaork Trusts, and concluded that they do not impinge upon his
availlabiiity to fulfil is duties to the Company These commitments were
also considered dunng the annual review of the effectivenass of the
Chairman led by the Senior Independent Director and the same
conclusion was reached
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Appomtment and re-appomntment of Non-Executive Directors
The Nomination Committee leads the process for appointments o

the Board and makes recommendations to the Board when suitable
candidates have been identified When a vacancy anses the
Nomination Committee evaluates the balance of skills, expenence,
independence and knowledge on the Board |t then prepares a
descnption of the roles and capabilities required for that appointment
The search for Board candidates 1s carmed out, and appontments are
made, based on merit having regard to the need to maintan a balance
of skills and expenence on the Board, diversity and, where appropnate,
refreshiment of Board memberships External recruitment consuttants
are used where appropriate

Non-Executive Directors are appointed, subject to re-election by
shareholders and statutory prowsions relating to the removal of directors,
by the Board, for an initial three-year term and normally serve a second
threa-year term Beyond this a thurd term of up to three years may be
served subject to particularly ngorous review and taking into account

the need for progressive refreshment of the Board The Articles, in
accordance with the Cods, require any Non-Executive Cirector who

has served nine years or more on the Board continuousty to be subject
to annual re-appointment

Dunng the year the Nomination Committee appointed the Zygos
Partnership (Zygos’). an mdependent external recrutment firm, to assist

it throughout the recruitment process for a Non-Executive Director with
expertise in dgrtal marketing In order to enhance and complement the
existing skill sets of the Beard Zygos does not have any other connections
with the Group Zygos provided the Nomination Committee with details of
a number of potentiat candidates from varying backgrounds, with different
skills and of both genders A short-ist of three candidates was identified
and each of them was invited for an interview with the members of the
Nomination Committee and subsequently all Directors The ments of each
candidate were assessed by reference to therr relative expenence,
potential contnbution to the business of the Board, the potential abikty to
promote the success of the Company and how therr skills would
complement those of the existing Board It was this process that led to the
appontment of Nina Bibly to the Board on 3 December 20i2

The letters of gppointment of all Non-Executive Directors are available for
inspection by any person at the Company's registered office dunng normal
office hours and will also be avallable at the 2013 AGM for 15 minutes
before and throughout the meeting The letters of appontment ¢learly

set out the time commitment expected from each Non-Executive Director
to ensure they satisfactorly perform therr duties Each Non-Executve
Director confirms that he/she 1s able to aliocate the ime commiiment
required at the tme of his/her appaintment and thereafter as part of therr
individual annual effectiveness review undertaken by the Chairman




Retirement and re-election of Directors

The Articles currently require Directors to submit themselves for re-efection
by shareholders at the first AGM following thew inhial appointment o the
Board and thereafter at intervals of no more than three years All Board
members will, N accordance with the Code, stand for election or
re-election {as applicable) by the shareholders at the 2013 AGM (with
the excepton of Rod MacEachrane (see page 47)) irespective of their
date of appointment and length of service on the Board Each of the
Directors has been subject to a formal performance evaluation process
and the Nomination Committee, and the Board, are satisfied that they
each continue to be effective in, and demonstrate commitment to, tharr
respective roles

Board performance evaluation
The Board performance evaluation cycle

Year 1: External evaluation
by independent consuiltants

Year 2: Internal questionnaire
led by the Chairman of the Board

Biographical details of each of the Directors and supporting statements
for the etection or re-election of the Directors are set out on pages 40
and 41 of this report and in the Notice of the 2013 AGM These details
ilustrate the complementary diverse range of skill sets inciuding general
business, commerce, financial, housebullding and digital marketing
knowledge that Board members possess and apply to ensuring
effective stewardship Details of the Executive Directors’ service
contracts can be found in the Remuneration Report on page 64

The Board recommends that shareholders approve the resolutions
1o be put forward at the 2013 AGM relating to the election and
re-election of Directors

Year 3: Internal questionnaire
‘led by the Chairman of the Board

The 2012/13 financial year board performance evaluation process

IBE interviews Board

IBE attends Board and Directors and Group

Committee Vieetings

IBE interviews key internal
and external advisers

IBE presents findings to
the Chairman and the Board

Company Secretary

The Board is responsible for undertaking a formal and ngorous annual
evaluahon of its own performance, that of its Committees and of
mdnidual Directors Given that the last external consultant undertook
the performance evaluation of the Board and its Commuittees for the
2009/10 financial year, the Board agreed In line with best practice and
the Code, that it would, for the 2012/13 financial year, cary out the
performance evaluation deploying an external faciitator 1BE were
retained {from a shortlist of three candidates) to provide & full
perspectve on the Board's effectiveness IBE have no other
connections with the Compary

Areas covered by the evaluation

The Board evaluation process followed by 1BE 1s shown in

the diagram above IBE's evaluation covered the performance

of the Beoard and its Committees on various areas, including
contnbution to strategy and shareholder accountability,

nsk management,

financial and operating reperting,

succassion planning {including dwversiy),

inter-relatonships between the Board and ts Commuttees, and
Board Committees and decision making

Key findings

A comprehensive analysis was presented by IBE to the Board

The findings were positive in terms of Board culture, governance

and compliance, and shareholder communication 1BE's principat
recommendations were aimed at streamlining the papers and
presentations made to the Board to aliow more time for the Board

to focus on the mediur to long-term strategy of the Group, particularly
as the market continues to improve

Focus areas for 2013/14

The Board and each of ts Committees have already begun to make
progress In iImplementing the recommendations made by IBE and the
Board will, with the assistance of the Nomination Commuttee, conclude
the review against these objectives dunng the 2013/14 financial year
Addtionally, the Board will continue to focus on nisk management and
succession planming dunng the 2013414 financial year

Progress with 2011/12 focus areas

Dunng the year the Board and rts Committees addressed all the
1ssues raised as part of the 2011/12 performance evaluahon process,
inciuding enhancing training and development and increased
emphasis on strategy development

Evaluation of the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

In accordance with the requirements of the Code, the Chairman

met with the Non-Executive Directors independentty of the Executive
Directors The Non-Executve Directors, led by the Senior Independent
Director, met wihout the Chairman being present, to assess the
performance of the Charman and provided fesdback from the
process There were no issues of any substance ansing from the
review of the Charrman’s performance and there was unanimous
support for im In addiion, the Charrman met with each Director
individually to discuss therr contribution to the Board and their
performance as Directors durnng the year under review
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Induction

The Nomination Committee, under the stewardship of the Chawman,
ensures that on joining the Compary, each new Director participates

in a full and format induction process Nina Bibby took part in this process
which included health and safety training, stte visits, meetings with all
Board members and key external advisers and senior and operational
management teams across the business Nina was also provided with
an induction pack contaning general and specific information relating to
her role such as a schedule of meetings, copies of Board minutes and
vanous pohcies and procedures, detads of her duties as adrector of a
listed plc and other obligations under the vanous regulations governing
the Company In addition, all new Directors attend the Directors' Forum
hosted by Spencer Stuart, which provides them with the opportunity to
enhance ther boardroom skidls through the shanng of knowledge and
best practice with fellow directors from various industries

Development

In January of each year the Board meets for a full day to rewiew and
develop the overall business strategy of the Group which includes
presentations from senior management within the Group as well as
external professionals In January 2013 the Board discussed the
Group's growth plans and a number of strategic issues including
mortgage availlability, customer demand, planning 1ssues, land supplies
and Government programmes The review s increasingly focusing

on the medium and long-term 1ssues impacting the demand for the
provision of homes

The Nominaiton Committee ensures that Directors continue to update
therr skills, knowledge and familianty with the Company by attending
appropriate external seminars and training courses, meetng with
senior management and wisiting regional and divisional operating
offices and sites coflectively and mdividually During the year under
review, Directors recewved presentations and updates on matters such
as key accounting issues, narrative reporting, changes to the Code
and the new reporting requirements on executive remuneration The
Chairman regularly reviews traning requirements and annually agrees
development needs with individual Directors

Directors’ conflicts of interest

On 1 October 2008, the Companies Act 2006 (the 'Act’) codified the
duty to avoid conflicts of interest, by which Directors have a duty to avoid
a situation in which they have, or may have, a direct or indrect conflct
of Interest or possible conflict of interest with the Company This duty
applies to the exploitation of any property, infermation or opportunity
regardless of whether the Company could have taken advantage of it
The Articles were amended at the AGM held on 18 November 2008

to include a general power for the Board to authonse such conflicts

The Board has, in accordance with the Articies and best practice
guidance, authonsed the Nomination Committee to oversee the process
for reviewing and making reccmmendations to the Board concerning any
actual and/or potential conflicts of interest which anse or may arise in
relation to each member of the Board, ncluding detalls of any terms and
conditions which it deems naecessary 10 Impose on any authorisation
given This process was carmed out satisfactorty duning the year

The Group Genera! Counsel and Company Secretary maintains a

register of Directors’ conflicts of interest which 1s reviewed annually
Following this review he will make recommendations to the Board in
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respect of any changes to the authorisations, or terms and condrtions
applied, that may be required Each Director 1s responsible for
nohfying, and 15 aware of thair responsibility to notify, the Chairman
and/or the Board of any new conflicts or possible conficts and of any
change in circumstances relating to authorisations already given The
Board, when authonsing any conflict or possible conflict of interest,
does not count in the quorum the Director whose conflict or possible
conflict 15 being discussed and reserves the night to exclude a Director
from a mesting whilst a conflict or possible conflict 1s being considered
The Board may revoke or vary any authorisation at any time

Pnor to the appointment of Nina Bibby as a Non-Executive Director,
the Nomination Committee considered the fact that Nina was the

then Globat Chief Marketing Officer of Barclaycard At that point, the
Nomination Committee confirmed to the Board that it was satisfied that
Nina Bibby 15 not conficted and 1s ndependent, a conclusion that the
Board endorsed In May 2013, Nina Bibby resigned from her position
at Barclaycard to take up an opportunity with O2 as ther Marketing
and Consumer Director which will commence in November 2013 The
Nomination Committee considered this new position and concluded
that there was no confiict of interest

Diversity

The Nominaton Committee continues to review the recommendations on
gender dversity contaned within Lord Davies’ report, “Women on Boards',
as part of ts annual effectveness exercise The Nomination Committee's
primary goal remains to identify the most appropriate candidates to join
the Board and other senior positions within the Group However, in
accordance with its terms of reference it also seeks to ensurg that in
considenng succession planning it has due regard to the benefits of
diversity for the Board {and for the Group as a wholg), including gender
The Group’s policy on diversity refating to Board appeintments, as
adopted by the Board dunng the 2011/12 financial year, can be found

on the Company's website www barrattdevelopments ¢o uk The
Nomination Committee and the Board recognise the need to ensure that
the business reflects a diverse workforce, at all levels of senionty, when
considenng Board appomtments and internal promotions, whilst always
seeking to ensure that each post s offered strictly on ment to the best
avallable candidate

As at 30 June 2013, the aggregate representation of women on

the Board was 22% {two out of nine directors and one-third of the
Non-Executive Directors (including the Charmanj} Table 3 shows the
number of men and women employed, as at 30 June 2013, across the
Group split between PLC Directors, Sentor Managers and Employees

Table 3 - Gender spht

Men Women

{Mo) %  {No} %  Total
PLC Directors
(Executive and Non-Exgcutive) 7 78 2 22 9
Senior Managers 230 89 29 11 259
Employees 3,158 87 1,577 33 4,735
Total workforce 3,395 68 1,608 32 5,003




LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN
OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dear Shareholder

In accordance with the Board’s decision that all Non-Executive Directors
should sit on each of the Board's Committees, Richard Akers and Tessa
Bamford joined the Audit Committee with effect fram 1 July 2012 and
Mina Bibby on 3 December 2012 following her appointment to the Board
on the same date Table 4 shows each of the members throughout the
2012/13 financial year The Audit Committee therefore compnses of
members with an appropriate blend of skill sets to complement the
financial expertise which was already present amongst Audit Committee
members, enabling an enhanced business and commercial focus

and a broader contribution to the Commuttee’s programme of work

1 can confirm that, In accordance with Code prawision C 3 1, each
of the members s considered to be independent and the Board
15 satisfied that | have recent and relevant financial experience

Given the change in membership of the Aucht Committee, it was seen

as a good opportunity 10 provide the members with enhanced training
surrounding the key issues faced by the Audit Committee and how each
of these was montored and assessed throughout the Group Accordingly,
led by the Group Financial Controfier and supported by the Chief Intemal
Audrtor and by our external auditor, Delortie LLP (Deloitte’), two traning
sessions for members of the Audit Committes took place in February

and Apnl Thesa prowded an addiional insight into the areas of revenue
recognition, recoverability of equity share assets, joint ventures, mparment
of land and work in progress ("WIP'), mpairment of goodwili and intangible
assets, and taxation Separately, the Audit Committee recenved a
presentation from the Group General Counsel and Company Secretary
on the changes to the Code, narrative reporting and the progress with

the Sharman review on going concern

The Audit Committee met on five occasions dunng the financial year
and compieted its annual work programme in full Attendance at each
of these meetings 1s set outin Table 4 In addition to the Group General
Counsel and Company Secretary, representatives from Deloitie and
the Chief Internal Auditor, attended each of the Audit Committee
meetings and met with the Committee independently of management
and the Chairman of the Board The Group Chief Executive, the Group
Finance Director and other members of senior management also
attended meetings {or parts thereof}, by invitation, as required The
following section details the work undertaken by the Audit Committee
in respect of the 201213 financial year

Mark Rolfe %11‘(

CHAIRMAN OF THE ALIDIT COMMITTEE

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The membership of the Audit Committee and attendance at each
of its meetings I1s set out in Table 4

Table 4 - Membearship and attendance at Audit Committee meetings

Audit Committee

Chairman Mark Rolfa

Bob Daves™ 173
Richard AkersA 4/5
Tessa Bamford™ a4/5
MNina Bibby™ 2/2
Rod MacEachrane 5/5
Mark Rolfe 55

~  Bob Davies, Richard Aksrs and Tessa Bamiord explained their reasons for their absence
and provided thek views on the items of business to the Chakrman prior to the meetings
they were unable fo attend

. Bob Davies ceased o be a membar of the Audit Committea on 14 November 2012
whan he stepped down from his positions of Non-Execuive Director and Semior
independent Director
Nina Bibby joned the Board as a Mon-Executive Director on 3 December 2012 and became
amember of the Audit Commities with effect from the same date

Note
1 & Numbser of meetings attended whitst a Director /5 Number of maetings held whils! a Diractor

Activities undertaken dunng the 2012/13 financial year

The Audit Committee follows an annual work programme, which

covers the pnncipal responsibilities as set under ts terms of reference

(avarable from the Company’s website www barrattdevelopments

couk) The Audit Committee undertook, amongst other matters,

the following actmties in respect of the 2012/13 financial year

¢ assessed the integrity of the Group’s financal statements and
reviewed all formal announcements relating to the Group's
financial performance,

« monitored the Group's financial management and reporting
systems and explored the integnty and effectveness of its
accounting procedures, systems of internal control and the process
for identifying and monitoring the matenal nsks facing the Group,

+ reviewed and challenged, where necessary, the consistency of,
and any propesed changes to the Group’s accounting policies,

* considered the effectiveness, independence and objectvity
of the external auditor, the ratio and quantum of audit and
non-audt fees, the effectiveness of the external audit process
and proposals for partner rotation,

* made recommendations to the Board in relation 1o the
appointment, re-appointment and rermuneration of the external
auditor including the appointment of a new lead audit partner,

» reviewed and assessed the effectiveness of the internal audit
function, the annual Internal audit plan and all reports produced
by the internal auditor and management's responsiveness to
the findings and recommendations of the internal auditor,

s reviewed s own composttion as part of its annual effectiveness
review, and

* consigdered the whistieblowing procedures and ensured that
arrangements were mn piace for proportionate and independent
nvestigation and follow-up action i respect of any matter raised
pursuant fo those procedures
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As well as carrying out the work associated with the annual financial
reporting cycle under its annual work programme, the Audit Committee
undertakes other responsibilities during the year ncluding reviewing
the Audit Commuttee’s terms of reference, key nternal control

policies, Including treasury, ant-bribery and whistleblowing, the
Auditor and Non-Audit Fees policy, and the external audit ptan

and assocated reports

Key issues reviewed by the Audit Committee

The Committee considered a number of key 1ssues dunng the

year including

* the assumptions relating to the gaing concern basis of reporting
of the financial statements, in¢cluding reviewing the Group's
three-year plan, iquidity and financial covenant cover and
management’s sensitivity analysis and mitigation plans,

« cntical accounting judgements {detaled in the financial statements
on pages 99 to 101) in relation to geodwil, fand and WIP
mpatrment, and the provisioning required aganst the Group's
available for sale financiat assets,

s Directors’ jJudgements that the exceptional items, detalled in note 3
of the financial statements on page 103, are non-recurring and by
therr nature warrant exceptional classification,

+ reports from Deloitte and management to ensure that the ratio
of audit to non-audit services provided during the 2012/13 financial
year was within the Audit Commttee’s guidelines, Delodte had
periormed its services In accordance with its charter, and none
of the non-audit services provided any threat to Delostte’s
independence, and

s participation In two training sessions dunng the year, faciitated by
the Group Financial Controlier, Chief Internat Auditor and Deloitte
upon matenal areas of accounting jJudgement and key accounting
policies of the Group and recesved regular updates upon
governance related 1ssues from the Group General Counsel
and Company Secretary and Deloitte

Audit Committee effectiveness

During the year, IBE faciktated a review of the effectveness of the
Audit Committee, the outcome of which was generally positive
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How the Audit Commuittee discharged its responsibilities
throughout the 2012/13 financial year

1 Integnty of financial reporting

The Audit Committee reviewed the integrity of the financial statements
of the Greup and the Company and all formal announcements relating
to the Group's and Company’s financial performance This process
included the review and debate over the following areas of significance
i relabion to the integrity of financial reporing and took INto account
the views of Deloitte

1) Land and WIP valuation

The Audit Commmttee reviewed the judgements made in respect

of land and WIP valuation This review involved detalled consideration
of the assumptions made upon specific sites and in the context

of the current UK housing market

The Audit Committee agreed with the judgements made by management
and concluded that the valuation of our land and WIP remains appropnate

n} Going concern

The Audit Committee assessed the Group's avallable faciities,
headroom and banking covenants The Audit Committee also
reviewed management’s detalled analysis, which included forecasts
and adiustments for downturns in the housing market

The Audit Committee 15 satisfied that the going concern basis
of preparation continues to be appropriate n the context of the
Group's funding and liqu:dity positon

m) Annuai goodwill and brand impairment review

The Audit Committee considered the judgements made in refation

to the vatuation methodology adopted by management and the model
inputs used

The Audit Committee also reviewed and approved sensitivities used
by management which were consistent with the 2011/12 financial year
and 'a reasonably possible’ change to model inputs including related
disclosure, as required by IAS 36

v) Available for sale financial assets

The Audit Commitiee reviewed the judgements made in respect of the
valuation of our available for sale financral assets This review mvolved
detalled consideration of the assumptions made including the estimation
of the market value of propertes at the forecast redemption date and
the determination of a surtable discount rate They alse considered

the appropnateness of our valuation in the context of the monetisation
of some of the Group's equity share portioho which was concluded

In the financial year under review

The Audit Committee agreed with the jJudgements made by management
and concluded that the valuation of our avallable for sale financial assets
remains appropnate

v) Taxation

The Audit Commitiee reviewed the appropnateness of the continued
recognition of our deferred tax asset and agreed with management's
judgements, concluding that the continued recognition of this asset
remains appropriate




2 The effectiveness of internal controls and the nsk
management process

The Board believes that effective nsk management 1s ¢ritical to the
achievernent of our strategic cbjectives On behalf of the Board, the
Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of nsk management and
internal ¢ontrols i relation to matenal financial nsks and reviewed a
number of process improvements duning the year The Audit Committee
15 pleased with the progress made to date, and recogrises that work will
need to be continued in these areas dunng the 2013/14 financial year

In the year the Audit Committee

+ spent tme with management below Board level to understand
rnsks and controls in a number of areas of the business including
commercial and construction controls, management changes,
and customer service,

+ reviewed in detall the cutput of the biannual controts
certification process,

* considered all whistleblowing reports and actions,

+ reviewed allinternal audit results and action plans, and

« recewed updates from the Risk Committee and agreed future
areas cf focus

The Board confirms in accordance with principle C 2 of the Code that
it has maintained sound risk management and internal control systems,
seeking to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Group's
assets The Board 15 responstble for seekeng to determine the nature
and extent of the significant risks that it 1s appropniate for the Group
to taks to achieve s strategic objectives [t s the responsibility

of the Executive Directors and senior management to implement and
maintain the Group's interna! cantrol and nsk management systems
within the governance and policy framework approved by the Board
The nsk managemeant and internal control systems have been in place
throughout the year ended 30 June 2013 and up to the date of this
Annual Report and Accounts, and therr effectiveness 1s regularly
reviewed by the Board The nsk management and internal controt
systems and therr effectiveness accord with the Turnbull guidance
The Group's system of internal controls 1s designed to manage risks
that may mpede the achievement of the Group's business chjectives
rather than to eliminate those nsks entirely The system of internal
controls therefore provides only reasonable, not absolute, assurance
against matenial misstatement or loss The system of internal controls
does, however, provide reasonable assurance that potential :issues
can be identified promptly and appropriate remedial action taken

The Group operates interral controls to ensure that the Group’s
financial staterents are reconciled to the underlying financial iedgers
A review of the consolidated accounts and financial statements

1s completed by management 1o ensure that the financial position
and results of the Group are appropriately reflected

The Risk Committee (see page 44 of the Corporate Governance Report),

subject to the general supervision of the Audit Committee, 1s responsible
for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's internal control policies and
proceduras for the identification, assessment and reporting of nisks and
for assessing Indmidual key nisks on a roling basis During the year the
Risk Committee reviewed and updated its terms of reference in orger to
enhance their alignment with the responsibiies of the Audit Committee
in respect of internal controls and nsk management

The structure deployed by the Group when assessing risks 1s set
out In Managing Risk on pages 34 to 39 of the Business Review
The key aspects of the Group's system of internal controt and nsk
management framework are as follows

1) a clear organisational structure with defined levels of authonty
and responsibility for each operating diviston,
1) financial and management reporting systems under which financial
and operating performance 1s consistently reviewed against budget
and forecasts at dvisiona!, regional and Group leve! on a monthly basss,
m) idgentificatton and rewiew of principal operational risk areas to ensure
they are embedded in the Group's monthly management reporting
system, so that nsk identification and the control of sk are a routne
aspect of management responsibiity Details of the management of
nisk system utised and the principal nsks and uncertanties and ther
relevance to the operations and financial performancs of the Group are
set out In Managing Risk on pages 34 to 39 of the Business Review
Amongst other matters, the risks reviewed by management and the
Board include
= gconomic environment, including housing demand and

mortgage avallabifity,
¢ land purchasing,
* liquicity,
¢ attracting and retaining high calibre employees,
e avalabiity of raw matenals, subcontractors and supphers,
+ (Government regulation and planning policy,
» construction and new technotogies,
* joint ventures and consortiums,
* health and safety, and
s IT, and
v} assessment of comphance with internal control and risk management
systems This assessment Is supported by the Group's nternal audrt
team which is responsitie for undertaking an annual audit plan, ad hog
audrts and reporting to the Audit Committee, and, If necessary, the
Board, on the cperation anc effectiveness of those systems and any
matenal falings with them The planned programme of audit appraisals
across Group operations 1s approved by the Audit Committee [t includes
full dvisional audits and targeted audits of key nsk areas such as the land
viabiity process, land acguistion control and monsonng, WIP and
subcontractor payment controls Where the internal audit team does
not have the expertise or resources required o conduct complex audits
they deploy external expertise

The Group's operations and financing arrangements expose it toa
vanety of financial nsks that mclude the effects of changes in borrowing
and debt profiles, market prices, credit nsks, hquidity nsks and interest
rates The most significant of these to the Group 1s iquidity risk
Accordingly, there 18 a regular, detaled system for the reporting and
forecasting of cash flows from the cperations to Group management

to ensure that nigks are promptly identified and appropriate mitigating
actions taken These forecasts are further stress tested at a Group leve!
on a regular basis to ensure that adequate headroom within faciities
and banking covenants 1s mantained In addition, the Group has in place
ansk management programme that seeks to imit the adverse effects
of the other risks on its financial performance, in particular by using
financial mstruments, including debt and denvatives, to hedge interest
and currency rates The Group does not use denvative financiat
instruments for speculative purposes Such activities are delegated,

by the Board, to a centralised Treasury Operating Committes, which in
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turn regularly reports to the Board The treasury department implements
guidehnes that are established by the Board, in accordance wih
approved treasury policies, and the Treasury Operating Commitiee

In accordance with pnnciple C 21 of the Code the Board regularly reviews
the sffectrveness of the Group's system of internal contrels, covenng all
matenal controls Including financial, operational and compliance controls
and nsk management systems A risk framework has been developed for
alt business processes by the iIntemal audit function and approved by the
Audit Committee This framework forms the basis of the internal control
audit plan for the year ahead, which tests if controls are being apphed
effectively in each operatng dvision Matenal issues identified dunng
internal audits and follow-up action plans are reviewed by the Executive
Directors and by the Board on a quarterly basis, and necessary actions
are immediately taken to remedy any fallings in the internal control system

During the course of its review of the interal control systems, the Board
has not identified nor been advised of any falings or weaknesses
which it has determined to be significant Therefore, a confirmation

of necessary actions has not been considered appropriate

In addition, the management teams of alt operating dmsions wdentify
key nisks in their monthly management reports to the Executive
Committee and complete a controt self-assessment twice a year in
which they confirm that they have applied approprate levels of control
The Audit Committee, as a standing agenda item every six months,
reviews the nisk framework to determine if the system of internal control
remains effective and report on therr findings to the Board when
considering the draft interim and full year financsal statements During
the year under review, the Executive Committes priontised the nsk
framework by identifying the nsks considered most significant to the
Group For each of the nsks so identified, an assessment has been
made of the probability and potential impact on the busmness and these
nsks are reported on intemnally and rewewed dunng internal audits and
control self-assessments

3 Whistleblowing

Whistleblowing 15 a standing agenda item for every Audit Committee
meseting The Chiet Internal Auditor updates the Audit Committee
regularly on any new whistieblowing incidents, on-going investigations
and the outcome of any completed investigattons The Audit Comrittee
assesses the adequacy of the Group's whistieblowing policy in
accordance with the requirements of the Code as part of this process
The Group's whistleblowing policy is supported by a robust procedure
whereby indiwduals who become aware of possible improper, unethical
or even flegal behaviour can etther raise the matter with ther manager
or alternatively refer the matter to a confidential and independent
telephone number (the 'Whistleblowing Number') which 1s avalable to
all employees 24 hours a day, seven days a week Any Issues reported
to the Whistieblowing Number are immediately brought to the attention
of the Chief Internal Auditor The Chief Internal Auditor reviews and
mvaestigates the issue, and at his sole discretion can seek guidance from
appropnate ndwvduals within the Group, such as the Group General
Counsel and Company Secretary, as and when he deems necessary

4 Review of accounting policies

The Augdit Committee constdered and agreed all proposed changes to
the Group's accounting policies and discussed these with management
and Deloitte
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5 External auditor ‘
1} Re-appointment of auditor |
The Audit Committee took into account feedback on the effectiveness of
the external audit from dwisional, regional and Group Management who
were closely involved in both the internm and year end reporting process,
when considenng the re-appointment of Deloitte as the auditor to the
Cormpany Deloitte was apponted as the auditor of the Company
through an external tender process in 2007 in accordance with UK
ethical and professional guidance on the rotation of audt partners, Mark
Goodey replaced Graham Richardson as lead audit partner for the 2013
financial year, having been selected, after consideration of and interview
of the short-lsted candidates in July 2012 Mr Goodey wili continue as
lead audit partner until the conclusion of the 2017 audnt As part of the
transttion In audit partner, Mr Goodey undertook a review of the external
audit arrangements across the Group, including a review of the audit
approach and the skills and expenence of the audit tearmn, and presented
his aucht plan to the Audit Committee After due consideration, the Audit
Committee concluded that it was not necessary o consider a tender
process this year Taking into account the refreshment of the audit
partner and ser:or team, combined with Deloitte’s objectrity and
independence, Deloitte’'s performance against the audrt plan for the
2012/13 financral year, and the guality of advice and assistance brought
1o bear and recenved throughout the year, the Audit Commuttes
concluded that Deloste's perforrnance as auditor to the Company
continues o be satisfactory Accordingly, it recommended to the Board
that a resolution re-appotnting Deloitte as the auditor to the Company

be proposed at the 2013 AGM That recommendation was subsequentty
endorsed by the Board There are no contractual cbligations which
restnct the Audit Commuttee's choice of external auditor

Dunng the year under review, the Audit Committes has noted the
revisions to the Code introduced by the Financial Reporting Council
{'FRC" in September 2012 and, in particutar, the requirement to put
the external audit out to tender at least every ten years, including a
suggestion that the tendenng should normally align with the five-yearly
cycle of partner rotation Given that the audit was put out to tender in
2007 and Mr Goodey's recent appointment, the Committee will assess
#s tendenng arrangements towards the conclusion of Mr Goodey's
penicd in office, or earlier if it has reason to do so

1) Auditor objectivity, audit effectiveness and independence
During the year, the Audit Committee assessed the effectiveness
of the external audit and concluded that the audit process as a whole
hag been conducted robustly and that the team sefected to ungartake
the audit had done so thoroughly and professionally In coming to this
concluston the Audit Committee reviewed amongst other matters
+ Daloitte’s fulfilment of the agreed audit plan and the absence
of any variations from it,
+ reports tighlighting the matenal 1Issues and accounting judgements
that arose dunng the conduct of the audit,
+ feedback from Group and Regional management finance functions
and the Chief internal Audrtor evaluating the performance
of the audit, and
* the report from the FRC's Audit Quality Review Team

1) Auditor independence and non-audit fees policy

The Audit Committes formally reviewed the policy which the Company
has implemented on Auditor Independence and Nen-Audit Fees {the
'Policy’) dunng the year The Policy sets out the duties of the Audit




Committee and the limited range of services which the auddor may
provide without requinng prior approval of the Audit Committee
Any services outside this scope must be approved by the Audit
Committes In order to mantan auditor independence and te monttor
non-audit fees incurred by the Group The Policy also sets out a
number of services which the external auditor 1s excluded from
provicing to the Group These Include
+ bookkeeping or other services refated to the accounting records
or financial statements,
s financial information systems design and implementaton
relating to the financial statements or accounting records,
s apprasal or valuation services, fairness opinons,
or contrnibutions-in-kind,
* actuarial services,
s nternal audit ocutsourcing services,
+ management functions or human resources,
* broker or dealer, mvestment adwiser, or investment banking services,
« legal services and expert services unrelated to the audtt, and
¢ executive recruting

Under the Policy the Company 1$ required to, and does, obtain wntten
confirmation from Deloitte that they remain independent on an annual
basis Deloitte have also provided a comprehensive report 10 the Audit
Committee venfying that they have performed their aucht and audit
related services in ine with independence regquirements and assessing
why Deloitte believe they remamn ndepsndent within the requirements
of the applicable regulations and therr own professional standards,
which were conclusions that the Audit Committea endorsed In
reaching these conclusions the Audit Committee reviewed, amongst
other matters, the
¢ changes In senior audit personnel in the audit plan for the current year,
* report from Deloitte describing their arrangements to identify,
raport and manage any conflicts of interest,
+ extent of the non-audit services provided by Deloitte, and
* the ratio of audit to non-audit fees more generally

v} Non-audit services

The Audit Committes, while being satsfied that the ratic of audit to
non-audit fees for the 2012/13 financial year was within the guidetines
contained within the Policy, considered this area carefully given that the
non-audit fees excluding audit-related assurance services were aimost
equal to the audit fees including the audit-related assurance services
ncurred by the Group for the same penod Details of the audit related
and non-audit fees incurred by the Group can be found on page 104

The Audit Committee discussed the level of non-audit fees in detail with
the Group Finance Director to gain an undarstanding of therr nature and
the rationale for engaging Deloitte The Audit Committee noted that the
majonty of the non-audit fees related to audit-related assurance services
which principally comprise the review of the Group's intenm report,
taxation comphiance {for which Deloiite were appointed on 1 December
2010 following a competitive tender process in which four of the leading
audt firms took part}, and also taxation advice upon the Group's
refinancing, new joint ventures and various land acquisitions and
disposals during the year Accordingly, the Audit Committee was
satisfied that the work performed by Deloitte was appropriate in the
context of ensunng ther Independence as auditor, particularly given
that the audit-related assurance services, which principally comprise
the review of the Group’s intenim report, ¢an only be conducted by

-

the Group's auditor and that the tax adwvisory services had been
managed by a partner who has no mvotvement with the audit of the
Group Consequently, the Audit Committee concluded that the level
of non-audit fees was justfied and did not raise any concerns in terms
of Detortte's independence as auditor to the Group Deloitte have also
confirmed, tn writing, that they are in agreement with this conclusion

In addition 10 tax advisory services, the Audit Committes also
considerad & recormmendation from management for Delottte to provide
advice relating to the accounting treaiment associated with the Group's
refinancing and the sale of part of the Group's equity share portfolio to
Rose Shared Equity LLP Deloitte confirmed that these services did not
involve taking on a management role and posed no conflict to therr audit
independence The Audit Committee was therefore satisfied that this
work did not impact Deloitte's independence and agreed for them to
undertake the work

The Audit Committee confirms that there are no independence 1ssues

in respect of the auditor and that the Policy has been appropriately
comphed with throughout the year under review
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The full report of the Remuneration Committee 1s set cut on pages 57

to 78 In summary, the Remuneration Committee met on five occasions
dunng the financial year Attendance at each of these meetings 1$ set out
i Table 5 The full terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee are
avaslable from the Company’s website www barrattdevelopments ¢o uk

Committee membership

Richard Akers took over as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
from Bob Davies on 14 November 2012 and Nina Bibby joined as a
member on 3 December 2012 Al members of the Remuneration
Committee, as set out in Table 5, are considered by the Company

to be independent in accordance with Code prowvision D 21

Table 5 - Membership and attendance at Remuneration
Committee meetings

Reruneration Committee

Chairman

Richard Akers

Bob Lawson 5/5
Bob Davies” 3/3
Richard Akers® 5/5
Tessa Bamford 5/5
Nina Bibby** 2/2
Rod MacEachmane 5/5
Mark Rolfe 5/5

- Richard Akers took over as Chairman of tha Remuneration Gommities an 14 November
2012 when Bob Davies stepped down {rom hus positions of Non Executfve Director
Samnor Independent Direclor and Chairman of 1he Remuneration Commitioe

- Nina Bbby joined the Board as a Non Executive Director on 3 December 2012 and became
a member of the Remuneration Committee as at that date

Note
1 & Number of meetngs attendad whitst & Director /5 Number of meatings held whist a Draector

Activities undertaken in respect of the 2012/13 financial year
The Remuneration Committee undertook the following actviies in
respect of the 2012/13 financial year

¢ detemined and reviewed the overall remuneration policy of the Group
with regard to attracting, retanmg and motvating drectors and servor
managers of the expenencs and calibre required by the Group having
regard to remuneration paid to employees acmoss the Group and an
extemnal comparable group of companies together with the Group's
severance armangements for directors and semor management,

* agreed targets and benefits n respect of performance related pay
schernes, inclucing long-term performance plans, for all partcipating
employeas which are; sufficiently challenging, fair and highly motvating,
commensurate with sector practoe, and consistent with mavarnising
sharsholder value and the Interests and expectations of shareholders;

+ determned the total remuneration package of the Group Chief
Executve and after consultation with him, the total indwidual
remuneration package of each Executve Director and senior
management including bonuses, incentive payments and share
optons/awards and pension arrangements,

¢ undertook consuttations with Insttubonal Inestors on remuneration
pokicy and other aspects of seror remuneration, as appropnats, and

* considered the conclusions of the Department for Busness, innovation
and Skils' revew on Executive Directors’ remunerabion and the new
mandatory reporting requirements
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The Remuneration Committee 1s also responsible for agreeing
severance arrangementis or other compensation for loss of office
or early retirement for the Chairman, Executive Directors and senior
management and for appointing consultants to advise on executive
remuneration Detalls of the consultants utilised dunng the 201243
financial year can be found on page 67 of the Remuneration Report

GOING CONCERN

In determining the approprate basis of preparation of the financial
statements, the Directors are required to consider whether the Group
¢can continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future

The Group's business activities, together with factors which the
Drrectors consicler are likely to affect its future development, financial
performance and financial position are set out in the Group Chief
Executive's Review on pages 8 to 13, the Group Finance Director's
Review on pages 30 to 33 and the Business Review on pages 18

to 29 The matenal financial and operational nsks and uncertanties
that may have an impact upon the Group's performance and ther
mitigation are outlined on pages 34 to 39 and financial nsks including
hquidity risk, market nsk, credit nsk and capital nsk are outhined in note
26 to the financial statements

The financial performance of the Groug 1s dependent upon the wider
economic environment in which the Group operates As explained in the
Managing Risk section on pages 34 to 39, {actors that particularly affect
the performance of the Group mnclude changes in the macroeconomic
environment inctuding buyer confidence, avallability of mortgage finance
for the Group's customers and interest rates

On 14 May 2013, the Group agreed a comprehensive refinancing
package This provides the Group with around £850m of commutted
facies and private placement notes to June 2016 and £650m 1o
May 2018 The commutted faciities and private placement notes now
in place provide appropriate headroom above our current forecast
requirements In addrtion, in order to enable 1t to take advantage of
current opportunities in the land market, the Group has agreed terms
upon an additional £50m two year term loan, which we expect to be
availabls from 1 October 2013

In addition 1o the new borrowing faciities agreed in May 2013, the
Group has secured £30m of financing from the Government’s ‘Get
Brtain Bulding’ and ‘Growing Places Fund' schemes during the year
These funds are repayable between 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2018

Accordingly, after making enauines and having considered forecasts
and appropriate sensitivities, the Cirectors have formed a judgement,
at the time of approwving the financial statements, that there is a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future, being

at least 12 months from the date of these financial statements For this
reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basts in preparing
the conselidated financial statements

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Detalls of the post balance sheet events can be found on page 144
of this Annual Report and Accounts

On behalf of th‘esy § L/—\/(

Tom Keevil
GROUP GENERAL COUNSEL AND COMPANY SECRETARY




REMUNERATION REPORT

LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF
THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Dear Shareholder

lam pleased to present my first Directors’ Remuneration Report for the
financial year ended 30 June 2013 {the ‘Remuneration Report’) on behalf
of the Remuneration Committee {the 'Committee’) We will, as in previous
years, be seeking an advisory vote for the Remuneration Report at the
Company's 2013 Annual General Meeting {the ‘2013 AGM') After taking
over as Chairman of the Committee in November 2012, | commissioned
New Bridge Street (NBS') to undertake a review of the Company’s
remuneration policy {the ‘Remuneration Policy’) in order for the Committee
to assess whether it () continued to be aligned to the Group's strategic
cbjectives of mcreasing profitabiity, mantaining an appropriate caprtal
structure, and improving the return on capital employed (‘Our Strategic
Objectives’), and (i) reflected the current economic envircnment

This review was undertaken during the first quarter of 2013 and took
into account remuneration guidance, views of maor institutional
shareholders and the themes arising from the review of executive
remuneration by the Department for Business, Innovation and Skills
{'BIS") and the regulations proposed by BIS, which were subsequently
published in final form in June 2013 (the ‘BIS Regulations’)

Remuneration policy

After analysis at its April 2013 meeting, the Committee concluded that
the Remuneration Policy remains appropriate anc continues to align the
fixed and vanable elements of Executive remuneration with Our Strategic
Objectives Detalls of how the Committee sets Executive Director and
Senror Management remuneration the key elements of Executive Director
and Serwor Management remuneration and pension arrangements

¢an be found on the following pages of this report

Factors considered by the Committee when assessing

Executive remuneration

In assessing Exacutive remuneration for the 2012/13 financial year, the

Commities took account of the foliowing factors, reflecting management

actions during the year

* the increase of operating profit before exceptional tems by 32 2%
10 £252 7m (2012 £191 1m) and of profit before tax and exceptional
items by 73 7% to £192 3m (2012 £1107m) The launch of the Help
to Buy scheme on 1 Aprl undoubtedly assisted 2013 sales, however
its impact was restricted to the final quarter of the financial year,

* total completions {including joint ventures) of 13,663 {2012 12,857),

* cecntinued progress with reduction i the Group's net debt from
£167 7m at 30 June 2012 to €25 9m at 30 June 2013, reflecting the
timing of land payments and a higher level of year end completions,

* the progress in transforming the Group's land bank  The Group has
approved the purchase ¢f 18,636 plots (2012 12,085 plots) with a value
of £1,047 3m (2012 £578 1m) Focusing upon maximising return on caprtal

employed, the Group has achieved 3 4 years' supply of owned land
and one year's supply of land contracts conditional on pfanning,

+ the standard of build qualty and customer satisfaction delvered
Dunng the year, the Group receved 102 awards for qualty workmanship
In the annual National House-Building Gouncil {NHBC') ‘Pnde i the Job'
Awards This 1s the highest number sver won by a single housebuider
and the ninth consecutive year our ste managers have gained more
awards than any other housebuider The Group also achieved the
maximum 5 Star rating from the: Home Builders Federation for
a fourth consecutve year,

* health and safety performance Al dwisions within the Group achieved
the 93% benchmark that site managers must meet under our proactve
safety, heatth and environment auditng matnx  There were further
reductions in our Reportable Injury Incidence Rate and we achieved the
NHBC National Best Health and Safety Award for a mulb-storey site,

* the comprehensive refinancing package has put in place committed
borrowing faciites of circa £850m, with matunties ranging from 2016
o 2021 While the refinancing costs form the principal element in
exceptonal costs of £87 5m this year, moving forward the undertying
average inferest rate (excluding historic interest rate swaps) is reduced
o approximately 4 5%, and

* the monettsing of part of the Group's equity share portfolio, raising
£33 7m, which has enhanced the Group's iquidity and land buying abiites

In additon, the Committee took into account the intention of the Board
to propose, to shareholders, at the 2013 AGM a conservatively set final
dividend in respect of the 2012/13 financial year, while rerterating 1ts target
of a three times dividend cover for the financial year ending 30 June 2016

After taking all these factors into account, the Committee concluded
that for the 2012/13 financal year management actions have delivered
excellent progress in delivering Our Strategic Objectives across all
operabng metncs and have placed the Company in a strong position for
the future The Commuttee also factored into its assessment that some
of these outcomes (e g bulkl qualtty, customer satisfaction and the health
and safety performancs), together with the Total Shareholder Returns
(‘'TSR') and Earnings per Share {EPS') performances of the Company
since 2010, have created a longer term and susiained management
focus Having done so, the Commitiee reached the following decistons
in respect of remunerahon for the 2012/13 and 2013/14 financial years

Base salary

Fellowing a benchmarking exercise undertaken by NBS, the
Committee concluded that the level of base salarnies for Executive
Birectors and those individuals directly below this level {the ‘Senior
Management'} remains appropnately positioned in the market
Accordingly, salary increases for the 2013/14 financial year have
been himited to 2 5% for Executive Directors and Senior Management
in ine with the increase awarded to all managers across the Group
This increase 1s slightly lower than the 3% increase awarded to all
employees below manager level

Non-Executive Directors' fees

Non-Executive Directors’ base annual fees were increased from
£40,000 to £48,000, with effect from 1 July 2012, in recognition of the
additional time comrmitment expected from them following the Board's
decision that they should all sit on each of its committees Bob Lawson
declined any review of the Charman's fee and the additional fees paid
to the Charrs of the Audt and Remuneration Committees (£10,000)
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and the Senior Independent Director (£5,000) remained unadjusted
The Board has agreed that no fee iIncreases will be awarded to any
Non-Executive Directors, including the Chairman, for the 2013/14
financial year | can confirm that Non-Executive Director fees remain
well within the imit previously approved by shareholders and contamed
within the Company’s Articles of Association

2012/13 Anniual bonus

In July 2012 when the Committee was setting the objectwes for the
annual bonus, budgeted profit before tax and exceptional tems was
around £155 Om Accordingly, the Committee established a target level
of £155 Om, with a minimum profit before tax threshold for the bonus

at £145 0m and a maximum threshold of £175 Om Taking account

of the factors summarised above, In particular the Group’s significant
improvement n profit before tax and exceptional tems (which determined
66 7% of the total bonus for the year), reduction in net debt and the
mndwidual contributions of al senior managers within the Group to
achieving strong results across all operating metrics, the Commutiee,

In exercising (ts over arching discretion m relation to bonus awards,
concluded that a bonus award of 150% of base salary for Executive
Directors (after taking into account adjustments for the value of land
and the achievernent of personal objectives) was justified Any bonus
earned in excess of 100% of base salary will be deferred into shares
for a period of three years and wil be subject to a continued employment
performance condition

2013/14 Annuat honus

For the 2013/14 financial year, the maximum bonus potential for Executive
Directors has been maintained at $150% of base salary with any award over
100% of salary being deferred into shares in the Company for a penod of
three years subject to a continued employment condiion Thereafter, the
requirements of continued share ownership of at least one tmes salary

will apply The payment for on-target performance will, as per the 2012/13
firancial year, remain at 50% of the maximurm potentiat Details of the
performance measures and the weightings against each of them, iIncluding
the penalties for under-performance against health and safety and customer
satisfaction targets can be found on pages 68 and 69 of this Remuneration
Report In addition, there will be an Increased focus upon maximising return
on capital employed and the achevement of atarget of 3 5 years’ suppty of
owned land and one year's supply of land contracts condrional on planning

Long-Term Performance Plan (‘LTPP’)

201314 LTPP Award

Conststent with the approach taken iast year, the Committee intends

o make awards to Executive Directors and Semor Management under
the LTPP dunng the 2013/14 financial vear (the '2013/14 LTPF?) The level
of the award to be granted will continue to be no more than 200% for the
Executive Directors In the case of other participants, awards will be up to
150% of base salary unless there are exceptional indwidual circumstances,
such as planned Board succession or truly exceptional sustained delivery
during a plan penod by an indwidual In such cases, the Commitiee retans
the discretion to increase a contingent award up to 200% These awards will
be subject to a TSR performance target, to be measured over a three-year
performance pencd commencing 1 July 2013, and an EPS performance
target for the financial year enching 30 June 2016 Further details on the
201314 LTPP can be found on page 69 of this Remuneration Report

Vesting of 2010/11 LTPP Award
The performance period for the award made in October 2010 {the
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‘2010/11 LTPP") ended on 30 June 2013 The 2010/11 LTPP was subject
to two performance congitions, TSR and EPS, each representing 50%
of the award 100% of the TSR element vests on the attainment of
performance which 1s In the upper quartile or above, 25% vests at
median and where performance 1s In between these paints, the TSR
element vests on a straight-ine basis In respect of the EPS element,
100% of this element vests on the attainment of an EPS target of 25
pence per share or higher for the financial year ended 30 June 2013,
26% vests at 10 pence per share and for performance achieved
between 25% and 100%, vesting 1s on a straight-line basis

Both performance conditions were tested after the financial year end The
TSR of the Group was In the upper quartle compared to the performance
of the comparator group comprising the constituents of the FTSE 250
(excluding investment trusts} and therefore 100% of this element will

vest In terms of the EPS, the Group achieved adusted basic EPS of

14 8 pence per share {basic EPS 77 pence per share) and accordingly
47 8% of the EPS element wiil also vest The participants of the 2010/11
LTPP will therefore receive 73 9% of the award granted fo them in
October 2010 The award vests in October 2013 and the relevant
number of shares wilt be 1Issued to the participants at that point

Service contracts

Buring the year the Committee tasked the Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary with reviewing the serace contracts for Executive
Drectors and Senior Management to ensure that they were up to date
and compliant with developrments In Company and Employment law

Governance and Shareholder consultation

Througheut the year the Committee complied with those aspects

of the UK Corporate Governance Code {the ‘Code’) refevant to its
business and took into account the remuneration guidelnes and
guidance 1ssued by the Association of British Insurers (the ‘ABI'), the
National Association of Pension Funds ('NAPF’) and Pensions Investment
Research Consultants {PIRC") when setting the Remuneration Policy
The Committee continues to seek to demonstrate 1ts accountabiity on
executive remuneration to sharehoiders through this report and through
reguiar dialogue As in previous years, the Committee did engage with
key institut:onal Investers and shareholder representative bodies in
respect of the Rermuneration Policy for Executive Directors and Senior
Management for the forthcoming year and took into account the feedback
recenved from this process, when setting the Remuneration Policy

The Committee will consider both the shareholders’ vote on the report
and views expressed by shareholders on the detait of this report at the
2013 AGM 1n determining future remuneration policy for alt employees

To provide our shareholders with the opportunity to familanse themselves
with, and to provide feedback on, our proposed approach to reporting

on remuneration In respect of the 2013/14 financial year when the BIS
Regulations become mandatory for the Group, we have restructured

the contents of this report to reflect the '‘Directors’ Remuneration Policy’
and ‘Annual Report on Remuneration’ requirements

{ hope that you witl be able to support the Committee’s policy
and Remuneration Report at this year's AGM

RICHARD AKERS
CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE




DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY Performance scenario charts - fixed and variable pay

Each year the Committee reviews the policy on executive remuneration  The Group's policy Seeks to ensure that a substantial proportion of
in the context of the business environment, regulation and best practice,  Executive Directors’ remuneration 1s performance related and that

and market trends for the current and subseguent financial years The enhanced rewards are only paid for exceptional performance The
fixed and varable remuneration elements are simple, transparent and ¢hart below shows how the composition of each of the Executive

aligned with the interests of shareholders and designed to reflect the Directors' remuneration packages vares at cifferent levels of
views of our Investor shareholder bodies and other stakeholders performance achievement for the 2013/14 financial year
Remuneration strategy Chart 1: Executive Directors’ potential remuneration

The Group's current Remuneration Policy ams to

¢ attract, retan, motvate and competitnvely reward Executrve Directors and
Senior Management with the expenence, skills and ability to support the
achevement of the Group's key strategic obyectves in any financial year,

« be fully aligned with the performance and strategic chjectives of the
Group applicable for any financial year;

« reflect the nterests and expectations of shareholders and
other stakehoiders,

s take account of pay and empioyment conditions of employees
across the Group,

¢ reward the sustained growth and profitabidity of the business,
the mantenance of an appropnate capital structure and iImprove
the return on capral employed by the business,

* ensure that exceptional performance aganst challenging targets
15 adequately rewarded,

* ensure Executive Directors and Senior Management maintan a
long-term focus by defernng any bonus earned In excess of 100%
of base salary Into shares for a mimmum of three years and also by
raquinng Executive Directors to mairtain a significant shareholding
In the Company,

« conform to market-leading best practice and regulations,

* encourage management to adopt a lavel of nsk which 15 1n ine with
the nsk profile of the business and as approved by the Board, and

» ensure that there 15 no reward for fature, that termination payments
are Iimited to those (if any) that the Executve Director 1s contractually Assumptions

entitled to, and in exercising its discretion, the Committee robustly 1 Benefits — the value recevable in the 2013/14 financial year
applies the *good’ and ‘bad’ leaver provisions as defined n the rules 1§ taken to be the value received in the 2012/13 financial year as
of each of the share schemes operated by the Group disclosed in the Directors’ emoluments table on page 70 of this

Remuneration Report,

2 Bonus - the on-target level of bonus 1s taken to be 50% of the maximum
bonus opportunity No share price appreciation has been assumed
for the deferred share amount payable at masarmum bonus and

3 LTPP Award - the on-target vesting level 1s taken to be 50% and
the maxumum valug s taken to be 100% of the face value of the
award at grant No share price appreciation has been assumed

Elements of Executive Directors’ total remuneration package
The Executive Directors' total remuneration package 1s made up of the following components

Fixed pay Pay for Performance
] |

Pension Annual Long-term Total

Benefits - ) )
Benefits Bonus Incentives Remuneration
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The following table sets out a summary of the Company's Executve Directors’ remuneration package and Non-Executive Directors' fee policy
A description of how the Company mntends to implement the policy set out in this table for the 2013/14 financial year can be found on page 68
of this Remuneration Report

ELEMENT OF PAY Base salary Taxable benefits
PURPOSE AND LINK To attract and retan high-calibre Executve Directors and Senior To help attract and retain high-calbre
TO COMPANY'S STRATEGY Management requrred to implement the Group's strategy Executve Drrectors and Senior
Management and to remain competitive
To provide a competitive salary relative to comparable companies in the market place

in terms of size and complexity

HOW OPERATED Reviewed annually and takes effect from t July Benefits nclude

IN PRACTICE + Company car,
Rewview takes into consideration + Annual medical screening,
{# indnvidual responsibilities, skils, expenence and performance, +  Private medical insurance,
{f) salary levels for similar posiions n other major housebuiders * Some telephone costs, and

and other companies considered comparable by reference Contnbutions towards cbtaning
to market capitalisation, independent tax advice

{u} the level of pay increases awarded across the Group
{with the exception of promatons),

{tv) economic and market condtions, and

() the performance of the Group

Salaries are paid monthly In amears in cash

The Executive Directors' base sataries for the 2013/14 financial year can
be found on page 69 of this Remuneration Report

MAXIMUM OPPORTUNITY There 15 no prescnbed maximum annual ncrease The Committes NAA
15 guided by the general increase for the broader UK employge population
but on occasions may need 10 recognise changes in the role and/or

duties of a Director
DESCRIPTION OF N/A N/A
PERFORMANCE METRICS
CHANGE TO POLICY No change No change

60 BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC Annual Report and Accounds 2013




Pension

Annual bonus

To halp attract and retain high-calibre
Executive Directors and Senior
Management and to remam
competitive in the market place

To motvate and reward Executive Directors and Senior Management for the achievernent of demanding
financial objectives and key strategic measures over the financeal year

The performance measures set are stretching whilst having regard to the nature and nsk profile
of the Company and the interests of its shareholders

Vanable remuneration allows the Group to manage its cost base by gving t the flexibilty to react
to changes in the market and any unforeseen events

Executive Directors can elect to either

« participate in the Company's money
purchass scheme, or

+ receve a salary supplement

Executive Directors are also eligible
to an insured lump sum of up to five
times pensionable salary on death
H1 Service

The Committee sets the performance targets on an annual basis pror to the commencemaent of
the forthcoming financial year Group and indwidual performance aganst these targets 1s measured
at the end of the financial year and the level of bonus payable s calculated at that point

Bonusses up to 100% of base salary are pad in cash Any bonus earned in excess of this {up to

a mzaxamum of 50% of base salary} s compulsonly deferred irto shares for a penod of three years,
subyect to a continued employment condrtion Deferred shares may be forfertable if an indmdual
leaves pnor to the release date Deferred shares do not acerue dividends

Clawback may apply to both the cash and deferred element of the bonus, 1n the gvent of matenat
misconduct and/or matenal migstatement or error of finangiat results

The Commuttee has the discrehon to, and does, consider the effect of corporate performance on
environmental, social and governance risks and issues when setting the remuneration of the Executive
Directors and Senior Management to ensure that remuneration structures do not inadvertently motivate
nresponsibie behaviour As a result, part of the bonus outtum may be forfeted in the event of under-
performance in respect of customer service and health and safety performance targets

Annual bonus is not penstonable

30% of base salary

Maxaimum bonus opportunity is 150% of base safary

50% of the potential maximum bonus 1s payable for achievement of on-target performance

N/A

A combinabon of profit before tax, overall landbank/indebtedness, personal objectves and employee
engagement targets with penaties for falure to achieve customer satisfaction and health and safsty
targsts The weightings of each of these measures in respect of the 20t3/14 annual bonus can be found
on page 6% of this Remuneration Report

The Committee retains an absolute discretion in the making of bonus payments, and will continue to
consider, among other factors, the underlying financial performance of the business refative to the sector
i1 its decision miaking

No change

No change for the 2013/14 financial year with the exceptton of an increased focus upon minimum
landbank and the personal objectives performance measure for Executive Directors This performance
measure makes up 10% of the total annual bonus and 1s now In two paris for Executive Directors Half

of this performance measure Is based on the achrevement of targets agreed with the Group Chief Executve

{and in the case of the Group Chief Executive, with the Chairman) and the other half 1 at the discretion
of the Commttas
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ELEMENT OF PAY LTPP! Deferred Bonus Plan {{DBP")
PURPOSE AND LINK To motivate and reward Executive Directors and Senior Management Any annual bonus which i1s deferred
TO COMPANY'S STRATEGY for the delivery of the long-term performance of the Group into shares is held in this plan
To faciitate share ownership by Executve Directors and Senior Management.  The aim is to encourage long-term
focus and to further align mterests with
The Committee ensures that targets, whilst stretching, are reahstic those of shareholders and discourage
and attanable, for the long-term benefit of the Group, and do not excessnve nsk taking
encourage Inappropnate business nsks
HOW OPERATED LTPP awards The Committee utises the rules
IN PRACTICE () are structured as ni-cost options and granted annually so that no of the Group's Co-Investrnent Plan
undue emphasis 1s placed on performance n any one particular {the ‘CIP") for the purposes of the
financial year, DBP Under these rules the
(i) are at the discretion of the Committee, taking into account indmvdual Committee has a discretion which
performance and the overall performance of the Group, alows it to award matching shares
() vest on the third annmversary subject to achievernent of stretching (the ‘Matching Award')
performance condrions measured over three financial years and
to continued employment, and However, no Matching Shares are
(i} are satisfied by either newly 1ssued shares or shares purchased currently awarded to Executve
in the market Newly issued shares are subject to the diluton Dwectors or Semor Managerment
limits set out i the scheme rules and in accordance with
ABI guidelines Clawback may apply in the event of
matenal misconduct and/or matenal
Clawback may apply n the event of matenal misconduct and/or matenal  musstatement or error of financial resutts
misstatement or error of financial results
MAXIMUM OPPORTUNITY The Committee has agreed to grant an award equal to 200% of base Any bonus paid in excess of 100% of
salary to the Executive Directors In the case of other parhicipants, salary 1s deferred into shares and held
awards will be up to 150% of base salary, unless there are exceptional n the CIP
indmviidual circumstances, such as planned Board succession or truly
exceptional sustained delvery dunng a plan penod in which case, Participants also have the opportunity
the Committee retams the discretion to Increase a contingent award to voluntarly defer addtional amounts
up to 200% of base salary of annual bonus up to a maximum of
25% of base salary into the CIP
Matching Awards may be made at
a rate of one for ocne for compuisory
deferral and at a maximum of four
for one for voluntary deferral
DESCRIPTION OF 50% of the LTPP award 1s subject to a relatve TSR condiaon and 50% Any shares awarded remain sutyect
PERFORMANCE METRICS 15 subject to absolute EPS targets® 1o a contrued ermployment performance
condition over a three-year penod and
25% of an award will vest at threshold performance (0% vests below this  ‘good’ and ‘bad’ keaver provisions
level) increasing pro-rata to 100% vesting for maximum performance
Any Matching Awards will be subject
The levels of vesting n respect of each of the performance conditions for  to performance conditons measured
the LTPP to be awarded during the 2013/14 financiat year and each of the  over a penod of three years
outstanding LTPP awards can be found on pages 69 and 72 respectvely
Overall, the Committee must be satisfied that the underying financial
performance of the Group over the performance penod warrants the level
of vesting as detarmined by appiying the above targets If the Commnttee
ts not of this view, then it 1s empowered o reduce the Jevel of vesting
CHANGE T0 POLICY No change No change

The rules of the LTPP wera approved by shareholdaers at the 2012 AGM

2 TSR performance condifion Is monitored on the Committes s behalt by NBS whilst EPS periormance is vertfiad by the Committee The TSR ang EPS performance conditions
werg salected by the Commiitee on the basis that they reward outparformance against returns generated by our listed company peers and to ensure efficient and efiective managaement
of our busingss whilst aligning interests with those of sharsholders
3  Dstails of the extent to which the Executive Diractors complied with this policy as at 30 June 2013 are sat out on page 78 of this Remunaration Report
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Savings Related Share
Option Scheme {*SRS0S)

Shareholding guidehnes?

Non-Executive Directors' fees
{including the Chairman)

To promote long-term share

To further align the mterests

To attract and retain high quality and expenenced Non-Executive

ownership amongst all employess  of Executive Directors to those Directors {including the Charman}

of the Group 1in a tax-efficent way,  of shareholders

Inking employee benefit to the

performance of the Group and

to aid retention of staff

Employees can save up to £250 Executve Directors are required to  The remuneration of the Non-Executve Directors is set by the Board

per month for three or five years build up and retain ashareholding  on the recornmendation of a Committee of Executive Directors having

and recene options to purchase the 1 the Company’s shares withinfive  regard to the tme commitment and responsibilties associated with

Company's shares at a discount years of being appomnted to the the role The remuneration of the Charman is set by the Board

of up to 20% on the market value Board and must retain all vested an the recommendation of the Committee agan having regard
LTPP awards or exercised options  to the tme commitment and responsibilites of the role

All employees and Executive {both net of tax) untl the relevant

Directors who work more than shareholding has been achieved The remuneration of the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors

25 hours per week, and have 15 reviewed annually taking into account the fees pad by other

five or more years of continuous The share price used for the companss In the housebulding sector

service with the Company {or any purposes of determining the value

subsichary in the Group nominated
to join n the SRSOS) ending on

of the shares 1s that prevailing
on 30 June i each year

Non-Executive Director fees are paid in cash The Non-Executive
Directors do not participate in any performance related schemes

the date of grant are eligible to {eg annual bonus or incentive schemes) nor do they receve any
parhcipats m the scheme The There 1s no mandatory pension or private medical nsurance benefits
Board has discretion to reduce requirement for the Non-Executive
the penod of qualifying service Directors, Including the Chaman,  No additonal fees are payable for memberstup of Board committees
and to nvite other employees 1o hold shares however they however, additional fees are paid to the Chairmen of the Audit and the
of the Group to participate are encouraged to do so by Remuneraton Committess and the Senior Independent Director

the Committee

Details can be found on page 70 of this Remuneration Report.

Save a maximum of £250 per 100% of base salary for N/A
month for a penod of three or Executive Directors
five years
Continued employment for the Executive Directors may not Non-Executive Director fees must remain withun the imits approved by

duration of the scheme and ‘good’
and ‘bad’ leaver provisions

dispose of any shares on the
exercise of an option or on
release of an award If they do not
have the minimum sharghelding

shareholders and incorporated in the Company’s Articles of Associabon

No ¢change

No change

No change
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Clawback

Both the annual bonus {including any deferred bonus) and the LTPP
are subject to the Company's power of clawback (the ‘Clawback’) The
Clawback 1s applicable in respect of any annual bonus paid/deferred
and to any share awards granted under the LTPP or the Executive
Share Option Scheme (the 'ESOS") in respect of the financial year
ended 30 June 2010 and later years, subject in the case of HMRC
approved options, ta such approval In addition, the Clawback will alse
apply to any awards granted under any senior manager share schemes

The Clawback can be invoked if

(a) it 1s necessary to restate the Group's accounts used to calculate

a partcipant’s entitlement to bonus or share awards in crcumstances
where the onginat over-statement has led to a bonus being paid/
deferred or share awards being granted which would not otherwise
have been paid or granted, or

{b) the participant 1s found guilty of any cnminal actwity in connection
with his or her employment and this related to an act which led to a
bonus being paid/deferred or share awards bemng granted to him or her

{n such circumstances, the Committee may determine that the bonus
and/or share award will be retrospectively recalculated f bonus monies
have been paid, the partcipant will be required to resmburse the
Company for an amount up to the total amount of the net bonus paid,
less any bonus that the Commuittee determines would have been paid
regardless of the event in question [f share awards have been granted,
the number of awards or options granted will be reduced accordingly

Consideration of employment conditions elsewhere across

the Group

The budget for all employees’ salares 1s determined with reference to
the rate of inflation, satanes for simitar posittons throughout the industry
and general themes and trends in respect of remunerating employses

When agreeing the increase i base salanes for Executive Directors
and Senior Management, the Committee takes into consideration the
salary Increases awarded to all employees within the Group in respect
of any given financial year

Differences between Executive Directors' and Employees’

remuneration

The following differences exst between the Company's policy for

the remuneration of Executve Directors as set out above and its

approach to the payment of employees generally

» alower level of maximum annual bonus opportunity may apply
0 employees other than the Executive Directors and certan senior
executives, however all employees, including Executive Directors and
Senior Management, are subject to the same performance targets,

*  Executve Directors and Senior Management are required to defer
any bonus eamned in excess of 100% of base salary Intc shares
for a penod of three years,

« employees are only able to join the defined contnbution money
purchase section of the Barratt Group Pension and Life Assurance
Scheme Executive Directors’ may either join the defined contribution
money purchase scheme or elect for a cash supplement in leu of the
pension contribution, and

* participation in the LTPP 1s imited to Executive Directors and Senior
Management The Committee has however approved a plan that
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allows the deferral of an equivalent of 15-25% of the salary of a
number of select employees operating below Semior Management
level Into a Serior Managers' Incentive Scheme (the ‘SMIS')
Further detalls of the SMIS can be found on page 70 of this
Remuneration Report

In general, these differences anse from the development of remuneration
arrangements that are market competitive for the vanous categones of
individuals They also reflect the fact that, in the case of Exscutive
Directors and Senior Management, a greater emphasis tends to be
placed on performance-related pay

Recruitment of Executive Directors

The base salary for any new Executive Director will take into account
market data for the relevant role, the salanes of existing Executive
Directors, the individual's expenence and their current base salary

In the event an indwvidual I1s recrutted at below market levels, ther base
salary may be re-akgned over a penod of time {e g two to three years)
subject to ther performance n the role

individuals will participate in the LTPP on terms to be considered by
the Commuttee on a case by case basis, depending on the date of
appointment The Committee may also consider buying out incentive
awards which an indmdual would forfeit upon leaving their current
employer, again this would be reviewed on a case by case basis

Executive Directors’ service contracts

Detalls of the Executive Directors’ service contracts are included in
Table 6 and therr emoluments are shown in Table 10 on page 70

of this Remuneration Report All Executive Directors' and Senor
Management’s servica contracts were reviewed and updated dunng
the 2012/13 financial year in order to bring them in ing with current
regulations and best practice All indviduals whose service contracts
were amended, agreed and accepted the changes propesed and
new service contracts have been entered into The contracts entitie
Executive Directors to the provision of a company car, annual medical
screening, private medical insurance, some telephone costs and
contributions to the cost of obtaming Independent tax advice

Table 6 - Executive Directors’ service contracts

Executive Service Date of Notice
Director contract date appeintment perod
Mark Clare 12 November 2012 2 October 2006 12 months
Davd Thomas  16January 2013 21July 2009 12 months
Steven Boyes 21 February 2013 1 July 2001 12 months
Clive Fenton® i July 2003 1 July 2003 12 months

*  Clive Fanton rasigned as a Director ol the Company on 5 Juty 2012

Executive Directors' service contracts are available for inspection by
any person at the Company's registered office dunng normal office
hours and will also be avalable at the 2013 AGM for 15 minutes
before and throughout the meeting

The Committee will continue to review the contractual terms for new
Executve Directors to ensure that these reflect best practice No new
Executive Drrectors were appointed dunng the financial year under review




Executive Directors’ notice penod

In accordance with the Company's policy, it engages all Executive
Directors on the basis of one-year roling contracts which can be
termimated by twelve months' notice given by erther the Company
or by the Executive at any time

Executive Directors’ termination provisions

There are no specific provisions for compensation on garty termmation
{except for payment in fieu of holidays accrued but untaken} or loss of
office due to a change of ownership of the Company The Committee
will apply mitigation against any contractual cbligations as it deems fair
and reasonable and will seek tegal advice on the Company’s liability
to pay compensation The Committee also seeks to reduce the level
of any compensation payable and takes into account, amongst other
factors, the indmdual's and the Group's performance, the Director’s
obligation to mitigate his/her own loss, and the Director's length of
service when calcufating termination payments

Nen-Executive directorships

Subject to Board approval, Executive Directors are permitted to accept
one non-executive directorship cutside the Company and retain any
fees receved from such a position Executive Directors are not allowed
to take on the Charmanship of any FTSE 100 company Board
approval will not be given for any non-executive posttion where such
appointrent would lead to a matenal conflict of interest or would

have an effect on the Director's abiiity to perform his/her duties to the
Company During the year, Mark Clare was a trustee and Director of
the BRE Trust and UK GBC Limited Mark Clare does not receve any
fees for esther of these positions The tme commitment expected, n
aggregate, for these positions 1s approximately 25 hours per annum
Neither David Thomas nor Steven Boyes held any non-executive
directorships with other companies during the year

Chairman and Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appointment
The Charrman and each of the Non-Executive Directors are appointed
under terms set out in a letter of appointment They do not have
service contracts and their appointments can be terminated {by

the Board) without compensation for loss of office and by giving the
appropriate length of notice as prescribed in ther respective letters
of appontment The notice penod applicable for the Chairman, Bob
Lawson, 1s three months and for each of the other Non-Executive
Directors ts one month Under governance policies approved by the
Board, Non-Executive Directors are appomnted for a three-year term
and usually serve a second three-year term subject to performance
review and re-election by shareholders Beyond this a further term
of up to three years may be served sub;ect to ngorous review by

the Chairman and the Nominatton Committee and re-election

by shareholders Detalls of Non-Executive Directors’ letters of
appointment can be found in Table 7

Table 7 - Non-Executive Directors’ ietters of appointment

Date elected/ Date first Date last
Non-Executive ra-glected appointed re-appomnted
Diractor at AGM to the Board to the Board
Bob Lawson 14 November 2012 1 June 2008 1 June 2011
TessaBamiord 14 November2012 1July2009  1July2012
Rod MacEachrane 14 November 2012 1 May 2006 1 July 2011
Mark Rofe 14 November 2012 1 May 2008 1 May 2011
Richard Akers 14 November 2012 2 Apnl 2012 N/A

3 Dacember

Nina Bibby NA 2012 N/A,

The letters of appointment for Non-Executive Directors are available for
inspection by any person at the Company's registered office dunng
normal office hours and will also be avalable at the 2013 AGM for

15 minutes before and throughout the meeting

Shareholder engagement

Each year we update our major investors upen the Committee's
appication of the Company's Remuneration Policy and our performance,
following the release of the July trading update and in advance of the
publication of our Annual Report and Accounts The Committee considers
shareholder feedback receved In refation to the AGM and any addsional
feedback received duning any meetings from time to tme, as part of the
Company's annual review of a5 Remuneraton Policy In addition, the
Commuttee wiil seek to engage directly with majer shargholders and

their representative bodies should any matenal changes be proposed

to the Remuneration Policy Details of the votes cast for and agamst the
resolution to approve last year's remuneration report and any matters
discussed with shareholders during the year are detaded throughout this
Remuneration Report
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

In this section, in addition to complying with our reporting requirements,
we describe all of the payments to Directors in connection with the
year under review and how the Bemuneration Policy witl be apphed
throughout the 2013/14 financial year

The Committee

The mamn role of the Committee 1s to design and implement a
remuneration framework which, not only allows the Group to recruit
and retain Executive Directors and Senior Management who are fully
focused and motivated to achieve and deliver the Group's key busingss
strategies but, 15 also aligned to the interests of the Group's shareholders
The Committee operates within terms of reference (the 'Terms of
Reference’) and governance policies approved by the Board and in
accordance with the Code The full Terms of Reference, which are
reviewed annually, are avalable from the Company's website at

www barrattdlevelopments co uk

Principal responsibiirties
The principal responsibilities of the Committee undertaken in each
annual cycle {where appropriate) are

determining and reviewing the overall remuneration policy of the
Group with regard to attracting, retaining and motvating directors
and serior managers of the expenence and calibre required by the
Group having regard to remuneration paid to employees across
the Group and an external comparable group of companies,
determining, reviewing and making recommendations 1o the
Board on the remuneration package and terms of appointment
of the Chairman,

agreeing targets and benefits in respect of performance related
pay schemes, including long-term performanca plans, for all
participating employees which are sufficiently challenging, far
and highly motivating, commensurate with sector practice, and
consistent with maximising shareholder value and the interests
and expectations of shareholders,

agreeng severance arrangements or other compensation for loss
of office or earty retirement for the Chairman, Executive Directors
and Senior Management

determining the total remuneration package of the Group Chief
Executive and, after consultation with hum, the total individuai
remuneratton package of each Executive Director and Senior
Management including bonuses, incentive payments, share
options/awards and pensicn arrangements, and

undertaking consultations with institutional investors on
remuneration policy and/or other aspects of senior remuneration,
as appropriate and ensunng that the Remuneration Policy

15 aligned with regulatory requirements

The Committee is also responsible for appointing consultants to advise
on executive remuneraticn Details of the consultants utiised dunng
the financial year ended 30 June 2013 are set out on page 67 of this
Remuneration Report
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Membership

Bob Davies chared the Commuttee until the conclusion of the 2012
AGM on 14 November 2012, at which point he stepped down from his
positions of Non-Executive Director, Chairman of the Committee and
as Senior Independent Director of the Company Richard Akers took
over as Charman of the Committee with effect from that date Other
members of the Committee throughout the financial year were Bob
Lawson, Rod MacEachrane, Tessa Bamiord and Mark Rolie Nina
Bibby joined the Committtee on 3 December 2012 The Group General
Counsel and Company Secretary, Tom Keewvil, acts as Secretary

to the Committee

In accordance with the Code, all Committee members are considered
to be independent with no financial nterest in the Committee’s
decisions, other than as sharehclders andg the fees paid to them

as Non-Executive Directors Details of therr shareholdings and fees
can be found on pages 78 and 70 respectively




Meetings

The Committee met on five occasions during the financial year and attendance at each of these meetings 1s described in Table 5 on page 56

of the Corporate Governance Report

The matters addressed by the Committee durning the 2012/13 financial year were as follows

General remuneration Governance Annual bonus Long-term incentives
matters
Month:
JuLy * Resignation of Clive Fenton  « Draft 2011/12 « Cash and net debt targets  * Heview and approval
(two meetings) * Finalisation of bonus and Remuneration Report of EPS targets for 2012/13
LTPP performance targets  « Shareholder
consultation letter
AUGUST Annual consultation with investors
SEPTEMBER « Finalisation of the 201213« Draft 2011412 * 201112 Annual bonus * Update of Scheme rules
bonus and LTPP outcomes  Remuneration Report sign off * Review of Senior
* Remuneration strategy * 201213 Net debt Managers’ Long-Term
and pohcy reconciliation Incentwve Scheme
APRIL * Remuneration * Review of impact of BIS * 2013414 Annual bonus * 2013/14 review proposals
benchmarking Proposals on Directors’ rules and proposal and review performance
* Reviewed fixed Remuneration ¢ Setting of challenging condrtions
and variable * Review of Policy and performance condions
remuneration elements outline 201213
Remuneration Report
JUNE « Approve salary increases  * Shareholders’ * Review of performance « Review of EPS targets
for 2013/14 Consultation Letter against targets for 2012/13 for 201314 LTPP
* Committee effectiveness Annual borus  Proposal for 2013/14
* Executive shareholdings « 2013/14 Annual senior manager scheme
* Review and approve bonus targets
Terms of Reference
Effectiveness

As described on pages 48 and 49 of the Corporate Governance Report, independent Board Evaluation undertook an external performance
evaluation of the Committee The key areas reviewed included the structure and operation of the Committee under a new Chairman The
outcome was posttive It was however, acknowledged that a key challenge moving forward would be 10 ensure that the remuneration structure
and the aggregate value of the fixed and varable elements remain competitive within the market as  continues to mprave The Committee
will meet In December to review the Remuneration Policy further, in the ight of feedback on this report, the shareholder consultation exercise
and external advice The Commitiee alsc reviewed its Terms of Reference as part of the annuzal effectiveness process and concluded that they

follow best practice and are “fit for purpose’

Advice/Advisers

During the year the Committee has taken advice from ndependent advisers, NBS, a part of Acn plc NBS was appomnted by the Committee
as its remuneration consultant in 2008 and 1s a founder signatory to the Remuneration Consultants Group's Code of Conduct In addition to
advising the Committee, NBS also provided the Company with advice on mplementing decisions made by the Committee and remuneration
benchmarking NBS's fees for providing such advice amounted to £16,358 (2012 £26,053) for the year ended 30 June 2013 In hine with best
practice, the Committee assesses, from tme to hme, whether the appontment remains appropriate or i it should be put out to tender as part
of its effectiveness review Aon plc also provided broking services to the Company in respect of private medical nsurance, Death in Service
benefits and Group Income Protection Mercer Limited has advised the Company in relation to varous pension issues and has been apponted
actuary tc the Barratt Group Pension and Life Assurance Scheme since 2004 Slaughter and May, the Company's corporate legal advisers,

have also provided advice as and when necessary

In addition to advice from external consultants, the Committes recerved input into its Gecision-making from the Group Chief Executive, the Group
General Counsef and Company Secretary and the Group Human Resources Director (since his appeintment on 1 August 2012), none of whom
was present at any iime when their own remuneration was being considered
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STATEMENT OF IMPLEMENTATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY
FOR THE 2013/14 FINANCIAL YEAR

Executive remuneration package for the 2013/14 financial year
In ine with 1ts remuneration strategy described on page 59 of this
Remuneration Report, the Committee has based the Exacutive
remuneration package for the forthcoming year on the following pninciples
+ performance-related remuneration should be linked to the
achievement of demanding performance targets,
+ performance-related remuneration should reflect the responsibilities
of the Executve Directors, currently approximately 72 0% of
the Group Chief Executive's and the other Executive Directors’
remuneration potential 1s performance based {see Chart 1
on page 59 of this Remuneration Report),
« perfarmance-related remuneration should align the interests
of Executives with those of shareholders by setting performance
targets based on measures of shareholder return and accordingly
the Committee’s polcy ts 10 use a combination of TSR and EPS
perfarmance conditions to achieve this akgnment,
+ total remuneration for outstanding performance should be
competitive with that avallable elsewhere in the sector, and
« total remuneration should take into account levels of pay and
employment conditions throughout the Group

Remuneration payment timeline

In respect of the 2013/14 financial year, the elements of remuneration
as described on page 59 of this Remuneration Report, subject to
performance targets being met, would be made/released as follows

Financial year  Element of remuneration

2013/14 + Basesalary
+ Pension
* Benefits

201415 » Annual bonus for the financial year ending
30 June 2014 - cash payment with any bonus
eamed n excess of 100% of base salary being
deferred into shares

2015/16 * Performance period for LTPP ends however,
award does not vest until the expiry of three years
from the grant date

LTPP awards vest

2016417 .

2017/18 * Deferred bonus shares are released

Performance targets for the 2013/14 financial year

The vanable elements of Executive Director and Senior Management
remuneration are subyect to performance targets which are stretching
and challenging whlst aligning the level of reward with the short and
long-term performance of the Group and fotal shareholder return The
performance targets applied to vanable remuneration for the 2013/14
financial year and the reasons for selecting those performance targets
are set out In the table below

Vanable Performance Reascn
elemeant condition selected
Annual bonus  Financial
*  Profit before tax and Rewards outperformance
exceptional tems aganst stretching targets
and 1$ a key measure of
our performance
s Overall minmum Ensures efficient and
landbank/indebtedness  effective management
{netdebt + land of our balance sheet
creditors) and alignment of
cohjectives with our
banking covenants
Non-financial
* Heafth and safety Ensures a safe working
environment, which 15
paramount i our business
+ Customer service Customer satisfaction i1s
critical to the success of
our business and our ability
to compete
+ Employee engagement  Our ability to atract,
motwvate and retain the
best people is ancther
key criteria for our success
LTPP + TSR Rewards cutperformance
compared aganst retuans
generated by our listed
company peers
+ EPS To ensure efficient and
effective management
of our business and
align interests with
those of shareholders
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Executive Directors’ salanes

With the assistance of NBS, the Committee undertook a benchmarking
exercise of Executive Director salanes and concluded that the salares
are well within the range for the housebuilding sector and the wider
poputation of the comparators from the FTSE 250 (excluding investment
trusts) Accordingly, the Committee agreed to award all Executive
Directors and Sentor Management a salary increase of 2 5% for the
2013/14 financial year This (ncrease 1s in hne with that awarded to all
rmanagers across the Group and shightly lower than the 3% increass
awarded to employees below manager level Executive Director salares,
with effect from 1 July 2013, are therefore as follows

Tabie 8 — Executive Directors’ salary increases

Average

% Increase

Salary with over flve

Current effect from years

salary 1 .July 2013 % (including

Name £000 £000 increase 2013/14)
Mark Clare 664 681 25 158
David Thomas 430 441 25 159
Steven Boyes 430 441 25 4 85

Pensions
Executive Directors will recewve a cash salary supplement of 30%
of base salary

Annua! bonus

Executive Directors and Senor Management will participate in the
Group’s annuat bonus scheme in accordance with the Remuneration
Policy The performance measures and the maximum bonus payment
against each of them expressed as a percentage for the 2013/14
financial year will be

Performance measure % of salary maximum
Profit before tax 100
Overall landbank/indebtedness 35
Personal cbjectives” 10
Employee engagerrent 5
Total** 150

This elemany wilt be In two paris for the Exaculive Directors so lhat half is based on ihe
achievemnent of targets agreed with the CEQ in respect of 1he two Executive Dreclors
(and the Chairman i raspect of the CEQ) and the other half s at the Committes s
discretron The personal objectives for Senior Managsment are set by the CEO and
raviswed by the Committes

Any bonus eamed In aggregate in excess of 100% will continue 1o be datered Into
shares and held in the CIP

In addition to these performance measures, the Committee has
retained the penalties for under-performance in respect of each of the
customer service and health and safety targets Accordingly, in respect
of customer service, 10% of the {otal bonus earned will be forfeited

for failure to achieve 5 Star status for both the Recommend Score

and the Quality Score under the Home Builders Federation Scheme,
and a further 10% would be forferted for falure to achieve the on-target
health and safety performance target Consequently, if neither of these
performance measures were to be achieved, In aggregate, 20% of

the annual benus earned would be forfeited

Any bonus awarded for the 2013/14 financial year would be subject
to the Clawback set out on page 64 of this Rémuneration Report

LTPP

The levet of award to be granted to Executive Directors and Senior

Management during the 2013/14 financial year will be in ing with

that described on page 62 of this Remuneratton Report Consistent

with past awards the extent to which the LTPP award to be granted

in 2013/14 {the '2013/14 LTPP') will vest, will be dependent on two

independent performance conditions with 50% determined by

reference to TSR and 50% determined by reference to EPS, as foliows

* the TSR element of the 2013/14 LTPP will vest in full if the TSR ranks
1 the upper quartle, as measured over the three-year penod, relative
to the constituents of the FTSE 250 Index (excluding investment
trusts) at the beginning of that period This element will reduce
10 25% on a pro rata basis for median performance and to nil
for below median performance, and

* the EPS element of the 2013/14 LTPP wall vest in full If the 2015/16
EPS 1s 40 pence per share or higher This element will reduce to
25% on a pro rata basis if the 2015/16 EPS 1s 30 pence per share
and to nit if the 2015/16 EPS 1s less than 30 pence per share

The specific EPS target range for the 2013/14 LTPP has been increased
by an additional two pence per annum to ensure management does not
get any benefit from the expected positive mpact of the Company's
re-financing upon EPS in future years and remains designed to ncentvse
significant performance improvement across the business, increase
sales volumes and deliver continued profit growth, whilst ensunng that

it does not encourage mappropnate nsk taking by Executive Directors
and Senicr Management The EPS targets approved by the Commitiee
reflected the sigrificant improvement n the Company's performance,
current consensus targets for profit before tax as at 30 June 2015,
{extrapolated forward in the absence of a current market consensus

for the 2015/16 financial year), the Board's assessment of optimal scale
of the business, the need to ensure continued focus on managing net
debt, together with the forward looking goal of the Group to Improve tts
return on capital employed Indeing so the Committee was satisfied
that these targets would deliver substantial benefit to shareholders,

If they are met whilst ensuring full engagement from management

by having an achievable minimum vesting levei while requinng
outstanding performance to achieve the masomum target

Both the TSR and EPS performance conditions will remain subject
to an overnding Committee discretion, in that it must be satisfied
that the underlying financial performance of the Company over the
performance period warrants the level of vesting as determined by
applying these targets if the Committee 1s not of this view then it
will be empowered to reduce (possibly to nif) the level of vesting
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Discretionary Long-Term Incentives below Semor Management

In addhion to the 2013/14 LTPP for Executive Directors and Senior Management, the Committee has approved the grant of an award under

the SMIS to approximately 100 employees operating below Senior Management {the '2013/14 SMIS) The man purpose of the SMIS s to seek
to mitigate the impact of key employees below Senor Management level taking up new job opportuniies with competitors operating nationally
The 2013/14 SMIS will be subject to the same EPS performance condition as the 2013/14 LTPP and a continued employment condition In the
event that the parbicipant is still an employee of the Group at the end of the three-year performance period and the Group achieves the specified
EPS targets, the partictipant will recerve an equivalent number of shares to the amount of salary deferred By using the same stretching EPS
targets as the LTPP, the Committee 1s ensunng that the SMIS 1s aligned with Our Strategic Objectves

The 2043/14 LTPP and the 2013/14 SMIS are also subject to the Clawback conditions as described on page 64 of the Remuneration Report
Non-Executive Directors' fees

The Board reviewed the fees for the Non-Executive Directors (including the Chairman) and concluded that no fee increase would be awarded
for the 2013/14 financial year Accordingly, the annual fees payable to the Non-Executive Chairman and Non-Executive Directors with effect from

1 July 2013 remain as follows

Table 9 - Non-Executive Directors’ fee increases

Role 2013114 200213 mcrea:(e’
Charman £270,000 £270,000 0%
Non-Executve Director base fee £48,000 £48,000 0%
Chairman of Audit Committee £10,000 £10,000 0%
Chairman of Remuneration Gomrmittes o _____%£10,000 £10,000 0%
Senior Independent Director £5,000 £5,000 0%
DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION GUTCOMES FOR THE 2012/13 FINANCIAL YEAR
Directors’ emoluments
The following table shows the emoluments for the Executive Directors in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2013
Table 10 - Directors’ emoluments {Audited)
2013 Gain 2012 Gamn
Employer's on exercise on exercise
Pension pension Performance Benefits of share of share
Salary/fee  allowance contribution related Inkind 2013 Total 2012 Total options options
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Mark Clare 664 199 - 986 39 1,898 1,830 - 13
David Thomas 430 129 - 645 14 1,218 1,132 - -
Steven Boyes 430 129 — 645 26 1,230 1,113 - 13
Clve Fentonhan 5] 2 - — - 8 534 - k|
Bob Lawson 270 - - - - 270 270 - -
BobDaves™ 23 - = _ A @ 85 ____ - -
Richard Akers® 54 - - - - 54 10 - -
Tessa Bamfordhn 48 - - - - 48 40 - -
Nina Bibby* 28 - - — - 28 - - -
Rod MacEachrane 48 - - - - 48 40 - -
Mark Rolfen 61 - - - - 61 50 - -
2013 Total 2,062 459 — 2,286 83 4,890 - - -
2012 Total 2,296 460 69 2,143 106 - 5,074 - 37

*  Nina Bibby joined the Board as a Non Exaculive Director on 3 Dacember 2012

*  Bob Davies stepped down from his posilions of Non Executive Director Chairman of the Remunaration Committes and the Senlor Independent Director at the concluslon of the 2012

AGM on 14 November 2012

A These figures include tees in respect of Charmanship of Board Commitiees and the role of Senior Indapendent Director as applicabla
A Following Tessa Bamford s appointment as a consultant with Spencer Stuart on 18 April 2011 her fees were paxd direclly on a quarterly basis, to Spencer Stuart With effect from
1 Novembar 2012 her fees are paid directly to her For the perlod 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012 inclusive, ihe Company paid £16 000 to Spencer Stuart for Tessa s services

to the Board and for the remamder of tha financial year the Company pald in total £32,000 directly to her in egual monthly instaiments
AAA Figures Include salary and benafits received up 1o and including 5 July 2012 being the date when Clive Fenton resigned as a Director of the Company He continued 1o be employed
by tha Company untll 31 December 2012 during which period he received a base salary of £26,000 per month and a baneflts package worth £21 120 which comprised the provision

of a motor vehicle end privata medical Insurance

70 BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2013




Single figure of remuneration
The total remuneration for each of the Executive Directors for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 1s as set out in Table 11 below

Table 11 - Executive Directors’ single figure of remuneration

Mark Clare David Thomas Steven Boyes Clive Fenton'
Group Chief Executive Group Finance Director  Group Chief Operating Officer Group Executive Director
201213 % 2011412 % 2012113 % 201112 % 201213 % 201112 % 2012113 % 2011412 %
£000 of total £000 of t% £000 oftotal £000 oftotal £000  of total £000 oftotal £C00  of total £000 of total
Fixed pay
Salary 16.22 643 3063 430 1636 408 3150 430 1680 390 3083 6 7500 390 7303
Taxable benefits 39 095 38 181 14 053 15 116 26 102 26 206 - - 27 506
Pension benefits 199 486 193 919 129 49N 102 788 126* 492 113 883 2 2500 117 2191
Pay for
performance
Annual bonus™ 0996 2433 956 4555 645 2454 607 4687 645 2521 580 4585 - - - -
Long-term
Incentives
LTPPA 2,195 5364 - - 1,394 5304 - - 1332 5205 - - - - - -
ESOS - - 256 1220 - - 163 1259 - - 143 1130 - - - -
SRS0S - - 13 062 16 062 - - - - 13 103 - - - -
Total
Remuneration 4,093 10000 2,099 10000 2,628 10000 1,295 100.00 2,559 10000 1,265 10000 810000 534 10000

Inciudes amount deterrad (see Table 13)
A Pariormance conditions tested afler 30 June 2013 and 73 $% of the award is due to vest In October 2013 Market price of shares has been calculated based on an average market value
ovar 1hg thies months to 30 June 2043
1 Figures include salary and benefits recened up to and including 5 July 2012 being the date when Cliva Fenton resigned as a Dirsctor of the Company He continued 1o be employed
by the Company until 31 Decembar 2012 during which period he receved a base salary of £25 000 per monih and 2 benefits package worth £21 120 which compnsed the provision
of a motor vehicle and private medical insurance All of Clive s oulstanding shars awards and optiens lapsed immediately upon his reslgnatlon on & July 2012
+  Takaes into account the decreasa in accrued pension (net of Inflation) over the year undar the definec benefit section of the Giroup s pension scheme in accordance with the BIS Regulations

Annual honus

For the year under review, Executive Directors had the potental to eam an annual bonus of up to 150% of base salary, 140% of which s based on
the attanment of Group performance targets and 10% on personal objectives All targets, Group and personal, were agreed at the beginning of the
financial year The Group performance targets which apphed to the bonus for the 2012/13 financial year and the resulting outturn were as follows

Table 12 — Annual bonus (Auditad)

Proportion of total Actual Resulting Cash/deferred
bonus available performance bonus outturmn sharos
Payable Payable
In cash n shares
Bonus target % of salary Achlevemant % of salary % of salary % of salary
Profit before tax and Thresheid £145m 20%
exceptional tems Target £155m 50% £192 3m 100% 50% 50%
Maximum £175m 100%
Overall Indebtedness Threshold £950m 7%
Target £900m 175% £770 3m 35% 35% 0%
- Mapumum_£850m 35% _
Employee engagement  Minmum 54% 1%
Target 56% 25% 68% 5% 5% 0%
Maximum 58% 5%
Personai objectves Maximum 5%
personat objectives 10% 160% 10% 10% 0%
Maximum 5% at the
Commuttee’s discretion
Heathandsafety ~~ Mnmum83% ~  Nopemalty &% 0% 0% 0%
Customer service Minimum 5 Star status No penalty 5 Star status 0% 0% 0%
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Table 13 - Executive Directors’ deferred bonus

Mark Clare David Thomas Steven Boyes
Group Ghief Executive Group Finance Director Group Chigf Operating Otficer
Armount Amount Amount
% deferred deferred Number % deferred deferred Number % deferred deferred Number
b £000 of Shares” - £000 of Shares® - £000 of Shares”
201213 Deferred bonus 50 00 332 TBC* 5000 215 TBC* 50 00 215 TB8C*
2011/12 Deferred bonus 4875 313 184,123 4875 199 116,903 4875 190 111,746

The number of shares will ba detarmined based on the share price calculated by averaging the closing middie market quotallons as derfved from tha Daily Official List of the London

Slock Exchangs for the first five dealing days following 1he date on which the Group announces 18 anneal tesulls for the 2012/13 Bnancial year The actual number of shares awarded

in raspect of the 2012/13 delerred bonus was not tharelore available as at the dats of this report Thas information will therafore ba disclosed in next year s report
A Shares are held in the CIP for a perlod of ihree years commencing from the date of the award and subjec to a continued employment parformance condilion
The Executlve Directors earnad a total bonus of 150% and 148 75% for the 2012/13 and 2011/12 financial years respecively Accordingly any bonus earned in excess of 100%

of basa satary Is deferred into shares

Long-Term Performance Ptan
LTPP granted dunng the year (the '2012/13 LTPP’) {Audited)
On 24 October 2012, the following 2012/13 LTPP awards were granted to Executive Directors

% of
Number face value
Share price of shares that would
Basis of at date over which Face value vestat Vasting
Executive Type of award of grant award was of award threshold determined by
Drrector award granted [pence) granted {£000) performance perforrmance over
200% of salary
Mark Clare Nil cost option £664,000 160 90 825,357 £1,328 25%
200% of salary Three ?(2:'::';:
Dawid Thomas Nil cost option £430,000 160 90 534,493 £860 25% 10 June 2015
200% of salary
Steven Boyes Nil cost option £430,000 160 90 534,493 £860 25%

The 2012/13 LTPP 1s subject to two performance conditrons, TSR (50%) and EPS (50%) The levels of vesting against TSR, measured over
a three-year pericd commencing 1 July 2012, and against EPS for the financial year ending 30 June 2015, are as follows
+  the TSR element wifl vest in full if the TSR ranks In the upper quartie relative to the constituents of the FTSE 250 Index {excluding
Investment trusts) 25% wilt vest at madian performance and there will be no vesting for performance below median, and
+  the EPS element will vest in full if EPS for the 201415 financial year is 26 pence per share or higher This element will reduce to 50%
for an EPS of 22 pence per share and to 26% for EPS of 18 pence per share There will be no vesting if EPS 1s less than 18 pence per share
Vesung will be on a straight-line basis for EPS between 18 pence and 22 pence, and 22 pence and 26 pence per share

Outstanding LTPP awards

2011/12 LTPP award granted 20 QOctober 2011 was based on an allocation of ordinary shares equivalent in value to a maximum of 150% of base
salary 50% of the award Js subject to a three-year TSR performance condition and the other 50% Is based on the achievement of an EPS target
for the financial year ending 30 June 2014 There 1s no re-testing of performance conditions

The lavels of vesting against the TSR targets are as follows

Rank of Company's TSR against comparator group

Leve! of vesting of TSR element

Upper Quartile and above 100%
Megian —_— — —_ - — 25%
Below Median 0%

Between Upper Cuartile and Median_

—Straught-hne basis between 25% and 100%

The EPS targets and corresponding levels of vesting for the 2011/12 LTPP award are as follows

Level of vesting of EPS element

EPS target - Financlal year 2013/14

100% 30 pence per share or higher
25% 12 5 pence per share
0% Below 12 5 pence per share

Straight-line basis between 25% and 100%

Between 12 5 pence and 30 pence per share

In addition to the above performance targets, all LTPP awards are subject to an overnding Committee discretron, in that the Committee must
be satisfied that the underlying financial performance of the Group over the performance period warrants the level of vesting as determined
by apphying the above targets If the Commuittee I1s not of this view, It has the authonty to reduce the level of vesting as it deems approprate
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Following the Company's refinancing dunng the financial year, the Committee will be informing the participants of the 2011/12 and 2012/13 LTPPs
that it will adjust the vesting levels, at the end of each of the respective plan penods (30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015 respectively) to ensure that
participants do not benefit from the expected positive iImpact upon EPS ansing from the refinancing for the relevant parts of those plan periods

Vesting of 2010/11 LTPP

The 2010/11 LTPP award granted on 14 October 2010 was based on performance to the year ended 30 June 2013 and will vest on 14 October

2013 The performance condstron for this award and the resulting vesting level s as follows

Metric  Performance condition Thrashold target  Stretch target Actual Vesti:;
Adyusted basic
EPS  Absclute EPS growth for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 10p 25p EPS 14 6p 239%
TSR  TSRaganst the constituents of the FTSE 250 index (excluding investment
trusts) 12 5% of the total award veshing for median performance and 50% Median Upper quartie
of the total award vesting for upper quartie performance or above TSR ranking of 47 Rank of 18
measured over three financial years with a three month average of 93 5 (TSR of (TSR of
at the start and end of the performance penocd (TSR of 61 0%) 105 9%} 171 8%) 50%
Total vesting 739%
The award details for each of the Executive Directors are therefore as follows
Number of Number of Number of Dividends on Estimatad
shares at sharesto shares to shares to value?
Executive grant vest! lapse vest Total (E000)
Mark Clare 963,900 712,322 251,578 N/A 712,322 2,195
Dawvid Thomas 612,000 452,268 159,732 N/A 452,268 1,394
Steven Boyes 585,000 432,315 152,685 N/A 432,315 1,332
1 The relevant number of shares will be released to each participant as scon as Is practicable in October 2013 when the award actually vasts
2 The estimated vatue of the vested shares is basaed on the average share price dunng the 3 months to 30 June 2013 (£3 0812 per share)
Tabtle 14 - Long-Term Incentive Schemes (Audited)
Detalls of movements in the Directors’ interests in executive long-term incentive schemes are as follows
Date Market Market
At At from price on price at Gain
Date of 30/06/12 Granted Vested Lapsed 30/08/13 which award vesting recelvable
award No No No No No exercisable” pence pence £
Mark Clare
LTPP 14102010 963,900 - - - 963,900 1410213 100 00 - -
aee_ 20102001 1154786 0 - - ____ . 1154786 20102014 8347 - -
DBP 1210 2012 - 184,123 - - 184,123 12102015 17014 - =
LTPP 2410 2012 - 825,357 - — 825357 24102015 160 90 - -
Total 2,118,686 1,009,480 - - 3,128,166
David Thomas
LTPP 14102010 612,000 - - - 612,000 1410203 10000 - -
LTPP 2010 2011 733,198 - - - 733,198 2010 2014 8347 - -
DBP _ 1210202 - 116903 - - 16903 12102015 17014 - -
LTPP 2410 2012 ~ 534,493 - - 534,493 24102015 160 90 - -
Total 1,345,198 651,396 - - 1,996,594
Steven Boyes
UPP 14102010 _ 585000 ___ - ___ _ - _ ___ - _585000 14102013 10000 __ __ - __ _ -
LTPP 2010 2011 760,851 - - - 700,851 20102014 83 47 - -
DBP 1210 2012 - 111,746 - - 111,746 1210 2015 17014 - -
LTPP 2410 2012 ~ 534,493 - ~ 534,493 2410 2015 160 90 - -
Total 1,285,851 646,239 - - 1,932,090
Chve Fenton**
LTPP 14102010 585,000 - - 585,000 - 1410 2013 10000 - -
LTPP 2010 2011 700,851 - - 700,851 - 2010 2014 83 47 - -
Total 1,285,851 - - 1,285,851 -

*  The sarliast date oh which an awasd may vest, in normal crcumstances having fulfiled all qualifying condittons  after which ordinary shares are fransterred automatically as soon as possible

All ousistanding options and awards held by Clive Fenton lapsed on & Juty 2012 upon his resignation as a Direclor
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Executive Directors’ share option plans

Executive Share Option Plan

The award granted under the Executive Share Option Plan (the ‘ESOP') in 2003 at an exercise price of 357 37 pence per share vested in 2006,
however, there are a number of participants, including Steven Boyes, who are still to exercise the options granted {o them

Under the rules of the ESOP no further options can be granted under this plan Details of the option granted to Steven Boyes in 2003 remain
unchanged and are set out in Table 15

Executive Share Option Scheme

The Executive Share Option Scheme {the 'ESOS’) 1s diwded into two sub-schemes, one of which is approved under the Income Tax (Earnings
and Pensions} Act 2003 and the other of which is not The exercise price 1s calculated differently for each sub-scheme in accordance with the
rules of the ESOS

The last grant made under the ESOS was the 2009/10 ESOS, which was subject to TSR and annual EPS performance condiions The Commitiee
chose these targets as the most appropnate measure of financial performance for a housebullder at the time of the grant, as they are a fundamental
measure of the Group’s undertying performance and are directly hnked to the generation of returns to shareholders The TSR element of the 2009/10
ESOS was tested in December 2012 and, as the result was below median, none of the TSR element of the award vested

The EPS element of the award had three separate annual components with the Committee setting targets annually for the following financial year
Performance aganst each annual EPS target was tested at the end of each relevant financial year during the performance penod and each year's
EPS target determined the vesting level of one sixth of the total award It should be noted that the approach of using three one-year targets was
adopted due to the uncertain economic conditions prevaling in 2009 when options under the ESOS were first granted The Commuttee has since
reverted back to the policy of setling three-year targets

Subject to the Committee’s overnding discretion to take nto account, among other factors, performance relative to the sector and the underlying
financial performance of the business, including free cash flow, when deciding if the level of vesting was justfied, a cumulative total of 32 8% of
the award vested on 10 December 2012 (being three years from the date of grant} and the remaining 67 2% of the award was lapsed on the same
date Executwve Directors and Senor Management have until @ December 2019 to exarcise their option and any options not exercised within this
timescale will lapse

Table 15 - Directors’ share options (Audited)
Details of movements in the Directors’ interests in executive share options are as follows

Market
price
{pence) on Date
At At Exercise relevant from
Date of 30/06/12 Granted Exerclsed Lapsed 30/06/13 price date of which Latest
grant No No No No No pence exegrcise exercisable expiry

Mark Clare
ESOS _ _ __ 10122009 _1,087976 - ____ - _ 697520 340456 _ 12139 _ - 10122012 09122019
SR80S 28 03 2012 7,200 - - - 7,200 12500 — 01062015 30112015
Total 1,045,176 - - 697,520 347,656
David Thomas
ESOS 1012 2009 25,458 - - 17,108 8,350 117 84 - 1012 2012 0912 2019
ESOS 1012 2009 634,319 - - 426,263 208,056 121 39 - 10122012 0912 2019
SRSOS _ _ 28082010 7AW - - - 78W__ 1618 - 01062013 30112013
SRSCS 2703 2013 - 4,398 - - 4,398 204 60 — 0106 2016 3011 2016
Total 667,588 4,398 - 443,3M 228,615
Steven Boyes
ESOP~ 1010 2003 153,897 - - - 153,897 35737 - 10102006 06910 2013
ESOS 1012 2009 576,653 - - 387,511 188,142 121 39 - 1012 2012 0912 2019
SR3OS 28032012 7,200 - - - 7,200 12500 - 0106 2015 3011 2015
Total 737,750 - - 387,511 350,239
Clive Fenton™*
ESOS 1012 2009 576,653 - - 576,653 - 121 39 - 01122012 0912 2019
SRS0S 28 03 2012 7,200 - - 7,200 - 12500 - (M 06 2015 3011 2015
Total 583,853 - - 583,853 -

The performance condition set by the Committes for the ESOP award granted m 2003 that the growth in EPS of the Company over a period of thrae consecutive financial years should
axceed tha growth in the RPI by at least 8%, was met In 2006 but the option has not yet been exercised
* Al outstanding oplions and awards hald by Clive Fentan lapsed an & July 2012 upon his resignation as a Diractor
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Ditution

On matunty or vesting of any of sts share incentive schemes the Company seeks to satisfy the shares through a new 1ssue of shares, market
purchases, or the Employee Benefit Trust (the ‘EBT") As at 30 June 2013, the Company proposes to satisfy all outstanding Executive options and
awards under the LTPP, 2008/10 ESOS, the DBP, the SRSOS and the unexercised options under the Executive Share Option Plan (the "ESOP’)
through a new issue of shares, subject to the dilution hmits described below Only awards made to individuals below Sentor Management level will
be satsfied through shares currently held or to be purchased in the market by the EBT

The Company regularly monitors the nurmber of shares issued under its schemes and the impact on dilution imits The Company 1s satisfied that as
at 30 June 2013 +ts usage of shares 1s comphiant with the relevant dilution imits set by the ABI in respect of all share plans (10% of the Company's
1ssued share capital In any rolling ten-year penad) and discretionary share plans (5% of the Company's 1ssued share caprtal in any rolling ten-year
penod) In the event that the outstanding options under each of the schemes to be satisfied through a new 1ssue of shares were to vest and had
been exercised on 30 June 2013, the resulting 1ssue of new shares would represent 3 23% of the Company's issued share captal as at that date

Change of Control

The rules of each share scheme operated by the Company contain provisions relating to a change of control In the event that a change of control
does occur any unvested options/awards will become vested on the date of the relevant event However, the number of ophons/awards that vest
will be pro-rated depending on the number of weeks completed within the relevant performance penod and the level of performance conditions
achieved durng that period Options/awards which have already vested as at the date of the relevant event may still be exercrsed within
prescrioed timescales set out in the rules

Executive Directars’ pension arrangements

The Company's pension policy for Executive Directors is that they can choose to participate in the Company's defined contribution money
purchase pension plan ar receve a cash supplement that does not count for ncentive purposes Only the base salary element of a Director's
remuneration 1S pensionable

Defined benefit section

The defined benefit section of the Barratt Group Pension and Life Assurance Scheme {the ‘Scheme’) was closed to new entrants in 2001 and on
30 June 2009, the Company exercised its consent under the rules of the Scheme and agreed to cease offering future accrual of defined benefits
for current members Membaers of the Scheme became eligible to join the defined contnbution money purchase section of the Scheme with effect
from 1 July 2009

Up until 30 June 2008, Steven Boyes was a mernber of the defined benefit section of the Scheme This entitlement was based on a 1/60 accrual
rate and a normal retirement age of 65 The entitlement of Clive Fenton (who left the busingss on 5 July 2012) was restricted by the earnings cap
imposed under the Finance Act 1989 far service up to 5 April 2006 and thereafter was calculated by reference to his base salary Since 1 July
2009, Steven Boyes, {as did Chve Fenton up until hus resignation on § July 2012), has been entitled to receive a cash supplement equal to 30%
of his base salary per annum

Steven Boyes and Clive Fenton were members of the Scheme during the year ended 30 June 2013 Detals of their accrued benefits are as follows

Table 16 - Directors’ accrued pension benefits (Audited)

Transfer value of
the increase in

accrued pension
Increase in over the year to
accruad pension 30 June 2013 Increase n Transter value Transfer value
over the year to Total penston {net of Inflation)  accrued pension of accrued of accrued Change In
30 June 2013 accrued at the less Directors’  over the year to pension at pension at transfer value
(net of inflation) end of the year contributlons 30 June 2013 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 over the year
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
Steven Boyes {156} 307,228 (3.588) 7,633 6,182,661 6,252,591 {69,930)
Clve Fenton (22} 46,933 (457) 1,168 890,490 880,815 9,675

Notes

1 The total pension acerued at the end of the year Is the amount that each Director had accrued when the Scheme ceased to offer future accrual at 30 June 2003 plus revaluation
In accordance with the Scheme rules

2 The Inflation figure of 2 6% I1s based on the change in RPI from Septembaer 2011 1o September 2012 consistent with previous years

3 All transfer values have been caliculated on lhe basis of actuanal advice in accordance with the Occupational Pension Schemes ( Transter Value) (Amendgment) Regulations 2008
The transfer values of the accrued pension represent the value of assets that the pansion scheme would nesd to transfer to another pension provider on fransfernng the Scheme s
liabihty in respect of the Directors pension benefits Thay do not represent sums payable 1o indwidual Directors and, therefore cannot be added meaningfully to annual remuneration

4  Theincrease in the transter value Includes the effect of fluctuations in the transfer value dus to factors beyond the control of the Company and its Diractors such as market movemsnis
anc the Trustees decision to update the assumpilons used

5 Thefigures do not take account of any retained banefits the members may have
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The last full actuaral valuation of the Schame as at 30 November 2010 showed a deficit of £66 5m calculated on the basis of the Scheme’s
technical provisions The Company and the Trustees of the Scheme have agreed a plan to pay off the shortfall which requires the Company to
continue to make deficit reduction payments of £13 3m per annum untd 31 January 2017 The valuation for the financial statements was updated
to 30 June 2013 by a gualified independent actuary and a deficit of £13 4m (2012 £21 4m} s mcluded n the Group balance sheet as shownin
note 27 of the financial statements The Company will continue to pay the deficit reduction cantributions at a level not lower than the £13 3m per
annum agreed in December 2008 and will discuss the funding requirements of the Scheme with the Trustess If any materia change in the
Group's financial circumstances 1s anticipated

Members of the Scheme are also eligible for an insured lump sum of up to five imes pensionable salary on death in service Current employees
who were members of the defined benefit section of the Scheme at closure also retan ther dependants’ pension entitiements

No excess retirement benefits have been paid to or are recevable by current and/or past directors in respect of their qualifying services duning
the financial year and there are no arrangements in place that guarantee pensions with bmited or no abatement on severance or early retirement

Payments to Directors leaving the Group {Audited)

On 5 July 2012, Clive Fenton resigned as a Director of the Gompany and all relevant Group companies He remained an employee of the
Company untl 31 December 2012, during which time he received a reduced base satary of £25,000 per month and penefits imited to the
provision of a motor vehiclg, running expenses related to the vehicle and private medical nsurance He was also required to comply with
certain non-compete covenants dunng this penod of employment and a further six months thereafter

In addition, the Board presented Bob Davies with £2,000 worth of gift vouchers as a lgaving gift when he stepped down from his position
of Nen-Executive Director on 14 November 2012 As these vouchers are deemed to be a benefit, they are subject to tax, which the Company
settled on Bob's behalf

Payments for loss of office {(Audited)
No payments were made n respect of toss of office during the year ended 30 June 2013

Total Shareholder Return performance graph

Chart 2, prepared in accordance with the BIS Regulations, shows the TSR performance over the last five years aganst the FTSE 250 (excluding
ivestment trusts) and against an index of hsted housebuiders The Board has chosen these comparatve indices as the Group and its major
compettors are consttuents of one or both of these ndices The TSR has been calculated using a farr methed In accordance with the BIS Regulations

Chart 2 Total Shareholder Return performance graph

Total shareholder return Source Datasiraam

This graph shows the value as at 30 June 2013 of £100 invested in Barratt Developmants PLC on 30 June 2008 compared with the value of £100 invested i the FTSE 250 (axcluding
investmant trusts) As a supplementary source of information wa also shaw parformance against anindex of currently ksled houssbudders {excluding Basratt Developments PLC and
Crost Nicholson who re isted in February 2013) The other points plotted ara tha values at intervening financial year ends
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Five year Group Chief Executive’s pay
Table 17 sets out {I) the total pay, calculated in lIine with the single figure methodology, (1) the annual bonus pay out as a percentage of maximum,
and (i) the LT1 vesting level for Mark Clare, Group Chief Executive over a five year penod

Table 17 - Five year Group Chief Executive’s Pay (Audited)

Five years to 30 June 2013

2013 2012 2120102009
Group Chief Executive's total pay (£000) £4,003 £2,099 £1,220 1,417 £847
Bonus outturn {as percentage of maximum opportuntty) 100% 99 2% 36 6% 90 2% 00%
LT vesting percentage 73 9% 328% 00% 00% 00%

Percentage change in remuneration of Group Chief Executive

The table below shows the percentage change in the Group Chief Executive’s total remuneration (excluding the value of any LTPP and pension
benefits recenvable n the year} between the financial years ended 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2013, compared to that of the total wage bill for all
employees of the Group

Table 18 - Percentage change in remuneration
Total remuneration

2013 2012 % change
Group ChefExecutve(0000) _ _ . \g99 1,637 38%
All empioyees {excluding Group Chief Executive) (Emy) 2196 2045 74%

Relative importance of spend on pay
The following table shows the Company's actual spend on pay (for all employees) relative to dmidends and prefit from operations

Table 19 - Relative importance of spend on pay

2013 2012 % change
Swffcosts @€y _ L Ee20 2350 96%
Profit from operations 2489 1911 308%
Dvidends {Em) 244 - N/A

*  Dividend is calculated on the number of shares in tssue (excluding those held by tha Barratt Developmaents PLC Employee Benefit Trusi) as at 30 June 2013 at a rata of 2 & psnce per shate
The final dividend Il approved by shareholdars at tha 2013 AGM, will be paid on 20 Navember 2013 to those sharehoiders on the register ai the close of business on 25 October 2013

£8m of the staff costs figure relates to staff costs for the Executive Directors This 1s different to the aggregate of the single figurs of remuneration
for the year under review due to the way in which the share based awards are acceunted for and the inclusion of Employer's National
Insurance Contributrons
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Directors’ interests in shares

The interests of the Directors serving during the financial year and therr connected persons in the ordinary share capital of the Company at
the beginning and end of the year are shown below No notification has been received of any change in the interests below during the pertod
30 June 2013 to 10 September 2013 inclusive, with the excephion of the shares to be deferred in respect of the bonus earned In excess of
100% of base salary by Executive Directors for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 as described on page 72 of this Remuneration Report

Table 20 - Directors' interests in shares (Audited)

Outstanding share

awards undar
Beneficially Beneficially all employee share Shareholding
owned as at owned as at plans as at as a % of
1 July 2012 30 June 2013 30 June 2013 salary
Mark Clare 1,241,601 1,241,601 3,475,822 579
David Thomas 292,781 312,781 2,225,209 225
Steven Boyes 394,246 394,246 2,282,329 284
Clive Fenton® 307,446 - - N/A
Bob Lawson 517,023 517,023 - N/A
Richard Akers 10,000 10,000 - N/A
Bob Daviesn 37,000 37,000 - N/A
Tessa Bamiord 31,500 31,500 - N/A
Nina Bibby* - - - N/A
Rod MacEachrane 27,600 27,600 - N/A
Mark Rolfe 69,000 69,000 - N/A

Figwes are gs at date of resignation as a deactor on 5 July 2012 On the same data all oulstanding optlons and awards held by Clive Fenton wsre lapsed
A Fligures as ai 14 Novernber 2012 being the date on which Bob Davies stepped down drom his position as Non Exacutive Director of the Compary
1 Nina Bibby joined the Board on 3 December 2012 From the date of joining Nina was prohibited from dealing in Barratt sharas until the end of the close pericd on 11 September 2013

Executive Directors’ sharehotding guidelines

Executive Directors are reguired to hold shares in the Company equivalent in value to 100% of base salary and must retain all of the net of tax
value of any vested LTPP shares untit the guidelne s met At 30 June 2013, all of the Executive Directors had met the shareholding requirement
{see Table 20)

Statement of shareholding vote at AGM
At the 2012 AGM, a resolution was proposed to shareholders to approve the Remuneration Report for the year ended 30 June 2012 for which the
following votes were receved

Number of votes Percentage
Votes cast in favour 559,917,636 97 93%
Votes cast aganst 11,819,527 207%
Total votes cast 571,737,163 100%
Abstentions 11,603,375

This Remuneration Report was approved by the Board on 10 September 2013 and signed on its behalf by

Richard Akers M“ i ——

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
10 September 2013

78 BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2013




OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

Activities of the Group

The Company 1s the holding company of the Group The Group's
principal activities comprise acquinng and developing land, planning,
designing and constructing residential property developments and
seling the homes it bullds These core activities are supported by the
Group's commercial development, urban regeneration, procurement,
design and strategic land capabilities

Results and dvidends
The profit from continuing activities for the year ended 30 June 2013
was £75 Om {2012 £67 4m)

No internim dividend was paid durng the financial year (2012 nil)

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dmdend of 2 5 pence
per share on 20 November 2013 in respect of the financial year ended
30 June 2013 to shareholders on the register at the close of business
on 25 Qctober 2013 (2012 ni)

Enhanced Business Review

The Chairman's Statement, Group Chief Executive's Review, Business
Review and Group Finance Director's Review on pages 6 to 39
together comprise the Group's Enhanced Business Review

Annual General Meeting

The 2013 AGM will be held at The Brish Medical Association, BMA House,

Tavistock Square, London WC1H SJP on Wednesday 13 Novernber 2013
at 230 pm The Notice convening the 2013 AGM 1s set oust In a separate
letter to shareholders

Directors and their interests

Each of the Directors listed on pages 40 and 41 held office throughout
the financial year and as at 30 June 2013, apart from Nina Bibby who
jeined the Board as a Non-Executive Director on 3 December 2012
Cive Fenton resigned as a Director with immediate effect on 5 July
2012 and Bob Davies stepped down from his position as a Non-
Exacutive Director of the Company on 14 November 2012 As
announced on 11 September 2013 Rod MacEachrane will step down
from his position as a Non-Executive Director of the Company at the
2013 AGM

The beneficial interests of the Directors and connected persons In
the ordinary share capital of the Company together with the interests
of the Executive Directors in share options and awards of shares as
at 30 June 2013 and as at the date of this report are disclosed in the
Remuneration Report on page 78

At no tme dunng or at the end of the year did any Director have a matenat
interest In a contract of significance in relation to the business of the Group

Appointment and replacement of Directors

In accordance with the Articles there shall be no less than two and no
more than 15 Directors apponted to the Board at any one tme  Directors
may be appointed by the Company by ordinary resolution or by the Board
The Board may from time to tme appoint one or more Directors to hold
employment or executive office for such penod (subject to the Act) and on
such terms as they may determing and may revoke or terminate any such
appointment Directors are not subject to a maxamum age mit

In addition to the power under the Act for shareholders to remove any
Director by ordinary resolution upon the giving of special notrce, under
the Articles the Company rmay by special resolution remove any Director
before the expiration of his/her term of office The office of Director shall
be vacated f () he/she resigns or offers o resign and the Board resolves
to accept such offer, (1) his/her resignation Is requested by all of the other
Directors and all of the other Dwrectors are not less than three in number,
{n) he/she is ot has been suffering from mental or physical il health, (v)
he/she 15 absent without permission of the Board from meetings of the
Board for six consecutive months and the Board resolves that his/her
office s vacated, (v} he/she becomes bankrupt or compounds with hus/
her creditors generally, (vi) he/she is prohibited by law from being a
Director, {vii) hefshe ceases to be a Director by virtue of the Act, or {vi)
hesshe 1s removed from office pursuant to the Articies

Detarts relating to the retirement and re-election of Directors at each
AGM can be found on page 49 of the Corporate Governance Report

Powers of the Directors

Subyect to the Articles, the Act and any direchons given by special resolution,
the business of the Company 15 uttimately managed ty the Board who may
exercise all the powers of the Company, whether relating to the management
of the business of the Company or otherwise In particular, the Board may
exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow money and to mortgage
or charge any of ts undertakings, property, assets and uncalled capdal and
to 1ssue debentures and other secunties and to give secunty for any debt,
habiity or obligation of the Company to any third party

Quahfying third party indemnity provisions

As at the date of this Annual Report and Accounts, there are qualfying
third party indemnity provisions govemed by the Act in place under
which the Company has agreed to indemntfy the Directors, former
Directors and the Company Secretary of the Comparny, together with
those who have held or hold these postions as officers of other Group
companies or of associate or affilated compames and members of the
Executive Committee, to the extent permitted by taw and the Articles,
aganst all habifity ansing m respect of any act or omission n the course
of performing therr duties In addition the Company maintains directors’
and officers’ liability insurance for each Director of the Group and ts
associated companies

No Director of the Company or of any assoctated company shall
be accountable to the Company or the members for any benefit
provided pursuant to the Articles and receipt of any such benefit
shall not disqualfy any person from being or becoming a Director
of the Company

Related party transactions

The Board and certain members of senior management are refaied
parties within the defintion of 1AS 24 (Rewvised) ‘Related Party Disclosures’
('IAS 24" and the Board are related parties within the definition of Chapter
11 of the UK Listing Rutes (‘Chapter 11') There 1s no difference between
transactions with key personnel of the Company ard transactions with key
personnel of the Group

Dunng the year, the Company entered into the following transaction which,
for the purposes of 1AS 24 1s considered to be a 'related party transaction”’
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In April 2013, the son of Mark Clare, Group Chigf Executive, reserved
and exchanged on an apartment from Alie Street LLP, a joint venture
partnership between BOW Trading Limited {the Company's main
trading substdiary) and London and Quadrant Housing Trust, at a
purchase price of £744,246 As at 30 June 2013, £669,821 remains
outstanding on this transaction, which will become due on legal
completion Alie Street LLP 1s not controlled by the Company and

1s not a 'subsidiary undertaking' of the Company

This purchase was conducted at a farr and reasonable market price
based on similar comparable transactions at that time

Cn notification by Mark Clare of the above transaction, the Board sought
advice from tts lega) advisers and corporate brokers in respect of the
apphication of Chapter 11 and section 190 of the Act (Substantial
Property Transactions) {‘Section 190) to the transaction The adwice
received concluded that Chapter 11 and Section 190 did not extend to
LLPs and therefore the provisions of Chapter 11 and Section 190 did not
apply to this transaction Consequently, no shareholder approval was
required for this transaction

Property, plant and equipment

The Dwectors are of the opinion that the value of land and buldings
included within the Group's property, plant and equipment 1$ 1n excess
of book value but that the difference 1s not matenal in relation to the
affairs of the Group

Disclosure of information to auditor

So far as each of the Directors ts aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information (that 1s, information needed by the Company's auditor in
connection with prepanng its report) of which the Company's auditor
15 not aware

Each of the Directors has taken all reasonable steps that he/she ought
to have taken in accordance with his/her duty as a Director to make
him/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the Company's auditor 1s aware of that information This confirmation

1S given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions

of section 418(2) of the Act

Charrtable and political contnbutions
During the year the Group made chantable donatons of £40,411 (2012
£30,205) The total amounts given for each chartable purpose were

Purpose £
The advancementof educaton _ 5153
The advancement of religion 250
The advancement of health and saving lives 14,618
The advancerment of community development 6,399
The advancement of amateur sport 2,448
The relief of those in need because of youth, age,

il-health, disability, financial hardship or other

disadvantage L 6,350
Prevention or relief of poverty 5,053
The promotion of efficiency of the armed forces 100
Any other purposes 39

No poliical contributions were made duning the year (2012 £nil)
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Offices

The Group had 25 offices (excluding those offices undertaking an
administratwve function only) located throughout Great Britain at the
end of the financial year No branches are located outside of the United
Kingdom A full ist of the Group's offices and therr locations can be
obtamed from the Group General Counsel and Company Secretary

at the registered office of the Company or from the Company’s website
www barrattdevelopmants co uk

Capital structure

The Company has a single class of share capital which s divided into
ordmary shares of 10 pence each All 1ssued shares are in registered
form and are fully pad Details of the Company’s 1ssued share capital
and of the movemsents in the share capital dunng the year can be
found in note 28 to the financial statements on page 134

Subject to the Articles, the Act and other shareholders’ nghts,

shares are at the disposal of the Board At each AGM the Board
seeks authonsation from its shareholders to allot shares At the AGM
held on 14 Novermber 2012, the Directors wers given authonty to allot
shares up to a nominal value of £32,565,981 (representing one-third
of the nommnal value of the Company's 1ssued share capital as at 4
Cctober 2012), such authorty to remain valid until the end of the 2013
AGM or, If earlier, until the close of bustness on 13 February 2014

A resolution to renew this authorty will be propesed at the 2013 AGM

Rights and obligations attaching to shares

Subject to any nights attached to existing shares, shares may be 1ssued
with such nights and restnctions as the Company may by ordinary
resolution decide, or (f there 1s no such resolution or so far as it does
not make specific provision) as the Board may decide

Subject to the Act, the Articles specify that nghts attached to any
existing class of shares may be vaned either with the written consent of
the holders of not less than three-fourths in nominal value of the 1issued
shares of that class {excluding any shares of that ¢lass held as treasury
shares), or with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate
general meeting of the holders of those shares The nghts conferred
upon the holders of any shares shall not, unless otherwise expressly
provided in the nghts attaching to those shares, be deemed to be vaned
by the creation or issug of further shares ranking pan passu with them

Voting

Subject to any special terms as to voting upon which any shares may
be 1ssued or may at the relevant tme be held, every member present in
person or by proxy at a general meeting or ¢lass meeting has one vote
upon a show of hands or, upon a poll vote, one vote for every share of
which such member is a holder In the case of joint holders of a share,
the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by
proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of votes of the other joint
holders and senionty shall be determined by the order in which the
names stand in the register in respect of the joint holding

in accordance with the Act, each member 1s entitled to appont one or
more proxies, and in the case of corporations, more than one corporate
representative to exercise all or any of therr nghts to attend, speak and
vote on ther behalf at a general meeting or class meeting The timescales
for appointing proxies are set out in the Notice of the 2013 AGM




No member shall be entitled to vote at any generat meeting or class
meeting in respect of any shares held by them if any call or other sum
then payable by them in respect of that share remains unpaid or if they
have been served with a restnction notice (as defined in the Articles)
after falure to provide the Gompany with information concerning
interasts in those shares required to tbe provided under the Act

Transfer of shares

Shares 1n the Company may be in uncertificated or certficated form
Title to uncertificated shares may be transferred by means of a refevant
system and certificated shares may be transferred by an instrument of
transfer as approved by the Board The transferor of a share 1s deemed
to remain the holder untill the transferee’s name 15 entered into the
Company's register of members

There are no restnchions on the transfer of shares except as follows
The Board may, in its absolute discretion and without giving any
reason, deciing to register any transfer of any share which 1 not a fully
paid share Registration of a transfer of an uncertificated share may
be refused in the circumstances set out In the uncertificated secunties
rules (as defined in the Articles) and where, in the case of a iransfer
to joint holders, the number of joint holders to whom the uncertificated
share 1s to be transferred exceeds four The Board may decline to
register a transfer of a certificated share unless the instrument of
transfer (1) 1s duly stamped or certfied or otherwise shown to the
satisfaction of the Board to be exempt from stamp duty and 1s
accompanted by the relevant share certificate and such other evidence
of the night to transfer as the Board may reasonably require, (i} 1 in
respect of only one class of share, and (u) if joint transferees, 15 1n
favour of not more than four such transferees, or (iv) where the transfer
IS requested by a person with a 0 25% interest (as defined in the
Artictes) if such a person has been served with a restriction notice
after faitlure to provide the Comgpany with information concerning
interests in those shares required to be provided under the Act,
unless the transier 1s shown to the Board to be pursuant to an arm'’s
length sale {as defined In the Articles)

Shareholder authonty for purchase of own shares

At the Company's AGM held on 14 November 2012, shareholders

gave authority to the Company to buy back up to an aggregate of
97,697,940 ordinary shares {representing 10% of the Company’s 1ssued
share capital) This authonty is valid until the end of the 2013 AGM or,

if earlier, until the close of business on 13 February 2014 Under the
authority there 1s a mimimum and maximum price to be paid for such
shares Any shares which are bought back may be held as treasury
shares or, If not 50 held, will be cancelled iImmediately upon completion
of the purchase, thereby reducing the Company's 1ssued share capital

No purchases had been made under this authority as at the date
of this Annual Report ang Accounts A resolution renewing the
authonity will be proposed at the 2013 AGM

Dividends and distributions

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Company may by ordinary
resolution from time to time declare dwdends for payment to the
holders of the ordinary shares of 10 pence each, of an amount which
does not exceed the amount recommended by the Board The Board
may pay intenm dividends, and also any fixed rate dividend, whenever
the financial position of the Company, in the opinion of the Board,

ustifies ther payment If the Board acts in good faith, it s not lable

to hotders of shares with preferred or pan passu nghts for losses
ansing from the payment of intenim or fixed dividends on other shares
The Board may withhold payment of all or any part of any dvidends or
other monies payable in respect of the Company's shares from a person
with a 0 25% mnterest If such person has been served with a restriction
notice after failure to provide the Company with information concerning
interests in those shares required to be provided under the Act

Major sharehotders

In accordance with the UKLA's Disclosure and Transparency Rules
{the ‘DTRs'") all notfications received by the Company are published
on the Company's website www barrattdevelopments co uk and via
a Reguiatory Information Service

As at 30 June 2013 the persons set out in Table 21 have notfied the
Company, pursuant to DTR & 1, of thetr interests in the voting nghts
in the Company's 1ssued share capital

Table 21 — Notifiable interests

% of total 9% of total
issued share issued share

Number of capital when capital as at Nature of
Name voting nghts* notified** 30 06 2013*** holding
FMRLLC 34,579,199 824 353 _ Indirect
Blackrock, Inc 48,892,917 501 500 Indirect
JP Morgan
Chase & Co 17,286,656 498 177 Indirect
Standard bLife Direct &
Investments Ltd 47,711,714 494 487 Indirect
Ruffer LLP 46,887,233 480 479  Dwect
Polans Capital
Management
UC 34,606,679 359 353 Indirect

Represants tha number of voling nghis last notified to the Company by the respectve
shareholder in accordance with DTR 51 Cartain of such notfications pre date the
Company s Placing and Rights Issue in 2008 and may not reflact the relevant
shareholder's hotding tollowang the aqully issue where the revised holding has
not tnggered a further notdication requiremant
Based on the Tetal Voting Rights as at the relevant notfication dates

**  Based on the Total Voting Rights as al 30 June 2013 {as announced on 1 July 2013) and
accordngly may nol accurately raflect the position in respect of those shareholders
whose nolifications preceded the Placing and Rights Issue as relerred to above

Between 1 July 2013 and 10 September 2013 no changes in respect
of interests in the voting nghts in the Company’s 1ssued share capital
have been notified to the Company

The Total Voting Rrghts of the Company as at the date of this
Annual Report and Accounts, as announced on 2 September 2013,
are 979,881,605

Shareholder arrangements to waive dividends

The Barratt Developments Employee Benefit Trust (the 'EBT) holds
ordinary shares in the Company for the purpose of satisfying options
and awards that have been granted under the varous employee share
schemes operated by the Company Details of the shares so held are
set out In note 28 to the financial statements

The EBT has agreed o wawve all or any future nght to dividend payments
on shares held within the EBT and these shares do not count in the
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calculation of the weighted average number of shares used to calculate
£PS until such ime as they are vested to the relevant employee

The Trustees of the EBT may vote or abstain from voting on shares
held in the EBT n any way they think fit and in doing so may take mto
account both financial and non-financial interests of the beneficianes
of the EBT or therr dependants

Risk management objectives

The principal operational nisks of the business are detaled on pages
36 to 39 The Group’s financial assets, financial liabilities and denvative
financial mstruments are detailed in notes 23, 24 and 25 to the financial
statements Details of the Group’s hquidity, market price, credit and
cash flow risks are set out in note 26 to the financial statements

Research & development and hikely future developments

An indication of likely future developments in the Group including i the
field of research and development Is given In the Business Review on
pages 18 tc 29

Creditor payments

The Group s responsible for agreeing the detall of terms and condrtions
relating to transactions with its suppliers it 1s Group policy 1o ensure that
suppliers are made aware of the terms of payment and to abide by the agreed
terms of payment with suppliers where the goods and services have been
suppled N accordance with the relevant terms and conditions of contract
Implementation of this policy resulted in a supplier payment pencd by the
Groug of 13 days {2012 29 days) for its trade creditors as at 30 June 2013

Employee share schemes
Detalls of employee share schemes are set out in note 29 to the
financial statements

Significant agreements

The following significant agreements contain prowisions entithng the

counterparties to exercise termnation or other nghts 1n the event of

a change of control of the Company

¢ The revoiving credit faciity agreement dated 14 May 2013 made
between, amongst others, the Company, Lioyds TSB Bank Ple
(as the facility agent) and the banks and financial institutions named
therein as lenders (the ‘Revotlving Credit Facility Agreement’)
contains a prepaymeant provision at the election of each lender
cn change of control The Company must notify the faciity agent
promptly upen becorming aware of the change of control After the
occurrence of a change of control, the faciity agent shali {if a lender
so requests within 20 days of being notfied of the change of control)
by notice te the Company, on the date falling 30 days after the
change of control, cancel the commuitment of such lender under
the Revolving Cradit Facility Agreement and deciare all amounts
outstanding 1n respect of such lender under the Revolving Credit
Facility Agreement immediately due and payable The Revolving
Credit Faciity Agreement also contains a provision such that,
followng a change of control, a tender 15 not obliged to fund any
further drawdown of the faciity For these purposes, a ‘change
of control’ occurs If any person or group of persons ‘acting in
concert’ (as defined in the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers)
gans control (as defined in the Corporation Tax Act 2010} of
the Company
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* Each of the note purchase agreements entered into in respect of
the Group's privately placed notes {being the US$80m of notes
issued pursuant to the following note purchase agreements (i) a note
purchase agreement i respect of the issue of US$15m notes dated
10 May 2011 (@as amended and restated on 14 May 2013), and (1) a
note purchase agresment in respect of the issue of US$65m notes
also dated 10 May 2011 (as amended and restated on 14 May 2013))
contain a change of control prepayment provision  Each such control
provision provides that promptly after the Company becomes aware
that a change of control has occurred, the Company shall notify all
the holders of the notes of the same and give the noteholders
the option to require the Company to prepay at par all outstanding
amounts {(pnncipal and interest) under the notes If a noteholder
accepts such offer of prepayment, such prepayment shall take place
on a date that 1s not more than 90 business days after the Company
notified the noteholders of the change of contred For these purposes
a ‘change of control’ means the acquisitton by a persoen or a group
of persons ‘acting i concert’ (as defined in the City Code on
Takeovers and Mergers) such that they gain beneficial ownership
of more than 50 per cent of the Issued share caprtal of the Company

+ The £100m term faciity agreement between, amongst others, the
Company and Prudential/M&G UK Comparies Financing Fund LP
dated 10 May 2011 (as amended and restated on 14 May 2013)
also contains a prepayment provision on a ¢change of control at
the election of each lender, such prepayment provision 1s the same
as that described for the Revelving Credit Facility Agreement

* Each of the debt facility agreements (based on a pro forma agreement
agreed in October 2012) between the Company {as guarantor), BDW
Trading Limited (‘BDW’) (@s borrower and developer) and the Homes
and Communities Agency ('HCA) (as lender), whereby the HCA has
made up to £33m (in aggregate} of project financing avalable
to fund up to 20 development sites, contains a provision requinng
BDW to obtain the consent of the HCA on a change in control of the
Company, BDW or any of ther holding companies (if relevant) The
HCA 1s entitlect to withhold its consent to such a change in control
if the new controlter does not have sufficient reputation, financial
standing or orgarvsational standing and capacity A falure to (i) obtan
the HCA's consent to a change i control, and (i} prowide the HCA
with notice of the change in control within a specified tme penod,
15 an event of defautt under each of these agreements On such an
event of default the HCA may, by notice In writing to BOW, terminate
each debt faciity agreement and require BOW to prepay the project
financing For these purposes a ‘change in control’ means the
acquisition by a person or a group of persons acting tegether such
that they gain beneficial ownership of more than 50 per cent of the
issued share capital of the relevant company, have the nght to appoint
the majority of the directors of the relevant company or otherwise
contrel the votes at board meetings of the relevant company

The ncte purchase agreements also mpose upon the holders customary
restrictions on resale or transfer of the notes, such as the transfer being
subject to a de minimis amount

On behalf of the Board

,4{ — < e o
Tom Keevil

GROUP GENERAL COUNSEL AND COMPANY SECRETARY
10 September 2013



STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

Financial statements and accounting records

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and
Accounts including the Directors” Remuneration Report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year The Directors are required by the International
Accounting Standards Regulation (the ‘|IAS Regulation’) to prepare
the Group financial statements under international Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union ('IFRS’) and have

also elected to prepare the Parent Company financial statements in
accordance with IFRS The financial statements are also required by
law to be properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation Under the Disclosure and
Trangparency Rules, the Directors must not approve the accounts
unless they are sansfied that they give a true and farr view of the state
of affars of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company

for that period

Intematonal Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements
present tairly for each financial year the Company's financial postion,
financial performance and cash flows This requires the farthful
representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions
in accordance with the definitions and recognition cntena for assets,
liabilties, ncome and expenses set out in the International Accounting
Standards Board's 'Framework for the preparation and presentation

of financial statements’ In virtually all circumstances, a far presentation

will be achieved by complance with aft applicable IFRS Drrectors are

also required to

« properly select and apply accounting pohcies,

« present information, including accounting policies,

i a manner that provides relgvant, reliable, comparable
and understandable nformation,

« provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements in IFRS are insufficient to enable users to understand
the impact of particular iransactions, other events and condritions
on the entity's financial position and financial performance, and

* make an assessment of the Company's abiity to continue as
a going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explan the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial postion of the Company and enable thern to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and cther irregularities

The Directors are respensible for the maintenance and integrity of
the corporate and financial Information included on the Company’s
website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other junsdictions

Directors’ responsibility statement

The Directors confirm that, to the best of each person's knowledge

a) the Group and Parent Company financial statements i this Annual
Report and Accounts, which have been prepared in accordance
with IFRS, Standing Interpretation Committee interpretations
as adopted and endorsed by the Eurcpean Union, International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee interpretations and
those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicabie to companies
reperting under IFRS, give a true and fair view of the assets,
habilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company
and of the Group taken as a whole, and

b) the managemeant report contained in this Annual Report and
Accounts ingludes a farr review of the devetopment and performance
of the business and the position of the Company and the Group
taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties they face

The Directors of the Company and ther functions are listed on

pages 40 and 41
r " )
&—"(.D l-J/ L“' A S

By order of the Board

David Thomas
GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR
10 September 2013 10 September 2013

The Report of the Directors from pages 2 to 83 inclusive was approved
by the Board on_10 September 2013 and 1s signed on s behalf by

To e S LT A

Tom Keevil .
GROUP GENERAL COUNSEL AND COMPANY SECRETARY
10 September 2013
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ACCOUNTS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

OF BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC

We have audited the financial statements of Barratt Developments PLC
for the year ended 30 June 2013, which comprise the Consciidated
Income Statement, the Group and Parent Company Statemants of
Comprehensive iIncome, the Group and Parent Company Statements
of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, the Group and Parent Gompany
Balance Sheets, the Group and Parent Company Cash Flow
Statements, the Accounting Policies, the Impact of Standards and
Interpretations in 1ssue but not yet Effective, Cntical Accounting
Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty and the
related notes 1 to 36 The financial reporting framewaork that has been
applied m ther preparaton i1s applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (FRSs) as adopted by the European Union and,
as regards the parent company financial statements, as appled in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body,

In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them
in an audstor’s report and for no cther purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibiity to anyone
other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, '
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES
OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

As explaned more fully I the Statement of Directors' responsibiiies, the
Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility s

0 audit and express an opinion on the financial staterments in accordance
with appiicable law and Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and
Iretand) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaning evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free from matenal misstaterent, whather
caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether
the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's and the Parent
Company’s cireumstances and have been consistently apphed and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the Directors, and the overall presentation of the
financial statements In addimon, we read all the financial and
non-financial information m the annual report to identdy matenal
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become
aware of any apparent maienal misstatements or inconsistencies

we consider the implications for our report

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In our epinon

s the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group’s and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 30 June 2013
and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended,

» the Group financial statements have been properly prepared
In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,

» the Parent Company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with iFRSs as acdopted by the Eurcpean
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Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the -
Companies Act 2008, and

* the financial statements have been prepared in accerdance with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regutation

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED
BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion

s the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and

« the information given in the Report of the Diractors’ for the financial
year for which the financial statements are prepared s consistent
with the financial statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED
TG REPORT BY EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Comparies Act 2006 we are required to report to you I,
IN our opINION

Lt adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent

Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved
fror branches not visited by us, or

* the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns, or

+ certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are
not made or

* we have not receved all the information and explanations we
require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

+ the Directors' statement, contained within the Report
of the Directors, in relation to going congern,

» the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to
the Company’s compliance with the nine prowvistons of the UK
Corporate Governance Code specified for our review, and

* certan elements of the report to shareholders by the Board

Mark Goodey (Semior statftory auditor)

for ancon behalf of Delotte LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS AND STATUTORY AUDITOR
Lendon, United Kingdom

10 September 2013 .




CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 30 June 2013

2013 2m3 2013 2012 2012 2012
Before Exceptionaf Beforg Exceptonat
axceptional tems exceptional items
nems {note 3} tems fnote 3}
Noles £m £m £m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 1,2 2,606 2 - 26062 23234 - 23234
Cost of sales (2,247 Q) - (22470) (20272 - (2.0272)
Gross profit 3592 - 358 2 2062 - 2962
Admimistrative expenses {106 5) {2 8) {109 3) {105 1) - {105 1)
Profit from operations 4 2527 {28 2499 1911 - 1911
Finance income 5 128 - 128 169 - 169
Finance costs 5 (80 8} (79 3) (160 1) 977) - ©Q77)
Net finance costs 5 (68 0) (79 3) {147 3) (80 8) - (80 8)
Share of post-tax profit from: jout ventures 14 77 (54) 23 05 - 05
Share of post-tax loss from associates 4 {01} - (01} ©1) - {01
Loss on re-measurement of joint venture nterest
on acquistion of control - - - - {10 7) {107}
Profit/{loss) before tax 1923 (87 5) 104 8 1107 (107 1000
Tax 7 (50 5) 207 {29 8) (32 6 - (32 8)
Profit/{loss) for the year 1418 (66 8) 750 781 {07 674
Profit/(loss) for the year attnbutable
to equity shareholders 1418 {66 8) 750 781 {107} 674
Earnings per share from continuing operations
Basic 10 77p 70p
Diluted 10 75p 69p

The notes on pages 91 to 144 form an integral part of these financial statements
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 30 June 2013
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
(restated”) frestated)
Notes £m £m £m £m
Profit/{loss) for the year 750 874 9507 (365
QOther comprehensive (expense)/income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension scheme 27 (4 8) {241} (4 B) (24 1)
Fair value acjustment on availlable for sale financial assets ___ 18 62) _ By - =
Tax credit relating to tems not reclassified 717 23 64 09 58
Total tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 87) (211) 39 {18 3)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Amounts deferred in respect of effective cash flow hedges 5, 30 {19) (211) {19) 211)
Amounts reciassified to the income statement in respect of hedged cash flows 5,30 67 51 67 51
Amounts reclassified to the Income statement in respect of hedged cash flows no longer
expected to occur —excephional 3.5 185 - 185 -
Tax (chargel/credit relating to items that may be reclassified 7, 17 (58) 32 (58) 32
Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 175 (128 175 (128)
Total comprehensive iIncome/{expense) recognised for the year attnbutable
to equity shareholders 838 335 964 3 (676)
*  The presentalion of tha statement of comprehensive Income has been amended as required by the Amandment to lAS 1 Financial Statement Fresentation which has been adopted
w the year

The notes on pages 91 to 144 form an integral part of these financial statements
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Group 30 June 2013
Share- Total
Share Share Merger Hedging Own based  Retained retained
capital premlum reserve reserve shares  payments earnings earnings Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 July 2011 96 5 206 6 11090 (24 6) (50) 150 15326 1,542 6 2,8301
Profit for the year - - = - - - B74 674 674
Amounts deferred in respect
of effective cash flow hedges - -~ - 211) - - - - 211
Amounts reclassified to the income
statement in respect of hedged
cash flows - - - 51 - - - - 51
Farr value adjustments on available
for sale financial assets - - - — - — 34 (34) (34)
Actuarial losses on penston scheme - - = — - (24 1) (24 1) (24 1)
Tax on tems taken directly to equity - - - 32 - - 64 64 96
Total comprehensive (expense)/
mcome recognised for the
year ended 30 June 2012 - - - (12 8} — - 46 3 463 335
Issue of shares 11 51 - - - - - - 62
Share-based payrments - — - - - 33 - 33 33
Transfer of share-based payments
charge for non-vested options — - - - - (3 6) 36 - -
Tax on share-based payments - — = - - 04 i1 o7 07
At 30 June 2012 976 2117 1,109 0 (37 4) B0 143 15836 15929 2,9738
Profit for the year - - - - - - 750 750 750
Amounts deferred in respect
of effective cash flow hedges — - - (19) - — - - (19)
Armounts reclassified to the ncome
statement in respect of hedged
cash flows - - - 67 - - - - 67
Amounts reclassified to the ncome
statement in respect of hedged
cash flows no longer expected
toocour-exceptional T e T by 185 = - U (-1
Fair value adjustments on avaiable
for sale financial assets - - - - - - 62 62) 62
Actuanal losses on pension scheme - - - - - - (4 8) @g {48
Tax on tems taken directly to equity - - - (5 8) - - 23 23 (3 5)
Total comprehensive income
recognised for the
year ended 30 June 2013 - - - 175 - - 663 66 3 838
Issue of shares 04 17 - - - - - - 21
Share-based payments - - - - - 44 - 44 44
Disposal of own shares - - - - 14 - - 14 14
Transfer of share-based payments
charge for exercised and non-vested
options - - - - - (3 8) 38 - -
Tax on share-based payments - - - - - 68 09 77 77
At 30 June 2013 980 2134 1,109 0 {19 9) (3 6) 217 1,654 6 16727 3,073 2

The notes on pages §1 to 144 form an integral part of these financsal statements
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Company 30 June 2013
Share- Total
Share Share Merger Hedging Own based  Retained retained
capltal premium reserve reserve shares  payments earnings earnings Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 July 2011 965 2066 11090 {24 6) 50 113 1,536 6 15429 2,8304
Loss for the year - - - - - - (36 5) (36 5) {36 5)
Amounts deferred in respect
of effective cash flow hedges - - - @11) - - - - 211)
Amounts reclassified to the ncome
statement in respect of hedged
cash flows - - - 51 ~ - - — 51
Actuanal losses on pension scheme - - - - - - (241) (24 1) 241
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - — 32 — - 58 58 Q0
Total comprehensive expense
recognised for the year ended
30 June 2012 . s - - - {12 8) - - (54 8) (54 8} {676)
Issue of shares 11 51 - - - = — - 62
Share-based payments - — - - — 33 - 33 33
Transfer of share-based payments
charge for non-vested options — - - — ~ {07) {3 6) 43 (43
At 30 June 2012 976 2117 1,090 (374) (59 139 14782 1,4871 2,8680
Profit for the year - - - - - - 9507 9507 950 7
Amounts deferred in respect
of effective cash flow hedges - - - (19 - - - - {19

Amounts reclassified to the income

statement in respect of hedged

cash flows - - - 67 - - - - 67
Amounts reclassified to the income

statement in respect of hedged
cash flows no longer expected

to occur — exceptional - - - 185 - - - - 185
Actuanal losses on pension scheme - - - - - - 4 8) 4 8) 48
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - (58) - - 0o 09 (49

Total comprehensive iIncome
recognised for the year ended .

30 June 2013 - - - 175 - - 946 8 946 8 964 3
Issue of shares 04 17 - - - - - - 21
Share-based payments - - - - - 44 - 44 44
Disposal of own shares - - - - 14 - - 14 14

Transfer of share-based payments
charge for exercised and non-vested

options - - - - - (38 - (38 368
Tax on share-based payments - - - — - 19 - 19 19
At 30 June 2013 980 2134 11090 (199 (3 6) 164 2,4250 2,4378  3,8383

The notes on pages 21 to 144 form an integral part of these financial statements
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BALANCE SHEETS

At 30 June 2013
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Notes £m £m £m £m
Assets
Non-currentassets  _ _ _ __ _ _ _ _
Other intangible assets 12 1000 1000 - -
Goodwalt 11 792 2 7922 - -
Property, plant and equipment 13 34 64 09 12
Investments 15 - - 31104 26140
Investments acgcounted for using the equity method 14 123 5 856 258 -
Avallable for sale financial assets 16 128 4 1892 - -
Trade and other recevables 19 44 41 - -
Deferred tax assets 17 921 1186 466 491
Denvative financial Instruments — swaps 25 41 294 a1 294
1,2481 1,3255 31878 2,6937
Current assets
Inventories 18 3,2098 32266 - -
Availlable for sale financial assets 16 13 - - -
Trade and other recevables 19 748 503 9719 £580
Cash and cash equivalents 22 294 4 150 3 274 0 701
Derwative financial nstruments —swaps e 25 256 - 256 -
Current tax assets 04 04 08 -
3,606 3 34276 1,272 3 6281
Total assets 4,854 4 47531 4,4601 3,3218
Liabiltes
Non-current labtlities
Loans and borrowings 24 {166 6) (3312 (136 8) (3312)
Trade and other payables 20 (3781) (359 4) - -
Retirement benefit obligations 27 (13 4) (21 4) (134) @214
Dervative financial nstruments — swaps 25 {271} (63 3) {271) 533
(585 2) {765 3) (177 3) 405 9)
Current habiiities _ o i
Loans and borrowings 24 (1818 (127 (2285 (132
Trade and other payables 2 (0138  (1,0019 (2176) 347
Dernvative financial nstruments ~ swaps 25 (0 4) - (0 4) -
{1,196 0) {1,0140) {444 5) (47 9)
Total habihties (1,781 (1,7793) {621 8} {453 8)
Net assets 3,073 2 2,973 8 3,838 3 28680
Equity o
Sharecaptal 28 980 976 980 976
Sharepremwmn 2134 2117 2134 2117
Merger reserve 1,1090 11000 1,1090 11080
Hedging reserve (199 [374) {19 9) 374
Retained eamings 1,6727 16929  2,4378 1,4871
Total equity 3,0732 29738 3,8383 28680

The financial statements of Barratt Developments PLC (registered number 604574) were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised

for 1issue on 10 September 2013 Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

[’ as
Mark Clare David Thomas
GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR

The notes on pages 91 to 144 form an ntegral part of these financial statements
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

Year ended 30 June 2013
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Notes £m £m £m £m
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from operating activities 31 1658 1497 (330 2) 14286
Cash flows from investing actvittes
Purchase of property, plant and equipment _ 13 20 {2 4) {0 4) {10
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 40 - - -
Acquisitron of subsidianes net of cash acquired 33 - 16 - -
Increase i Investments in subsidianes 15 - - (500 0) -
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking - 80 - -
Increasa m nvestments accounted for using the equity method 14 29 79 (25 8) -
Investment in property fund 16 (13 - - -
Interest recenved 07 02 352 373
Dividends receved from subsicianes - - 1,024 5 -
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from mvesting activities (8 5) {0 5) 5335 363
Cash flows from financing activities
Disposal of own shares 14 - 14 -
Proceeds from issue of share capital _ 21 62 21 62
Hedging terminabon costs {0 3) 04 {0 3) ©4
Interest rate swap cancellaion costs (18 5) - (18 5) -
Other fees refated to amendment of financing arrangements (147) - (14 7} -
Loan drawdowns/Arepayments) 16 8 {774) 306 (717)
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from financing activities (132 {71 6) 06 {165 9)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1441 776 2039 130
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginming of the year 1503 727 701 571
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 22 294 4 1503 2740 701

The notes on pages 91 to 144 form an integral part of these financial statements
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Year ended 30 June 2013

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financral Reporting Standards ('IFRS'} as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board {IASB'), International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee {IFRIC’) interpretations and
Standing Interpretations Committee ('SIC") mterpretations as adopted and endorsed by the European Union ('EU’) and with those parts of the
Compantes Act 2006 applicable to comparves reporting under IFRS and therefore the Group financial statements comply with Article 4 of the EU
international Accounting Standards Regulation The financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention as modified by
the revaiuation of avallable for sale financial assets, derivative financial nstruments and share-based payments A summary of the more sigruficant
Group accounting policies 1s set out below

The preparation of financial statements 1n conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and llabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period Although these estimates are based on the Directors’ best knowledge of the amounts,
actual results may ulbmately differ from those estimates The most significant estimates made by the Directors in these financial statements
are set out in 'Critcal Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertanty’

Going concern
In determining the appropriate basis of preparation of the financial statements, the Directors are required to consider whether the Group can
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future

The Group’s business activities, together with factors which the Directors consider are likely to affect its future development, financial performance
and financial position are set out in the Group Chief Executive’s Review on pages 8 to 13, the Group Finance Director's Review on pages 30 10 33
and the Business Review on pages 18 to 29 The matenal financial and operational nsks and uncertamties that may have an mpact upen the
Group’s performance and their mitigation are outined on pages 34 to 39 and financtal nsks including hguidity nsk, market nisk, credit nsk and
capital nsk are outined in note 26 to the financial statements

The financial performance of the Group 1s dependent upon the wider economic environment in which the Group operates As axplaned in
the Managing Risk section on pages 34 1o 39, factors that particularly affect the performance of the Group include changes in the
macroeconomic environment including buyer confidence, avalabity of mortgage finance for the Group’s customers and interest rates

On 14 May 2013, the Group agreed a comprehensive refinancing package This provides the Group with around £850m of commutted faciities
and private placement notes to June 2016 and £650m to May 2018 The committed facilities and private placement nates now in place provide
appropriate headroom above our current forecast requirements In addition, in order 1o enable it to take advantage of current opportunities in the
land market, the Group has agreed terms upon an additional £50m two year term loan, which we expect to be available from 1 October 2013

in addition to the new borrowing facilities agreed in May 2013, the Group has secured £30m of financing from the Government’s ‘Get Britain
Bulding’ and ‘Growing Places Fund’ schemes duning the year These funds are repayable between 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2018

Accordingly, after making enquiries and having considered forecasts and appropriate sensitivities, the Directors have formed a judgement,

at the time of approving the financial statements, that there 1$ a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue m
operational existence for the foreseeable future, being at least twelve months from the date of these firancial statements For this reason, they
continue 1o adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the consoldated financial statements

Adoption of new and revised standards

In the year ended 30 June 2013, the Group has adopted

* Amendment to IAS 12 ‘Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assets’, and
+ Amendment to IAS 1 ‘Financial Statements Presentation’

The adoption of the amendments to IAS 1 has resulted in changes to the presentation of the statement of comprehensive ncome The adoption
of both amendments has not had any impact upon the profit or net assets of the Group in either the current year or comparative year and has not
required any addrional disclosures

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements include the results of Barratt Developments PLC (the ‘Company’), iIncorporated in the UK, and all its subsidiary
undertakmgs made up to 30 June The financial statements of subsidiary undertakings are consolidated from the date when control passes
to the Group using the purchase method of accounting and up to the date control ceases All transactions with subsidianes and intercompany
profits or losses are eiminated on consolidation
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Business combinations

All of the subsidianes’ identifiable assets and habiliies, including contingent labilities, existing at the date of acquisition are recorded at ther fair
valugs All changes to those assets and liabilities and the resulting gains and losses that anse after the Group has gained controt of the subsichary
are included n the post-acquisition iIncome statement

Jointly controlled entities
A jointly controlled entity 1s an entity In which the Group holds an interest with one or more other parties where a contractual arrangement has
established joint control over the entity Jointly controlled entities are accounted for using the equity method of accounting

Jointly controlled operations

The Group enters into jointly controlled operations as part of its housebuilding and property development activities The Group’s share of profits
and losses from its investments in such jointly controlled operations 1 accounted for on a direct basis and 1s included in the consclidated income
statement The Group's share of its nvestments, assets and habimes 1s accounted for on a directly proportional basis in the Group balance sheet

Associated entities
An associated entity 15 an entity, including an unncorporated entity such as a partnership, In which the Group holds a significant influence and
that 1s neither a subsidiary nor an interest In a joint venture Associated entibies are accounted for using the equity method of accounting

Revenue

Revenue 1s recognised at legal completion in respect of the total proceeds of bulkding and development An appropnate proportion of revenue
from construction contracts 1s recognised by reference to the stage of completron of contract actvity Revenue 1s measured at the far value
of consideration recewved or recevable and represents the amounts receivable for the property, net of discounts and VAT The sale proceeds
of part-exchange properties are not included in revenue

Interest Income 1s accrued on a tme basss, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable

Constructron contracts

Revenue 1s only recognised on a construction contract where the outcome can be estimated reliably Vanations to, and clams arising In respect
of, construction contracts, are included in revenue to the extent that they have been agreed with the customer Revenue and costs are recognsed
by reference to the stage of completion of contract activity at the balance sheet date This 1s normally measured by surveys of work performed to
date Gontracts are only treated as construction contracts when they have been specifically negotated for the construction of a development or
property When 1t 1s probable that the total costs on a construction contract will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss 1s recognised

as an expense in the mcome statement iImmediately

Amounts recoverable on construction contracts are included in trade recevables and stated at cost ptus atiributable profit less any foreseeable
losses Payments received on account for construction contracts are deducted from amounts recoverable on construction contracts

Payments receved in excess of amounts recoverable on censtruction contracts are included in trade payables

Exceptional items

lterms that are materia in size or unusual or infrequent In nature are presented as exceptional tems in the Income statement The Directors
are of the epirion that the separate presentation of exceptional tems provides helpful information about the Group's underlying business
performance Examples of events that, mter aha, may give rse to the classification of items as exceptional are the restructurning of existing
and newly-acquired businesses, refinancing costs, gamns or losses on the disposal of businesses or ndividual assets, pension scheme
curtaiments and asset imparrments, including land, work in progress, goodwill and investments

Restructuring costs
Restructuring costs are recognised in the income staterment when the Group has a detaled plan that has been communicated to the affected
parties A hability 1s accrued for unpaid restructuring costs

Profit from operations
Profit from operations mcludes ali of the revenue and costs derved from the Group’s operating businesses Profit from operations excludes finance
costs, finance Income, the Group’s share of profits or losses from joint ventures and asscciates, tax and gains/losses; on disposal of Investments

Segmental reporting

The Group consists of two separate segments for internal reporting regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker to allocate resources
to the segments and to assess ther performance, beng housebulding and commercial devefopments These segments therefore comprise

the pnimary reporting segments within the financial statemants All of the Greup's operations are within Britain, which 1$ one geographic market

in the context of managing the Group's activities
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Goodwill
Goodwill ansing on consolidation represents the excess of the farr value of the consideration over the farr vafue of the separately identifiable
net assets and labithies acquired

Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings and businesses 1s capitalised as an asset and reviewed for impairment at least annualty

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combinaton at acquisiion Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment at least annually If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 1s less than the carrying amount of the unit, the mparment loss 1s alfocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit Any impairment loss 1s recognised immediately In the income statement and 1s not subsequently reversed

Intangible assets

Brands

Internally generated brands are not caprtalised The Group has capitalised as ntangible assets brands that have been acquired Acquired
brand values are calcutated using discounted cash flows Where a brand is considered to have a finite Wfe, it 1s amortised over ts useful ife on
a straight-ine basis Where a brand 1s capitalised with an indefinite Iife, it 1s not amortised The factors that contrbute 1o the durability of brands
capitalised are that there are no material legal, regulatory, contractual, competitive, economic or other factors that imit the useful Iife of these
ntangible assets

The Group carnes out an annual impairment review of indefinite Iife brands as part of the review of the carrying value of goodwill, by performing
a value-in-use calculation, using a discount facter based upon the Group's pre-tax weighted average cost of capital

Investments
Interests in subsiciary undertakings are accounted for at cost less any provision for impairment

Where share-based payments are granted to the smployees of subsidiary undertakings by the Company, they are treated as a capital
contribution to the subsidiary and the Company's investment in the subsichary 1s increased accordingly

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s carnied at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses Depreciation 1s provided
o write-off the cost of the assets on a straight-line basis to ther residual value over therr estimated useful ives Residual values and asset ives
are reviewed annually

Freehold properties are depreciated on a straight-ine basis over 25 years Freehold land 1s not depreciated Plant 1s depreciated on a straight-ine
basis over 1ts expected useful ife, which ranges from one to seven years

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost comprises direct matenails, direct labour costs and those overheads
that have been incurred In bringing the iInventones to thewr present location and condition

Land held for development, including lang in the course of development, 1s imtially recorded at discounted cost Where, through deferred
purchase credtt terms, the carrying value differs from the amount that will ulimately be paid in setting the liabiity, this difference (s charged
as a finance cost m the ncome statement over the period of settiement

Due to the scale of the Group's developments, the Group has to allocate site-wide development costs between units built In the current year
and in future years It also has 1o estimate costs to complete on such developments In making these assessments, there s a degree of nherent
uncertainty The Group has developed internal controls to agsess and review carrying values and the appropriateness of estimates made

Leases as lessee
Cperating lease rentals are charged to the income statement in equal instalments over the ife of the lease

Leases as fessor

The Group enters nto leasing arrangements with third parties foliowing the completion of constructed developments until the date of the salg of
the development to third parties Rental ncome from these operating leases 15 recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease Initial direct costs Incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating fease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised in the mcome statement on a straight-tine basis over the lease term
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Share-based payments

The Group 1ssues both equity-settled and cash-settied share-based payments to certan employees |n accordance with the transitional
prowisions, IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payments' has been applied 1o all grants of equity mstruments after 7 November 2002 that had not vested
at 1 January 2005

Equity-settied share-based payments are measured at the fair value of the equity instrument at the date of grant Fair value 1s measured either
using Black-Scholes, Present-Economic Value or Monte Carlo models depending on the charactenstics of the scheme The far value 1s expensed
In the Income statement on a straight-ine basis over the vesting penod, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that wilk eventually vest where
non-market vasting condiions apply

Non-vesting conditions are taken into account in the estimate of the far value of the equity instruments

Cash-settled share-based payments are measured at the farr value of the lliability at the date of grant and are re-measured both at the end of each
reporting period and at the date of settlement with any changes in farr value being recognised in the Income statement for the penod Far value
1 measured nitally and at the end of each reporting penod using a Black-Scholes model and at the date of settlement as cash paid

Tax
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable 15 based on the taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs irom net profit as reported in the iIncome statement
because it excludes items of ncome or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes tems that are never taxable
or deductible The Group's iability for current tax s caleulated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date Deferred tax 1s recogrised in respect of all temporary differences that have onginated but not been reversed at the balance sheet
date where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a night to pay less tax in the future have occurred
at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the rates that are expected o apply in the penod when the liability s settled or the asset Is realised, based on tax
rates enacted or substantvely enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax i1s charged or credited in the Income statement, except when
it relates to tems charged or crecited directly to equity. In which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with in equity

A net deferred tax asset s regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basts of all avalable ewdence, it can be regarded
as more likely than not that there will be surtable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying tming differences can be
deducted Deferred tax assets and Labilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set-off current tax assets against current tax
habilihies and when they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority and the Group intends 1o settle its current tax assets and habilities on
anet basis

Pensions

Defined contribution

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes for certain employees The Group's contributions to the schemes are charged
in the iIncome statement tn the year in which the contributions fall due

Defined benefit

For the defined benefit scheme, the cost of providing benefits s determined using the Projected tmit Credit Method, with actuanal valuations
being carned out at each balance sheet date Actuanal gains and losses are recognised in full n the period in which they occur They are
recognised outside profit or loss and presented in the statement of comprehensive income

Past service cost, until the scheme ceased to offer future accrual of defined benefit pensions to employees from 30 June 2009, was recognised
immediately to the extent that the benefits were already vested, and otherwise was amortised on a straight-ine basis over the average penod
until the benefits become vested

The retirement benefit obligation recognised i the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit cbligation as adjusted for
unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of the scheme assets Any asset resulting from this calcutation 1s imited to
past service cost, plus the present value of avallable refunds and reductions in future contnbutions to the scheme

Borrowing costs

The Group capitalises borrowing costs directly attibutable to the acguisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset as part of the cost
of the asset where developments are considered to fall under the requirements of IAS 23 (Revised} Otherwise, the Group expenses berrowing
costs in the period to which they relate through the income statement
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Financial instruments

Fmancial assets and financial kabilities are recognised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becemes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual nghts to the cash flows from the asset expire or it transfers the financial
asset and substantially ali the nsks and rewards of ownership of the asset to ancther entity

The Group derecognises a financial lability only when the Group’s obhigations are discharged, cancelled or they expire

Financial assets
Non-dervative financial assets are classified as either ‘available for sale financial assets’ or 'loans and receivables’ The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and 1s determined at the time of initial recognition

Available for sale financial assets

Non-current available for sale financial assets

Non-interest bearing loans granted as part of sales transactions that are secured by way of a second legal charge on the respective property
are classified as being avallable for sale and are stated at farr value Farr value s determined in the manner described in note 16

Revenue from transactions involving avarlable for sale financiak assets 1s recognsed at the farr value of consideration recevable

Gains and losses ansing from changes in farr value are recognised in equity within other comprehensive income Gamns and losses ansing from
impairment losses, changes in future cash flows and interest calculated using the ‘effective interest rate’ method are recognised directly in the
Income statement

Current availlable for sale financial assets

The Group entered Into a seed tvestment agreement with Hearthstone Investments, a specialist property fund manager The Group sold
showhomes in exchange for units In the new property fund The Group does not intend to hold this investment in the long-term and it has
therefore been designated as a current avallable for sale financial asset

Revenue from transactions involving avaitable for sale financal assets i1s recognised at the fair value of consideration recevable The farr value
of consideration received 1s the initial fair value of the units received in the property fund

Gains and losses ansing from changes in farr value are recognised in eguity within other comprehensive income The far value of this investment
1s calcuiated using the unadjusted quoted price of units in the property fund obtaned from independent brokers

Gans and losses ansing from impairment losses and changes in future cash flows are recognised directly in the income statement

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other recevables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted i an active market They are included
In current assets, except for those with matunties greater than twelve months after the balance sheet date, which are classified as non-current
assets and are measured at amortised cost less an allowance for any uncollectable amounts The net of these balances are classified as ‘irade
and other recervables’ in the balance sheet

Trade and other receivables are classified as ‘loans and recevables’
Imparrment of financial assets
Trade and other receivables are assessed for ndicators of imparrment at each balance sheet date and are impared where there 1s objective

evidence that the recovery of the recevable 18 10 doubt

Obyective evidence of imparment ¢ould include significant financial difficulty of the customer, default on payment terms or the customer
going into lquidation

The carrying amount of trade and other recewables s reduced through the use of an allowance account When a trade or other receivable 1s
considered uncollectable, it 1s written off against the allowance account Subsequent recovenies of amounts previously written off are credited
aganst the allowance account Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the income statement

For financial assets classified as avalable for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the value of the property underpinning the value of the
loan orincreased nsk of default are considered to be objective evidence of mpairment
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in respect of debt instruments classified as avalable for sale financial assets, increases i the farr value of assets previously subject to impairment,

which can be objectively related to an event occurnng after recognition of the imparrment loss, are recogrised ¢ the income statement 10 the
extent that they reverse the mparrment loss

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents inciude cash n hand and balances in bank accounts with no notice or less than three monthsg' notice from mception
and are subject to an insignificant nsk of changes in value

Cash and cash equivalents are classified as ‘'loans and receivables’

Financial habilities and equity
Financial liabilites and equity are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into

Equity instruments
Equity mstruments consist of the Company's ordinary share capital and are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs

Financial habilities
All non-denivative financial labiities are classified as ‘other financial liabilities’ and are mitially measured at farr value, net of transaction costs
Other financial labiities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the ‘effective interest rate’ method

Other financial labilities consist of bank borrowings and trade and other payables

Financial tabilities are classified as current liabilties uniess the Group has an unconditional nght to defer settlement of the hlability for at least
twelve months after the balance sheet date

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables on normal terms are not interest beanng and are stated at amortised cost

Trade and other payables on extended terms, particularly in respect of land, are recorded at therr fair value at the date of acguisihion of the asset
to which they relate by discounting at prevailing market interest rates at the date of recognition The discount to nominal value, which will be paid
In setthng the deferred purchase terms liability, 1s amertised cver the pened of the credit term and charged to finance costs using the ‘effective
interest rate’ method

Bank borrowings
Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds receved, net of direct 1ssue costs

Where bank agreements include a legal nght of offset for In hand and overdraft balances, and the Group ntends to settle the net outstanding
position, the offset arrangements are applied to record the net position in the balance sheet

Finance income and charges are accounted for using the ‘effective interest rate” method in the :ncome statement

Finance costs are recogrised as an expense In the Income statement in the penod to which they relate

Get Britain Building

The Group has receved cash upon specific sites under the Government’s ‘Get Britain Bulding” scheme which 1s repayable in future penods,
as the sites to which 1t refates are developed These loans are interest beanng and are recorded at the proceeds receved plus accrued interest
These loans are included within feans and borrowings

Finance costs are recognised as an expense In the income statement in the period to which they relate

Growing Places Fund

The Group has received cash under a local government ‘Growing Places Fund’ scheme which 1s repayable over four years in eight six monthly
instalments This loan is interest bearing and recorded at the proceeds receved plus accrued interest less repayments to date This loan 1s

included within loans and borrowings

Finance costs are recognised as an expense n the income statement in the period to which they relate
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Denvative financial mstruments

The Group has entered into denvative financial instruments in the form of interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps to manage the interest
rate and foreign exchange rate nsk ansing from the Group’s operations and sources of finance The use of financial dervatives 1s governed by
the Group's pohcies approved by the Board of Directors as detaled in notes 25 and 26 to the financial statements

Dervatives are initally recogrised at far value at the date a denvative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their far value
at each balance sheet date The resulting gain or loss Is recognised in the profit or loss immediately unless the dernvative 1s designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recogniiien in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship

The interest rate and cross currency swap arrangements are designated as hedging instruments, being either hedges of a change in future cash
flows as a result of Interest rate movements or hedges of a change m future cash flows as a result of foresgn currency exchange rate movements

The farr value of hedging derivatives 1s classified as a non-current asset or a non-current liabilty if the remaining maturty of the hedging
relatonship 1s more than twelve months and as a current asset or a current liability if the remaining matunty of the hedge relationship 1s less
than twelve months

Hedge accounting

All of the Group's interest rate and cross currency swaps are designated as cash flow hedges At the inception of the hedge relationship, the
Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with its nsk management objectives and its
strategy for undertaking various hedged transactions In addition, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents
whether the hedgeng instrument 1s highly effective in offsetting the changes in cash flows of the hedged tems

Details of the far values of the interest rate and cross currency swaps are provided in notes 23, 24, 25 and 26 to the financial statements
Movements on the hedging reserve in equity are detaled in the statements of changes in shareholders” equity

Cash flow hedge

To the extent that the Group's cash flow hedges are effective, gamns and losses on the farr value of the tnterest rate and cross currency swap
arrangements are deferred in equity in the hedging reserve until realised On realisation, such gains and losses are recogrused within finance
charges In the ncome statement

To the extent that any hedge 1s ineffective, gains and losses on the farr value of these swap arrangements are recognised immediately in finance
charges in the ncome statement

Amounts deferred in equity are recycled i profit or loss in the pertods when the hedged item 1s recogrnised in profit or loss

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging nstrument expires, 1s sold or tarminated or
no ionger qualifies for hedge accounting At that tme, any cumulative gan or loss deferred in equity remains in equity and 1s recognised when
the forecast transaction 1s ultimatety recogrused in profit or loss When a forecast transaction 1s ne longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was deferred In equity 1s recognised immediately in profit or loss

Govemment grants
Government grants are not recogrused until there 15 reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grants will be receved

Government grants are recognised In the iIncome statement so as to match with the refated costs they are intended to compensate for Grants
refated to assets are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset Grants related to income are included in the appropriate line withen the
income statement

Kickstart

The Group has been granted assistance for the development of a number of sites under the Homes and Commuruties Agency (HCA) ‘Kickstart’
scheme Where receipts under the Kickstart scheme relate to grants, they are accounted for in accordance with the policy for Government grants
stated above

In addition, the Group has receved cash upon specific sites under the Kickstart equity scheme which 1s repayable in future penods, as the sites
to which 1t relates are developed, along with the share of the profits or losses attnbutable to the HCA ansing from the sites This hability is included
within borrowings and 1s intially recogmsed at fair value by discounting it at prevailing market interest rates at the date of recognition The
discount to nominal value, which will be paid In settling the liability, 15 amortised over the expected life of the site and charged to finance costs
using the ‘effective interest rate’ method Gains and losses ansing from changes in fair value of the lability related to the HCA's share of the profits
or losses of the site are recognised directly in the iIncome statement
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IMPACT OF STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

At the date of approval of these financia!l statements, there were a number of standards, amendments and interpretations that have been
publshed and are therefore mandatory for the Group's accounting penods beginning on or after 1 July 2013 and fater periods IFRS 10
‘Consolidated Financal Statements’, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements’, IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities’, IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value
Measurement’, IAS 27 {Revised), IAS 28 {Revised), Amendment to IFRS 7, Amendment to IAS 1, Amendment to IAS 18 ‘Employes Benefits',
Amendment to IAS 32, Annual Improvements 2008-2011 Cycle and iFRIC 20 *Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine’ have
been adopted by the EU IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ as issued m 2009 and subsequently amended in 2010 has not yet been endorsed

by the EUJ The Group has not early adopted any standard, amendment or interpretation

The standards, amendments and mterpretations that are expecied to have an impact upon the Group are

IFRS 8 *Financial Instruments’ 15 likely to apply to the Group from 1 July 2015 The standard was reissued in October 2010 as the second step
In the IASB project to replace 1AS 39 ‘Financial Instruments Secognition and Measurement’ IFRS 9 {2010) now mcludes new requirements
for classifying and measuring financial assets and financial habilties and the derecognition of financial nstruments  The IASB 1s continuing the
process of expanding IFRS 9 to add new requirements for impairment and hedge accounting The Group 1s currently assessing the impact

of the standard on the Group's results and financial position and will continue to assess the impact as the standard 1s revised by the IASB
IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement' will apply to the Group from 1 July 2013 The new standard was issued in May 2011 and defines far value,
sets out n a single IFRS a framework for measunng fair value and requires disclosures about far value measurements The Group 1s currently
assessing the impact of the standard on the Group’s results and financial position

IAS 19 (Revised) 'Employee Benefits” will apply to the Group from 1 July 2013 It principally revises existing accounting treatment for pensions
and other post-employment benefits and termunation benefits If this amendment had been adopted in the current year this would have
resulted in an additional interest charge to the Group of £0 3m

The adoption of the following standards, amendments and interpretations 1s not expected to have any matenal impact on the financial statements
of the Group

98

Amendment to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instrument Disclosures’ This amends the disclosure requirements in respect of financial instruments that are
set off In accordance with gutdance in 1AS 32 *Financial Instruments  Presentation’ The amendment applies to the Group from 1 January 2013
and 1s not expected o have an impact upon the Group

Amendment to IAS 32 'Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabdities’ witl apply to the Group from 1 July 2014 This amendment provides
guidance on the application of offsetting in financial statements This 1s not expected to have an impact on the Group

Amendment to 1AS 1 'Government Loans’ will apply to the Group from 1 January 2013 This amends IFRS 1 ‘First-ime Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards' to address how a first-time adepter would account for a Government loan with a below-market
rate of Interest when transitioning to IFRSs Tiis amendment 1s not expected to impact the Group

The Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle includes amendments to a number of different accounting standards These amendments will
apply from 1 January 2013 None of these amendments are expected to impact the Group

IFRIC 20 'Stnpping Costs in the Production Phase of a Ming’ will apply to the Group from 1 January 2013 This will not have an impact on the Group
IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ will apply to the Group from 1 July 2014 The new standard was 1ssued in May 2011 to establish
principles for the presentation and preparation of consoiidated financial statements when an entity conirols one or more other entites This will
not have an impact on the Group

IFRS 11 ‘Joint Arrangements’ will apply to the Group from 1 July 2014 The new standard was 1ssued in May 2011 and requires that a party

to a joint arrangement determings the type of joint arrangement n which it 1s involved by assessing its nights and obligations and accounts

for those nights and obhgations i accordance with that type of joint arrangement  This will not have an impact on the Group

IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interast in Other Entities” will apply 1o the Group from 1 July 2014 The new standard was issued in May 2011 and
requires the disclosure of information that enables users of financial statements to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, its
interests in other entities and the effects of those interests on its financial position, financial performance and cash flows This will not have

an impact on the Group

IAS 27 {Revised) 'Separate Financial Statements’ will apply to the Group from 1 July 2014 None of these amendments are expected to mpact
the Group

IAS 28 {Revised) ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' will apply to the Group from 1 July 2014 None of these amendments are
expected to impact the Group
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In accordance with the requirements of IFRS, the Group has detaited below the cntical accounting judgements made and the key sources
of estimation uncertainty within these financial statements

Critical accounting judgements
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are descrbed in the accounting policies note, the Directors have made no indvidual
Judgements that have a significant impact upon the financial statements, apart from those iInvolving estimations, which are dealt with below

Key sources of eshmation uncertainty
The key assumptions concermning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet dates, are discussed below

Cammying value of land and work in progress

The Group's principal activity 1s houseburlding and commercial development The majonty of the development activity 15 not contracted pror to
the development commencing Accordingly, the Group has in its balance sheet at 30 June 2013 current assets that are not covered by a forward
sale The Group’s internal controls are designed to identify any developments where the balance shest value of land and work in progress s more
than the lower of cost or net realisable value

Following the downturn in the market in 2007/08, the Group has conducted ongoing six-monthty reviews of the net realisable value of its land and
work tn progress Where the estimated net realisable value of the site was less than its current carrying value within the balance sheet, the Group
has imparred the land and work in progress value The provisions remaining are set out in the table below

Commerctal
Housebulliding  developments Total

Land impairment remanng £m £m £m
At 1 July 2011 1757 181 194 8
Charge n the year 66 - 66
Utihsed (701} {08) (70 6)
At 30 June 2012 122 186 1308
Charge in the year e X - 05 87
Utihsed (39 9) (11 6) {51 5)
At 30 June 2013 755 75 830

During the year, due to performance variations upen individual housebuilding sites, there were gross imparirment charges of £34 8m (2012

£44 8m) and gross imparrment reversals of £22 5m (2012 £31 5m} resulting in a net nventory mpawrment of £12 3m (2012 £13 3m) mcluded
wathin profit from operations of which £3 2m (2012 £6 6m) relates to sites which have previously been impared There was also a gross
mpawrment charge of £0 6m (2012 £3 3m) and a gross imparrment reversal of £0 1m (2012 £3 3m) for the commercial developments business,
resulting n a net nventory impairment of €0 5m (2012 €nil), due to performance vanations upon indvidual commercal sites

The key judgements in these reviews were estimating the realisable value of a site which 1s deterrmned by forecast sales rates, expected sales
prices and estimated costs to complete Sales prices were estmated on a site-by-site basis based upon local market conditons and took into
account the current prices being achieved upon each site for each product type In addtion, the estmation of future sales prices included an
allowance on a site-by-site basis for low single-digit sales pnce inflation in future periods The estimation of costs to complete also included an
allowance for low single-digit build costs nflation in future penods

At 30 June 2013, the Group had a total land holding of £2,327 0m, of which £2,003 9m 1s land held for current housing development Of this £189 6m
1s made up of Impaired land, £473 5m consists of non-impaired land purchased prior to mid-2002 where the gross margin 1s on average ¢ 8%, and
the remaining £1,340 8m has an average gross margin of over 20% based on current house prices

During the year, the Group has expernenced stable market conditions in the first three guarters of the financial year and signs of sustainable
improvement in the final quarter if the UK housing market were 1o change beyond management expectations in the future, in particular with
regards to the assumptions around hkely sales prices and estmated costs to complete, further adjustments to the carrying value of land and
work in progress may be required

The land held at the balance sheet date that has already been impaired 1s most sensitive to the jJudgements being applied and the potental for
further impairrment or reversal Forecasting risk also increases in relation to those sites that are not expected to be realised in the short to medium
term The Group's current forecasts indicate that, by volume, arcund 46% of the impasred plots are expected to be realised within ong year, 20%
between ¢one and two years, and 34% in more than two years
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The Group estimates that the impairment sensitivity for the housebuilding business to an immediate uriform falt n house prices across the UK,
from those prevailing as at 30 June 2013, is as follows

Uniform fall in national house prices Indicative impamrment
% £m

5 — —— 103

10 171

These estimates are lllustrative as any changes in house pnces have historically tended to be weighted either positively or negatively towards
parttcutar geographic regions of the UK, and they exclude any sensitivity upon our commercial developments segment In addiion, vanances

in future build cost inflation from that allowed for in the Group's base calcuation would have an impact upon the imparment sensitiity The value
of impairment 1s prior to attributing any tax credit that may accrue for future use

Estimation of costs to complete

In order to determine the profit that the Group 1s able to recogrise on its developments in a specific period, the Group has to allocate site-wide
development costs between units built n the current year and i future years 1t also has to estimate costs to complete on such developments

In making these assessments there Is a degree of inherent uncertainty The Group has developed iternal controls to assess and review carrying
values and appropriateness of estimates made

Recognition of profit where developments are accounted for under IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’

The Group applies its policy on contract accounting when recognising revenue and profit on partially completed contracts The application of this
policy requires judgements to be made in respect of the total expected costs to complete each site The Group has in place established internal
control processes to ensure that the evaluation of costs and revenues is based upon appropriate estmates

Impairment of goodwil!

The determination of the imparrment of goodwill of the housebuilding business requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the housebuilding
cash-generating unit as defined in note 11 The vatue-in-use calcutation requires an estmate of the future cash flows expected from the
housebullding business, inciuding the anticipated growth rate of revenue and costs, and requires the determination of a surtable discount rate
to calculate the present value of the cash fiows The discount rate used I1s based upon the average capital structure of the Group and current
market assessments of the time value of money and risks appropriate to the Group's housebuilding business Changes in these may impact
upon the Group's discount rate in future periods The carrying amount of goodwill at 30 June 2013 was £792 2m with no imparment
recognised dunng the year ended 30 June 2013

Impatrment of brands

The determination of the impairment calcutation for the Group's indefinite ife brand, David Wilson Homes, requires an estimation of the value-in-
use of the brand as defined in note 12 The valus-mn-use calculation requires an estimate of the future cash flows expected from this brand as part
of the review of the carrying value of goodwill, mcluding the anticipated growth rate of revenus and costs, and requires the determination of a
suitable discount rate o calculate the present value of the cash flows The discourt rate used 1s based upon the average capital structure of the
Group and current market assessments of the time value of money and risks appropriate to the Group’s housebuilding business Changes in
thesa may impact upon the Group's discount rate i future peniods The carrying amount of indefinde life brands at 30 June 2013 was £100 Om
with no impairment recognised during the year ended 30 June 2013

Deferred tax assets

At 30 June 2013, the Group recogrised a net deferred tax asset of £92 1m comprising gross deferred tax assets of £121 1m and gross deferred
tax labihties of £29 Om £84 7m related to losses that arose during preceding years, predominantly as a result of the refinancing and land
impairments, that are to be camed forward and relieved aganst profits ansing in future penods  The judgement to recognise the deferred tax
asset 1s dependent upon taxable profits ansing in the same company as the tosses onginally arose and the Group's expectations regarding future
profitability ncluding s#e revenue and cost forecasts for future years which contain a degree of inherent uncertanty

Defined benefit pension scheme

The Directors engage a qualified independent actuary to calculate the Group's liability in respect of its defined benefit pension scheme

In calculating this liability, it s necessary for actuanal assumptions to be made, which include discount rates, salary and pension Increases,
price nflation, the long-term rate of return upon scheme assets and mortality

As actual rates of ncrease and mortalty may differ from those assumed, the pension liability may differ from that included in these financial statements
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Hedge accounting

The majority of the Group's faciities are floating rate, which exposes the Group to increased interest raté nsk The Group has in place £137 Om
{2012 £192 Om) of fioating-to-fixed nterest rate swaps The Group has adopted hedge accounting for these swaps on the basis that 1t 15 hightly
probable that there 15 sufficient forecast debt to match with the period of swaps If this basis was not met in future any changes in farr value of the
swaps would be recognised in the income statement, rather than in eéquity Dunng the year ended 30 June 2013, there was a gain of £6 9m (2012
loss of £16 6m) included in equity related to these swaps

In addition, the Group has US$248 6m (2012 US$267 2m) of cross currency swaps to manage the cash flow nsks related to foreign exchange, ansing
from the Group’s sources of US Dollar denominated finance These swaps are designated as a cash flow hedge against future foreign exchange rate
movements If the hedges ceased to be highly effective, any changes in farr value of the swaps would be recognised in the iIncome statement, rather
than equity During the year ended 30 June 2013, there was a gan of £0 7m (2012 £4 6m) included in equity related to these swaps

Non-current available for sale financial assets

The Group holds non-current available for sale financial assets principally compnsing interest free loans granted as part of sales transactions that
are secured by way of a second legal charge on the respective property The loans are held at farr value The far value caleulation requires an
estimate of the future cash flows expected from the redemption of interest free loans, iIncluding an estmate of the market value of the property

at the estimated time of repayment, and requires the determination of a suitable discount rate to calculate the present value of the cash flows

The estimated market value I1s based on onginal seling prices and local market conditions with an allowance for low single-digit salgs pnce inflation
The estimated repayment profile 1s based on historical data for first time buyers seling therr property The discount rate used 1s consistent with the
interest rate payable on a third party second charge loan of a similar amount and duration At 30 June 2013, the asset recognised on the balance
sheet was £128 4m {2012 €189 2m)

Investment in joint venture holding non-current available for sale financial assets

The Group holds a joint venture investment of £25 8m (2012 £nil) in Rose Shared Equity LLP This entity holds non-current available for sale financial
assets compnsing interest free loans that are secured by way of a second charge on the respective property The Group's investment 15 accounted
for using the egurty method of accounting In line with the Group’s other joint venture investments, the carrying value 1s reviewed at each balance
sheet date Fhis review requires estmation of the cash flows expected to be receved by the Group which1s based upon calculation of the far values
of the toans held by the entity including an estimate of future cash flows expected from the redemption of nterest free loans, including an estimate

of the market value of the property at the estimated time of redempticn, and requires the determination of a suitable discount rate to calculate the
present value of the cash fiows The estmated market value 1s based on onginal selling prices and local market conditions with an allowance for low
single-cigit sales price inflation The estimated repayment profile 1s based on historic data for first time buyers selling ther property The discount rate
used is consistent with the interest rate payable on a third party second charge loan of a similar amount and duration
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Revenue
An analysis of the Group's revenue Is as follows

2013 2012
Notes £m £m

Sale of goods 2,442 2 21623
Contract accounting revenue 164 0 1611
Revenue as stated in the income statement 2,606 2 23234
Lease ncome 32 26 34
Finance income 5 12 8 169
Forfert deposits a7 05
Other income 199 1686
Total revenue 2,642 2 23608

Sale of goods ncludes £517 2m {2012 £448 9m) of revenue generated where the sale has been achieved using part-exchange incentives

Proceeds received on the disposal of part-exchange properties, which are not included in revenue, were £304 9m (2012 £271 5m)

2. Segmental analysis

The Group consists of two separate segments for management reporting and control purposes, being housebulding and commercial

developments The segments are considered appropriate for reporting under IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments' since these segments are regularly
reviewed internally by the Board without further significant categonsation The Group presents its prnmary segment information on the basis of
these operating segments As the Group operates in a single geographic market, Britain, no secondary segmentation 1s provided

House- Commercial 2013 House- Commercial 2012
building  developments Total buiding developments Total
Units Units Units Units Units Uruis

Residenhal completions 13,246 - 13,246 12,637 - 12,637
Income statement £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 2,592 6 136 2,606 2 22868 3686 23234
Cost of sales (2,236 9) (101) {2,247 0) (1.9977) {29 5) {2,027 2
Gross profit 3557 35 359 2 2891 71 2062
Administrative expenses — non-excephional {103 0) (35 {106 5) {99 5) (5 6) (105 1)
Profit from operations before exceptional tems 2527 - 2527 1896 15 1911
Administrative expenses — excepticnal 28 - (2 8) - - -
Profit from operations 249 9 - 2499 1896 15 1911
Share of post-tax profit{loss) from jont ventures
and associates — non-exceptionzal 77 Q1) 76 Q7 03 04
Exceptional loss on joint ventures - (LK) 54 - - -
Loss on re-measurement of joint venture interest
on acguisition of control - - - {o7) - (107
Profit from operations including post-tax profit/
(ioss) from jont ventures and associates 2576 {55 2521 17896 12 1808
Finance mcome 128 169
Finance costs — non-exceptional {80 B} ©977)
Finance costs - exceptional {79 3} -
Profit before tax o _ 104 8 B e _...1000
Tax (29 8) (326)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 750 6874
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2. Segmental analysis (continued)

House- Commercial 2013 House- Commercial 2012

building  developments Total buiding developments Total

Balance sheet £m £m £m £m £m m
Segment assets 4,442 0 601 4,502 1 4,443 5 795 45230

Ehmination of ntercompany balances (34 6) 392
4,467 5 44838

Deferred tax assets 921 186
Current tax assets 04 04
Cash and cash equivalents 2944 150 3
Consolidated total assets 4,854 4 4,7531

Segment labilities (1,425 2) 42 2) {1,467 4) {1,4370) {38 2) (1,475 2)
Elimination of intercompany balances 348 392

{1,432 8) {1,436 O

Loans and borrowings (348 4) (343 3}

Consclidated total labilities (1,781 2) (1,779 3)
Other information £m €m £m tm £m £m
Capttal addiions 20 - 20 20 04 24
Depreciabon 16 - 16 15 01 16

3. Exceptional items
In the year ended 30 June 2013 there were the following exceptional items

Debt refinancing

On 14 May 2013, the Group agreed a comprehensive refinancing package The Group entered into a new £700m revolving credit facixty, reducing
10 £550m 1n June 2016 and maturing in May 2018 The Group will retain the US$80m of private placement notes that were issued in May 20+ and
mature in August 2017 and the £100m term loan that was drawn in July 2011, of which 25% 15 scheduled to be repa:d in 2019, 256% in 2020 and the
balance in 2021 As a result of this refinancing the Group has incurred fees of £14 9m which are being amortsed over the Iife of the facilities In
addition, the Group has accelerated the amortisation of refinancing fees previously capitalised of £7 8m

The Group's private placement notes that were 1ssued in 2007 and 2008 {which amounted to £151 9m equvalent), together with the associated
foreign exchange swaps, were cancelled with effect from 2 July 2013 The interest make-whote of £53 Om has been recognised as an exceptional
charge In the Income statement as the Group was irrevocably committed o this repayment as at 30 June 2013

The Group has cancelled £55m nominal value of interest rate swaps resulting in an exceptional interest charge of £18 5m
As a result of the refinancing, total exceptional finance costs were £79 3m with a related tax credit of £18 8m

Part sale of non-cutrent avaiiable for sale financial asset

On 13 May 2013, the Group entered into a jont venture, Rose Shared Equity LLP (‘Rose’). with a fund managed by Anchorage Capital Group LLC
(Anchorage’) The Group disposed of the majonty of its own eguity share loans that ongimated in the penod from 1 January 2009 to 31 December
2011 nto the joint venture at no gain or loss Anchorage acquired a 50% interest in Rose for £33 7m The Group has recognised exceptional
administrative costs related to fees upon this transaction and the comprehensive debt refinancing of £2 8m with a related tax credit of £0 6m

Impairment of inventory relating to Investments accounted for using the equity method
At 30 June 2013, the Group conducted an imparrment review of iis share of the inventories iIncluded within its investments accounted for using the
equity method This resulted in animpairment charge for the year of £5 4m with a related tax credht of £1 3m Further details are given in note 14

In the year ended 30 June 2012, there was the following exceptional tem

Loss on re-measurement of joint venture interest on acquisition of control

In 20086, the Group entered into a joint venture agreement to develop sites in Greater Manchester including one in Hattersley The Group's joint
venture partner went into iquidation in March 2012 and on 9 May 2012 the Group acquired its share for £1 As required by IFRS 3 (Revised)
‘Business Combinations’, the Group has disposed of its share in the jont venture entities and acquired the entities as subsidianes resulting

in an exceptional loss of £10 7m Further details are provided in note 33
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4, Profit from operations
Profit from operations 1s stated after charging/(crediting}

2013 2012
Noles £m m
Staff costs g 2620 2390
Government grarts {74) {180}
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13 16 16
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equpment . N
Lease ncome ~ _ 32 28 @4
Operating lease charges
— hwre of plant, machinery and vehicles 221 176
— other 138 127

Government grants of £7 8m (2012 £8 3m) were received in the year relating to Government mitiatives including the National Affordable Housing
Programme, Affordable Homes Programme and Kickstart Grant income of £7 4m (2012 £18 O0m) was recognised in the income statement in relation
1o house sales completed under these mitiatives

Administrative expenses befare exceptional costs of £106 5m (2012 £105 1m} mctudes sundry Income of £20 6m (2012 £17 1m) which is disclosed
within other revenue in note 1

Profit from operations 1s stated after charging the Directors” emoluments disclosed In the Remuneration Report on page 70 and in note 9

The remuneration paid to Deloitte LLP, the Group's principal auditor, 1s disclosed below

2013 2012
Auditor’'s remuneration £000 2000
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Parent Company and conselidated financial statements 67 65
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s subsidianes 245 235
Total audit fees 312 300
Audit-related assurance services 93 102
Taxaton compranceservces . _ 97 10
Other taxation advisory services 138 70
Corporate finance services 35 139
Other services 10 7
Total fees for other services 373 428
Total fees related to the Company and its subsidiaries 685 728

Detalls of the Group's policy on the use of the auditor for non-audit services, the reasons why the auditor was used rather than another supplier
and how the auditor’s ndependence and objectivity was safeguarded are set out n the Audit Committee Report on page 55 No services were
provided pursuant to contingent feg arrangements

Audit-related assurance services mainly comprise the review of the intenm report Corporate finance services related to property advice provided
In relation to certain preces of land held by the Group Other taxation advisory services comprise advice to the Group's refinancing, new joint
ventures and various land acquisitions and disposals

In addition to the remuneration paid to the Group's principal auditor, Deloitte LLP, for services related to the Company and its subsichanes,
Deloitte LLP receved the following remuneration from joint ventures in which the Group participates

2013 2012

£000 £00G

The aydit of the Company’s joint ventures pursuant to legisiation e 102 54
Qther services 118 -
Total fees related to joint ventures 220 54
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5. Net finance costs
Recognised in income statement

2013 2012

Notes £m £m
Finance income on short-ierm bank deposits - o _ —— __ ©1) 0%
Imputed interest on avalable for sale financial assets 16 (10 2) (120Q)
Finance mcome related to employee benefits —— e R =02
Other interest recenvable (2 5 36)
Finance income (12 8) (16 9)
Interest on loans and borowings e 977 489
Imputed interest on deferred term land payables o _ _________2%b5 =8
Finance costs related to employeebenefts .~~~ T - A | 1 D
Amounts reclassified to the Income statement in respect of hedged cash flows o 30 67 51
Foreign exchange losses on US Dollar debt o 6 28 40
Amortisation of faciity fees _ 46 35
Imputed interest on Kickstart equity funding {09} 02
Other interest payable 29 76
Finance costs before exceptional items 808 977
Net finance costs before exceptional items 68 0 808
Exceptional finance costs e,
Mzake-whole fee on redemption of prrvale placement notes . _ 530 =
Hedging terminaioncosts W=
White-off of previous facility unamortised fees 78 —
Exceptional finance costs 3 793 -
Total finance costs 1601 977
Net finance costs 147 3 808
Recognised in equity

2013 2012

Notes £m £m
Amounts deferred in respect of efiective cash flow hedges 30 19 211
Total far value losses on cash flow swaps included in equity 19 211
Amounts reclassified to the income statement n respect of hedged cashflows .~~~ 30 @5 B
Amounts reclassified to the ncome statement in respect of hedged cash flows no longer
expected to occur — exceptional 3 {18 5) -
Total fair value losses on cash flow swaps transferred to equity (25 2) 51}

6. Financia! instruments gains and losses
The net (gans) and losses recorded in the consolidated ncome statement, in respect of financial :nstruments (excluding interest shown i note 5),
were as foliows

2013 2012
Notes £m £m

Loans and recevables e
Impairment of trade recewables _ 19 32 24

Non-current available for sale fmancnal assets
Net (prof t)/loss traﬂsferred on sale

Net impairment ¢ of avallable & for sale financial assets 16 "B 118

Current avallable for sale financial assets o CoTTTT T
Net loss transferred on sale - -

Other financial Ilab|I|t|es

Foreign exchange losses on US DoIIar debt 5 28 40
Transfers from hedged items - N —
Transfer from equity on currency cash flow hedges (28 @40
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7 Tax
Analysis of the tax charge for the year

2013 2012
Notas £m m
Currenttax .
UK corporation tax for the year {0 9} o9
Adjusiment in respect of previous years - 02
{©9 (1)
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences 252 273
Adjustment in respect of previous years 22 {23
Impact of reduction in corporation tax rate 33 87
17 307 337
Tax charge for the year 29 8 328

tn addition to the amount charged to the ncome statement, a net defarred tax credit of £4 2m (2012 £10 3m) was recognised directtly
In equity {note 17}

Factors affecting the tax charge for the year
The tax rate assessed for the year 1s higher (2012 higher) than the standard effective rate of corporation tax i the UK of 23 75% {2012 25 5%}

The differences are explaned below

2013 2012
£m £m
Profit before tax 104 8 1000
Profit before tax multiphed by the standard rate of corporation tax of 23 75% (2012 25 5%) 249 255
Effects of
Other tems including non-deduchble expenses 18 -
Loss on re-measurement of joint venture interest on acquisiion of control - 27
Addtional tax relief for land remediation cosis (14) 20)
Adjustment in respect of previous years 22 25
Tax n respect of joint ventures (02 {02)
Tax on share-based payments (0 8) 04
impact of change in tax rate on deferred tax asset 33 87
Tax charge for the year 298 326

Legislation reducing the main rate of corporation tax to 23% with effect from 1 Apnl 2013 was enacted on 17 July 2012 Accordingly, the current
year tax charge has been provided for at an effective rate of 23 75% and the closing deferred tax asset has been provided for at a rate of 23%
n these financial statements

Additicnal reductions in the main rate of corporation tax from 23% to 21% with effect from 1 Apnl 2014 and from 21% to 20% with effect from
1 April 2015 were enacted within the Finance Act 2013 on 17 July 2013 As these reductions were not substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date, their effect has not been reflected in these financial statements

if the deferred tax assets and liabiiities of the Group were alf to reverse after 2015, the effect of the reduction from 23% 10 20% would be to

reduce the net deferred tax asset by £12 Om To the extent that the net deferred tax asset reverses more quickly than this, the impact of the
rate reductions on the nei deferred tax asset will be reduced
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8. Dvidends

2013 2012
£m £m
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2013 of 2 5 pence (2012 il pence) per share 24 4 —

The proposed final divdend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Mesting and has not been ncluded as a lability at 30 June 2013

9. Key management and employees

Key management personnel, as defined under IAS 24 'Related Party Disclosures’, have been identified as the Board of Directors as the controls
operated by the Group ensure that all key decisions are reserved for the Board Detalled disciosures of Directors” indwidual remuneration,
pension entittements and share optons, for those Directors who served during the year, are given in the audited sections of the Remuneration
Report on pages 57 to 78 which form part of these financial statements A summary of key management remuneration 1s as follows

2m3 2012

£m £m

Satanes and fees (including pension compensation} o 25 28

Social secunty costs 2.3 08

Performancebonws 23 21

Berefts o - o C1

Share-based payments 13 10

8.5 68

Group

2013 2012

Number Number

Housebuilding — average staff numbers [excluding subcontractors, iInciuding Directors) 4755 4424

Commercial developments — average staff numbers (excluding subcontracters, including Dwectors) 26 27

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

Notes £m £m £m £m

Wagss and salanes including bonuses (ncluding Directors) 213 _ 2061 ____68B _ _ 160
Redundancy costs Q2 Q8 =01
Socalsecuttycosts S - 291 25 23 15
Otherpensioncosts 27 70 87 01 05

Share-based payments 29 44 31 12 08

Total staff costs 4 2620 2390 102 180

Staff costs for the Company in 2013 are stated after the recharge of staff to other Group companies

10. Eamings per share

Basic earnings per share 1s calculated by diding the profit for the year attnbutable to ordinary shareholders of £75 0m (2012 €67 4m) by the weighted
average number of ardinary shares in 1ssue dunng the year, excluding those held by the Employee Benefit Trust which are treated as cancelled, which

was 973 7m sharas (2012 963 9m)

Diluted earnings per share 1s calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of £75 Om (2012 £67 4m) by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue adjusted to assume conversion of all potentially dilutive share options from the start of the

year, giving a figure of 998 7m shares (2012 972 6m})

The earnings per share from continuing operations were as follows

2013 2012

pence pence

Basceamngspershare . _________T1r __70
Adusted basic eamings pershgre _1a6 81

Diluted garnings per share 75 89

Adjusted diuted earnings per share 142 80
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10, Eamings per share (continued)
The calcutation of basic, diluted, adjusted basic and adjusted dduted earnings per share 1s based upon the following data

Basic Diluted Basic Dulested

2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012

£m pence pence £m pence pence

Profit for basic and diluted earnings per share 750 77 75 674 70 69
Add exceptional administrative expenses 28 03 03 - - -
Add exceptional finance costs 793 81 79 - - -
Add exceptional imparrment of joint venture 54 06 05 - - -
Add excepbional loss on re-measurement of joint venture on acguisition of control - - - 107 11 11
Less tax effect of above items (20 7) (21) (2 0) - — —
Earnings for basic and adjusted diluted earnings per share 1418 14 6 14 2 781 81 80

Eamings are adjusted, removing exceptional finance costs, exceptional loss on joint ventures and the refated tax to reflect the Group's undertying profit

11, Goodwill

Group

£m

Cost
At 1 July 2011, 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2013 8167
Accumulated impairment losses
At 1 July 2011, 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2013 245
Carrying amount
At 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2013 792 2

The Group's goodwiil has a carying value of £792 2m relating to the housebuilding segment  The goodwilt relating to the commercial
developments segment, with a cost of £24 5m, was fully imparred in the year ended 30 June 2008

The Group condugts an annual Impairment review of goodwill and intangibles together for both the housebulding and commercial developments
segments The imparment review was performed at 30 June 2013 and compared the value-in-use of the housebuilding segment with the carrying
value of its tangible and intang ble assets and allocated goodwill The Group allocates any identfied imparment first to goodwill and then to assets
on a pro-rata basts, which in the case of the Group 1s its intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

The value-in-use was determined by discourrting the expected future cash flows of the housebuilding segment The first two years of cash flows
were determined using the Group's approved detailed site-by-site business plan The cash flows for the third to fifth years were determined
using Group leve! Intarnal forecasted cash flows based upon expected volumes, seling prices and margins, taking into account available land
purchases and work in progress levels The cash flows for year six onwards were extrapotated in perpetuity using an estimated growth rate

of 2 5%, which was based upon the expected long-term growth rate of the UK economy

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations were

= Discount rate this ts a pre-tax rate reflecting current market assessments of the ime value of money and nsks appropnate to the Group's
housebuilding business Accordingly, the rate of 12 2% (2012 12 9%) 1s consictered by the Directors to be the appropriate pre-tax risk adjusted
discount rate, being the Group's estimated long-term pre-tax weighted average cost of capital This rate used 1n the 30 June 2013 impairment
review Is calculated using the averags capital structure of the Group dunng the financiai year, consistent with the prior year, due to the
cyclicality of the Group's borrowing reguirements and reflects the Group's reduced borrowing costs following the comprehensive refinancing
completed during the year

« Expected changes in seling prices for completed houses and the related impact upon operating margin these are determined on a site-by-
site basis for the first two years dependent upon tocal market conditions and product type For years three to five, these have been estmated
at a Group level based upon past experience and expectations of future changes in the market, taking into account external market forecasts

¢ Sales volumes these are determined on a site-by-site basis for the first two years dependent upon local market conditions land availabity
and planning permissions  For years three to five, these have been estmated at a Group level based upon past experience and expectations
of future changes in the market, taking into account external market forecasts

+ Expected changes in site costs to complete these are determined on a site-by-site basis for the first two years dependent upon the expected
costs of completing all aspects of each individual development including any addional costs that are expected to occur as aresult of the
business being on an indwvidual development site for longer due to current market condions For years three to five, these have been estimated
at a Group level based upon past expenence and expectations of future changes in the market, taking into account external market forecasts
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11. Goodwilt (continued)
The conclusion of this Imparrment review was that the Group's goodwill and intangible assets related to the housebuilding segment was not impared

The imparment review of goodwill and intangible assets at 30 June 2013 was based upon current expectations regarding sales volumes,
expected changes in selling prices and site costs to complete in the uncertain condtions within the UK housing market and used a discount rate
considered appropriate to the position and nisks of the Group The result of the impairment review was that the recoverable value of goodwill and
intangible assets exceeded its carrying value by £1,140 6m {2012 £379 1m)

if the UK housing market and expectations regarding its future were to detencrate with enther operating margins reducing by 3 8% per annum
{2012 1 0% per annum) or the appropriate discount rate were to increase by 2 6% (2012 1 0%) and all other variables were held constant, then
the recoverable value of goodwill and intangible assets would equal s carrying value Further mformation 1s given in Critical Accounting
Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty on page 100

12. Other intangible assets

Group
Brands
£m
Cost
At 1 July 2011, 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2013 1070
Amortisation _ L e
At 1 Juy 2011, 30 June 2012 and 30 Jung 2013 70
Carrying amount
At 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2013 1000
Brands

The Group does not amartise the housebudding brand acquired with Wison Bowden, being Dawid Wilson Homes, valued at £100 Om, as the
Directors consider that this brand has an ndefirite useful economic life due to the fact that the Group intends to hold and support the brand
for an indefinite penod and there are no factors that would prevent it from doing so

The Group tests indefinite Iife brands annually for impairment, or more frequentty If there are indications that they might be impaired At 30 June
2013, an imparrment review was conducted using the calculations and assumptions as explaned n note 11 The conclusion of this iImpairment
review was that the Group's David Wilson Homes brand was not impaired

The brand of Wilson Bowden Developments {(valued at £7 Om prior to amortisation) was being amortised over ten years as it 1s a business-to-business
brand operating in niche markats Followang an imparment review at 30 June 2008, the Wilson Bowden Developments brand was fully impaired

Further information 1s given in Cnitical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estmation Uncertanty on page 100
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Plant and Group Plantand Company
Property equipment Total Property equipment Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 July 20H 7B 120 196 09 48 57
Addrions — 24 24 - 10 10
Disposals - {19 19) - - -
At 30 June 2012 76 125 201 09 58 67
Additions - 20 29 - 04 04
Dsposals 4 2) {10) 52 - - -
At 30 June 2013 34 135 169 09 62 71
Depreciation
At 1 July 2011 37 103 140 09 41 50
Charge for the year 04 12 16 - 05 05
Disposals - {19 (19 - - -
At 30 Jung 2012 41 96 137 09 486 55
Charge for the year 02 14 18 - 07 67
Disposals {11) 07) {18) - - -
At 30 June 2013 32 103 135 09 53 62
Net book value _
At 30 June 2012 35 29 64 — 12 12
At 30 June 2013 02 32 34 - 09 09

Authorised {uture capital expenditure that was contracted but not provided for in these financial statements amounted to £0 7m (2012 £0 1m)

14. Investments accounted for using the equity method

During the year, the Group entered into the following new jont venture arrangements Fulham Wharf LLP and Barratt Wates (Worthing) Limited
The Group and Company also entered into a new joint venture arrangement, Rose Shared Equity LLP

The Group equity accounts for jointly controlled entities The Group has significant interests in the following jointly controlled entities

Joint venture Percentage owned Country of registration Principal activity

Barratt Wates (Horley) Limited’ 78 5% England and Wales Housebuilding

Ravenscraig Limited? 33 3% Scotland Commercial development
DWH/Wates {Thame) Urnuted 500% Engtand and Wales Housebuilding

Barratt Metropoltan LLP 500% England and Wales Housebulding

Wandsworth Parkside LLP 500% England and Wales Housebulding

Alie Street LLP 500% England and Wales Housebuilding

Queensland Road LLP 500% England and Wales Housebuilding

Barratt Wates {East Grinstead) Limited 500% England and Wales Holding company

Barratt Wates (East Grinstead) No 2 Limited?® 50 0% England and Wales Housebuilding

Barcatt OsporneWorthng L _ 800% _ _ _ | EngendandWeles _ Housebuidng
Barratt Osborne Bexley LLP 500% England and Wales Houssbuilding

The Aldgate Place Limited Partnership 50 0% England and Wales Housebuillding
Aldgate Place (GPjLimited _____ _500% _ ___ _ _ EnglndandWaes __  Holdngcompany
Fulharm Wharf LLP 50 0% England and Wales Housebuilding

Barratt Wates (Worthirg) Limited 50 0% England and Wales Housebuilding

BrYLlP* o _.%06w _ EngandandWales ___ Holdngcompany
Roseg Shared Equity LLP 50 0% England and Wales Investrment entity

1 Barratt Wates (Horley) Lirmited 1s ¢lassified as a joint venture as the Group has equal control with one other joint venturs pariner
2 Ravenscraig Limited 15 classtfied as a joint venturs as the Group has equal control ang ownership percentages with two joint venture partners
3 Barratt Wates (East Grinstead) No 2 Limited 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Batralt Wates (East Grinstead) Limiec

4 Dunng the year, the Group acquired an additional 16 7% inmerast in BKY LLP
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14. Investments accounted for using the equity method (continued)

A number of the Group's jomt ventures prepare financial statements which are non-coterminous with the Group Wandsworth Parkside LLP,

Alie Street LLP, Fulham Wharf LLP and Queensland Road LLP prepare financial statements to 31 March, Barratt Osborne Bexley LLFP prepares
financial statements to 30 September and Barratt Wates (Worthing) Limited prepares financial statements to 30 Aprl BKY LLP prepares financial
statements to 31 December

The Group equity accounts for Investments in associates The Group has significant interests in the following associates

Associate Parcentage owned Country of registration Principal actwity
New Tyne West Development Company LLP 250% England and Wales Housebuilding

New Tyne West Development Company 1 LP prepares financial statements to 31 Decemnber, which 15 non-coterminous with the Group

Jomt ventures and associates

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

Notes £m £m £m £m

At1July 856 1028 - -
Net increase in mvestments m jont ventures 360 76 258 -
Net (decrease)/increase (n nvesiments In associates {03) 03 - —
Disposal of joint venture interest on acquisition of control 33 - (25 5} - —
Impaiment of joint venture mvestment 3 64 - - -
Share of post-tax profit for the year from joint ventures 77 05 - -
Share of post-tax loss for the year from associates {01) ©1) - -
At 30 June 1235 856 258 —

in 2008, the Group entered inte a joint venture agreement to develop sites In Greater Manchester mcluding one in Hattersley The Group's joint
venture partner went into iquidation in March 2012 and on 9 May 2012 the Group acquired the remaining 50% equity in Base Regeneration and
its subsidianes, Base East Central Rochdale LLP, Base Hattersley LLP and Base Werneth Oldham LLP for £1 Therefore, in accordance with
IFRS 3 (Revised) ‘Business Combinations', the Group has disposad of its share in the jont venture and acquired the entities as subsickaries
resulting In an exceptional loss of £10 7m Further detalls are provided in note 33

In refation to the Group’s and Company’s interests in jont ventures, the Group's and Company s share of assets and habilities of the joint ventures
are shown below

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m

Current assets . o w03  M39 =~
Non-current assets 299 06 258 -
Current kabihes {511) (130) - -
Non-current liakilities (162 3) {101 3) - —
Net assets of joint ventures 68 02 258 -

The Group has made loans of £122 2m (2012 £83 6m) to 1ts jont ventures, which are included within Group investments accounted for using
the equity method Included within the Group's share of net assets of joint ventures 1s a proportion of loans to the jont ventures calculated using
the Group's ownership share of £125 5m {2012 £82 4m} The Company has made loans to its joint ventures of £25 8m (2012 £nil)
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14, Investments accounted for using the equity method {continued)
The Group’s and Company’s share of the joint ventures’ income and expenses during the year are shown below

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 o012

Em £m £m £m

Income 674 326 - -
Expenses (577) (313) - -
97 13 - -

Tax {2 0) {08y - -
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures before exceptional items 77 05 - -
Exceptional imparrment of jont venture (54 — - -
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures 23 05 - -

During the year, the Group and Company entered into a number of transactions with their joint ventures in respect of funding and development
management services {with charges made based on the utiisation of these services} in addition to the provision of construction services Further
details on these transactions are provided i note 35 The Group and Company have a number of contingent habilities retating to therr joint
ventures Further detatls on these are provided in note 34

Associates
In relation to the Group's Interests in associates, the Group's share of assets and liabilities of the associates 1s a hability of £0 2m at 30 June 2013
(2012 asset £0 3m) The Group's share of the associates’ expenses duning the year was £0 1m (2012 £0 1m)

The Group has made loans of €mil (2012 £0 3m) to its associates, which are ncluded within the Group investments accounted for using the equity
method Further details of transactions with associates are provided in note 35

The Group has contingent hatulties relating to its associates Further details on these are provided in note 34

15. Investments

Company
2013 2012
fm £m
Cost
At1.duly . 2,671 6 26753
Increase N investment in subsidianes 5000 -
Decrease m investment in subsidiares related to share-based payments on (37)
At 30 June 31709 26716
Impairment
At 1 July . _&7B 576
Impawrment of investments In subsidianes 29 -
At 30 June 605 576
Net book value
At 1 July 2,6140 26177
At 30 June 3,110 4 26140

On 26 June 2013, in order to strengthen the balance sheet of the Company's principal trading subsidiary BDW Tracing Limited, the Company
invested cash of £500m in return for 500 ordinary shares of £1 each at a premium of £999,999 per share

The subsidiary undertakings that pnincipally affected profits and net assets of the Group were

Subsldiary Percentage ownad Country of registration Principal activity

BOW TradngLimted . 100% England and Wales Housebuilding and development
BDW North Scotiand Limited (formerty BDW

East Scotland Limited)} 100% Scotland Housebuilding and development
David Wilson Homes Limited 100%" EnglandandWales ~ Housebulding and developmert

Wilson Bowden Developments Limited 100%" England and Wales Commercial development
* QOwned through another Group company

A full st of subsichary undertakings is available on request from the Company’s registered office
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16. Available for sale financial assets
Non-current available for sale financial assets

Group

2013 2012

Noles £m £m

At 1 Juty 189 2 169 4
Addrtions 238 277
Disposals (82 5) @7
Imputed interest 5 102 120
Net impairment taken through income statement 6 (61) {11 8)
Far value adjustment taken through other comprehensive income {6 2) 34
At 30 June 128 4 1892

Avallable for sale financial assets principally comprise interest free loans which are granted as part of sales transactions and for which the
cash flows recevable are based on the value of the property at redemption These loans are secured by way of a second legal charge on the
respective property {after the first mortgage) These loans are held at the present value of expected future cash flows, taking into account the
astimated market value of the property at the estimated time of repayment The income statement includes a net mpairment of £6 1m (2012
£11 8m) in cost of sales

The present value of expected future cash flows s calculated using a discount rate consistent with the interest rate payable on a third party
second charge loan of a sumilar amount and duration This 1s considered to be the most appropriate rate as the interest free loans are simitar

in nature to second charge loans offered by third party financial nsbtutions  The average discount rate used for the year ended 30 June 2013
was 8 0% (2012 75%) The movement in the discount rate during the year has resulted in a fair value adjustment charge, which has been taken
through other comprehensive income of £6 2m (2012 £3 4m)

The estimated fair value i1s based on onginal selling prices and local market condiions with an allowance for low single-digit sales price inflation
The Group has also used independent valuation specialists to review and assess the estimated portfolio value

The repayment profite used to calculate the timing of future cash flows 15 based on historical data for first-time buyers selling thewr property

The net imparrment of the available for sale financial assets taken through the Income statement relates to borrower default Including an estimate
made for losses incurred that have not yet been reported to the Group by the home owner or the first charge provider and the impact of the
decline in UK house prices on the present value of the estimated future cash flows of these assets

Further disclosures relating to financial assets are set out in note 23 and note 26({b)()

On 13 May 2013, the Company entered into a jont venture, Rose Shared Equity LLP {Rose’), with a fund managed by Anchorage Capital
Group LLC (‘Anchorage') The Group disposed of the majority of its own equity share loans that onginated in the pernod from 1 January 2009
to 31 December 2011 at no gain or loss The loans were sold to Rose at their net book value of £59 2m Anchorage acqusred a 50% interest in
Rose for £33 7m Ancheorage will receve its inmal investment back by way of preferred retum and then the partners will share equally all subsequent
cash proceeds from the portfolio The Group has treated this transaction as an asset disposal and investment in a joint venture

Current availlable for sale financial assets

Durng the year, the Group entered into a seed investment agreement with Hearthstone Investments, a specialist residential property fund manager
The Group sold showhomes with a value ¢f £5 tm into the fund in exchange for 5 1m units at an average price of £1 00 per unit During the year the
Group has sold 3 8m units at an average price of £1 00 per unit At 30 June 2013 the Group held 1 3m units In accordance with IFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments Disclosures’, these financial assets have been classified as Levet 1 within the far value hierarchy Level 1 farr value measurements are
those denved from quoted prices {unadjusted) In active markets for identifiable assets At 30 June 2013, based on unadjusted quoted prices the
units had a market value of £13m No gain or loss has been recognised n the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
30 June 2013 These assets are classified within current assets as available for sale financial assets as the Group does not intend to hold this
investment in the long-term
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17. Deferred tax
The Group recognised a deferred tax asset/{llability) with the following movements i the year

Pension Share Tax Other

scheme ophons losses Hedging Brands ACA (net) Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
AttJduy20My o 3t ____ 18 1870 ¢ 87 __180____G8__ _ 122 = 1432
Income statement (chargej/credit {03 {08 (36 4) - 20 04 12 (337)
Acgured o - - - - - - 12 =
Amounts taken directly to equity 24 04 43 32 - - 08 103
At30Jdure20t2 ~ _ _ _ ____. 52 ___08 49  n9_ __ @0 1z {4 1186
Ingome statement credit/(charge) b1 15 442 - 10 (@ 116 (307
Amounts taken directly to equity 2 2) 68 40 (5 8) - - 14 42
At 30 June 2013 31 91 847 61 {23 0) 11 10 921

It 15 not anticipated that any of the deferred tax kiability in respect of brands will reverse in the twelve months following the balance sheet date
Whilst it 15 anticipated that an elemant of the remaining deferred tax assets and kabilities will reverse dunng the twelve months following the

balance sheet date, at present It 1s not possible to quantfy the value of these reversals

In additton to the above, the Group has not recorded a deferred tax asset of £6 Om (2012 £5 4m}) in respect of capital and other losses because

these are not considered recoverable i the foreseeable future

The Company recognised a deferred tax asset with the following movements in the year

Pension Share Tax

scheme options losses Hedging ACA Cther Total
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
mtdiy20t . _ 8 02 849 87 05 __ 13 _ 487
Income statement {charge)/credt {03 02 B3 - {01) Q7 52
Amounts taken dirgctly to equity 24 - - 32 - — 56
At 30 Jung 2012 52 = 208 19 Q4 20 491
Income statement credit/(charge} 01 06 Q06 - 01 {0 9) 05
Amounts taken directly to equity {22) 18 31 (58) - - (3 0)
At 30 June 2013 31 25 333 61 05 11 46 6

All deferred tax relates to the United Kingdom and 1s stated on a net basis as the Group has a legally enforceable nght to set off the recognised

amounts and intends to settle on a net basis

The deferred tax asset recognised comprises

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Notes £m £m £m £m
Pensonscheme . __._.°2r 3% _ .52 .31 52
Hedgng e e e e e 61___"s___ &1 _ 18
Losses I . o o o _ &7 1249 = 333 296
Share options U - 3L S 08 __ . 25 _ .
Other tems, including capital allowances 181 55 16 24
Deferred tax assets 1211 148 3 46 6 491
Brands = _ . _._ oo _ - - . . L (B0 @20 __ - .. .-
Other tems 60) 57 - -
Deferred tax habihities (29 0) (297) - -
Net deferred tax asset 921 118 6 46 6 491
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18. Inventones

Group

2013 2012

£m £m

Land held for development 21270 20773
Construction work in progress 1,001 9 10655
Part-exchange properties 790 BO2
Other inventories 19 36

3,209 8 3,226

6

a} Nature of inventones

The Directors consider all nventones to be essentially current m nature, although the Group’s operational cycle 1s such that a proportion

of nventories will not be reahsed within twelve months It 1s not possible to determing with accuracy when specific inventory wall be realised
as this will be subject to a number of vanables such as consumer demand and planning permission delays

b) Impairment of inventones

At 30 June 2013, the Group reviewed the net realisable value of its land and work in progress carrying values of its sites The smparment review
compared the estimated future net present realisable value of development sites with ther balance sheet carrying value During the year, due
to performance vanations upon individual housebuillding sites, there were gross iImparment charges of £34 8m (2012 £44 8m) and gross
impairment reversals of £22 5m {2012 £31 5mj) resulting in a net inventery mpairment of £12 3m (2012 £13 3m} included within profit from
operations There was also a gross imparrment charge of £0 6m (2012 £3 3m) and a gross impairment reversat of £0 1m (2012 £3 3mj for the
commercial developments busingss resuling in a net inventory Impairment of £0 5m (2012 £nil}, due to performance vanations upon indvidual
commercial sites

The key juggements in these reviews were estimating the realisable value of a site which 1s determined by forecast sales rates, expected sales
prices and estimated costs to complete Sales pnces were estimated on a site-by-site basis based upon local market conditions and tock Into
account the current prices being achieved upen each site for each product type In addition, the estimation of future sales prices included an
allowance on a site-by-site basis for low single-digit sales price inflation in future penods The estimation of costs to complete also ncluded an
allowance for low single-digit build cost inflation in future penods  Further information regarding these judgements 1s included within the Critical
Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty section on page 99

During the year, the Group has experienced stable market conditions n the first three quarters of the financial year and signs of sustanable
improvement in the final quarter I the UK housing market were to change beyond management expectations in the future, in particular with
regards to the assumptions around likefy sales prices and estimated costs to complete, further adjustments to the carrying value of land and
work In progress may be required

Following these impairments, £325 7m (2012 £607 5m) of inventories are valued at fair value fess costs to sell rather than at historicat cost
¢) Expensad inventones
The valug of inventories expensed 1n the year ended 30 June 2013 and ncluded in cost of sates was £2,139 3m 2012 £1,900 5m) including the

Inventory impairrments

d) Company
The Company has no inventories

BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2013

115



ACCOUNTS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS « NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19, Trade and other recevables

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Non-current assets o _
QOther recevables 44 41 - -
44 41 - -
Current assets
Trade recewvables 544 346 - -
Amounts due from subsidaryundertakungs . = - _ 9696 5564
Otnerrecewables _ _ _ _ _ _ . _ __._._ 15 84 __ 08 _ 05
Prepayments and accrued income 79 73 15 11
748 503 9719 5580

Trade and other recevables are non-interest bearing, and the Group has no concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of debtors Of the year end trade receivables, the following were overdue but not impaired

Group
2013 2012
Ageing of overdue but not imparred recevables £m £m
Less than three months — 66 43
Greater than thres months 21 21
The carrymg values of trade and other recevables are stated after the following allowance for doubtful recevables
Group
2013 2012
Notes £m £m
At 1 July _ 35 38
Chargefortheyear _ _ e B 32 24
Uncollectible amounts written off, net of recoveries (37) 27
At 30 June 30 35

The allowance for doubtful recevables consists of individually imparred trade receivables which are in default The imparment regognised in cost
of sales represents the difference between the carrying amount of these trade recevables and the present value of any expected recovenes
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade recevables approximates to therr fair value

Further disclosures relating to financial assets are set out in note 23
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20. Trade and other payables

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 202
£m £m £m £m

Non-current habilities

landpayables  _ _ _ _ _ __ __ _ _ __ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ _._ __ __ 837 380 - -
Other payables 44 14 - -
3781 3504 - —
Current habilities
Tadepayables  _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _.____ __ _____200_ 2914 _ 16 _ 28
landpayables . _ _._.____ 807 38t _ _ - ___-
Amaounts due to subsidiary undertakings - - 136 1 -
Accruals and deferred income __ e 3247 __ 2894 799 _ _ 819
Other tax and social security 14 15 - -
Other payables 670 515 - -
1,013 8 10019 76 347

Accruals and deferred income includes a £4 9m {2012 £0 7m) social security accrual relating to share-based payments (note 29}
The Group has £384 2m (2012 £284 7m) of payables secured by legal charges on certain assets

Other non-current payables are unsecured and non-interest bearing

Further disclosures relating to financial labilities are set out in note 24

21. Contract accounting
In relation to contracts in progress at the balance shest date

Group
2013 2012
£m £m

Amounts due from contract customers included in trade and cther recevables _ _ 90 108
Amounts due to contract customers included in trade and other payables 4 8) {131)
42 23

Contract costs incurred plus recognised profi's less recognisedlossestodate "~ 996 _ 1425
Less progress bilings (95 4) (144 8)
42 {23)

At 30 June 2013, retentions held by customers for contract work amounted to £7 0m (2012 £8 6m), of which £17m (2012 £2 3m) are due for
settlement after twelve months Advances received froem customers for contract work amounted to £16 2m (2012 £17 1m), of which €7 1m
(2012 £8 Bm) relates to work which 1s not expected to be performed in the next twelve months

22, Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m

Cash and cash eguivalents 294 4 150 3 2740 701

Cash and cash eguivalents are held at floating interest rates nked to the UK bank rate, LIBOR and money market rates as applicable
Cash and cash eguivalents comprise ¢cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less

Further disciosures relating to financial assets are set out In note 23
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23. Financial assets
The carrying values and farr values of the Group's financial assets are as follows

Group
2013 2012
Fair Carrying Far Camying
value value vahue value
Notes £m £m £m £m
Designated as cash flow hedges
Denvative financial nstruments 25 297 297 294 294
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equvalents 22 294 4 294 4 1503 1503
Trade and other recevables 521 521 274 274
Availlable for sale
Non-current avalable for sale financial assets 16 1284 1284 1892 1892
Current avallable for sale financial assets 16 13 13 - -
Total financial assets 5059 505 9 396 3 3963
The carrying values and far values of the Company's financial assets are as follows
Comparny
2013 2012
Falr Carrying Fair Carryng
value value value value
Notes fm £m £m £m
Designated as cash flow hedges
Dernvative financial Instruments 25 297 297 294 204
Loans and receiwvables
Cash and cash equivalents 22 2740 2740 701 701
Trade and other recevables 19 08 08 05 05
Intercompany loans 19 9696 9696 556 4 5564
Total financial assets 1,2741 1,2741 656 4 656 4

On 14 May 2013, the Company agreed a comprehensive refinancing package. the prepayment of £65 8m private placement notes, the prepayment
of US$166 6m private placement notes and cancellation of the associated foreign exchange swaps, and the cancellation of £55m nominal value

of interest rate swaps Of the total dervative financral asset as at 30 June 2013, £25 2m was cancelled on 2 July 2013 when the associated private
placement notes were prepad

Trade and other recewvables excludes accrued income, amounts recoverable on contracts, prepayments and tax and social secunty The fair
values of financial assets and liabilities are determined as indicated in this note and note 24(a)

The following table provides an analysis of financial assets that are measured subsequent to initiat recognition at fair value, grouped into
Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the farr value 1s observable
s Lavel 1 far value measurements are those derived from guoted prices (Unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets,
e Level 2 far value measurements are those derived from nputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset, either directly (1@ as pnces) or indirectly (| @ denved from prices), and
» Lavei 3 farr value measurements are those denved from valuation techriques that include inputs for the asset that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Group
2013
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes £m £m £m £m

Derivative mstruments tn designated hedge accounting relationships
Denvative financiat assets 25 297 - - 297

Available for sale

Non-current avallable for sale financial assets 16 - - 1284 128 4
Current avallable for sale financial assets 16 13 - - 13
Total 310 - 128 4 1594
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23 Financial assets (continued)

Group
20312
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes £m £m £m £m
Denvative iInstruments in designated hedge accounting relationships
Dervative financial assets 25 294 - - 204
Available for sale
Non-current available for sale financral assets 16 - - 189 2 1892
Current avallable for sale financial assets 16 - - — -
Total 294 - 189 2 2188
Further disclosures for avaiable for sale assets are provided in note 16 and note 26 (b(i)
Gompany
2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes £m £m £m £m
Denvative instruments in designated hedge accounting relatonships
Denvative financial assets 25 297 - ~ 297
Total 297 - - 297
Company
2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes £m £m £m £m
Dervative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships
Denvative financial assets 25 294 - - 294
Total 204 — - 294
24, Financial hiabilities
a) Fair value and carrying value
The carrying values and fair values of the Group's financial habities are as follows
Group
2013 2012
Fair  Camrying Fair Carryng
value value value value
Notes £m £m £m Em
Designated as cash flow hedges
Dervative financial instruments _ 25 215 275 533 533
Other financial habilities
Bank overdrafts 24b 41 41 - -
Trade and other pavables 1,2315 1,2351 1,204 5 1,1991
Loans and borrowings 24b 404 9 3443 3659 3433
Total financial kabihities 1,668 0 1,6110 1,623 7 15957
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24, Financial habilities {continued)
a) Fair value and carrying value (continued}
The carrying values and far values of the Company's financial liabiities are as follows

Company
2013 2012
Falr Carrying Farr Carrying
value value value value
Notes £m £m £m £m

Designated as cash flow hedges
Denvative financial mstruments 25 275 275 533 533

Other financial habilities

Bank overdrafts 24b 509 509 24 24
Trade and other payables 710 no 288 288
Intercompany payables 20 1361 1361 - -
Loans and borrowings 24b 3730 3124 3646 3420
Total financial habilities 658 5 5979 4491 4265

During June 2013, the Group cancelled £55m nominal value of interest rate swaps Further details are provided in note 3

Trade and other payables excludes deferred income, payments received in excess of amounts recoverable on contracts, tax and social secunty
and other non-financial habilities

The far values of financial assets and habilites are determined as follows

« The farr values of non-current available tor sale financial assets represent the value of ther discounted cash flows, which have been
calculated using market assumptions of the likely pericd to redemption and movernents in UK house prices

* The far value of current avallable for sale financial assets are calculated using the unadjusted quoted price of units in the property fund
obtained from independent brokers

* Dervative financial nstruments are measured at the present value of future cash flows esttmated and discounted based on the applicable
yield curves derved from quoted interest rates

« The far values of other non-dervative financial assets and labilites are determined based on discounted cash flow analysis using current
market rates for similar nstruments

Trade and other payables include land payables, which may bear interest on a contract specific basis, and items secured by legal charge
as disclosed in note 20

The following table provides an analysis of financial labilites that are measured subseqguent 1o imitial recognition at fair value, grouped into
{evels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the far value 1s observable
+ Lavel 1 far value measurements are those derved from quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical habilities,
+ |_evel 2 far value measurements are those derved from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the liability, ether directly { @ as prices) or mdirectly (| @ denved from prices), and
+ Level 3 far value measurements are those derved from valuation techrigues that include inputs for the bability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Group
2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes £m £m £m £m

Derivative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships
Denvative financial kabilties 25 275 - - 275
Total 275 —~ - 275
Group
2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes £m £m m £m

Dervative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships
Denvative financial kabilhes 25 533 - - 533
Total 533 - - 533
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24, Financial Habilities (continued)
a) Fair value and carrying value (continued)

Company
2013
Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
Noles £m £m £m £m
Denvative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships
Denvative financial labiles 25 275 - - 275
Total 2756 - - 275
Company
2012
Level 1 Lewvel 2 Leval 3 Total
Notes £m £m £m Em
Dervative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships
Dervative financial labihities 25 533 - — 533
Total 533 - - 533
b) Drawn debt facilittes
The drawn debt at 30 June comprises
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Non-current
Bark loans” - 82 - 62
Temloans .. __ __ ____80 _ 1000 __ 80 __1000
Government loans 298 - - -
Private placement notes 518 2250 518 2250
Total non-current borrowings 166 6 3312 136 8 3312
Current
Bank overdrafts 41 - 509 24
Loan notes - 02 - 02
Private placement notes 1756 1086 1756 106
Kickstart equity funding 16 13 - -
Government lcans 05 - - -
Total current borrowings 181 8 121 2265 132
Total borrowings 348 4 3433 3633 344 4
= Non current bank loans at 30 June 2012 of £106 2m have been recategonsed as £6 2m bank loans and the term loan of £100 Om
The weighted average interest rates, ncluding fees, paid in the year were as follows
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
% % % %
Bank loans net of swap interast” 66 50 66 50
Govemment loans 27 - - -
Loannmotes . T 0T =0T,
Temm lcans” 53 57 53 57
Private placement notes* 108 107 108 107

*  The weghted average interast rates disclosed above have been restated 10 exclude arortised tees and non uthisation feas as the Directors are of the cpinien that

this provides more relevant information as to the interest rates paid upon the Group's bormowings
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24, Financial habilihies (contimued)
b) Drawn debt faciities {continued})
The principal features of the Group's drawn debt facifities at 30 June 2013 were as follows

1) Commutted facilities

A committed £700 Om revelving credit facibty, reducing to £550 Om in June 2016, was made avallable under credit agreements dated 14 May
2013 as part of the Group's comprehenswve refinancing As at 30 June 2013, £rut was drawn The matunty date of this factlity 1s 14 May 2018
A committed £100 Om term loan, of which £100 Om was drawn at 30 June 2013, made available under a credit agreement dated 10 May 2011
{as amended from time to time and most recently with effect from 14 May 2013), the matunity of which i1s scheduled to be repard as follows
25% on 1 July 2019, 25% on 1 July 2020, and 50% on 1 July 2021

Committed loans of £30 3m have been obtained in the year under the Government’s 'Get Britain Bulding' and local government 'Growing Places
Fund’ schemes These loans are due to be repaid between 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2018 with the majonty due in the year ending 30 June 2018

1) Fixed rate Staring private placement notes

£65 8m of fixed rate Sterling pnvate placement notes expire between 23 Apnl 2018 and 23 Aprl 2020 and were issued pursuant to a note
purchase agreement dated 23 Apnl 2008 (as amended from bme to tme and most recently with effect from 10 May 2011} As part of the
comprehensive refinancing agreed on 14 May 2(H3, these private placement notes were prepaid in full on 2 July 2013

i) Fixed rate US Dollar private placement notes

US Dollar private ptacement notes of $80 Om due on 23 August 2017 were issued pursuant to note purchase agreements dated 10 May 2011
{as amended from tme to time and most recently with effect from 14 May 2013)

US Dollar ten-year private placement notes of $42 6m 1ssued pursuant to a note purchase agreement dated 23 Apni 2008 (as amended from
time to time and most recently with effect from 10 May 2011} As part of the comprehenswve refinancing agreed on 14 May 2013, these private
placement notes were prepaid in full on 2 July 2013

US Dellar five-year private ptacement notes of $20 Bm 1ssued pursuant to a note purchase agreement dated 23 Aprnl 2008 (as amended from
time to time and most recently with effect from 10 May 2011) These notes matured and were repaid on 23 Apnl 2013

US Dollar ten-year private placement notes of $124 Om 1ssued pursuant fo a note purchase agreement dated 23 August 2007 (as amended
from time to time and most recently with effect from 10 May 2011} As part of the comprehensive refinancing agreed on 14 May 2013, these
private placement notes were prepaid in full on 2 July 2013

) Floating rate Sterting loan notes

The Group had £nil (2012 €0 2m) Sterling loan notes at 30 June 2013 These loan notes were repaid on 2 July 2012

v} Bank overdrafts and uncommitted money market facilitias

122

The Group also uses vanous bank overdrafts and uncommiited borrowing facities that are subject to floating interest rates linked to UK
bank rate, LIBOR and money market rates as apphicable All debt s unsecured
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24, Financial liabilities (continued)
¢} Net debt
Net debt at 30 June 2013 1s shown below

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Em £m £m &m
Cash and cash equivalents 294 4 150 3 2740 701
Non-current borrowings
Bank loans® - 62 - 62
Term loans® (85 0) (100 0) {85 0} (100 Q)
Govemment loans {29 8) - - -
Private placement notes (51 8) (225 0} (518  (2250)
Total non-current borrowings {166 6} {3312 {136 8) {331 2}
Current borrowings -
Bank overdrafts 41) — (50 9) @4
Loan notes - 02 - {02
Govemnment loans (0 5) - - -
Private placement notes (175 6) {106} {175 6) {10 6)
Kickstart eguaty funding (16) (t3) - -
Total current borrowings {181 8) (121) (226 5) (13 2)
Total borrowings {348 4) (343 3) {363 3) (344 4)
Denvatwe financtal instruments
Foreign exchange swaps 281 253 281 253
Net debt {25 9) {1677) 612 249 0)

*  Non-current bank loans at 30 June 2012 of £106 2m have been recategornsed as £6 2m bank koans and the term loan of £100 Om

Cash and cash equivalents compnise cash at bank and other short-term highly hquid investments with a maturity of three months or less Net
debt 1s defined as cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts, interes: beanng borrowings and foreign exchange swaps The Group ncludes
foreign exchange swaps within net debt These swaps were entered Into to hedge the foreign exchange exposure upon the Group's US Doltar
denominated private placemant notes The Group's foreign exchange swaps have both an interast rate and an exchange rate element and only

the exchange rate element on the notional amount of the swap 1s included within the net debt note above

The Group's dervative financial instruments at 30 June are shown below

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2042

£m £m £m £m

Ferergn exchange swap - exchange rate element 281 253 281 253

Foreign exchange swap —interest rate element 12 33 12 33
] _— S —_— — 293 286 293 286
Intgrest rate swaps (271) (525 (27 1) 525}

Net dervative financial instruments 22 (239 22 23 9)

On 14 May 2013, the Group completed a comprehenswe refinancing package and as part of this, irrevocably committed to prepay US$166 6m
of private placement notes and cancel the associated foreign exchange swaps, with effect from no later than 2 July 2013 Accordingly, on 2 July

2013 foreign exchange swaps of US$166 6m weare cancelled
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25. Denvative financial instruments - swaps

The Group and Company have entered into derivative financial instruments to manage interest rate and foreign exchange nsks as explamed

in note 26 Netther the Group nor the Company enters intc any dervatives for speculative purposes

Group and
Company
2013 2012
Assat Liabllity Assel Liablity
£Em £m £m £m
Designated as cash flow hedges
Non-current
Interest rate swaps - (271) - {62 5)
Foreign exchange swaps 41 - 204 08
Current _— . —
Foreign exchange swaps 256 {0 4) - -
Total derivative financial instruments 297 {27 5) 294 {633

a) Interest rate swaps

The Group and Company enter into derwative transactions in the form of swap arrangements to manage the cash flow risks, refated to interest

rates, ansing from the Group's and Company's sources of finance

The Group's and Company's £60 0m 2017 and £25 Om 2022 interest rate swap arrangements contain a clause that allows the Group and the

Company or counterparty to cancel the swap in May 2015 at farr value

As at 30 June 2013, the Group had outstanding net floating rate Sterkng debt and overdrafts of £117 4m {2012 £106 5m) and the Company

had outstanding net floating rate Sterling debt and overdrafts of £135 9m (2012 £108 9m) in obtaning this funding, the Group and the

Company sought to achieve certainty as to the avaitability of, and income statement charge retated to, a designated proportion of anticipated

future debt requirements

The Group and Gompany have entered into swap arrangements to swap £137 0m (2012 £192 Omj of this debt into fixed rate Sterling debt In
accordance with the Group and Company treasury policy outlined In note 26 After taking into account swap arrangements, the fixed interest

rates applicable to the debt were as follows

Fixed rate 2013 Fxed rate 2012
£m payable % Maturity £m payable % Matunty
_ 600 608 2017 600 L 6og 2017
19 5 618 2017 195 618 2017
325 583 2017 325 583 2017
- - - 300 594 2022
250 563 2022 500 563 2022
1370 1920

On 14 May 2013, as part of the Group's comprehensive refinancing package the Group agreed to cancel £55m nominal value of interest rate
swaps These interest rate swaps were cancelled and settled in June 2013 with an exceptional charge of £18 5m included within finance costs

Further details are included i note 3

The swap arrangements are designated as a cash flow hedge against future interest rate movements The far value of the swap arrangements
as at 30 June 2013, which 18 based on third party valuations, was a liabiity of £27 1m (2312 £52 5m) with a gain of £6 9m (2012 loss of £16 6m)

charged directly to equity in the year
There was no ineffectiveness to be taken through the income statement duning the year or the prior year
Further disclosures relating to financial ingtruments are set out in note 26

b} Foreign exchange swaps

The Group and Company enter into dervative transactions in the form of swap arrangements to manage the cash flow risks related te foreign

exchange ansing from the Group’s sources of finance denommnated in US Dollars

As at 30 June 2013, the Group and Company had outstanding fixed rate US Dollar loan notes of $246 6m (2012 $267 2m)
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25. Denvative financial mstruments - swaps (continued)

b) Foreign exchange swaps (continued)
The Group and Company have entered into swap arrangements to swap all of this debt into fixed rate Sterling debt in accordance with the Group
treasury polcy outhned in note 26 After taking mto account swap arrangements, the fixed interest rates applicable to the debt were as follows

Fixed rate 2013 Fxed rate 2012

$m payable % Maturity* $m payabis % Matunty

- - - 182 898 2013

- - - 10 1095 2013

- - o - - 14 1078 2013

1037 6 61 2013 1037 661 2017

75 10 55 2013 75 1055 2017

128 975 2013 128 975 2017

800 814 2017 800 814 2017

337 924 2013 337 924 2018

36 1223 2013 36 1223 2018

53 1137 2013 53 137 2018
2466 267 2

* On 14 May 2013, the Group completed a comprehensive refinancing package and as part of this, irrevocably commitied to prepay US$166 6m of prvate
placement notes and cancel the associated forelgn exchange swaps, with effect from no later than 2 July 2013 Accordingly, on 2 July 2013, toreign exchange
swaps of LIS$166 6m were cancelled

The swap arrangements are designated as cash flow hedges against future foreign exchange rate movements The hedges match the contractual
inttrat receipt, the final settlement and match 83% of the interest payments The farr value of the swap arrangements as at 30 Jung 2013, which 15
based on third party valuations, was an asset of £29 3m 2012 £28 6m) with a gan of £0 7m (2012 £4 6m) credited directly to equity in the year

There was no ineffectiveness to be taken through the ncome statement dunng the year or the pnor year Further disclosures relating to financiat
instruments are set out in note 26

26. Financial nsk management
The Group's approach to nsk management and the pnincipal operational nsks of the busmess are detaled on pages 34 to 39 The Group s
financial assets, financial kabilties and denvative financial mstrurments are detated in notes 23, 24 and 26

The Group’s operations and financing arrangements expose 1t to a vanety of financial nsks that include the effects of changes in debt market
prices, credit nsks, iquidity nsks and interest rates The most significant of these to the Group 15 hquidity nisk and, accordingly, there 1s a regular,
detailed system for the reporting and forecasting of cash flows from the operations to Group management to ensure that nsks are promptly
identified and appropriate mitigating achons taken by the central treasury department These forecasts are further stress-tested at a Group level
on a regular basis to ensure that adequate headroom within faciliies and banking covenants 1s maimtained In addition, the Group has in place a
nsk management programme that seeks to imit the adverse effects of the other nisks on its financial performance, in particular by using financial
instruments, Including debt and denvatives, to hedge interest rates and currency rates The Group does not use denvative inancial instruments
for speculatve purposes

The Board approves treasury policies and certasn day-to-day treasury actwvities have been delegated to a centralised Treasury Cperating Commutiee,
which in tum regularly reports to the Board The treasury department implements guidelines that are established by the Board and the Treasury
Operating Committee

a) Liquidity nsk

Liquidity nisk 1s the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its habilities as they fall due The Group actively maintains a mixture of Jong-term
and medium-term commutted facilties that are designed to ensure that the Group has sufficient avadable {unds for operations The Group's
borrowings are typically cyclical throughout the financial year and peak in Aprl and May and Octeber and November of each year, due to
seasonal trends in ncome  Accordingly, the Group mantains sufficient faciity headroom to cover these requirements On a normal operating
basis, the Group has a policy of maintaning headroom of up to £150 0Om The Group identifies and takes appropnriate actions based upon its
regular, detaled system for the reporting and forecasting of cash flows from its operations At 30 June 2013, the Group had committed bank
and other facilities of £1,030 5m {2012 £1,091 Om} and total facilities of £1,076 7m (2012 £1,137 2m) The Group's drawn debt against these
faciities was £342 7m (2012 £3420m) This represented 33 3% (2012 31 3%) of avallable committed facilities at 30 June 2013 in addition,
the Group had £284 4m (2012 £150 3m) of cash and cash equivalents
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26. Financial risk management (continued)

a) Liguidity nsk (continued)

The Group was in compltance with its financial covenants at 30 June 2013 At the date of approval of the financial statements, the Group’s
interna! forecasts indicate that it will remain in compliance with these covenants for the foreseeable future, being at least twelve months from
the date of signing these financial statements

The Group's objective 1s to minimise refinancing nsk The Group thergfore has a policy that the average maturty of its cormmitted bank faciities
and private placement notes 15 at least two years on average with a target of thres years At 30 June 2013, the average matunty of the Group's
faciites was 3 9 years (2012 3 7 years)

The Group maintains certain committed floating rate faciities with banks to ensure sufficient hquidity for s operattons The undrawn committed
facilities avaidable to the Group, in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met, were as follows

Group Cormpany

203 2012 2013 2012

Expiry date £m £m £m £m
In less than one year - - - -
In more than one year but not more than two years 1500 800 1500 900
In more than two years but not more than five years 5500 6700 550 0 6700

In more than five years - - - -

7000 7600 7000 7600

tn addition, the Group had £42 1m (2012 £46 2m} of undrawn uncommitted faciities avalable at 30 June 2013

The expected undiscounted cash flows of the Group's financial labiites, excluding dervative financial liabilities, by remaining contractual matunty
at the balance sheet date were as follows

Carrylng Contractual  Lessthan Over
amount  cash flow 1 year 1-2years  2-5years Syears
Group Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
2013
Loans and borrowings {including bank overdrafts) 24a 3484 542 5 2434 352 153 9 1100
Trade and other payables 24a 1,235 1 1,2819 8651 276 6 120 3 199
1,583 5 1,824 4 1,108 5 3118 274 2 1299
2012
Loans and borrowings (including bank overdrafts) ____Ma 3433 5685 627 497 1161 3300
Trade and other payables 24a 11991 1,253 2 8494 2591 126 3 184

15424 18117 HaA 3088 2424 3484

The expected undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial habilities, excluding dervative financial labilities, by remaining contractual
maturity at the balance sheet date were as follows

Carrying Contractual  Less than Qver
amount  cash flow 1year 1-2years 2-Syears Syears
Company Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
2013
Loans andborrowings (ncluding bank overdrefts) 248 3633 | 5533 2873 296 1264 1100
Trade and other payables 24a 710 710 710 - - -
Intercompany payables 24a 1361 1361 1361 - - -
570 4 7604 494 4 296 126 4 1100
2012
Loans and borrowings {including bank overdrafts) 24a 344 4 5506 638 497 1161 3300
Trade and other payables 24a 288 288 288 - - -
3732 5884 926 497 161 3300
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26. Financial nsk management (continued)

a) Liquidity nsk {continued)

The disctosure of contractuai cash flows in the note above 1s calculated on the basis that the Group's £700m revolving credit facility is fully drawn
down At 30 June 2013 none of this facility was drawn

Trade and other payables excludes deferred ncome, payments received in excess of amounts recoverable on contracts, tax and soctal security
and other non-financial habiltres

The expected undiscounted cash flows of the Group's and the Company's dernvative financial instruments, by remaining contractual matunty,
at the balance sheet date were as follows

Carrying Contractual Less than Over
amount  cash flow 1year 1-2years  2-5years 5 yeoars
Group and Gompany Notes fm £m £m £m £m £m
2018
Financial assets
Gross settled denvatives _
Receve feg _ 23 297 3078 2399 40 639 -
Payleg . _ _ _ _ _ T 2538)  Q1897)  @4Q  BOY) -
Fimancialhabiites S e
Gross settled denvatives L R . i
Receveleg = _ _ B __2a 049 _ 76 176 . T _ .
Peyleg ————_ {18 0) {180 - - -
Net settied dervatives 24a (271) (27 1) {71) {6 6} {11 5 (19)
22 265 427 (6 6) {77) {19)
2
Fmancialassets e e
Gross settled denvatves
Recoveleg 2 294 2207 2483 109 1585 __ 270
Payleg . _______-___(899___[0§ _ _(100) __ (¥7) __ @0

Fimancialhabihittes =~~~ o L
Gross settied denvatives

Receveleg 24a g 15 14 @7 69 25

Pay leg . - 22 (15 ___ (08 (73 ___ @8,

Net settled denvatives 24a {525) 654) @0 ©6) @5 9) (109)
{239} @253) 58 88) @9 89

Under the Group's International Swaps and Dervatives Association Master Agreement (‘ISDA'), the interest rate swaps are settled on a net basis

b) Market risk (price nsk)
i) UK housing market nsk
This section specifically discusses UK housing market risk in the context of the financial instruments in the Group balance sheet

The Group 1s subject to the prevailing conditions of the UK economy and the Group's earnings are dependent upon the level of UK house prices

UK house prices are determined by the UK economy and economic cenditions including employment ievels, interest rates, consumer confidence,

mortgage avallability and competiter pricing However, the Group does seek to maintain an appropniate geographic spread of operating divisions

and an appropriate product mix to mitigate any risks caused by local economic condtions The Group has detalled procedures to manage its

market related operational ngks, which include

* aweekly review of key trading indicators, including reservations, sales rates, visitor levels, levels of Incentives, competitor activity and cash
flow projections,

+ the provision to mortgage providers with complete transparency of house purchase prices alongside any discounts or other incentives in
order that they have appropriate information upon which to base therr lending deciston, and

+ collaboration with key mortgage lenders to ensure that products are appropriate wherever possible for therr customers

The UK housing market affects the valuation of the Group's non-financial assets and liabilities and the cntical judgements appiied by management
in these financiat statements, including the valuation of land and werk in progress, goodwill and brands
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26. Financial risk management (continued)

b) Market nsk {price nsk) (continued)

1) UK housing market nsk {continued)

The Group's financial assets and habilties, which are directly inked to the UK housing market, are as foltows

Not linked
Linked to to UK
UK housing housing
market market Total
Group £m £m £m
2013
Non-denvative financial assets 128 4 3478 476 2
Non-denvative financial habilibes - (1,5835) (1,583 5)
Denvatives - 22 22
1284 (1,2335)  (1,1051)
2012
Non-dervative financial assets 1892 1777 366 9
Non-derivative financial labiiies = (1,542 4) (1,542 4)
Denvatwves - (239 239

1852 (1.3886) (11994

The value of the Group's available for sale financial assets 1s directly inked to the UK housing market At 30 June 2013, these assets were carried
at a far value of £128 4m (2012 £189 2m} Further information I1s set out in note 16

The Company has no financial assets and habilities wihich are directly inked to the UK housing market

Sensitivity analysts

At 30 June 2013, 1f UK house prices had been 5% lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s house price Iinked financial
assets and habiltties, which are solely avalable for sale financial assets, would decrease in value, excluding the effects of tax, by £8 4m (2012
£9 7m) with a corresponding reduction in both the result for the year and equity

ii) interest rate rnisk
The Group has both interest bearing assets and interest bearing habilities Floating rate borrowings expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
nsk and fixed rate borrowings expose the Group to fair value interest rate nsk

The Group has a policy of maintaining both long-term fixed rate funding and medium-term floating rate funding so as to ensure that there 1s
appropriate flexibility for the Group’s operational requirements The Group has entered into swap arrangements to hedge cash flow nisks relating
to interest rate movements on a proportion of its debt and has entered into fixed rate debt in the form of Sterling and US Dollar denominated
private placements

The Group has a conservative treasury risk management strategy The proportion of the Group’s median gross borrowings calculated on the
latest three-year plan that should be at fixed rates of interest i1s determined by the average expecied interest cover for that penod The current
target i1s for 30-60% to be at fixed rates of interest Due to the ¢yclicalty of our borrowings throughout the year, as at 30 June 2013 65 3%
(2012 61 79%) of the Group's gross borrowings were fixed Group interest rates are fixed using both swaps and fixed rate debt instruments
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26. Financial nsk management (continued)

b) Market nsk (prnice nsk} (continued)

i} Interest rate nsk {continued)

The exposure of the Group's financial habilities to interest rate nsk s as follows

Non-
Floating Flxed interest
rate rate bearing
financial financial financial
labilities liabiiities habilties Total
Group £m £m £m £m
2013
Financial kabilties (excluding denvatives) 1174 2310 1,2351 1,583 5
Impact of nterest rate swaps (1370} 1370 - -
Financial habihty exposure to interest rate nisk {19 6} 3680 1,2351 1,583 5
2012 _
Financial labilities {excluding dervatives) 106 5 2368 1,991 1,542 4
Impact of interest rate swaps (192 0) 1920 = =
Financial iability exposure to interest rate nsk 855 428 8 1,1981 1,542 4
The exposure of the Company’s financial labilities to interest rate nisk is as follows
Non-
Floating Fixed nterest
rate rate bearing
tinancial financiat financlal
liabliities  liabilities  labilties Total
Company £m £m £m £m
2013
Financial habilities {excluding denvatves) 2720 2274 710 570 4
Impact of interest rate swaps (1370) 1370 - -
Financial hability exposure to interest rate risk 1350 364 4 710 570 4
2012
Financial labities (excluding denvatives) 1089 2355 288 3732
Impact of interest rate swaps (1920 18920 - -
Financial hability exposure to interest rate nsk 831 4275 288 3732

Floating interest rates on Sterling borrowings are inked to the UK bank rate, LIBOR and money market rates The floating rates are fixed in
advance for penods generally ranging from one to six months Short-term flexibility 1s achieved through the use of overdraft committed and

uncommutted bank faciliies The weighted average interest rate for floating rate borrowings in 2013 was 3 6% (2012 3 5%)

Sterling private placement notes of £65 8m (2012 £65 8m) were arranged at fixed interest rates and exposed the Group to far value interest rate
nsk The weighted average interest rate for fixed rate Sterling private placement notes for 2013 was 12 0% (2012 12 0%) with, at 30 June 2013,

a weighted average penod of zero years (2012 6 9 years) for which the rate 1s fixed

US Dollar denominated private placement notes of £133 5m {2012 £145 Om) were arranged at fixed interest rates and exposed the Group to fair
value interest rate nsk The weighted average interest rate for fixed rate US Dollar denominated private placement notes, after the effect of foreign
exchange rate swaps, for 2013 was 10 2% {2012 10 29%) with, at 30 June 2013, a weighted average period of 1 5 years (2012 4 & years) for which

the rate 1s fixed

On 14 May 2013, the Group completed a comprehensive refinancing package and irrevocably committed to prepay the £65 8m Sterling pnvate
placement notes and US$166 6m private placement notes and ¢cancel the associated foreign exchange swaps, with effect from no tater than
2 July 2013 Accordingly, on 2 July 2013 the Sterling private placement notes of £85 8m and US$166 6m private placement notes were prepaid

and foreign exchange swaps cf US$166 6m were cancelled

Sensttivity analysis

In the year ended 30 June 2013, if UK interest rates had been 50 basis pomnts higher/lower and all other varables were held constant, the Group's
pre-tax profit would decrease/increase by £0 6m 2012 £1 6m), the Group's post-tax profit would decrease/increase by £0 5m (2012 £1 2m) and

the Group's equity would decrease/increase by £0 5m (2012 £12m)
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26. Financial nsk management {(continued)

b) Market nsk (pnce nsk) (continued)

ui} Forewgn exchange rate nsk

As at 30 June 2013, the Group has fixed rate US Dollar denominated private placement notes of $246 6m {2012 $267 2m} In order to mitigate nisks
associated with the movement in the foreign exchange rate, the Group has a policy of fully hedging the principal of ts US Dollar denominated debt
and a significant proportion of the interest payments The Group therefore entered into foreign exchange swap arrangermnents on the issue of s US
Dollar denommnated debt, afl of which are designated as cash flow hedges Accordingly, the Group has no net exposure to foreign currency nsk on
the principal of its US Dollar debt The foreign exchange swaps match 83% of the interest payments and therefore the Group 1 subject to {oreign
exchange rate nsk upon the remaning 17%

On 14 May 2013, the Group completed a comprehensive refinancing package and trrevocably commutted to prepay US$166 6m of private
placement notes and cancel the associated foreign exchange swaps, with effect from no later than 2 July 2013 Accordingly, on 2 Juty 2013
foreign exchange swaps of US$166 6m were cancelled

Details of the Group's foreign exchange swaps are provided in note 25

Sensitivity analysis

in the year ended 30 June 2013, if the US Dollar per Pound Sterling exchange rate had baen $0O 20 highar/lower and all other vanables were held
constant, the Group's pre-tax profit wouid decrease/increase by £0 4m (2012 £0 3m}, the Group's post-tax profit would decrease/increase by
£0 3m (2012 £0 2m) and the Group's equity would decrease/increase by £0 3m (2012 £0 2mj)

¢) Credit nsk

In the mayority of cases, the Group receives cash upon legal completion for private sales and recesves advance stage payments from Registered
Prowiders for social housing The Group has £128 4m (2012 £182 2m) of availlable for sale financial assets, which expose it to credit nisk, although
this asset is spread over alarge number of properties [n addition, the Group and Company have an investment of £25 8m in a joint venture which
holds avallable for sale financial assets, which exposes the jont venture to credit nisk, although this 1s spread over a large number of properties
As such, neither the Group nor the Comgany have a significant concentration of credit nsk, as their exposure 1s spread over a large number of
counterparties and customers

The Group manages credrt risk in the following ways

* The Group has a credit policy that 1s imited to financial institutions with tugh credit ratings, as set by international credt rating agencies,
and has a policy deterrmning the maximum permissible exposure to any single counterparty

* The Group only contracts dernvative financial Instruments with counterparties with which the Group has an ISDA Master Agreement in place
These agreements permit net settlement, thereby reducing the Group's credit exposure 1o indwidual counterparties

The maximum exposure to any counterparty at 30 June 2013 was £76 9m (2012 £42 5m) of cash on deposit with a financial institutton The
carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial staternents, net of any allowance for losses, represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit nsk

As at 30 June 2013, the Company was exposed to £969 6m (2012 £556 4m) of credit nsk in relation to intercompany loans, as well as financial
guarantees, performance bonds and the bank borrowings of subsidiary undertakings The Company was also exposed to credit nsk through
its joint venture as explaned above Further details are provided in notes 34 and 35

d) Capital nsk management (cash flow risk)
The Group's objectives whan managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order 1o provide returns for
shareholders and meet its liabilities as they fall due whilst maintaining an appropnate capital structure

The Group manages as capital its equity, as set out In the consoldated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, its bank borrowings
{being overdrafts, loan notes and bank loans) and its private placement notes, as set out in note 24

The Group Is subject to the prevaiing conditions of the UK economy and the Group's earnings are dependent upon the level of UK house prices
UK house prices are determined by the UK economy and economic conditions including employment levels, interest rates, consumer confidence,
mortgage availzbility and competitor prcing The management of these operational nisks 1s set out in the principal nisks and uncertainties on
pages 34 to 39

In addition, the other methods by which the Group can manage its short-term and long-term capita! structure include adjusting the level of

ordinary dividends paid to shareholders (assuming the Company 1s paying a dividend), 1ssumg new share capital, arranging cebt to meet lability
payments, and selling assets to reduce debt
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27. Retirement benefit obhigations
The Group operates defined contribution and defined benefit pension schemes

Defined contnbution schemes

2013 2012
£m £m

Contributions duringtheyear = _ —_— — S
Group defined contnbution schemes consolidated income statement charge 70 87

At the balance sheet date, there were outstanding contrnbutions of £0 7m (2012 £0 5m), which were paid on or before the due date

Defined benefit scheme

The Group operates a funded defined benefit pension scheme in Great Britain, the Barratt Group Pension & Life Assurance Scheme {the
‘Scheme?, which with effect from 30 June 2009, ceased to offer future accrual of defined benefit pensions Alternative defined contribugion
pension arrangements are in place for current employees

The most recent fult actuanial valuation of the Scheme was carried out at 30 November 2030 The results of this valuation have been updated to
30 June 2013 by a qualfied sndependent actuary The Group has agreed with the Trustees of the Scheme to make contributions to the Scheme of
£13 3m per annum untit 31 January 2017 to address the Scheme's deficit The Group also continues to meet the Scheme's administration
expenses, death 1n service premiums and Pension Protection Fund levy

At the balance sheet date, there were outstanding contributions of £11m (2012 £11m)

The assets of the defined benefit scheme have been calculated at farr (bid) vatue The liabilities of the Scheme have been calculated at each
balance sheet date using the following assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions 2013 2012
Weighted average assumptions to determine benefit obligations .
Discount rate _A470%  480%

Rateofpncewflavon
Weighted average assumptions to determine net cost

Discount rate - 4 80% 550%
Expected ong-term rate of return on plan assets . A91%  B10%
Rate of price inflaton 2 90% 3 50%

__340% _ _290%

Members are assumed to exchange 15% of their pension for cash on retirement The assumptions have been chosen by the Group following
advice from Mercer Human Resource Consulting Limited, the Group's actuariat advisers

The following table illustrates the hfe expectancy for an average member on reaching age 65, according to the mortality assumptions used to
calculate the Schems habilities

Assumptions Male Female
Retred member born in 1948 {ife expectancy at age 65) _ 242years 266 years

Non-retired member born in 1968 (ife expectancy at age 65) 2EQyears 287 years

The base mortalty assumptions are based upon the STNA mortality tables The Group has carried out a mortality investigation of the Scheme's
membership to ensure that this 1s an appropriate assumphon Allowance for future ncreases in life expectancy 1s made in line with the medium
cohort projecton, with an underpin on the annual rate of improvement in mortality of 125% (2012 1 25%)
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27. Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)
The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the Scheme liabilites are set out below

Change mn Increase n
Assumptions assumption Schermne habilities
Discount rate e o ___ Decreaseby01% . £BemE21%)
Rate of inflation Increase by 01% £38m (12%)
Life expectancy Increase by 1 year £81m (2 6%)
The amounts recognised In the consolidated income statement were as follows
2013 2012
£m £m
Interest cost 133 136
Expected retumn on Scheme assets {12 8) (14 8)
Total pension cost/{income} recogmised in net finance costs in the consolidated income statement 05 (12
Total pension cost/{income)} recogmised in the consolidated income statement 05 (12
The amounts recognised n the Group statement of comprehensive income were as follows
2013 2012
£m £m
Expected return less actual return on Scheme assets (18 6} 07
Loss ansing from changes in the assumptions underlying the present value of benefit obligations 234 248
Total pension cost recogmised in the Group statement of comprehensive iIncome 48 241

The amount included in the Group and Company balance sheets ansing from obligations in respect of the Scheme is as foliows

2013 2012

£m £m
Present value of funded obligations 3083 2805
Farr value of Scheme assets (294 9) (2591)
Defictt for funded Scheme/net hability recognised in the Group and Company balance sheets at 30 June 134 214

2013 2012

£m £m
Net liability for defined benefit obligations at 1 July 214 118
Contributions pad to the Scheme (133) (133
Expansedincome) recognised in the consclidated mcome statement 05 12
Amounts recogrised in the Group statement of comprehensive Income 48 241
Net liability for defined benefit obligations at 30 June 134 214
A deferrec tax asset of £3 1m (2012 £5 2m) has been recognised n the Group balance sheet in relation to the pension iabilty {fote 17)
Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows

2013 2012

£m £m
Present value of benefit oblgatonsat 1uly - 2805 2506
Imerestcost _ e 133 1368
Actuarial foss o o 234 248
Benefits paid from Scheme {8 9) 8 5)
Present value of benefit obligations at 30 June 3083 2805
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27. Retirement benefit obhigations (contmued)
Movements in the far value of Scheme assets were as follows

2013 2002
£m £m
Farvalue of Scheme assetsat 1oy _ 2891 _ 2388
Expected return on Scheme assets 128 1438
Actuaral ganon Schemeassets . ___.___._186 __ 07
Employer contnoutons 133 _ 13
Benefits paid from Scheme (89 8 5)
Fair value of Scheme assets at 30 June 294 9 2591
The analysis of Scheme assets and the expected rate of return at the balance sheet date were as follows
2013 202
Expected Expected

Percentage  returnon  Percentage returm on
of Scheme Scheme  of Scheme Scheme

assets assets assets assets
Equity securties o _ 47 2% nfa 49 2% 820%
Debt securties 52 5% n/a 50 2% 370%
Other 03% n/a 06% 050%
Total 100 0% n/a 100 0% 491%

As the Group will be adopting IAS 19 (Revised) Employee benefits on 1 July 2013, the expected return on Scheme assets is not relevant at
30 June 2013

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption, the Group considered the current leve! of expected returns on nsk
free investments (prmarily Government bonds), the historical level of sk premium associated with cther asset classes in which the portfolio
15 nvested and the expectatons for future returns of each asset class The expected return for each asset class was then weighted based
on the actual asset allocation to develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption for the portfolio

The actuai return on Scheme assets was as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

Actual return on Scheme assets 314 155
The five-year history of expenence adjustments ansing on Scheme (labilities)/assets were as follows

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Present value of defined benefit obligations Em)
Far value of Scheme assets €M) _ __

_ 8083 (805 (506 2483 (2019

2949 2501 2388 2022 1704

Defictinthe Scheme gy . 84 @4 {18 _ @sh LSJE)L
Expenence adustment in Scheme habétes €o) - _ _ __ _ - _....- . .68 - -
chc_a_ntqgepf§che_:_me_||@9|hp_gs(f/o) R - A -
Experience adjustment in Scheme assets (Em)_ W6 07 185 __ 176 (0%
Percentage of Schemeassets (%) _ .63 03 77 BT (120
Amount recognised in the Group statement of comprehensive ncome €m) 48 241 20) 263 141
Percentage of Scheme assets (%) 16 93 (92) 130 83

The cumulative amount of actuanal gains and losses since 30 June 2005 recognised in the Group statement of comprehensive iIncome
15 aloss of £13 8m

The expected employer contnbution to the Scheme in the year ending 30 June 2014 15 £13 3m
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28. Share capital
2013 2012
£m £m
Aliotted and 1ssued ordinary shares o
10p each fully paid 878,715,092 ordinary shares {2012 975,790,605) 980 976

During the year, 4,620,159 (2012 8,313,562) awards over the Company's shares were grantad under the Company’s Executive Long-Term
Performance Plan, 2,679,912 (2012 6,896,472} options were granted under the Savings-Related Share Option Scheme {{SRSOS’), 1,338,259
{2012 132,491) awards over the Company’s shares were granted under the Company's Co-Investment Plan and awards of 585,264 (2012 nil)
were granted over the Company’s shares under the Senior Management incentive Scheme

Allotment of shares dunng the penod
During the year, a total of 2,175,233 (2012 10,449,479) shares were 1ssued to salisfy exercises under the 2009 and 2010 SRSOS schemes

During the year, 27,147 shares (2012 nil) were 1ssued to satisfy early exercises under the 2010, 2011 and 2012 grants of the SRSOS schemes

Empioyee Benefit Trust

The Barratt Developments PLC Employee Benefit Trust (the 'EBT) holds 3,988,259 (2012 3,849,556) ordinary shares in the Company A further
1,722,101 shares were allotted to the EBT by Barratt Developments PLC on 3 December 2012 at a price of 10 pence per share During the year,
the EBT disposed of 1,583,398 shares i settlement of exercises under the Sentor Management Share Option Plan 2009/10 and Executive Share
Option Scheme 2009/10 The market value of the shares held by the EBT at 30 June 2013 at 309 6 pence per share (2012 1381 pence per
share) was £12,347,650 (2012 £5,354,732) The shares are held in the EBT for the purpose of satisfying options that have been granted under
the Barratt Developments PLC Executive and Employee Share Option Plans and Long-Term Performance Plans These ordinary shares do not
rank for dvidend and do not count I the calculaton of the weighted average number of shares used to calculate earnings per share untll such
time as they are vested to the relevant employee

29, Share-based payments
Analysis of income statement charge/(credit)

213 2012
£m £m
Equity-settied share-based payments
Long-Term Performance Plan 29 21
Savings-Retated Share Option Scheme ___os 05
Executive Share Option Scheme (02 04
Senior Management Share Option Plan - 03
Senior Management Incentive Scheme 03 -
Co-investment Plan 06 -
Cash-settled share-based payments - 02
44 31

As at 30 June 2013, an accrual of £4 9m (2012 £0 7m)was recognised in respect of social secunty habilibies on share-based paymenis

a) Details of the share-based payment schemes

1) Long-Term Performance Plan

The Long-Term Performance Flan (the ‘LTPP") was inttally approved by sharehelders at the Annual General Meeting held in November 2003
to take effect from 1 July 2003 As the ten year imit on powers to grant any awards under the LTPP was due to expire on 12 November 2013,
a resofution seeking () the approval of shareholders to extend the LTPP for a further ten years to 12 November 2023, and, (n} the adoption

of the updated rules of the LTPP, was proposed to, and passed by, shareholders at the 2012 Annual General Meeting During the financial year
ended 30 June 2013, 4,620,159 {2012 8,313,562) awards were granted uncder the LTPP Awards under the LTPP are at the discretion of the
Remuneration Committee {the ‘Committeg’), taking into account iIndividua! performance and overall performance of the Group An employee
1$ not eligible to receve options under the Executive Share Option Scheme and awards under the LTPP in the same financial year Information
on the performance condiions for the LTPP awards to be granted during the 2013/14 financial year and each of the outstanding LTPP awards,
can be found on pages 68 to 73

134 BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2013




29. Share-based payments (cant:nued)

a) Detatls of the share-based payment schemes (contmued)

i) Savings-Related Share Option Scheme

In November 2008, the Company adopted the Savings-Related Share Option Scheme {{SRS0S") Under the SRSOS, participants are required 1o
make monthly contributions to a HM Revenue and Customs {HMRC') approved savings contract with a bank or bulding society for a penod of three
or five years On entering into the savings contract, participants are granted an option to acquire ordinary shares in the Company at an exercise price
determined under the rules of the SRSOS The exercise of options under the SRSOS 1s not subject 1o the satisfaction of a performance conditign as
the SRSOS 1s HM Revenue and Customs approved and gpen to all eligible employees The first grant under the SRSOS was made on 3 February
2009 at an exercise price of 87 05 pence per share, which was subsequently adjusted (in accordance with a formula approved by the HMRC) to
reflect the Company’s Placing and Rights Issue on 4 November 2008 (the 'Rights Issue') to 5708 pence per share The second grant under the
SRSOS was made on 30 March 2010 at an exercise pnce of 116 18 pence per share The third grant under the SRSOS was made on 23 March 2011
at an exercise price of 104 56 pence per share The fourth grant under the SRSOS was made on 28 March 2012 at an exercise price of 125 00
pence per share The fith grant under the SRSOS was made on 27 March 2013 at an exercise pnce of 204 60 pence per share

1) Executive Share Option Scheme

In November 2008, the Company adopted the Executive Share Option Scheme (the 'ESOS’) The grant of share options under the ESOS is at the
discretion of the Committee, taking iInto account ndividual performance and the overall performance of the Group Options must be held for a minimum
of three years from the date of grant before they ¢an be exercised and lapse if not exerctsed within ten years from the date of grant The exercise of
options granted under the ESOS 15 subject to the achievement of an objectve performance condition set by the Committee, which for options granted
In 2009/10 was based upon otal shareholder return and earnings per share performance cenditions The performance conditions for the ESOS granted
in December 2009 (the ‘200810 ESOS", were tested after the financial year ended 30 June 2012 and accordingly, 32 8% of the 2009/10 ESOS vested
on 10 December 2012 Participants have until @ December 2019 to exercise ther options

w) Semor Management Share Option Plan

In December 2009, the Company adopted the Senior Management Share Option Plan 2009-2012 (the 'SMSOP’) The Board approved the grant
of share options to employess under the SMSOP, which are narmally exercisable between three and ten years from the date of grant, provided
the employee remains employed by the Group Individuals who participate in the SMSOP are not eligible 1o participate in the LTPP or ESOS,
therefore Executive Directors do not participate in the SMSOP There 1s currently no intention to make any further grants under the SMSOP The
options granted under the SMSOP in December 2008 (the '2009/10 SMS0P"), were subject to a ‘continued employment’ performance condition
The 2009/10 SMSOP vested on 10 December 20H2 and participants have until @ December 2019 10 exercise therr options

v) Executive Share Option Plan

In November 1997, the Company adopted the Executive Share Option Plan (the 'ESOP’) The grant of share options under the ESOP 1s at the
discretron of the Committee, taking intc account mdividual performance and the overall performance of the Group Options must be hefd for
a minmum of three years from the date of grant before they can be exercised and lapse If not exercised within ten years from the date of grant
The exercise of options granted under the ESOP 15 subject to the achievement of an objective performance condition set by the Committee
The ten year imit to grant options under the ESCP expired in November 2007 There will, theretore, be no further grants under the ESOP The
outstanding unexercised options granted under the ESOP in October 2003 must be exercised by 9 October 2013, otherwise they will lapse

vi) Employee Share Opton Ptan

In November 1929, the Company adopted an Employee Share Option Plan (the ‘Employee Plan’) The Board approved the grant of share optons to
employees under this Employee Plan, which are normally exercisable between three and ten years from the date of grant The exercise of the options
granted under the Employee Plan 1s subject to the achievement of an objective performance condition set by the Board, namely that the growth in the
basic earnings per share of the Company over a penod of three consecutive financial years should exceed the growth in the Retail Price index by at
least 9% Those who have paricipated in the ESOP do not participate in the Employee Plan The authortty to grant options under the ESOP expired on
10 Apnl 2010 (ten years from the date of the first grant under the Employee Plan), no further options will therefore be granted under the Employee Plan
The outstanding unexercised options granted under the Employee Plan on 14 May 2004 must be exercised by 13 May 2014, otherwise they will lapse

vi} Senior Management ingentive Plan

In May 2008, the Company adopted the Senior Management Incentive Plan 2008-2011 (the 'SMIP") The SMIP entitles participants to a cash
bonus inked to the Company’s share price, subject to the achievement of an objective performance condition set by the Committee There
are no outstanding awards under the SMIP and there 1s currently no intention to make any awards under the SMiP in the foresesable future

vin) Co-Investment Plan

The Co-Investment Plan {the ‘Plan’) was approved by shareholders at the Annual General Megting held in November 2005 and 1s currently utiised
to held shares awarded in respect of any bonus earned in excess of 100% of base salary There are no matching shares awarded agamst these
shares In previous years, any annual bonus earned above target was normally compulsonly deferred into shares held under this Plan
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29. Share-based payments (continued)

a) Details of the share-based payment schemes (continued)

viti} Co-Investment Plan (continued)

The Executive Directors also had the opportunity to voluniarily defer additional amounts of annual bonus up to a maximum of 25% of basic salary
into the Plan Further details are on page 62

1x) Semor Management Incentive Scheme

In October 2012, the Board adopted the Barratt Developments Senior Management Incentive Scheme (the 'SMIS') Awards under the SMIS

are at the discretion of the Board and must be held for a minimum of three years from the date of grant Executsve Directors and those individuals
directly below this level are not eligible to parbcipate in the SMIS Any award granted under the SMIS 1s subject to the earmings per share
performance condition as set for the LTPP granted in the same financial year Further detalls are on page 72

b) Qutstanding equity-settied share-based payments
At 30 June 2013, the following options were outsianding

Option Not
price 2013 exerclsable

Date of grant pence Number after
Executive Share Option Plan
10 October 2003 357 556,468 9 October 2013
Jotal Executive Share Option Plan options 556,468
Exgcutive ShareOptonScheme . ___
10 December 2009 {approved™) 118 8,350 9 December 2019
10 December 2009 {unapproved?) 121 1,584,054 9 December 2019
Total Executive Share Optton Scheme options 1,592,404
Senior Management Share Opton Plan - - ot
10 December 2009 (approved’) 118 1,296,395 9 December 2019
10 December 2009 (unapproved”) 121 553,649 g Dacember 2019
Total Senior Management Share Option Plan oplions 1,850,044
Employee Share Option Plan
14 May 2004 387 399,894 13 May 2014
Total Employee Share Option Plan options 399,894
Savings-Related Share Option Scheme
3March2ot0 116 _ 339738 _ 30 November 2013 _
29 March 2011 105 1,117,681 30 November 2014
28 March 2012 - 3 year plan 125 4,811,612 30 November 2015
28 March 2012 - 5 year plan 125 1,604,544 30 November 2017
27 Merch2013-3yearpan_ _ _ 205 27204481  30November2016_
27 March 2013 - 5 year plan 2056 371,360 30 November 2018
Total Savings-Related Share Option Schems options 10,539,414
Total share options 14,938,224
Long-Term Performance Plan _
14 Qctober 2010 - 5,441,830 -
20 October 2011 - 7,025,674 -
24 Qctober 2012 - 4,620,159 -
Total Long-Term Performance Plan awards 17,087,663
Co-Investment Plan _
18 Cctober 2011 - 123,474 -
12 October 2012 - 1,312,181 -
Total Co-Investment Plan awards 1,435,655
Senior Management Incentive Scheme
24 October 2012 - 525,879 -
Total Senior Management Incentive Scheme awards 525,879
Total 33,887,421

The Exacutive Shara Oplion Schems and the Senior Management Share Option Pian are divided into two sub schemes ona of which s approved under the Income Tax
{Earnings and Pansions) Act 2003 and the other which is not and the exercise price Is calculated ditterently for each sub scheme in accordance wilh the rules of the sub scheme

The exercise prices and the number of shares under option were adjusted following the Rights Issue in November 2009
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29. Share-based payments (continued)

c) Number and weighted average exercise price of outstanding share-based payments

The number and weighted average exercise prices of options issued under the Executive Share Option Plan were as follows

Weighted Weghted
average average
exercise 2013 exercise 2012
price n Number prce in Number
pence of options pence of options
Qutstanding at 1 July 344 679,983 333 1,186,487
Forfeited during the year 287 {123,515} 320 (506.504)
Qutstanding at 30 June 357 556,468 344 679,983
Exercisable at 30 June 357 556,468 344 679,983
The number and weighted average exercise prices of optons 1ssued under the Employee Share Option Plan were as follows
Waighted Weighted
average average
exercise 2013 exsicIse 2012
price m Number pricen Number
pence of options pence of options
Qutstanding at 1 July 387 417,801 380 497,065
Forfeited during the year 387 (17,907} 341 (79,264
Qutstanding at 30 June 387 399,894 387 417,801
Exercisable at 30 June 387 399,594 387 417,801
The number and weighted average exercise prices of awards made under the Long-Term Performance Plan were as foliows
Weighted Weighted
average 2013 average 2012
axercise MNumber exercise Number
price n of award price in of award
pence units pence unds
Outstanding at 1 July - 14,830,392 = 6,516,830
Forfeted dunng theyeer . - (2362888) - -
Granted during the year - 4,620,159 - 8,313,562
Qutstanding at 30 June - 17,087,663 — 14,830,392
Exercisable at 30 June - - - -
The number and weighted average exercise prices of options granted under the Executive Share Option Scheme ware as follows
Waeighted Weighted
average average
exercise 2013 exercise 2012
price n Number prece n Number
pence of options pence of options
OustandngatiJuy _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ __ __ ________ 120 _ 602302 69 __ 15699126
Foffeted dunngtheyear . _ . __12__ (4300841 _ 3 (6676,083)
Exeroised dunng the year 121 {129,697} - -
Outstanding at 30 June 121 1,592,404 121 6,023,042
Exercisabie at 30 June 121 1,592,404 - -
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29. Share-hased payments {continued)

c) Number and weighted average exercise pnce of outstanding share-based payments (continued)
The number and weighted average exercise prices of options granted under the Senior Management Share Option Plan were as follows

Welghted Weighted
average average
exercise 2013 axerctse 2012
price in Number price in Number
pence of options pence of options
QOutstanding at 1 July 119 3,630,197 119 3,834,687
Forfeted during the year 18 {20,417} 119 (204,490)
Exercised dunng the year 19 (1,758,73€) - -
Outstanding at 30 June 19 1,850,044 119 3,630,197
Exercisable at 30 June 119 1,850,044 - -
The number and weighted average exercise pnices of options granted under the Savings-Related Share Optron Scheme were as follows
Weighted Weighted
average average
axercise 2013 exercise 2012
price in Number pace n Number
pence of options pence of oplions
Qutstanding at 1 July 114 10,632,321 68 15,303,105
Forferted dunng the year 118 (570,433) 84 (1, 17.777)
Granted dunng the year 205 2,679,912 125 6,866,472
Exercised dunng the year 84 {2,202,386) 57 (10,448,479
Qutstanding at 30 June 143 10,539,414 114 10,632,321
Exercisable at 30 June 116 338,736 57 1,188,852
The numbar and weighted average award price of awards made under the Senior Management Incentive Plan were as follows
Weighted Werghted
average 2013 average 2012
exercise Number eXercisa Number
price in of award pneca n of award
pence units pence units
Outstanding at 1 July - - 57 7,850,718
Forferted during the year - - 57 (7.850.718)
Qutstanding at 30 June - - - -
Exercisable at 30 June - - - -
The number and weighted average award price of awards made under the Co-Investment Plan were as follows
Welighted Wesghted
average 2013 average 2012
exercise Number exercise Number
prece in of award prce n of award
pence units pence unis
OustendingatfJuly - — —_— e e e T 123,474 it _—
forfeited dunng the year - {26,078} - -
Exercised durng the year - - - 9,017)
Granted dunng the year - 1,338,259 - 132,491
Qutstanding at 30 June - 1,435,655 - 123,474

Exercisable at 30 June -
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29. Share-hased payments {continued)
6) Number and weighted average exercise pnce of outstanding share-based payments (continued}
The number and weighted average award price of awards made under the Senior Management Incentive Scheme were as follows

Weighted Weighted
average 2013 average 2012
exercise Number exXercise Number
price 1n of award pnce in of award
pence units pence Lnits
Qutstanding at 1 July - - - -
Forfetted dunng the year - (59,385) - -
Granted dunng the year - 585,264 - —
Qutstanding at 30 June - 525,879 - -

Exercisable at 30 June

The weighted average share price, at the date of exercise, of share options exercised during the year was 228 7p (2012 135 1p) The weighted
average Iife for all schemes outstanding at the end of the year was 2 3 years (2012 3 5 years}

d) Income statement charge

A charge to the iIncome statement has been made for the awards rssued on or after 7 November 2002 that had not vested at 1 January 2005

in accordance with IFRS 2 'Share-based Payments’

i} Savings-Related Share Option Scheme

The werghted average fair value of the options granted during 2013 was 111 8p (2012 37 7p) per award The awards have been valued using

a Black-Scholes model

The weighted average mputs to the Black-Scholes modet were as follows

Grants Grants

2013 2012

Average share price 274p 145p
Average exercise prce 205p 125p
Expected volatiity 46 6% 32 2%
Expected ife 37years 35years
Risk free interest rate 0 44% 077%
Expected dividends 1 50% 191%

Expected volatity was determmed by reference to the historical volatility of the Group’s share price over a period consistent with the expected Iife
of the options The expected life used mn the models has been adjusted, based on the Directors’ best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,

exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations

i) Long-Term Performance Plan

The weighted average far value of the options granted during 2013 was 160 6p (2012 50 Op)

The awards have been vatued using a Black-Scholes model for the earnings per share element of the scheme and a Monte Carlo model for

the total shareholder return element of the scheme

The weighted average inputs to the Black-Scholes and Mcnte Carlo models were as follows

Grants Grants

2013 2012

Average share price . 186p 86p
Average exercise prce - -

Expected volatity 45 0% 32 2%

Expected fe e i 30years 3 Byears

Risk free interest rate 046% 217%

Expected dvidends 075% 191%
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29, Share-based payments (continued)

d) Income statement charge {continued)

ui} Co-lnvestment Plan

The weighted average fair vatue of the optrions granted duning 2013 was 169 2p (2012 210p) per award The awards have been valued
by discounting the grant date share price for the dvidend yield

The weighted average inputs used to discount the share price were as follows

Grants Granis

2013 2012

Share price at valuabon date 177p 86p
Average exercise prce - -
Expected hie . 30years 30vyears
Expected dvidends 1 50% (074%

w) Senior Management Incentive Scheme
The weighted average fair value of the options granted dunng 2013 was 177 8p (2012 i} per award The awards have been valued using
a Black-Scholes model

The weighted average inputs to the Black-Scholes mode! were as follows

Grants Grants
2013 2012

Average share pnce 186p -
Average exercise pnce - -
Expected volatiity o L 450% -
Expected Iife 3 Dyoars -
Risk free interest rate 046% -
Expected dividends 1 50% -
30. Reserves
Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve represents the cumulative effective portion of deferred farr value gains or tosses on dernvative financial instruments that have
been designated as cash flow hedges by the Company, where the hedged cash fiows are stil expected to occur

Transfers to the hedging reserve in the penod equate to losses of £19m (2012 £211m) This loss compnses losses of £2 6m {2012 £€257m)
relating to interest rate swaps and gams of £0 7m (2012 £4 6m) on foreign exchange swaps

Transfers from the hedging reserve to the Income statement for the penod are gains of £6 7m {2012 £51m)

Transfers arose from continuing cash flow hedgeas of interest rate nisks and foregn exchange nsks where the hedged nisk impacted profit or loss
in the penod Of these costs, £8 5m (2012 £9 1m) related to hadged mterest cash flows and a loss of £2 8m (2012 £4 Om) related to hedged
foreign currency cash flows

Merger reserve
The merger reserve compnses the non-statutory premium ansing on shares issued as considerahon for the acquisiion of subsidianes where
merger relief under secticn 612 of the Companies Act 2006 applies

Own shares
The own shares reserve represents the cost of shares in Barratt Developments PLC purchased in the market and held by the EBT on behalf
of the Company in order to satisfy options and awards under the Company’s incentive schemes

Share-based payments reserve
The share-based payments reserve represents the obligation of the Group in relation 10 equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Parent Company income statameant

In accordance with the provisians of Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, a separate ncome statement for the Company has not been
presented The Company's profit for the year was £950 7m {2012 loss of £36 5m)
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31. Cash flows from operating actrvities

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Notes £m £m £m £m
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations 750 674 9507 (365
TX .. 288326 {227) (D)
Fnancemcome . ____ __ (28 (169 @53 (85
Finance costs —non-exceptoral . _______®8#8 977 547 731
Finance costs — exceptional _ 723 - __1m3 -
Didends received from subsidianes _ _ - - (1,024 5) -
Share of post-tex proft fom pomtventures . @y __ 08 _ ___ = __ -
Share of posttaxlossomassoctes _ ___  _ _ _ ________________ & ___ o - -
Loss on re-measurement of joint venture interest on acquisttion of controt - 107 - -
Profit/(loss) from operations 2499 1911 22 {96)
Depreciation — — o818 07 05
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (08) - - -
lmparment of nventones 18 128 66 - -
imparment of avallable for sale financial assets _ 16 61 18 - -
Imparrment of nvestment in subsidianes . 15 - - _ 29 -
Share-based payments charge o _ _ 29 _44 31 13 27
Imputed interest on deferred term land payables 5 (26 5) (28 8) - -
Imputed interest on avallable for safe financialassets 5% 02 20 - -
Amortsaion of fagiity fees _— __5 @8 @5 148 65
Imputed ntereston Kckstartequiyfundng _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 5 09 __ 02 - -
Write-off of previous facility unamortised fees 5 (78} — {7 8) -
Finance (costsyincome related to employee benefits 5,27 {0 5) 12 {0 5) 12
Total non-cash tems {4 0) 42 (8 0) 09
Decrease in nventores - . - e 40 nr - -
(ncreaselidecrease m trade and otherrecevables _ __ __  _ _ _ __ _ _________ (283 _ 140 __ (3034 2415
(Decreasel/ncrease in trade and other payables e _(B24) (399 M99 @15
Decreasef{increase) in avaiiable for saie financial assets 227 (350} - -
Total movements in working capital (29 0) 108 {273 5) 2200
interest paud (52 0) 603 (51.8) {687
Tax receved 09 39 09 -
Net cash mflow/{outflow) from operating activities 1658 1497 (330 2) 1426

The balance sheet movements in tand and available for sale financial assets Include non-cash movements due to imputed mterest

Imputed interest 1s therefore Included within non-cash items in the note above
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32. Operating lease obligations

a) The Group as lessee

At 30 Jung 2013, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating feases
which fall due as foliows

Group
2013 2012
Land and tand anc
buiidings Other bLildings Other
£m £m £m £m
Within one year o o . 136 68 10 50
More than one year and no later than five years 244 71 209 41
In five years or more 277 - 54 -
657 139 365 91

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain office properties and motor vehicles Motor vehicle leases
have an average term of 1 8 years (2012 17 years) to expiry Property leases have an average term of 1 4 years (2012 1 9 years) to expiry

At 30 June 2013, the Company had outstanding commitments for future mimimum lease payments under non-canceflable operating leases,
which fall due as follows

Company
2013 2012
Land and Lang and

buildings Gther builcings Cther

£m £m £rn £
Within cne year . o _ e _ . 07 08 08 04
More than one year and no later than fiveyears S — - .21 o8 20 03

In five years or more - - 01 -

28 14 27 Q7

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Gompany for certain office propertigs and motor vehicles Motor vehicle leases
have an average term of 1 8 years (2012 15 years) to expiry Property leases have an average term of 4 2 years (2012 51 years) to expiry

b) The Group as lessor
Property rental income earned during the year was £2 6m (2012 £3 4m)

The Group has lease agreements with third parties for certan commerciat properties, either in the process of development or which have been
developed by the Group, and units on land to be subsequently developed for residential use 1t 1s intended that the commercial properties, with
their future rentat Income, will be sold to third parties i the normal course of business and therefore they are classified as work in progress untl
the date of sale At 30 June 2013, these properties had a carrying vaiue of £13 5m (2012 £14 4m), and land with rental units had a carrying value
of £3 2m (2012 £5 6m) At 30 June 2013, these rental agreements had an average term of 18 years (2012 2 6 years) to expiry and total rental
recenvables over the remaining lease period are £7 5m {2012 £6 9m) with £1 8m (2012 £2 2m) within one year, £4 Om (2012 £3 9m) in more than
one year and no later than five years, and £1 7m (2012 £0 8m) n five years or more

33. Acquisitions
in the year ended 30 June 2C12 the Group made the following acquisition

In 20086, the Group entered into a joint venture agreement to develop sites in Greater Manchester including one in Hattersley The Group's mterest
comprnsed 50% of Base Regeneration LLF and its subsidianies, Base East Central Rochdale |LLP, Base Hattersley LLP and Base Wernath
Cldham LLP The Group's joint venture partner went into hquidation in March 2012 and on @ May 2012 the Group acquired its 50% share for £1
Following this transaction, the Group wholly owns these entities In accordance with IFRS 3 (Revised) ‘Business Combinations', the Group has
disposed of its share n the joint venture and acquired the entities as subsidiaries The total cost of Investmeant 1o the Group of the 100% equity
holding was £25 5m On consolidation the Group reviewed the farr value of the assets and labilities of the entiies acguired This resulted in a foss
on re-measurament of the joint venture nterest on acquisiton of control of £10 7m in the year ended 30 June 2012 The cash inflow in respect

of this acquisition during the year ended 30 June 2012 was £1 6m, which 1s net cf consideration of £1 paud to Artday LLP

In accordance with IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’, the Directors have reviewed the cperations, assets and labiities of Base Regeneraticn and

s subsidianes during the year to assess whether there 1s any requirement to adjust the farr values appled on acguisiion This review resulted n
no requirement to change the acquisition farr values of Base Regeneration and its subsidianes
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34, Contingent habilities
a) Contingent iabilihes retated to subsidianes
The Company has guaranteed certan bank borrowings of its subsidiary undertakings

Certan subsidiary ungdertakings have commitments for the purchase of trading stock entered into in the normal course of business

In the normal course of business, the Group has given counter Indemmities in respect of performance bonds and financial guarantees
Management estimate that the bonds and guarantees amount to £447 5m (2012 £424 8m), and confirm that at the date of these financial
statements the possibility of cash outflow 1s considered minimal and no provisian 1s required

b) Contingent habilities related to jont ventures
At 30 June 2013, the Group has an obligation to repay £0 9m (2012 £0 9m) of grant monies recewved by a joint venture upon certain future
disposals of land

During the year, the Group provided bank guarantees to the value of £2 6m (2012 £nil) to one of s joint ventures

The Group also has a number of performance guarantees in respact of its joint ventures, requiring the Group to complete development
agreement contractual oblhgations in the event that the joint ventures do not perform therr abligatrons under the terms of the related contracts

¢} Contingent liabilities related to associates
During the year, the Group provided bank guarantees to the value of £nil (2012 £2 8m) to one of ts associates

d) Contingent hiabilities refated to subsidianes, joint ventures and associates

Prowvision 1s made for the Directors' best estimate of all known material legal clams and all legal actions in progress The Group takes fegal advice
as to the Iikelihood of success of claims and actons and no provision 1s made {other than for legal costs) where the Directors consider, based

on such advice, that claims or actions are unikely to succeed, or a sufficiently reliable estmate of the potential obligations cannot be made

Barratt Amencan Incorporated

A former indirect subsidiary of the Company, Barratt Amencan Incorporated (‘Amenican’), i1s one of a number of defendants in a construction
defect clam commenced n Califormia The Company has also been named as a defendant in this construction defect clam, as well asin a
separate class action claim which anses out of the same alleged facts Amencan was sold in August 2004 and subseguently became insolvent,
although it has sigrificant msurance and 1s represented by counsel

The majorty of the events In Issue In the construction case post-date the 2004 sale of Amencan and the Company asserts that 1 had no
invoivernent in these post-sale events The Company and the Directors believe that the Company has good defences to this claim, although the
outcome remains uncertain and may not be known for some time, as no trial date has yet been set The Company has been successful in having
the claims against it In the separate class action dismissed, although the plaintiffs in that case have appealed against the dismissal of their clams
That appeal wil: be considered by the California Court of Appeal and the outcome will also not be known for some time

35. Related party transactions

a) Remuneration of key personnel

Disclosures related to the remuneration of key personnel as defined in IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ are given :n note 9 Thare 1s no difference
between transactions with key management persennel of the Company and the Group

b} Transactions between the Company and its subsidianies

The Company has entered into transactions with its subsidiary undertakings :n respect of funding and Group services (which include management
accounting and audit, sales and marketing, IT, company secretanal, architects and purchasing} Recharges are made to the subsidianes based

on utilisation of these services

The amount outstanding to the Company from subsidiary undertakings at 30 June 2013 totalied £969 6m {2012 £556 4m)

Dunng the year ended 30 June 2013, the Gompany made management charges to subsidiaries of £44 3m (2012 £33 9m) and recerved net
interest on Group loans frem subsidianes of £32 3m (2012 £25 4m)

The Company and Group have entered into counter-ndemrities in the normal course of business in respect of performance bonds
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35. Related party transactions (continued}

¢) Transactions between the Group and its joint ventures

The Group has entered into transactions with its joint ventures in respact of development management services {(with charges made based on
the utihisation of these services) and funding These transactions totalled £2 5m {2012 £2 1m) and £1 2m (2012 £2 0m) [n addition, one of the
Group's subsiciaries, BDW Trading Limited, contracts with a number of the Group's joint vertures to provide construction services and available
for sale financial assets were sold by BDW Trading Limited to one of the Group's joint ventures at a valuation of £59 2m

The amount of outstanding loans and interest due to the Group from 1ts joint ventures at 30 June 2013 15 disclosed in note 14 The amount
of other outstanding payables to the Group from its jont ventures at 30 June 2043 totalled £ril (2012 £nil) The Group has provided bank
guarantees to the value of £2 8m (2012 £nil) in relation to one of its joint veniures during the year

The amount of outstanding toans due to the Company from its joint ventures at 30 June 2013 1s disclosed in note 14 The Company has provided
no guarantees to its joint venture

d) Transactions between the Group and its associates

The amount of outstanding loans due to the Group from 1ts asscciates at 30 June 2013 was £nil 2012 £0 3m) The amounts outstanding
are unsecured and will be settled in cash The Group has prowvided bank guarantees to the value of £nil (2012 £2 8m) in refaton to one
of its associates duning the year There were no other amounts outstanding to the Group from 1ts associates at 30 June 2013

¢€) Property purchase by a Director of Barratt Developments PLC
The Board and certain members of semor management are related parties within the definiron of IAS 24 (Revised) ‘Related Party Disclosures’
and Chapter 11 of the UK Listing Rules There 1s no difference between transactions with key personnel of the Company and the Group

During the year, the Company entered into the following ‘related party transaction as defined under IAS 24

= In Aprit 2013, the son of Mark Clare, Group Chief Executive of the Company, reserved and exchanged on an apartment from Alie Street LLP,
a jont venture entity between BDW Trading Limited (the Company's main trading subsidiary} and London and Quadrant Housing Trust, at a
purchase price of £744,246 Ags at 30 June 2013, £669,821 remains cutstanding on this transaction, which will become due on legaf completion

This purchase was conducted at a farr and reasonable market price based on similar comparable transactions at that time
There have been no ‘smaller related party transactions’ as defined in Listing Rule 111 10R for the year ending 30 June 2013

) Property purchases by Directors of BDW Trading Limited
The Board and certain members of senior management are related partes within the defintion of IAS 24 (Revised) ‘Related Party Disclosures’
and Chapter 11 of the UK Listing Rules There 1s no difference between transactions with key personnel of the Company and the Group

There have been no ‘smaller related party transactions' as defined in Listing Rule 11 1 10R for the year ending 30 June 2013

During the prior year, the Group entered into the following 'smalier related party transactions’ as defined in Listing Rule 111 10R

* |n November 2011, the partner of Gary Ennis, a Director of the Company’s main trading subsidiary company, BOW Trading Limited (BDW?),
purchased an apartment from BODW at a purchase pnce of £242,250

» in December 2011, the spouse of Richard Brooke, a Director of BDW, purchased three properties from BDW at a combined purchase price
of £231,950

« In February 2012, the son of Douglas McLeod, a Director of the Company’s Scottish trading entity, BDW North Scotiand Limited {formerly
BDW East Scotland Limited) (‘North Scotland?), purchased an apartment from North Scotland at a purchase price of £176,025

Each of the aforementioned purchases was conducted at a far and reasonable market price based on similar comparable transactions at that
time There were no amounts outstanding at 30 June 2012 ¢r 30 June 2013 1n relation to these transactions

36. Post balance sheet events
The Group prepaid £151 9m of private placement notes, together with the associated foreign exchange swaps, on 2 July 2013 as it was
committed to as part of the comprehensive refinancing package agreed on 14 May 2013 Further details of the refinancing are provided in note 3

On 15 August 2013 the Group entered into a joint venture, Enderby Wharf LLP, with Morgan Sianley Real Estate Investing

The Group has agreed terms on a £50m two year term loan, which it sxpects to be avalable from 1 October 2013
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FIVE YEAR RECORD, FINANCIAL CALENDAR, GROUP ADVISERS AND
COMPANY INFORMATION

FIVE YEAR RECORD

2013 2012 201 2010 2009
Giroup revenue (Em) _ — ———— ... 26082 23234 20354 20352 22852
Profit/loss) before tax (£m) 1048 1000 (115  (1629)  (6789)

Share caprtal and equity €m)
Per ordinary share
Basic earningsAloss) per share (pence'} 77 70 4 (a5

. 30732 29738 29301 29002 23316

891

Dividend {intenm paid and final proposed (pence)) 25 - - - -
t Eamings per share for the year ended 30 June 2009 was adjusted 16 reflect the Rights issue on 22 September 2009 as required by tAS 33 ‘Earnings per Share'

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

The following dates have been announced or are indicative of future dates

Announcement

2013 Annual General Mesting and Intenm Management Statement ____ _  __ _ __ ______13November2013
2013/14 Intenm/half year results e February 204
Intertim Management Statement May 2014
2013/14 Annual Results Announcement September 2014

GROUP ADVISERS
Registrars

Caprta Registrars

The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent

BR3 4TU

Registered Auditor
Deloitte LLP
London

Solicitors
Siaughter and May

Brokers and Investment Bankers
Credrt Suisse Secunties (Europe} Limited
UBS Investment Bank

COMPANY INFORMATION

Registered In England and Wales Company number 604574
Registered address Barratt House, Cartwnght Way, Forest Business Park, Bardon Hill, Coalvilie, Leicestershire LEGY 1UF




REGISTERED OFFICE

Barratt Developments PLC
Barratt House
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Leicestershire

LE6G7 tUF
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